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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains statements that we helieve are, or may be considered to be, “forward-looking statements " within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993, All statements other than statementy of histovicel fact included in this Anmual Report rLgardmg the prospecty of our
industry or our prospects, plans. financial pmmon or.business srafegy. may Lr)mfifuic.ﬁ;mard {ooking statements. in addition, ﬁm«.md Icokmg stafements
generally can be lrfermf Ted by Ihe use of, fomard—!oakmg worels such as"may, " "Will,” "expect,” “intend.” eximate,” “foresee,” "praject,” “anticipaie,”
"helieve:” "plans,” "forecasts, " Feantinue” or “could” or the negatives of these 1ermy or variations of them or similar terms. Furthermore, suih forward-
looking siatemerits may be rnduden' in variouy filings that we make with the SEC ar press releases or.aral siatements made by or with the agproval nf ane of
our authorized execwiive afficers. Alihough we believe that the e\'per.-m!wm reﬂc’cled in these jbru card-looking siatements are reasonahle,-wi'cannot assure
youthar these expectations will prove.to be vorrect. These forward-tooking statemicnts.are subject to Gertain known and unknenwn risks and uncertainties, as
well a¥ assumprions that cotld cause acrual results to di _[Tr:r ma!enal!v Jfrom .'hme reflected in these forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause
actual results. 1o differ.include, but are not limited 1o, those discus. sed.inthe section eniitled "Rivk Fuciors” heginning on page'l | of this report. Reailers are
cautioned not 1o place lmu'm: refiance on any forward- qukmg staqréments containid kerein, which reﬂec.' managemmrs opiniony anly as of the dale hercuf
Excépt as required by law, we undertake no obligation io revisg or publicly refeasd the results of any revision (o any forward- liaking statemenis, You are
advised,:however, to consilt oniy ailditional disclosires we make in OME I pam tu.the SEC. All subsequent writien and oral forward-fooking statements
atiributable 1o us or persony acting on our behalf are expressly q:m}'y’?ed in their entirety hy the camtionary '..ralr.mams contained in'this Annual Repori.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are aleading developer, owner and operator of regional’ gnmmg facilities and related dining, lodging and entertainment facilities in the United States.
We currently own and operate 13 gaming and entertainment facilitics in'Louisiana, Mlsuss:ppn Missouri, fows; Colorado and-Florida. Collcctively, these
propertics feature approximately 14,000 stot machines and over, 330, table games (incinding dpproximately 90. paker tables) over 3,000 hotel rooms and more
thian 45 restaurants. We also operate a hamessacing track at our casino in Flofida, Our portfulio of properues prowdes us wlth adiv erse geographic footprint
that minimizes géographically coneentrated risks caused by wésther, regional economié difficulties, gamiing tax rates and regulations imposed by local

gaming authorities::

We operate primarily undet two brands, Isle and Lady Luck. Isle-branded facilities are generallyin larger markeéts with g larger regional draw and offer
expanded amenitics, whereas Lady Luck- branded facilitics are lypuu]]y in'smallér markets drowing primarily-from u Jecal customeér base. Qur senior
management team Tys over 20¢ collective years of experience spanning 20 States; and multipte foreign _;unsdlcunns This team has established and executed
aghinst a srategic plan for growlh focusing on three core principles, k4. refined fiscal discipline, (2) resty[cd castomer experiences, and (3) a renewed asset

base. 7 .

I Refineid Fiveal D:.sup!me—Wc belicve that our business benefits from a cost-effective approach 10 creating valuable customer experiences ahd a
stronger balance sheet. We focus on fiscal dlSClpllne by utilizing technology and our customer rescarch platform, respansibly rcducmg our cost structure and
identifying opportunijties for opcrzmng efficiencies at our properties.

Over the past four fiscal years, since currear management joined the Company, we have wduued our debt by approximately S350 million, or 23%, and
_reduced owr leverage mtio through the dlstlpilmd zpplication of our free cash flow and a serics of!mam,mg transactions incleding rctirmg approximatcly
$143 million of dcbt through a wender offer for approximately SS'i millian,-a'$51 million equity offering, a senior notes offering and an extensian of our seniar
secured credit fucility. We plan to maintainthis discipline lhmu;,h continued efforts to further reduce our.overhead costs, achieving operating efficiencics by
rezligning our casino floors, and .Jpplvmg, cost diseipline in the evaluation and execution of future capita! projecis.

and entertainment experiences that are designed 1o exceed customer. expectations-in a clegn, sate, friendly and fun environment. We have introduced
initiatives 1o increase customer time on device, refreshed severa] of our-casino floors, and introduced an improved loyaity program, dnd have introduced
several targeted nan-gaming amenities.

2. Restvled Customer Experierces—We focus on customer satisfaction and delivering superior girest experiences by providing popular gaming, dining

These non-gaming amenities have included the development of several custom food, beverage, and enwertainment offerings, lncludmg the muodm:uon of
Lone Wolf bars and Otis and Henry's restaurants, a new buffet concept called Farmer's Pick; focused on locntly -sourced, fresh food and 4 live entertainment
sefivs, Jester’s Jam. In fiscal 2013, we expect o add additional Farmer's Pick Buffets, new Otis and Henry's feftaurams and Lone Wolf bars across several of
vur properties, and 10 complete the introduction ot our enhahedd eustumer Joyalty program, the Fan Club, of dur remaining propeities aimed o wiract new
custoniers and increase visitation,

3. Rencwed dsset Buse—We believé our long-term success.will depend substantially upan increasing the quality, reach and scope of our operiting
portfolio, including new-build developments, acquisitions, rébranding projects and, wherc.appropriate, assct sales, Recently we Have fenovated the
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gaming tloars a1 our Luke Charles, Louisizna and Black Hawk, Colorado prapentics. Currently We are‘in the process of renoviting hotel rooms at each of
these locations,

We have completed the Lady Luck rebrunding of our facilities in Marqueétte, [ow.: Caruthersville, Missouri and one of our two facifities in Bldck Hawk,
Colorada. We currently are n:bmndmg Rainhow Casino in VJcl\sbu.rg, Mlsmslppn 10 a Lady Luck and ‘éxpect to be completed by the cnd of the second quarter
of fiscal 2013. We anticipate ebranding additional facitities-in the fmum

“We were selected by regulatory agencies 1o devi velop an. Isle-branded %135 million gaming: and emcnmnmem facility in Cape Girardeau, Missouri; as well
as a'Lady Luck-branded facility at Nemacolin Woodlands Resart in Faycnc Counry, Pennsylvania. Subject to regulatory approval we apticipate epening onr
facility in Cape Girardeau by November 1; 2012. An appedl has been filed by one of.the other app]xcnms regardmg the selection by the Pennsylvania Gaming

‘Board to award’ a casino to the facm:y at Ncmacolm Woodlands Resort, The appeal’ i§ under consldcrauon by the Penasylvania Suprcmc Couri. No date has

been determitied for an cxpected niling or the ultimate resolution,of the matter, Following a cucccqcful resplution 10 the appea! and the receipt of any
necessary regulamry or other approvals, we anticipate constrction on the fauhty wonld take apprmnmately nine months.

During:ﬁst,a] 2012, we:sold one of our.two riverboat licenses in Lake Charles, Louisiafa and ertéred into an agreement to sell our facility in Biloxi,
Mississippi for approximately $45 million. We expect the sale of the Biloxi facnlrty to close by the end of Summer 2012,

In addition to the items discussed above; we plan to continue to refresh our hole] roath praduct, pursue third-party deve]opmem partners for additional

‘hotel and feéstaurant concépts, consider opportunjstic monetization of non-core operating assets and rehovate select facilities to improve our product offcnngs

3
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Casino Properties

The tollowing is an overview of our existing casino properties as of April 29,20t 2:

Date Acquired or- Slot “Tghle  Hoted  Parking
Pronern Opened Machines ‘ Camés _Rooms _ Spaces
Loutsiand 3 e L el Ll PR T Rt R i EEPIFNTEDY
Lake Clwrles . . lu]y ]995 1,275
Mississippi_ &2 e ot W m RGE o O ORI
Lula B ' _ March 2000 17024
EiNichezy 250 ga o et March 2000 « o2t o583n
Vickshiirg Juue 2010 695 -
'M’i{\muf,’f‘ P N e ‘3 i N — :
Kansas Cny Jum. "000 l 08I 70 — 1 ;713
Eﬁoﬂnwlln oL g e o G o 14035 1] '—Eﬂ
Camihacrs‘nlle - " Iune ”007 595 16 — IOOQ
e A I I AR A T A ST AR ERAS S RSP
Bcnendorf_ i . March2000 988 22" 514 203?
T Rbgihs Gty Davenpone . =¥ r T e s0cober 2000 . Aoy 1931 13 . = o ‘gj"f]
Marquette - ) March- 200 7000 . 390 7 = 420,
[ Waterlooote_zerr s - 0 " s X Thane 2007 - v 1,013 - 21 195___1.500)
Calgrato
E-.isle.Casino Hotel- Bmck Hawk .~ = ;* “wDecember 19980070 < & 957 31 738 .1,100]
Lady Luck Casmo Black Hawk Apnl vum ] 16 164 1,200
e RELI = . kg s
‘Florida ¥ - T P P IV S PR P A A o
Pompano’ Park_ July 1995/Apnl 2007 1,454 38 — ' 3,800
e T R T AR T 06A 208 237020432

Assets Held for.Sh]e_ . .
[ Biox I Mississippiz.__ . ; T AU G03 . e e t36E .38, 709 1.512]
13784 336 3,079 21,944

Louisiana
Lake Charles

Our Lake Charles property commenced operations in July:1995 and is located on-y 19-acre site along Intersiate-10; the main thordughfare connecting
Housmn Texas w0 Lake Charles, Losisiana. In February 2012 we consolidated our ' GaImling operations onto one gammg vessel offering 1,275 stot machines,
48 table games, 8 poker tables, two hotels of’fenng 7 493 roams; a 105 000" square tnm land-based pavilion and entertaininent center, and 2,335 parking spaces,
mcludmg approximatcly 1,400 spaces in an attached- p'\rkmg garage. The pavilion and entertainment ceiter offer customers a wide variety of non-gaming
amenities, including a 109-seat Otis & Henry's réstaurant, o 290-seat Calypsi's buifit, a 6d-seur Lucky Wins Asmn-msplrcd restaurait; which also includes a
grab and po deli, and Caribbean Cnve featwring frec live enterfainment aid cin accommodate-180 | guests. The. pavilion also has 214,750 square foot
enn.nammcm cenicr comprised of a+1,100-scat spcma] events center dc:mncd for concents; banguets and other events, meeting facilities and administrative
offices.

The Lake Charles market curremly consisis of two dockside gaming' fac:]mc: ‘a’Native American casino and-a pani-mutuel facility/racino. The current
number of slot machines in the market is approximately 7,804 machines, and. nb]c games are approximately, 240 tables. in calendar year 2011, the two gaming
tacllmcs and one racino, in the agpregate, generaied gaming revenges of appmumnlcly 3673 million. Rr:\. enues for the Native Arerican pmperly are not
pubhshed G.:mmg revenues for our




Tabl¢ of Contents

Lake Charles property for catendar year 2011 weére approximately $142 million. Lake Charles is the closest gaming market to the Houston metropolitan area,
which has o population ofapprunmme]y 5.5 million and is-located ap;aruumalciy 140 miles west of Lake Charles. We bchevc that our Lake Charles property
anracts customers primarily from southeast Texas, inchuding Houston, Beaumont, Ga]vebl(]ll Orange and Port-Arthur and-from local area residents.
Approximatély’500,000 and 1.6 million people reside within'50 and 100 miles; ;espect:»c]):, of the Lake Charles property.

Aississippi ’

Lula

Our Lula propenty, which we acquired in March 2000, is strategically.located uffof nghu.dy 49, the only] mad crossmg the Mississippi River.between
Mls'uS:.lppl and Arkansas for more than 50 milcs in either direction. lhc propery cons:sls of twa dockside casmos containing 1,024 slot machiries and 23
table giities, o on-site hotels with a total of 485 fodms, a land: based pavilion and entertainment center,’ly 611 parking spaces, and'a 28% “space RV Park. The-
pavilion and entertainment center offer a wide varicty of non-gaming amenities; mcludlng a l”"—scnt Fusraddays' restaurant, a 283-seat Calypso's buffet and a
35-seat decwmds Marketplace, and a gift shop A

Our Lula property is the only geming facility. in Coahoma County, Misaiséibpi and gencrated net gaming revenues of approximately $56 million in
calendar year 2001, Lila draws a significant amount of business from the Litle Rock, Arkansas metropolitan area, which has a popu]auon of approximately
710,000 and is located approximately 120 miles west of the property. Coahoma Coumy is also located appmumale}v 60 miles soulh\\ est of Memphis,
Tennessee, which is primarily served by nine casinos in Tunica County, Mi 1ssns<1pp1 Approxnmd:e]y 1.1°million peaplé reside within 60 miles of the propefiy.
Lula alse competes with Native American casinos in Oklaboma and a racino in West Memphis, Arkansas.

Natchez

-Our Natchez property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located off of Highways 84 and 61 in western Mississippi: The property consists ofn
dockside casino offering 383 slot machines and 9 tble games, a 141-room off-site hotel located approximately one mite from the casino, a 150:seat Calypso's
bufiet and 643 parking spaces.

Our Naichez property is currently the only ganiing facility in the Natchiez market and generated total gamm;, revenues of approximately $29 miltion in
calcndar year 2011, We believe tha the Natchez property atracts cusiomers: pnmanly from’' among the approximately 350,000 people residing within 60 miles
of the Naichez property.

l"r:c'k\'ﬁjrg
CQr Vicksbuig property, which we acquired in June 2010, is located off Interstate 20 and Highway 61 in westémn sts::smpn approximately 30 miles
west of Jackson, Mississippi: The property consisis af'a dockside casino offering 695 slot machines and eight lable games, a 224-seat Riverview Ruffet, a-26-
seat Crossraads Deli and 977 parking spaces.

"Ihe Vicksburg market consists of five dockside casinos which generated total gaming revenues ofapproxlmntf:iy $26! million in calendar year 2011,
Qur Vlcksbu:g property generated gaming revenues of approximaltely $40 million in calendar year 201 l Approximately 700,000 people reside within
60 miles of the property. .

Uh
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Missouri

Kansay City

Our Kansas City propesty, which we acq-.i.ircd in June 2000, is the closest: paming facility to downtawn Kansas City and consists af a dockside cagino
offering'1 08} slot machines'and 20 table games, a 202-seat Calypso's butfer,a 176-seat L.one Wolf restaurant, a 32-seat deewmdq Marketplace and 1,715
parking spaces.

The Kansas City market consists of four dockside gaming facilitics, i land- based facility which opened in February 2012 and a Native American casing.
Operating statistics for the Native American casino dre not published. The four.dockside gaming: facilities generated gaming revenues of approximately
$710 million i in calenidzr year 201¢. Our Kaiigas City firopérty gcncmted gaming revenues of approximately $85 million during célendar year 2011, We
believe that our Kansas. City casind attracts customers primarily from-the Kansas (‘ny metropolitan area; which has approximately 1.9 million residents

Boonville

Our Boonville property, which opencd in December. 2001, is located thiree niiles off Imerstate 70, approximately halfway between Kansas City and
St. Louis. The property con::sts of a single level docLs:de casing oﬂ‘cnng 940 siot machines, 19 table games, a.140-room hotel, a 32, 400 square foot pavilion
and entertainment cenier and’1,101 parking spaces in Fcbmaly 2012 the Company launched a new branded Testaurant within the Boonville propesty pavilion,
The Farmer's Pick buffet. The newly renovated 201 -scat festatirnt featiires ]otally sonrced food producis that are prepared at action stations in:view of the
guests_[n addition, the pavilion and entenrtainment center also offers customers a-wide variety of other non-gaming amenities, mcludmg an 83-seat Farraddays'
-restaurant, a-36-seat Tradewinds Marketplace, an 800 seat event center, and o historic display area. Our Boonville property is the only gammg facility:in
central Missouri and gcncmled gammg revenues of ﬂppm)umatc]v $82 fillion in calendar vear 2011, ‘We beheve that our Bonmll]e casinao attracts custamers
primarily from the approximately 580,000 peaple.who reside within 60 milés of the property which ineludes the Columbia and Jefferson City:areas.

Caruthersiille

Ohir Caniithersvillé propeny Was atquired in June 2007 and is a'riverboit-casino 16cated along the Mississippi River in Southeast Missouri. The dockside
casino offers 395 sl mm,hmes, 1 Lrable’games and 3 poker tables. The property offers a 40,000 square fooi pavilion, which includes a 130:seat Lone Wolf
restavrant, bar and lounge and a 270-scat Otis & Henry's restaurant. The property also operates a 10 000 square Tool cxposition center with seating for up to
£,100 patrons and has 1,000 parking spaces. Our Caruthersville facility.is the only casing located:in Southeast Missouri and generated gaming revenues of
approximately $33 mitlion in calendar year, 2011, Approximately 650,000 people reside within 60 miles of the property.

lowa

Bentendorf
Our Benendorf property was ﬂl_ql.ul'(.‘d in March 2000 and is located off of Interstate 74, an interstate iughway serving the Quad Citics metopolitan are,
which consists of Bettendorf and Davcnpon lowa and Moline and Rock lcland, iHinois. The propenty consists of 3 dockside casino oﬁcrmg 988 slot

machines, 18 _table games, 4.pokér tables, 514 hotel rooms, 40, 008 square fect ofﬂuxlhlc convention/banquet space, a-120-scat Farraddays' sestaurant, a 260-
seat Calypso s buifet, a 24-scat Tradewinds. \IarLetp]dc: and 2,057 parking spaces. We have eniered into agreements with the

- 6
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City of Bettendorf, lowa.under which we manage and provide financial and npc.ralmg support for the QC Watcifront Convention Center that js adjacent to our )
hotel: The QC Waterfront Convention Center opened in January 2009.

Davenport

Our Duvenport property, which we acquired in October 2000, is Jocated-at the intersection of River Dnve and Highway 61, a state highway serving the
Quad Cities metropolitan area. The property consists of a duckside gaming facility offering 931 slot machlncs 14 table games, a 209-sext Hit Parade buffet, a
Grab-n-Go food outlet and 211 parking spaces.

"The Quad Cities metropolitan area currentiy has lhrec gaming Opcratmns—our wo gammg facilities in Beriendorf and Davenport, and a larger land-
based facility, inciuding a hotel, which opened’in December 2008, The three operauom inthe Quad Cmcs generated totak gnmmg revenues of apprnxlmately
SZ!’ million in calendar year 2011. Our Betiendorf and Davenport propertics penerated casino révenues for calendar year 2011 of approximately $77 miltion
and ‘549’ nu]lmn respecuvcly Our operations-in the Quad Cities also compete mth other gaming operations in inois and lowa. Approximately
9"?3,000 people reside within 60 miles of our Bettendorf and Davenpornt prqp_cmcﬁ

Marqueite

Our Marquette pmpcny, which we acquired in March 2000, is located in- MdrqumL lowa; approximately 60 miles nonh of Dubuque, lowa. The property
consists of a dockside casino off Tering 590 slot machines and 7 table games; a maring and 430 parking spaccs. The ﬁxc;hty ias rebranded as a'Lady Luck
casino in fiscal 2010 and includes a 142-seatl buffet restaurant, a | 5-seat Otis‘and Henry's Express food outlet and a 155-seat Lone:Wolf restaurant and bar.

"Our. Marquette property is the only gaming facility in the Mdlqlll..m. towa marker and penerated gaming revenues of approximately $30 million in
calendar year 201 1. We believe most of our Marquette customers are from nartheast Jowa and Wisconsin, which includes approximately 490,000 peop]c
within 60 miles of aur property, and we compete for those customers with other- gauning facilitiés b Dubiigiue, [owa and Native American casinos in
sonthwestern Wisconsin.

Waterlon
Our Waierloo property opened on June 30, 2007 and is located adjacent to ll:ghwny 2i% and US 20°'in Waterloo, lowa. The property consists of a single-
level casino offering 1,013 slot machines, 23 table games and ™4 poker tables. The pmpeny als offers a wide variety ofnomgammg amenities, including a
| 18-scat Otis & Henry's restaurant, 2205-scat buffet, a 44-sear Tradewinds marketplace, Club Capri Louiige; Fling feature biar, 5 000 square feet of meeting
space, 1,500 parking spaces and a 195-room Hated, which includes 27 suites, as well as an indoot pool and hot tub area:

Our Waterloo property is the anly gaming facility in the Watcrloo, lowa markct and | approximatety 640,000 people live within 60 milcs of the property.
We compete with ather casinos in eastern-lowa. We generated gaming revenoes of’ apprmumatc]y $82'million'in calendar year 2041

Colorado N

Isle Casing Horel-Black Hawk

Isle’ Casifio Hotel-Black Hawk commenced operations in December 1998; i 16<ited on'an ipproximately. 210:acre site and is one of the first gaming
facilities reached by customers armiving from Denver via Highway. 119, the main thnmughlare connecting Deriver 1o Black Hawk. The property i inctudes a
land-based casino with 957 slot machines, 24 standard able games, a 7 table poker roam;,'a 238-room hotel and 1,100 parking Spaces in'an  anached parking
garage. Isk Casino Hotel-Black Hawk
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also offers customers three restaurants, inctuding a 128-seat Farraddays' restaurant, a 270-seat Calypso's buffer and a'42-seat Tradewinds Marketplice.
Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk

Lady Lnck Casino-Black Hawk, which we acquired in April 2003 and rebranded in June 2009, is located across the intersection of Main Strect and Mill
Street from the Isle Casino Hotel- Black Hawk. The property consists 6f a land:6ased éasino with-522 slot machines, 10 stundard aablc games, 6 poker tables, a
[64:room hotel that opened in December 2003 and 1,260, pdrkmg spaces in our parking structure Lumwc.lmg tsle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk and Lady. Luck
Cagirio-Black Hawk. The property also offers guests dining in a 93-seat Otis' & Henry's restourant as wellas a gmb—and -go fast serve food cant that is located
in the main level of the facility: The property has also reu:mly (,(_m,vcr_lql approximately. 2,250 square feet of space to flex space 1hat can be used for mectings
and special events. Our Black:Hawk sites are connected via sky bridges.

\Vhen casings havmg multiple gaming Jicenses in the same.binilding are combined, the Black Hawk/Central City market consists of 24 gaming facilities
(sevenof Wh]Ch have more than 600,slot machines), which in ageregate, generated gaming revenues of approximately $619 miltion in calenday year 2011
Our Black HawL propcrms gcncralcd casine revenucs forcalendar year 2011 of approximately $127 million. Black Hawi is the closest gaming market ta the
Denver, Colordo metropolitan area; which has a popuiation of approximately 2 9 million-and s located approximately 40 miles east of Black Hawk and
serves as the primary feeder market for Black Hawk.

Florida

Pampanc

.In 1993, we acquired Pompano Park, a harness racing track locatéd in Pompano Beach,:Florida. Porapano Park is locmcd off of Interstate 95 and the
Florida Tumpike on a 223-acre owned site, near Font Lauderdalc mjdway between. Miami and West Palm: Beach. Pompano Park is the unly mcelrack licensed
to conduct hamess racing in Florida.

Our Pompano t'acility includes 1,454 sloi machines, 2 38-table poker room, a '120:seat Farradday's réstaurant, a 110-seat Bragozzo's [alian restaurant, a
250-scat buifet; 2 100-scat defi, a 60-seat casual restaurant, an express grab and ga food outlet; a feature bar.and 3,800 parking spaces.

Appro\inm[cly 3.6 million people reside within a 25-mile radios of ow’ Pompano. tacility s which competes with four other recinos and threc Native
American gammg facilities in the marker. While casino revenues are not available for all market competitors, we estimate :h::ﬂ we operate approximatety 10%
ofthc slot machines i in the market and gencrated spprot:matc]y $142 million in casino revenues for.calendar vear, 201 1:

Assets Held for Sale
Biloxi

Ouvr Biloxi property, which commenced operations in August'1992is located on o 1 7-acre site at the eastern end of a clusier of facilities: formerly known
as "Casino Row™ in Biloxi, Missisippi, and is the first propeny reached by visitors coming from Alabama, Flarida'and Geargia via'Highway 90,

Cur Biloxi property offers approximately 1,200 slot machines, 27 tablé gariies, 4 nine-1bie poker room, 2 709-room hotel including 200 whirtpool suites,

a [20-seat banquet room called "Paradise Room,” 138-sent [-arraddnys resiaurant, 3-200-seat Calypéo's buffet, d 128-seat Café al the Point restaurant, a 94-
seat Tradewinds marketplace, a multi-story feanire bar, a full service Starbucks and over 1,306 parking spaces,
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The Mississipp Gult Coast market {which includes Bitoxi, Gulfport and'Bay St. Louis) consists af 1| dockside gaming facilities, which in the aggregate,

generated net paming revenues ofappro\umlclv S1.1 billion during calendur year 2011, Our Bifuxi property gencrated net gaming revenues of approximately |
$57 million during calendas year 2011, Approximately one million people reside within 60 miles of the property.

In March 2012 we eniered into-an agreement to sell our Biloxi operation for approximately 545 million. The transaction is expected to close in fiscal
2013.

Murkcling

Qur rarketing programs are designed to promote our overall: business strategy,of providing cusigmers with a safe, clean, friendly and fun: gaming

experience al each of our properties. We have developed an extensive proprictary datahase of customers that allows us to credie effective targeted marketing
and promationdl programs that are designed 10 reward customer ]oyalty, atwact néw Tustomers to"our properties and maintain high recognition of our brands.

our properties on a consolidated basis: Furthermore, We eXpect our appfoach will streamline the cosis assoctated ‘with marketing our pontfolio.

Specifically, our marketing programs and initiatives are ta:lorcd to support this corporaie strategic plan and are génerally focised on the following arcas:

Customer Research: Our marketing strategies have been dey c]oped and lmplemcnfcd to:meet the needs and desires of our casine ewstomers in
each of our locations. In order to assess these needs and desires, we engdge in significant customer research in "each of our'markets by conducting
periodic surveys; Upon receipt of these surveysy we assess the, ntmudc,a of our, customcn. “and the clstomers of our’ compcmurs properies ’
towards the mosi important attributes of their expericnee ina regional “andfor local’ gaming facility. We usé the extensive information gathered
from these Tesearch mitiatives 1o make marketing, operating.and developinent decisions that, we believe, will optimize the position of our
properties relative to our compcetition, .

and‘ng Initiatives: Our strategic plan is designed to consolidate our property portfolio from four brands inio two brands as the economy
improves and we undertake significant new capital :mprovcmun programs. To date, our, Lady. Luck rc:-hmndmg initiaiive includes our pmpemcs
in Canuthersville, Missouri and Vlarquene lowa. Addmonal]y. we, have converted Colorddo Central Siation in Black Hawk, Colorado 16 Lady
Luck-Black Hawk. In addmon, we are cumrently rebranding o, casino in. Vncksbuq,, Mlssmsnppl to Lady Luck Casino Vicksburg, with expected
completion by the ¢nd of the second quarter of fiscal 20137 As a component of these ré-branding programs, we have alio implemented newly-
branded custonder outleis,lincluding custom restaurants and lounges that we. arc gxpanding through our portfolio to other properties: We believe,
over timé, this approach will aHow us to more cﬁccnvcly ahgn and promaote oir properties based upon customer. needs and desires and market

Database Marketing: We have sireamlined our database marketing i mm.'mvcs across the Company in order to focus our marketing efforts on
profitable customers who have demaonstrated a Willingness 0 regitlarly Visit our properties. Specifically, we have focused on chmmntmg from
our database customers who have historically been iicluded in significant marketing efforts but have proven costly either as o result of excessive

‘marketing expenditures on the part of the Compény, of because these customers have become relatively dobmant in térms of customer activity.
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. Fayi Cheb: During fiscal 2012, we began impleinentation of 4 new custorer Joyalty program, Fan Club, which allows customers greater choice
in how 10 use. their, points for cash free play or food. The five'tier pfogram provides for cleat customer undcrsmndma of how points are eamed,
how points can be vtilized and the benefits “‘offered at cach tier. Fun Club hus been unplcmrritcd at four of our properiics 10 date and our goal is 10
have full implementation by the end of fiscal 2013.

. Segmentativn: We have compiled ap extensive dntabns:: of chstomer mformauon aver time. Ainong our-most lmponanl marketing initiatives, we
have intraduced datibase segmentation to ous properties aid ‘ut the comorate level in"order to adjust investment rates to'a level atwhich we
expect 10 meet 4 reasonable level of customer profit contribution.

. Rewaif Development:: We believe.that we must more effettively attract new; non-database customers to our propertics in order to increase
profitability and free cash flow, These customers are generally less expensive to attiact and retain and, therctore, currenllv represent a significant
opporiunityifor our. operations.

Employces

As'of April 29, 2012, we emploved approximately 7,700 fuil and part-time people. We have a collective bargaining agreement with UNITE HERE
covering approxnmﬂle]y 450 employees at our Pompano property whlch was renewed in May 2012 and expires in May 20135, We believe that our relationship
with our employees is sanv.facmry

Governmental Regulations

_ The gaming and racing.industrics arc highly regulated, and we must maintain our licenses and pay gaming raxes 1o Continue our operations, Each of our
fucilities is subject Lo exténsive regulation under the Tows, ules ind fegulations of te jurisdictitn where it is located. These laws; rules and regulations
geterally relate 1o the respom:b]l:t) financial S!dbl]]fy and character of the owners; managers and persons with financial intcrests'in the gaming operations.
Violatiuns of laws in one gurlsdu.tmn could result in disciplinary aetion in'other jurisdictions. A mare detailed descriptidn of the regulations ta which we are
subject i§’ contiricd in Exhibit 9.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our businesses are.subject 10 variows federal, state and Jocal laws and regulations in-addition to gaming regulations. Thcsc laws and regulations include,
but are not limited to; restrictions and condmuns cOnceming alcoholic bcvengu-. food service, smoking; environmental matters, employees and emp]oyment
“practices, currency trunsactions, laxation, zoning-and building codes, and' marketing and advertising. Such laws and regulations could change or conld be
interproted differently in'the foture, or new laws and- regulations conld be enacted.-Material change«: new laws or regulations, or materiat differences in
interpretations by coutts or-govemmental-authorities could adversely aftcet our Bperating results,

Available Information

For maore information abom us, visit our web site at waww :slecfcnpnc.nsmoq com. Our elecironic filings' with the 1.§. "*‘»ecu.rmec and-Exchange
Com:mssmn {including ail aanval réports on Form 10-K, quarier rcports on Form 104 Q), and cufrénl reports on Form 8- K. and any amiendments to these
reporis), mc!udmg the: exhibits, die dvailable free of charge through our web'site as soon as rc..:sun.ab]y practicable afier we electronically file them with or
furnish them to the 11.8." Securities and Exchangé Commission.
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ITEM1A. RISK FACTORS

We fuce significant competition from other gaming operations, inclinding Native American gaming facilities, that could have a material adverse
éffect on our future operations.

“T'he gaming industry is intensely competitive, and we face 3 high degree of competition in the markets in which we aperate. We have numerous
'compcmors ‘including tahd-based casinos, dockside casinos, riverboat casinos, casinos located on mcmg, pari-mutuel operations of Native Amcnczm-bwm:d
lands and video lottery ani poker. machines not located in casinos. Some of our compcumrs miy have befter name recognition, marketing and financial
resources than we do; competitors with more financial resources may therefore be able to inprove the guality of; of expand, their gaming facilities in a way
thit we may be unable ta match. .

iLegnlized gaming is currently ,permitted in various forms throughiout the United States. Centain staies have recently legalized, and other states are
currently LOHSIdﬂJ’U‘Ig legalizing gaming, Cur existing gaming facilitics compen. directly with other gaming propertics in the states in which we operate, Qur
existing casmos attisiet &'significant number.of théir customers from Houston Texas:: Mobr]c. ‘Alabama: Kansas Cltv Kamds Southern-Flofida; Liule: Rm.k
Arkansas; and ‘Denver, Colorado. Legalization of gaming in jurisdictions closer to tiese gcm_.,raphm markets other than the jurisdictions in which olr facilities
are.located would have 2 material adverse effect an our operating results, Other Junsdrctmns mcludmg states in close proximity 10 Junsdut:ons where we
currently have aperations, have considéred and may consider legahzmg casino gaming and ather foims of wmpetluon In addition; there is no limit on the
number of gaming hcenscs that may be gr.micd in several of the markets'in which we opera:c As a igsilt, new gnm.mg licenses could be awarded in these
tarkets, which could allow new _gamiing operators to enter our markets thai could have an adverse effect on our Gperating results. For example, on
Fcbrua.ry i7,2011,a pmjcct was awarded a gaming license in Lake Charles Louigiana which; if completed, will’ ‘compete with our existing Lake Charles
'property ‘A casino praperty, whlch could compcte with our Nawhez,' \dxss:ssnp}n ‘property,’is currently under development. .

“Qur'continued success depends upon drawing customers from cach of these gl.nyapluc markets. We expect competition to ncrease as new gaming:
'operamrs enter pir ‘markels, existing contpetitors expand their apértions, paming aetivities expand in e\mmg Jun:.dxcnona and gaming is legahzcd in new
jul’lSdtCt!Ol‘lS We cannot pn:dxcl with any certainty the effects of existing and future competition on our operating results,

.Wc also compete with other forms of lepalized gaming and enteriainment such as online computer. gambling, bingo, pull tab games, card partors, sports
books, "cruise- to-nowhere” operations, pari-mutuel or telephonic b-._timg on horse racing and dog racing, state-sponsored lotterics, jai-alai, and, in the future,
may.compete with gaming 3l ather venues. 1o addition, we campete more generally with ather torms of catertainment for the dlscteuonary spending of gur
fustomers.

Ve are subject 10 extensiva regulation from gaming and other reguiatory authorities thai could adversely affecr us.

Licensing requiremenn As owners and Opcmtms of gaming and p.m mutucl wngcnng f‘-lcrlmcs we are sub_;cct to extenswe st.'uc and local rczu]anon
permits and approvals to condoct gaming opcrauon's The n:gulamry authorities i in the _|umd|cuons in which we¢ operate have very broad discretion with
regard to'their regu]:mon ufgammg operatdrs,-and may for a broad vanetv of reasons and in aceordance with applicable Iaws, niles and rcgu!aucms limit,
condition, suspeind, fail to renew or.revoke a license to conduct gammg operations or prevent us from owning the securitics of any of bur'gaming subsidiaries;
ar prevent other persons from 6Wwning an- interest’in us or doing business with us: we may also pe deemed responsibie for the acts and conduct of owr
employees. Substaniial fines of forfeitufe of assets for violations of gaming laws or
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regulations may be levied against us, our subsidiaries and the persons 'involved, and somc rchlalnry dUlhOﬂllCS have the ability.to require us 1o suspend our
operations. T he suspension oF revecation of any of gur licenses or ol operations or the levy on us or our gubsidiaries of a substantiil-fine would have a
raaieria] adverse effect on ovr business. )

To date, we have demonstrated suitability to obiain and have vbtained'all governmental licenses, ‘registrations, permiits and approvals necessary for us to
aperalc our existing gaming: facilitics. We canpot assure you that we wiil be able 16 retain these llccnscs rcngLratmns. permits and approvals or-that we will
be able 10 abtaii any new ofies in‘order fo expand our business, or that our attempis 1d dojs0 will be timely. Like all gaming operators in the jurisdictions in
which we operate, we niust périodically apply 1o renew our gaming licenses and have the 5u1tab:11ty of céntain of our directors, officers and cmpiuyec%
approved. We cannot assure you that we will be able 10 obtain such retiewals or spprovals.

.In addition, regulatory authorities in certain jurisdictions must approve, in advance, any. redtrictions on transiers of, agreements riot 1o encumber or
p]edgas of equity securities issped by a corporation that is registered as an iritermediary company with.such state; or that holds 2 gaming license. If these
resigictions are not approved in advance, they will be invalid, -

Complignoe with other laws. Wi are also subject to a variety uf'oihcr"fed'crél state and loca) laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that apply to non-

gaming businesses, mcludmg Zoning, environmental, construction and land-use laws and rLgu]allom governing lhe serving of alcoholic beverages: Under

various fcderal state and local laws and regulitions; an owiier Or operator of real 1 propcny may be held liable for 1hc costs of removalor remediation of cerain
hazardous or.toxic subslanccs or wastes located on its propcrty reg’ard]ess of whether or.not the . present Owner or operator knows of, or is responsible l'or, the
presende of such substances or wastés. We have not identified any issites assoéiated with our properties that cotld “reasonably be expected to have 2 material
adverse effect on ns'or ‘the results of our operations. However, several of our properties are Iutated in mdysmal arens or were used for,industrial purposcs for
many. ycars. A$ 2 consequence, it is possible that historical or neighboring activities have affected one.or more of our properties and that, as a result,
environmental'issues could arise in the future, the precise nature of which we cannot now predict, The coverage apd attendant compliance costs associated
witht these laws, regulations and ordinarices may resull in future additional costs,

Regulauons adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Netw! ok of the U.S. Treasury Deparment require us to Tepar! CUITENcy transactions in excess |
of SIO 00D occurming within 2 gaming day, 1m]ud1ng adenlmcat:un of the patmn by name and social security nomber. U.S. Treasury Department regulations
also rcqmre us 16 report certain suspicious acuut), mr.ludmg any tmnsdcuon that cxcccds S 000 if we know, suspect or have reason 1o bchevc that the
transaction mvol\’c> funds from illegal activity or is designed to cvade foderal mguldlmm oF repoiting requirements. Substantial penaltics can be imposed
against us if we fail to comply with these regulations. .

Several of our riverboats must comply with L1.S. Coast Guard requiremenss as 1o boat design, on-board facilities, .cquipment, personnel and safety and
must hotd 1).8. Coast Guard Centificates of Documentation and [nspection. The U, S+ Coast Guard requirements also set limits on 1he operation of the
riverbozts and mandalc licensing of venain personnel involved with the bperation ofthe riverboats. Loss ofa riverboat’s Cenificate of Docuimentation and
lnspu:uon “could precludc its use as a riverboat casino: The.U: S: Coast Guird has shifted inspection duties related ta permancmly moored casino \essels 1o the
individual states. Louisiana and Missouri-have elected to utilize the services of the American Bureau of Shrppmg to undertzke the inspections. Towa has
elected 1o handie the'i inspections through the lowa Dcpa.nmum of Natural Resources. The statés will continue the same inspection criteria as the U.S, Coast
Guard in regard to annusal and five year inspections. Depending on the
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outcome of these inspections & vessel could become subject 1o dry-docking for inspection of its hull, which could result in a temporary Joss of service.

We are required to have third parties periodically inspect and cenify all of our casino barges for sibility and single compartment ﬂuod.ing integrity. Qur
casino barges and other fucilities inust also meet local fire safety stndards. We woild incur adlditional costs if any of our gaming facilities Weré not in
compliance.with one or more of these regulations.

Potemiial changes in legislation and regulamm of aur operations.  From time to time, legislators and spcmal interest proups have proposed lcglslatxon
that wenld expand, restrict or prevent gaming operations in the jurisdictions in which we operate. n addition, from vme to time, certain anh—gammg groups
have challcmzt:d constitutianal amendments or legislation that would limit our ab;]ny td continue ta opcmtc in those Jurisdictions in which these constitutional
amendments or lcglslalmn have been adopted.

Taxation and fees. State and local authorities raise a significant amouni of reveniie through taxes and fecs on gaming aclivities. We believe that the
prospect ofsxgmﬁcanl revenue is one of lhe primary reagons that jurisdictions pcnml ]egalized gaming. As a result, gam.mg companies are typzcallv subject to
algmfcam takes and fees in addition W normal federal, state, local and pmvmcm] income taxes, and such taXes dnd fees afe subjccl to intrease at any tinie.
We pay substantial taxes and fees with respéct 1o our operations. ‘From time to time;’federal, state, jocal and provmc:al legislatofs and officials have proposed
changes in tax Iaws or in the admiinistration of such laws, aﬂ‘ecamg the gaming |nduslry Any material’i mucasc or the adoption of additional taxes or fees,
could have a material adverse effect on our future financial resabrs,

Effective July 1, 2011, the Colorado Limited Gaming Control Commission reducéd all | gaming tax tiers by 5%, which resulted in a reduetion of the lop
rate tier rom 20% to 19%. Thc Commission has announced that it plans to resiore the rates to their previous levels effeciive July 1, 2012:

Qur biisiness may be adversely affected by legisiavion prohibiting iobacco siioking.

chls]dlll}n in various forms to ha indoor tobaceo smoking hds receritly: been enacted or introduced in many states and local jurisdictions, in¢luding
several of the jurisdictions in which we operate. If additional restrictions on -;mukulg are. enucted mJurlsdmtmns in which we operate; we could experience a
algmﬁunt decréase in gaming revenue and partienlasly, if Such restrictions are not applicable 10" all competitive facilities in that gaming market, our business
could be materially adversely affected..

Our substanticl indebtedness could diversely affect-our financial health and restrict our operations.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. As of April 29, _2012..'\&'(:.!\2\6 approximately S1.2 billion of total debt omstanding.

Our significant indebtedness could have important consequences to our financial health, such as:

. limiting our ahsllty to use aperating ¢ cash flow.or obtain additional financing o fund working capital, caplml expendirures, expansion and other
important arcas of our business becanseWwe must dedicate a significant portion of dur cash flow.10 make’ principal and:interest payments on our
indebtedness: :

. Lausmg an event of default if we fail 10 satisfy the financidl and restrictive covenants contained in the indentures and agrecments gov crning our

senior secured credit facility, our 7. 75% scaior notes, our 7% senior subiordinated netes and our other indebiedness, which could result inall of
our-debt becoming immediately dué and payable, conld permis ol secured lenders to foreclose
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on the assets securing our secured debt and have other advcrse consequences; any of which, if not cured or waived, could have a material adverse
effect on us:

. .if the indebtedness under our 7.75% senior nates, our. 7% senior, subordinated notes, our senior sceured credit facnluy, or our otheT indebiedness
were 10 be accelersied, there can be ng assurance that our assets would bé sdfficient to repay such indebiedness in full;

. placing us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors who are not as highly'lcvc'ra_ged:

: increasing our vulnerability to and hmlung our ability to react to changing market conditions, changes in out indistry and economic downturns
oF dowm\um in our business; and

. ouwr agncmcms governing our mdcbtcdncss among ather lhmgs reqmrc us to maintain certain specified ﬁnnncml ratios and to mect cenain
financial lests. Our debt agreements also Yimit our ability to:

i. bomow moRey;
‘it. make capital expenditures;
1ii., use assets as security in other trapsactions:
iv. make restricted payments or restricted investments:
v. incur contingent obligatians; and. a
. vi. sell assets and enter into leases and tansactions. with aftiliates.

-A substantial portion of our outstanding debt bears interest at variible rates, although we have entered into interest rate protccuon agreements expiring
Ihrough fiscal 2014 with - counterparty banks with respect to 5150 million of our term loans under our senor secured credit fuc:llt} lfshon—lerm interest rates
rise,.our interest cost will increase on the unhedged portion ¢ of our variable rate indebiedness, which will adversely affect our results ofopcmllom and

available cash.

Any of the factors listed above could have 2 material adverse effect on'our business, financial condition and results of operations: We tanniot assure yon
that our business will continue to gencrate sufficient cash flow, or th.u futiire available draws under our senior securtd credit facility will be sufficient, to
chable us t0,meet our liquidity needs, inclbding those needed to service our: indebiedness.

Despite our significant indebtedness, we may still be able tv incur sighificanily more debi. This coutd imtensify the risks described above.

The terms of the indentures and agreements goveming our senior secured credit facility, ous.7.75% senior notes, our 7% senior subordinated notes and
our ather ndebtedness limit, but do not prohibit, us or our subsidiaries from incurring sig,niﬁcam additional indebtedness in the future.

As of April 29, 70[” we had the capacity to incir additiondl indebtedness, including the ability to'incur additional indcbiedness under our ]mc ofcrcdn,
‘of approximately $258 m:]hon Approximately 5§29 million of tapacity of olir.senior :ccured credit facility was used to suppon letters of ereditvand surety
bonds, Our caprcny 1© issue additional indebledness is subjcn to the limnations imposed by the covenants in oar senjor secured credi facility, the indenture
guvcmmg our 7.75% senior notes and the indenturé govemming our-7% senior subordinatid otes: The - indenture governing 6ar 7% senior. subordmated notes,
the indenture governing our 7:75% senior notes and onr senjor secured credit facnlltv contain financial and other restrictive covenarits; but will not fully
prohibit us from incurring additionat debt: If new debt is-added 1o 'our current level of indebtedness, the related risks that we now face could intensify.

"
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“If we cannot refinance our 7% senior subordinated notes on or prior.to Nm'cmber 1, 2013, then aur sepior.secured credit facility satures an that
dute and we may nit.be able (0 renew or extend pur senior secuyred credir fac.lltry or enter.inty @ new credit facility in todav's d:jf Teult markers. In aiddition,
our ability 1o renew or extend our senior secured credit  facility or.to enier into a few credit fau!.rnv may be impaired further if market conditions worsen.
'lf we are able to refinance our 7 % senior wbr)rdmmed hotes or, in the dlterndtive, reitew or éxténd vir senior secured credi fucility, it may be on terms
subseantially less Jfavorable thai the 7% sentor subordinated riotés dr senior secured credit Sfacility.

Crur-senjor secuted credit facility matures on I\mcmber'l, 2013if- we have not refinanced or otherwise retired the. 7% senior subordinated notes on or
‘prior to such daté, Cur cash flow from operations is unJ]Lc!y 10 be sufficient 1o retire all of such notes at or prior to November 1, 2013, We. may therefore be
forced to refinance the 7% senior-subordinated niotes on substantially | less favorable tcms than we have currently. Failure to obtain new debt on favorable or
reagonable tenns to replace existing debt could affect our liquidity and the value of our'other securities; inchuding cur eqmty Qur ability to refinance or
otherwise retire obr 7% senior subordinated notes prior o Novenber ], 20]3 orin 1hc ahcmauw to'reriew or extend our existing senior seéured credit facility
OF to enter into 3 new credit’ facshty to seplace the existing senipr secured credif factltty could be n.mpasmd. if market conditions worsen. In the current
environment, knders may seck more restrictive ]endmg provisions and higher interest rates that may. reduee our borrowmg capacity and increase our costs.

We can make no assurances that we will be ablé 1o refinamice or otheiwise retire vur 7% senior subordinated notes prior to'November 1,.2013, and if we are
unable to c[o 50, that we will be able to enter.into a new credit ficility or renew or extend our existing senior secured credit f'amhly, or whether any such credit
facility will be available ander acceptable terms. Failure 1o obiain sufficient financing or. finuncing an acceplablc terms would constrain our ability to operate
our buc ss and to continve our dcvclopmcnt and expansion Projects. Any of these circumstances could-have a matcna] adverse cffect 6 our business,
ﬁnancaa] candition z2nd resulis of operations.

Ve may not be able to successfully expand to new locutions or recover gur investment in new properties which would adversely affect our operations
and available resources.

We regularly evaluate opportunities for growth lh.rough dcve]opmcm of gaming operations in existing or new markels, throogh acqurrmg 07 MaRaging
other gammg enteqtainment facilitics or through redéveloping our- umun;_,, t'auhuu: l'hc.- expdl‘lleIl of our eperations, whether xhruugh acquisitions,
dc\'clopmcnl managerieni contracts-or-internal growth, could divert. management 's atiention and could’alsa cause us to incur substantial costs, including
Vegal; professional and consuling fees. To the extent thal we elect 1o pUIsuE any new. ‘BAIINE acquisition, management or developrrent opponunity, our ability
1o béncfit from our investment will depend on many factors, :m:ludmb

. our ability.to successfully idemify attractjve acquisition and development opportunities;

. our.ability to suéccssﬁxll}" operate any developed, m’anagcd' or acquired propertics;

. our ability to attract and reiain competent management and employees for the new Jocations;

. our ability 1o secure required federal, state and local licenses, permits and approvals, whu;h in some jurisdictions are liinited in number and

subject to intense competition; and

. the availability of adequate financing on-acceptable terms. .

Many of these factors are beyond our control. There have been sngmcam disruptions ji l]n: global capital markeis that have adverscly impacted the
ability of berrowers 1o accéss capital. Accordingly, it is likely that we are dependem on free cash flow from opcrations and remaining borrowing capacity
under our senior sccured credit facility to implement our near-term expansion plags and find our planned capital expenditures, As a result of these and other
con:udcrauons ‘we cannot b:. sure that we
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will be able to recover our invesiments in any now gaming development or management opportunitics or acquired facilities, or.successfully expand 1o
additional Jecations.
We ntay experichce construction delays during our expansion or development projects that conld ad versely affect our operations.

.From time to time we may commence construction projects i our properties, We also cva}ﬁa!é'omcr'expans'inn opportunitics as they become available
and-we may in the future engage in additional canstruction pI‘OJCClS ©On December't, 2010, the Missouri Gaming Cormimission selected our proposed Cape
Girardean Praject for pnonnzatmn for the 13th and final ‘gaming license in the State of Migsouri. The Cape Girardea® Project’is expected to include.
approximately ] 000 slot machines, 28 takile games, 3 restaurants, 2 lounge and terrice overlooking the Mississippi River.and a 750-szat event center. at an
estimated cost of §135 million. On April 14, 2011, our project a1 the Nentiicalin Wondlands Resort ("Nemacolin™) was selected by the Pennsylvania Gaming
Control Board for the fina) Calcgory -3 resort gaming license: We had previously entered-into an agreement wnth Nemaeolin to’ corplete the build-out of the
casino space and provide managemem seivices to the casino; The Nemacolin project is expected to include 600 slot machines, 28 table gemes,-a casval dining,
restaurant and lounge.’ We currently estimate the project cost at approximately $56: willion. -Fuollowing a successful resolution of an appeal filed by another
dpp]ltaﬂl “and réceipt of-any necessary Tégulitory approvals, we expect to complete the pruject within nine momhb of'the commencenient ufwnsiruulon The
anticipated costs and construction periods for the Cape Girardedu project, the. Nemacolin:project and other pm}ects arg based upon budgets, conceptual des;gn
documents dnd construetion schedule estimates prepared by us in consulidtion wnh ourarchifects. Comtrm:tmn projects entatl significant risks, which can
substantially i increase costs or delay completion of a project. Such rsks include <h0nagcs of moterials or skilled labor, unforeseen: engineering, environmental
or.geological pm‘blcm:., work stoppages, weather interference and unanticipated cost 1mrcases Mast of these f'a(_torq ar bcynnd our control. In gddition,
difficulties or delays in obtammg any of the requisite licenses, permiits or. authorizations frorn regulatory authorities can incréase the cost or delay the
completion of an expansion or development. Significant budget overruns or delays with respect to expansion and development pmjccts could adversely affect.
our results of operations.

If we construct the Cape Girardeau Project and we are not granted ganfing. licenses, our finencial condiion could be materiglly adversely affected.

On Decembcr 11,2010, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected our proposed Cape Girardeau Project for pncnuz.auon for the 13th and final garmng
Ticense in the State of Missoeri. As a2 pariicipant in this process, our subsndmry OC-Cape., Flrudeau LLE apphrd for a Class'B Riverboat Gaming License in
Ml:soun The décision by the \dﬁsnun Gamm;_, Commission to priotitize it$ casino devc]opment docs not prov:de 10C:Cape Girardeau LLC with any license
to open 1hr: casino once dcvclopcd or any assurznce that such a license will be granted. The Class B license rcqu:rcd for 10C-Capeé Girardeaw LLC to operate
its propased gaming facility cannot be granted by the Misséuri Gaming Commission unti! the gaming facility dev elopment is substantially complete and ready
10 accept patrons. The grant of ths license would be subject to numerous coriditions as deseribed in "Description of Government Regulations—Missowri" in
Exhibit 99;1*to this Annual chon an Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended: <April 29; 2012, If, a5 a result of these regulatory conditions or otherwise, we are
‘unable to receive the ganting license after we construct the Cupe Girardeau Project; our, financidl condition could be materially adversely affected.
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If we are not licensed in Pennsylvania in connection with the proposed resort.casino at Ne macolm Woadlands Resort ar if our management
ugresment is not approved in its curvent form or if cither of these maiters are materinlly delayed, we may not manage the casing or the tcrms upon which
we manage may be less favorable to us,

On Apnl 14, 2011, Nemacolin Woedlands Resort {"Nemacolin” ) in Farmington,- Pennsy]vama was sélécted by the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board
for the final Category 3 resort gaming license. We had prekusiy entered into an- a}__,rcuucm with Nermacolin fo complete the build-out of the casino space and
provide management services of the casifio. We currently. estimate the projéct cost-at approximately $50 million. The award of the Pennsylvania license to
Nemacolin hds been appealed 1o the Pennsylvania Supreme Court by one of thé other.applicants. SUb_]EL“l 10 a Sticcessful ru,hng in' the appeal, and the receipt of
all necessary regblatory and othef approvals we efpect 10°complete the facility within approximately nine months after commencing construction.

If our key personnel leave us, our business could be adversely affected. N

Our, conlmued success will depend, ammong other things, on the efforts and skills-of a few key executive offt tcers and the expefience of our property
Managers. Our abllny to retain keéy personne] is affected by the wmp:.mnencss of bur compensation' packigés and the other terms and conditivins of
cmplovmcm our continued ability to compete effectively against other gaming comipanies and our growth prospects. The loss of the services of any of these
Ley individuals could have a material-adversc effect on our business, financial condition and resnlts of operations. We do not maintain "key man” life
insurance for any. of our employees.

We are effectively controfied by members of the Goldstein Family and their decisinns may differ frons those thar may be made by other.stockholders.

Robert S. Goldstéin, our Vice Chairman of the Board, and Jeffréy D. Goldstein and Richard A. Géldstéin, two of our dircctors, and various family trusts
-associated with members of the Gotdstein family and entitics associated ‘with certain‘members of the Goldstgin family; (collectively the "Goldstein Parties™)
du'ccll} and mdm:uly collectively own and conwol approximately 42.1% of our common stock as of April 29, 2012

The Goldstein Partics have substantial control over the election of our.board of directors and, the outcome of the vote on subslanually all other matters,
including amendincnt of our amended and resiated certificate of inéorporation, amf.ndmcnl of our. b) “laws und sugmf'uml curporate transactions, such-as the
approval of a merger or other transactions mwh’mg, a sale of the Company. Such: «:ubsmnt:al conlml ray have the effect of discouraging transactions
involving an actual or potenual ch.mgc of control; which:in turn could haven ‘Material adverse cficu on the market price of our commbn stock ¢ or-prevent our
stockholders from realizing & premivm over the market price for theif shares of tommon stock: The interests of the Goidstein Parties may differ from those of

our other stockholders.

Our umended and restared certificate of incorporation contains provisions that could delay and discovrage takeover attemps that stockholders may
consider favorable. .

Certain provisions of our emended 2nd restated eentificate of incoiporation may make it more difficilt or preventa third party from acquiring control of
vs, including:
we may not, until the Supémajority Expiration Time (as defined below) without the affirmativé vote of the holders of z least 662/3% of the
Company’s voling power, voting as a single cluss, guthorize,sadopt or approve cerntain extraordinary corperate fransaciions: and
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. the classification of our board of directors and staggered three-year-terms of service for each class of directors. -

"Supermajority Expiration Time” means the first 1o occur of (i) the Goldstein Group ceasing to hald cammon stock of the Company rcprcscming at least
23.5% of our outstanding common stock, not including any shares of Class B_commori stock or shares of commaon stock-issued upon conversion of any
preferrc,d siock and {17) Apn‘i 8, 2021 The "Goldstein Group® means Robert 8. Goldstein, our Vice Chairman, and Jeffrey . Goldstein and Rlchard A,
Goldstein, 1wa of our directors, spouses, children and grandehildren of certain members of the Goldstein family and entities associated with certain members
of the Goldstein family.

These provisions may make mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, the repoval of wanagement and certaiiy other transactions more difficilt or more costly
and could discourage or limit stockholdcr participation in such types of transactions, whether.or not such transactians re favored by the stockholders. The
provisions also could limit the price that investors might be w:ll:ng to pay in the fiiture for shares of out common steck. Further, the existence of these anti-
takeover measures may cause potential bidders 10 look elsewhere, rather than initiating acquisition discussions.with us. Any.of these factors could reduce the
price of owr commeon stock:

We have u history of fluctuations in our sperating income flosses) from:continuing vperations,.and we may, incuradditional operating losses from
enntinuing operatinnys in the future. Qur aperating results eould fluctuate significandy an a perindic basis.

We suatasned # (loss} from continuing operations of $(17.4) million in fiscal 2012, earned income fmm com.mumg operations of SB 7 milkion in fiséal
2011 and earned income from continuing operations of $5.0 million in fiscal: 2010. Compumc% with fluctuations in income (loss) from contmumg operations
often find it more cha]lcngmg 1o raise capital to finance improvernents in their businesses and to undcrtake othcr acu‘.'lllcs lhm retum value to their
stock.holders in addition, companlcs with opemn:ting rt n.'suhs that fluctuaic significantly on'a quancrly or annual basis cxpem:ncc increased volau]ny in their
stock pncc:; in addmon to difficultics in raising capital. We cannot assure you that we will not have fluctuations in our income {fosses) fiom continuing
operations in the firure, and shoiild that occiir, that wé would not suffer. adverse consequences to our businiess as'a fesult, which coutd deerease the valiie of
our.common stock,

fnclement weather and other conditions could seriously disrupt our buxiness and kave a material, adverse effect on our finaneial condition and
resulis of vperations,

The operations of our facilities are subject to disruptions or reduced patronage as a result of severe weather conditions, natural disasters and other
casu4luca Hecause many of our ganiing aperations are located on or adjacent bodies of water, these facilities are subject 10 risks in addition 10 thase
associated with other casinos, mc]udmg loss of service due 10 m:ua]ly, forces of nature, fnechasiical t'zn]urc, cxtendcd or cx!raordmary maintenance, flood,
hiuricane or ather sévere weather condmons an other disasters. For c‘(amplc, ﬂoodm;_, along the Mississippi River resulted i {ive 6f our propertics béing
closed for dnfenng pcnods of time in {iscal- ZOI 2. in addition, sevEre weaiher such as high winds and plizzards occasionally limits-aceess to our land-based
facilities in Colorado. We cannot be sure that the. procecds from any future inswrance ciaim will be sumuent to compensaie us if one or more of our casinos
experience a closure.
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. Reduetiony in diseretionary consumer spending could have u muterial adverse ¢ffect on our business.

Qur business has been and may ‘continie 1o be advu.rm.ly affected by econoinic fluctuations E’xp’eric'nwd in the United States, as we are highly dependent
on discretionary spending by our patrons: Reductions in discretionary. consumer spending.or changes in consumer preferences brought about by factors such
as increased unemployment, significant increases in energy prices, perceived oractual deterioration in geneml economic conditions, housing market
msmbllny, bank failures and the potential for additional bank failures, pcrcc:vcd or actual decline in disposabie consumer income and wealth, the global
economic recession and changes in consumer confidence in the economy could reduce custorger demand for the feisure activities we offer and may adversely
affect our revenués and operating cash flow. We are unable to predict the frequency,.lmglh or severity of economiic circumstafces,

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly.

The market price of our common stock has historically been volatile and may cununue to'flctuate Guhslanna]]‘l due to a number of factors, including
actudl or am:upa;cd changes in our resulis of operations, the anhduncement ofsabmhunl ransactions or other agreements by, out. wmpcntors conditions or
‘trends in the our industry or other entertainment industries with which we compete; Beneral eeonemic conditions’ mcludmg ‘those affécting bur customers'
discretionary spending, chdnges in the cost of air travel or the cost of ga;ulmc chdngt.s in'the gaming markets in.which we operate and changes in the trading
value of our common stock: The stock markeét in general, as well as stocks in the gaming qeuor have been: subjccl to significant volauhtv and cxlmme price.
ﬁuctuanans that have semetimes been unrelated of disproportionate to individual companies' operating performances. Broad market ¢ or industry factors may
harm the market price Gf our common stock, regardless of ovr operating performance -

Wark stoppages, arganizing drives and other labor problems could negatively impact our fu‘il'jtr_'e pmﬁ'rs.

Some of our employees are curremly represenied by a labor union or have begun orgAiziig a drive for labat union repu::senmmn_ L.abar unions are
making a concerted effort to recruit more cmployets in the gaming indusuy. In addition, OI’LdJ‘IJZCd labor m.]). ‘benelit fromd new. !cys]duon or ]ct,a]
mlerpreuuons by the curreni presidential administration. “We cannot providé any assurance that we will not expetience additional or more successful union
activity in the future.

.Additionaily, lengthy strikes or other work stoppages at any of our casino propertics or.construction projects could have an adverse effect on our business
and result of operations: .

e are or may become involved in legal proccedings that, if adveisely adiudicated or, settled, could i}npacr our financial condition.

-From time to lime, we af¢ defendants in various Jawsuits and gammg_, Icgl.lldk)l')" proccedmgs retating to matters incidental to our business, As with all
litigation, no assumance can be provided as to the outcome of these matters and, in gencral, litigation can be expensive and tire consuming: We may not be
successful in the defense or prosecution of our cuitent or future legal proceedings, which could result in éétilements or damages that could significantly
impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. . s

Our insurance coverage may not be adequnte 1o cover gl possible losses that our properties conld suffer. In addition, our insurance cosis may
increase and we may not be able 1o obtain the sume insurance coverage in the fiiture. ’

We may suffer damage to our property caused by a casualty luss (such as fire, natural dlsaqtcm, acts'of war or terrorisin), that could severely disrupt our
business or subject us to cloims by third parties who are injured of harmed. Although we maintain insurarice cystornary in our industry,
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(including propert¥, casualfy, terrorism and business intertuption insurance) that insurance may not be. adequate or available to cover all the risks o which our
business and assets miay be subject. The lack of Suffictent insurance for these types ot acts could expuse us to heavy losses if any damages oceur, dm:u.lv ar
indirectly, that could have & significant adverse impack 0n our operations.

We renew our insufance policies on an annual basis: The cost of coverage may become.so high that we'may need to further reduce our policy limits or -
agree 1o certain exclusions from our: covcmge. ‘Among other factors, it is possible that ntyunal polmcal tensions, homeland security concerns, other )
catastrophic events or any (.hangc in gmfemmcnt legxslznmn govermng insurance coverage. for acts of terrorism conld materially adversely affect available
insurance cnvcmgc and result in increased premivms on available coverage (which may eanse us to eleet to reduce our, policy hmns) addmonal exclusions
frdm coverage or higher déductibles. Amaong ather goterisial futuré advirse changes; in the future we maf ¢16ct 10 not; or may not be able to, obtain any
coverage foT losses due o acts of werrorism.

The concentration and evolution of the slot machine manufacturing indiistry conld impose additional costs an us.,

A large mijority of our revenues are attributablé o 516t machings at our casines, [ is.important, for. Ccompelitive reasois, we offer the most popular and
" up-to:date slot machiné games, with the latést technology to our customers:

In recent years, slot machine manufaclurers have frequemly refused to sell slot machines fealurmg the most popular games,’ ‘instead requiring
participating lease irrangements. Gcnemlly, ] pammp:mnh lease 1s substantially miore expensive over the long-term than the cost to purchase 3 new slot
machine.

For competitive reasons, we.may.be forced to purchase new.slot niachincs, slot machine sysiéms, or enter into participating leasc arrangemenis that are
more expensive than our current costs associated with the continued nper-mnn of our exmmg slot machines. If the newer siot machines do not result in.
sufficieni incremental revemics 1o offset the. increased: i investment and paiticipating lease. costs, it could adverse]y affect our pmﬁlabl]ny

EE R X Y

Inaddition 1o the foregomg, you should cansider each af the factors set forih.j in"this- Annual Report in evaluating our business and onr prospects. The
tactors described in"our Part:1, liem FA-arc ‘mot the only ones.we face: -Additional risks .md uncertainties not presently known’ 10 us or that we currently
consider jmmaterial may ilso impair our bu:mcss operations. This: Annual. Report is qurllti'u:d in its entirety by these Tisk facmrs It any of the foregotng risks
actully occur, our business, financial condition and resihis of aperation could\be materially harmed. In that case;.the trading price ¢ ofour securities, inclhyding
our common stock, could decline significantly. -
ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS -
None,
ITEM:2. PROPERTIES |
Lake Charles
We own approximately 2.7 acres and lease approtlmutely 6.2 acres off Idnd in Caleasieu Parish, Louisiana for us¥ in cohnection with our Lake Charles
operations, This lcasc aulomancal!} renewed in March 2010 for five yeai's arid we have the optiodi to renew it for 14 additional terms of five years each,

subject 10 increases bascd on the Consumer Price. [ndex ("CPI") with a minigium of 10% and
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construction of hotel facilitics on'the property. We'own two hotels in Lake Charles with a tota] of 493.rooms. Asinual rent payments under the Lake Chailes
lease are approximately $2:1 million,

Lla

We lease approximately 1,000 acres of land in Coshoma County, Mns:ussmpx and utilize approximately.50 scres in connection with the operations in
Lula, Missisdippi. Unless terminated by us at an carlier date, the Jease Expires in 2033. Rent under. the- lease is currcnti) '5.5% of gross gaming revenue as

reported 10 the-Mississippi Gaming Comnmsmn plus $100,000 anmually. We also own’approximarely 100 acres in Coahoma County, which may be utilized
for future development.

Naichez

Through numerous lease agreements, we Jeasc approximately 24 acres of dand in. Natchez, Mississippi that are used in connection with the operations of
our, Na:Lhcz . propeity: Unless terminated by us at an garlier dalc the feases have v varymg expiration dates, through 2037. Annual rent, under.the Jeasds total
approrlmmcly $1.2'million. We also Jease approximately 1.5 acres of kand that i is vtilized for parking at the fac:hty We own approximately 6 additional acres
of property in' Natchez, M:ssns-;:ppl, as well as the property upon which our hotel is located!

Vickskury
We'own approximately 60 acres m Vicksburg, Mississippi which-are used-in connection with the operations of our Vicksburg propeny.
Kanyas City
We Jease’ approxmmtely 28 acres of land from the Kansas City Pof1 Authority it connection.with.the operation of our Kansas City property. The term of
the ungmal lcdst, was teh vears and was renewed in Cetober 2006 and OLlubcr 201 Ffor'additional five- ywr terms. The lease includes six additional Five- -year-
" rénewal options. Thc minimiim-léase payments comespond to any rise or falt in the CPI, lnmnlly after thé ten-year term of the lease or October 18, 2006 and

thereafter, at each five year renewal date: Reni under the lease currently i5 the greater of $2.9 miliion {minimui rent} per year, or 3. 25% of ross fevennes,
less comphmcmar:es

Bounville

We lease our 27,ack€ Casing site in-Boonville pursuant to 2 lease agréement with the City of Boonvilte. Under the tesms of the agfeément, we lease the
site for a period of ninety-ninc years, 1n liew of rent, we are assessed additional amotmits by.the Cily of Boonville based on a 3.5% tax Qn ganing revenue, up
t0.51.0 miition, which we recognize as additional gaming taxes,

Caruthervville
"We own approximately 37 acres, including our riverboat casino and 1,000 parking spaces in Caruthersville, Missouri.

Betiendorf
1
We own approximately 24:6 acres of fland in Betteridorf; lowa used-in connection with.-the operations of our Bettendorf prapeny. We also operate.under a
long-term Jease with the City of Bettendorf, ‘the’ OC Waterfront Convention Ccn!er that is adj'lccm to, our new hotel tower, Futuré minimuni payments
associated with the convention centér are approximatety $1.1 million per year. We also lease approximately eight acres of land on a month-to-month basis
from an entity owned by
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members of the Goldstein family, including Robert 5. Goldstein, our Vice Chairman'of the Board and Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard A" Goldstein,.
directors of our company; which we.inilize for parking. The initial ternyof the [ expires 00 day s after written notice is'given v cither, party and rent under
:the lease’is cunenl]y $60,000 annually.

Davenport

Pursuant to various lease agreements with the City of Davenpon, we lease approximately 12 acres of land iy Davenport; lowa used in connection with
the'operations of oiir Davenport property. The aggregate annual rent on these leases is approXimartcly $0.2:imillion and they have varying expiration dates
thiough 2022,

Margquette ) -

We Jease the dock site in Marquette, lowa that is used in connection with our Marquette nperatmns -The lease cxpu'es in 2019, and anyual rent under the
lease is approximately 51 80, 000, plus $1.00 per passenger, plus 2 \5% of gamiing revenoes {less state wagering taxes) in #xcess of $20.0 million butless than
'540.0 million: 3% of paining revenues less Slate wagering taxesy in cxcess of $40:0 miltion bist leis than $60.0 miltion: and 7:5% of goming reventes (less
state wagering taxes)'in excess of $60.0 million. We have an easement related te an mcrhead pedestrian bridge and driveway that is -an annuil payment of
upproumately $6:300. Wy also own approximately 23 acres of land for the pavilian, satellite.o ffices, .warehouse; lots by, the marina and other property.

Waterfoo

We own approximately 54 acres of land in Waterloo, lowa used in connection with the' opcranon of our Watcrloo property. We also cntered into:a three-
yeeur lease agreement for 17,517 square feet af warchouse'space, Rént under this lease is qurrently $3,021 permonth..

Isle-Black Howk

We own approximately |0 acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado for use in'connection with ol *Black’Hawk operaticns. The property leases an
additicnal parcel of land adjoining the isle-Black’ Hawk where the L. ady Luck Hotel and pmkmu are loca!ed “This lease is for an initia) term of nine years with
options 1o renew for 18 additional terms of five yeafs each with the final'option period concluding -Juse 1, 2094, Annual rént is currently 81, 85 million
indexed to correspond to any rise or fall in the CPI a1 dne-year intervals, 5101 to exceed a 3%%increase or decrease from the previous year's rate.

Lady Luck-Black Ha wk

We own or lease approximately seven acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado foruse in connectjon with the Lady Luck-Black Hawk. The praperty leases
an additional parcel of fand near the Lady Luck-Black Hawk for pnrklng as described above. This- ‘lease is.for an initial term of 10 years with options 10 renew
for nine additional terms of 10 years each-with the final option period concluding August 2094. Currently the. ann_ual rent i$ $576,000 and resewals are subject,
ta 20% rent increases over the rate of the previous term. '

Pampano

We own approximately 223 acres st Pompano.

b
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We own all of the riverboats and barges utilized at our facilitics. We also own or lease all of our gaming and non-gaming equipment.

We Jease our prinéipat corparaie office in Creve Coeur, Missouri, and office space in Rilaxi; Missiséippi,

We own additional property and have various propesty-leases and options to"either leise ur purchase property that are not directly related to uur existing
operations and thai may e utilized in the future in connection with expansion projects at’ onr existing facilities or development of new projects.

Assers Held for Sale

Bifaxi

We lease the real estate upon which soiue of our land-baged facilities, including the tasino, are located from the City of Biloxi and the Mwmssxppl )
Sccremry of State ar current annual rent of $395,508 per year, plus 394 of our, Biloxi. PIOpEIty's gross ganiing revenues, net of state and local gaming taxes and
fees, in excess of 525, 9 million.: The lease terminates on July 1, 2014, but it is renewable at our gption for fouradditional terms of five .years each and one.
more option renewal terni, concludmg on January 31, 2034, sub}ccl to rent increases based on'the CPI, limited: to 6% for each renéwal period.

In April 1994, in conncetion with the construction of 2 hotel,.we entered into a lease for additional land ddjoﬁiing our Biloxi propcrty, This lcase with the’
City of Biloxi and the \hs‘;:ss:ppl Secretary of State is for an initial term of 25 Years, with options 1o rencw. fnr six additionial terms of ten years each and a
final option peniod cnm:ludmg December 31, 085 Curient annal 1eat 15 5665 SO0 p]m 4% of rass non-paming FevENues, as defined in the lease, and
rencwals we subject to'rent incredses based on the CPL. The arnual rent is ddjublt.d dﬁﬂ' cach five-year perod based on increases.in the CPI limited to a 10%
‘increase’in-any five-year period.

n-August- 2002, we entered inito a lease for two additional parcels of land adjoining ous-property’and the hotel. On.the parce! adjoining the Biloxi
property, we construcied a multizlevel parking garage that has approximately E000 parking spaces. There 15-additional ground Jevel paerg on a parcel of
laid in front of the garage, also subjcct to this lease, .with approximately | 609 p:[rlxmg spaces. We have constructed a 400-room addition to the existing hotel on
lhc parcel leased next to the existing hatel. In addition, we may comstruct a hutel abové the parking garage. This fease with the City of Bilaxi and the
i\!I‘ESISSIppl Sccrcmr) of State is for ap initial 1erm of forty vears, with one option 1o renew for an additiona} iwenty-five years-and additional options
thereafter, with the consent of the Mississippi Secretary of State, consistent with the term of the lease described in the preceding paragraph. When combined
with the base and percentage rents deseribed: for the'Jeases in the preceding two.paragraphs, annual rent under.those two legses and this Iéase was $3. 8 million
tor lease year ending July 31, 2014, and estimated to be $3.3 million fur.the lease year.ending July 31, 2012. Such amounts are subject 16 decreases due
market adjustments and increases-based on the CPL Atso. we are n,spons;b]e for annval rent equal.to 4% of gross retail revenue and gross cash revenne (as
defined-in the lease), but without double counung [f the rent. minimum dcxulbul in the prc«.uimg sentences 15 not atherwise satisfied from other rents, then
this.percentage ren! is noi in-addition to the minimum rent, but rather s to be appl]cd to that minimom.

Weé also lease our Biloxi berth from the Biloxi Port Comm:ssmn a1 an annual fent of the greater of $510,000 or 1% of the gross' gaming revenue netof
state’ and local gamiing taxes, The Iea-;c terminates on July 1, 2014 and we ha\'c the optlon 10" fenew it for six additional terns of five years each subject 1o

increases based off the CPY, limited to 6% for cach rencwal period.
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In connection,with and pursuant to a settlement between the City of Biloxi and the State of Mississippi concemning the control and management of the
ares where we are Jocated, we alse have agreed 1o pay the City of Biloxi's ledse obligations 1o the Ste of Mississippi for an agreed upon period of time. This
amonpt is $580,000 per year, paynble on june 30, subject 1o increases based on the CPI'ind décreases'ifithere are other tenants of the subject property. This
ubligation ends after June 2018 but may be renewed lor thirty years.

Lnt March 2012 we entered into an agreement to sell our Biloxi operation-for,approximately $45 million. "The trnsaction is expected to close in fiscal
2013,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Riverboat Corporation of Mwmssxpp: ("RCM™), are defendants in a lawsuit filed in the Circuit Court of Adams
County, Mississippi by Silver Land, [nc. nlieglng breach of contract i connection with our 2006 sale of casino operations in V:cksbnrg, Mi ississippi, toa
third party. kn January 2011, the court ruled in faver of Silver Land and i September 2011 the coilit awarded damages of approumnteiy 52 million. We filed
a'notice of appedlin November 2011, While the outcome of this. matter:is still in‘doubs and cannot be predicted with any degree of teriainty, we have-aecrued:
an estimated liability, including intetest, of approximately $2 million in fiscal 2012. We intend to continue a vigorous and appropiiate appeal of this judgrment.

:Qur wholly owned subsidiary, Lady Luck Gaming Corporation; and sevéral joint venture partness have béen defendants in the Greek Civi] Courts and the
Greek .-\dm:mstrunve Courts in simifar lawsuits brought by the country of Grecce. The actions allege that’ the defendamis foiled to make Spectﬁed payments in
connéction with the zaming license bid process for Patras, Grecee! Although it is d:ﬁ"cuil to determine the dnmagec bcmg sotght from the lawsuits, the action
tay sc¢k dumages up to that aggrepate amount plus interest from the date of the action.

In the Civil Court lawsit, the Civil Court of First Instance neied in our favor, and dismissed the lawsuit in’ :2001. Greece appcaled to the Civil Appeal
Court and, in 2063, the Court rejected the appeal. Greece then appéaled to the Civil Supreme Cdust and; in 2007, the Supreme’ Court niled that the maltér was
net properly before the Civil Cousts and should be before the Admiistrative Court.

in the Administrative Count lawsuit, the Administrative Court of First Instance rejected the lawsuit statingthat it was not competent 1o hear the matter.
Gieeee then appealed 1o the Administrative - Appeal Court, which court checied the appea] in "003 Greece then appealed to the Supreme Admmlstrlmc
Court, which remanded the matter back to the Administrative Appeal Coun for a-hearing on the merits. The re-hearing took place in 2006, and i in 2008 the
Administrative Appeal Cournt rejected Greece's appeal an procedural grounds. Oy December 22, 2008 and January 23, 009 Giceee appealed the ‘raling to the
Supreme Administraive Court. A hearing has tentatively been scheduled for, October 2012; however, the Supreme Administrative Court has repeatedly
postponed the hearing on the appeal.

- - . 7 - . .. t . . = e . - - - - - - . .
‘The outcome of this matter is still in doubt and cannot be predicied with-any degree of cerdinty. We intend to continue a vigonus and appropriate
defense 1o the cldimg asserted in this-matter, Throtigh April 2912012 We have accrued an estimated ligbility, including interest, of approxinately $13 millien..
Our accrual is based upon maragement's estimate of the ongmal claim by the plaintiffs for lost payments. We continve to acerie interest op-the asserted .

claim: We are upable to estimate a total possible Joss os information as to:possible additional claims, it any, have not been asserted or qunntlfcd by the
plaintiffs a1 this time.
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We are subject 4o centain federal, state and local environmental protection, health and safety laws, n.gulauons and ordinanves that apply to businesses
gencratly, and are subject 10 cleanup requirements at cerain of our, facilities as a result thereof, We have not made, and do net anticipate making material
expeaditures, nor do we anuupate incurring delays with réspect to env 1r0nmemn] fémediation of protection, HUW{:\cr in pan because our presént and future:
development sites have, in some cases, been used as manafacturing facilities or othcr facilities that génerate materials thit are reqiiired 1o be remediated under
environmental laws and regulations, there can be no guarantee that additional pre: exlstmg conditions will ot be discovered and we will not experience
material liabilities or delays.

We are subject to various contingencies apd litigation matiers and have a humhbeér of unrésolved elaims, Although the ultimate liability of these
contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannot be determined at this time; we heligve they will not have a material adverse effect on cur consolidaied
tinancial position, results of operations or,cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.

PART I}

ITEM'S, MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON LQUITY RELATED STOCKHOL.BER'MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SFCURJTIP.S

@)

i. Market Infbrmaria(;. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Sclect-Market under the symbal "ISLE”. The {ollowing table
presents the high and low closing sales prices for our commen stock as reparted by the NASDAQ Global Select Market forthe fiscal periods

indicated.
. L i Hish . Low

FitsT Quarter, (NTODERIDNE 85201 T farr. . ot T st o ot e e S 6328 - 4841
Fiscal Year Ending April 29,2012 )
Pounh Cuaiter_ T _‘Lﬁ T T oo et 0 e d ﬂfﬁh%m, S o K) 43)‘\.5 RN
Third Quarter e —— ) . . 3.6% 3.90
Second Quarters__2ia vt G ar Y ‘%_‘_;"‘*&L-,v@“‘a%i@ﬁ?w TR E ORTE L Adb]
First Quarter i ) 986 7.67
E-g"‘-'--\. ey - o - - Coy ! =

- N - Fe ‘3‘ a1 £

_bndmg A4, 200 23 s ke Mg nuw'_’m .‘ e 5 :4.,.' RV AR &
l-ounh h Quarter . N - §_ 9.89 S 8.85
ﬂ'hlrd()uancr e xe B a IR G R AT , L TN 6w 780
Second Quam:r ) — 895 6.66
First QUaTter. © ~5% oo & g od T T L ;;:,WW R S R Y- A T
. Holders of Common Sack: s of June 8; 2012, there were approximately 1,333 holders of record of our common stock..
dii,  Dividends. We have never declared or paid any dividends:with respect to our common stock and the eurrent palicy of-our board of directors is

1o rctain eamings to provide for the growth of our company. ‘L additiofi, our senior secured credit facility and the indentures gov erning our 7%
senior subordinated nates-and our 7.75% senior notes Liinit oir ability to pay “dividends, See "liem 8—Financial Statemenits: and Supplcmentarv
Data-~Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc:—Notes to Consdtidated Finuncial Statements—Notc 8." Consequently, no cash dividends afe éxpected to be
paid on our eommon stock in the foreseeable future. Further,
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there can be no assurance that our current and proposed operations would gencrate the finds needed to declare a f:aéh dividend o_r.m’a{ we would
have legally available funds to pay dividends. In addition, we'may firid pan of our operations in the future from indebicdness, the terms of which:
may. further prohibit or restrict the payment of cash dividends. [ 4 holder of commen stuck is disqualified by the regulutory authorities from
owning such shares, such holder will not be permitted in éceive any dividends with respect 10 such stock. See "ltem 1—Business—Govémmental
Regulations.”
(b)  tysuance of Unregisicred Securities
Nune.
(€)  Purchaves of onr Common Stack - . .
‘We have puréhnscd owr comimon stock under stock repurchase programs. These prograins allow for the reprrchase of up 1o 6,000,000 shares. To date we
have purchasid 4,895,792 shures of common stock under these programs. ‘These programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expiration dates. No

purchases were made during the fiscal year ended April 29, 2012,

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULAFIVE TOTAL RETURN®
Among Iske of Capri Casinos, Inc., the NASDAQ.Composite Index,
and the Dow Jonés US Gambling Indcx

5140 -
§120 o _ ‘ éﬂ___—éﬂ
$100
$90 -
S6D -

540

$20

so N 1 13 Iy - ] 1

42007 4/27/08 426/09 4125110 ar2an1 ar28H2

—&—Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. - -&-—NASDAQ:Composlte ---©--- Dow Jones US Gambling

* $100 invested on $/29/07.in stock or 4/30407 in-index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Indexes calenlated on month-end basis,

Copyright® 2012 Daw lanes & Co. All rights reserved.
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ITEM 6. SELFECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The folfowing table  presents our selected consolidaied financial duta for the (ive most recent fiscal years, which i i defived from our audited consolidated
hnancml statements and the notes to those statements. Because the data in this table'does not provnd: al] of the dnza contained in our consolidated’ financial
sLa:cmcnls, including the related notes, you should read “Management's Discussion and Arialysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," our
‘consolidated financial statements, including the related notes contained elscivhere in. this document and other data we have filed with the U.S; Scuunt:cs and

‘Exchange Comnuission.

Statemend o[(]pcraliom

April 29, April 24, April 25, Aprit 26, April 17,
2012 2011 1010 2009 2008
- (dullars in miillons, except per shure duta)

Réveries:, » Bty & foar ST ‘-”’*’%‘;s 2 f"” B8 “.ﬁ'“"’ A LT - 1
Casig? ) . 5$1,006.5.S 968 4.5 9412’5 977 4 Sl 007 1]
™ " Rooms S s T Y TR RN e % agees 1A U320 % . 335, %, 3560+ 36.33
Food, bcvcragc, par:-mutu::l and other . 128.6 122.0 I22.2 124.6. 135 1
“Insufance rccovencq -m e, BT DTN i AN A T T 33
Ggssre\m_gis . 1 A77:1 05,1225 10989 4, 140.5 L1792
vy e T T, T N N N '_-""-i"'_"-”““""""‘\
" Less promotionalallowances & o~ # B ES w08 o i A v w(199] T)u(lSS 9) (17 2(176.4) - (178.9)
) Net revenues 9774 936.6 9272 964. ! 11,0003
T I - ¥ i iy R o S e e -
Operating expenses: 2+ NSNS T R 2GR e Y
Casino . i 153,7 142.6 137.3 135.1 133.6
o Gaming tixes. %, . e % % TS TE L <2318 .26l 727603
ROOmS o . 8.4 gL
(=77 Fouds bc\cra"e, pari-mutuel and’ other _F Y e g BT, Eo0 oAy, - 4[} 6. 40 1w7 453 5[_583
Marinie'and facilities; 57, 2 55;2 353 38.0 38,7
- oo T o T P - Py
L,..;,.Markeung and ad:mmstrauvc o pmte e L i 1234 5.2t ; T.22238 2226 :237; E—o]
Corpora:c and dc\.eluumcm 40 2 _42.'7 46.8 11, 3 47.3
B Ml S
! Vaiuauon charges and etpense recoveriesy R PR - .

llsurancc recoveries

e lare o
T e L L i

gl Ay ";' AL

' b PrECOENINRZ Jar £ wen T NN Tl = e o I3
l)cpremat:on and anmmzauon : 76{] 716 95 5 1054 1104
i o Total opc_‘_‘ £ £ TR e SRR e Sy SN e WRO30T 83479 85419, - 902.0. *931:6}
Opcratmg income . 544 1019 723 62.1 68.7
TRferes] EXpenseog o 25 Aie L R e T e e (81 ;(01 9Y__(7514) 2.2(92.9), {1076}
‘nterest i mwmu — ] 0.8 1.9 1.8 21 3.2
DETivative, IfCome, (CXRONSeY 2 o r %o Bd o Lk Fen L fton Bhamidir a a0 ta x (1:2) OB) o, e
G1m (Ioss) on earty exnngulshmem ofdebt — — — 5_7.7 (15 3
‘ i (loss) from c_ommumg optranons bcftrr‘cdj nUome taxes‘an 25 ,"- - -3
{_.nbacanroliing miemste : E t g{_(? 3) 10 7 (l 6) 4290 ph (31 (J)
tncome tax benefit (pmv:sluy) . (i5.1) (7.0) 6.6 (I-I 3 19.9
!m.omc "loss) Trom continuing operalions! ifcluding nancontrolling: RtErest RN TN 4) B3 TS0 0 AT = (311 I)
[ncome (Iusa) from d:scommued opcranons net of tCome taxes ) a2 4) o 8 (8. 3) 123.9 (60. 9)
o e T2 T K 23 3) 3.6 _2{92.0)
o — — — — (4.9}
Net Jnc.ome (Ios:,) am’but.:b]c tu coibmon stmkhofders § Fg ol S 1S {129 S)S SIS (313)5_ 43 {::5 /(9693
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Fiseat Year Ended{l)
April 10, April 10, Aprii 25, Apri h, April 17,
Statemend of Operstivny 2012 2001 - md 1009 2008

{dollars in millions, except per share dau)

- -««—1'-,— e AP G -t

Income (10s5) per, common share’ atusbumb!e 16° cm'mnon siockholdcrsa s & e F wrist e ERORAN L ‘i
Basic

R

[ = income {10ss) from CONTMUINR OPEratons s g R TES. {0.45) 5 0,11 S Ee0.1 5,5 L0 AT S S0, m
Income (loss) from discontinued operations _ {2.90) 0 02 {0.25) 0.92 (1.99)

L5 Net Income (loss)- o 'Z,,»,, At o el 1 e 98.5(3135)3.%_0013:514(0.10)8. 1111398 . (316).
Diluted’ } )

{23 Incomel(loss) from continuing nnerntmnSA& T A em 7 ME s (0431501 l68.,;_;63{535_-:5_-.0.47_.,‘31,(-1.l-’?)

. Income (lozs) from discontinued operitions (2.90 0.02 (0. 25) 092 {199y

e Net Income (loss)2ins  a° s oiipirgre, B Bhow 0 4 N T 8 (33508, 7 0,13: 85 (0:10)8.51:39 §is (3.16)

E—— = —_—m e ey

Other Data; . .

Netcash provided by, (used iny i o BUIE G e R ey e B tgen Sem a T
Operating activities ' S 11818 12375 106438 190.63 1334
= Investing activitics s, s s ¢ st 2o Bt il (60.0)2 (1346) . (31, 0)._i(27.9) = (302.4)
Financinp activities. L (38T, 281 (10400 (137 7) 72 23,

C‘!plla] cxpeﬁﬁumsg ARG TR Y e o (T52Y (S8, 6y ("7 TN 75.3_3)_.(190 :5)

Balance Sheet Data; : ]
Csish. &nd‘ca'sh_cquw:iléms"‘.~‘;if;‘:':i,'_.._..«""*3'n e P A RTINS T O0TSeg s 5.2 ST 68,18, 96:1:5: “91.8)

Total assets o ) -1,575. 0 1 339 16748 l 827 19742
Long-u:rm debtdincliding viirfent pomun"" Bun IR e 2 A - o) (5, 4,,:_[,192 6. _1,2009. ¢ F1:300 1 30'[]
Stockholders’ Lqunv _183. 6. 309 0 240.2 2”8 4 183.0
,1_-(,:5.-.— D ol e T, PR . R R PEEVIRE
it CET e a BT e RO PR N ’-;vr*» Coe T coa
0pcrnling Dats: BT Sl S : SV Bt e oy £ e 3
-Numbcr of slot machlne‘; . . . . _ 13 784 1 14 047 14,379 IS 373_ 13,393
Namber of table SAMES, © v~ o g T R B g AT i68 L 3697 L3ET)
Number ofholcl rooms N _ 3, 079 3,078 ) 3 079 3 104 3,107
Numniber, m"parkmg Spacest W f § LS vEEeT .L: & B S 21,994 21,782 g, @96 223090z 7l, 29]

{1y Ourfiscal year ended April 30, 2012 inchedes 53 weeks while other fiscal years presémied include 52 weeks. The results reflect Biloxi,
l_ucn)n Bloe Chipand Co‘-'enuy as discontinued operations. We opcncd new casino operations'in Pampang, Florida and Waterldo,
lowa in Aprit 2007-and June 2007, respectively. We acduired our casino operatians in Canthersville, Missouri'in Junc 2007, We
-acquired our current casino operations in Vicksburg.-Mississippi in Jupc 2010.
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ITEM.7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITHON AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You shotild read the following discission together with the financial yiatements, including the related notes and the other financial information,
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Executive Overview

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and related dining, lodging and entertainment fadilities in regiona) markets -
in the United States, We have sought and established gcog,mph:c diversity to linait the risks caused by weaum recrmnal cconomic d.tfﬁcuiues, gaming tax
rates and regutations of local gaming suthorities. We currently operate casinos in Musw:sxppx Louisiana, Missousi, lowa, Colorado and Florida. We alsa
operate a harness racifig track’at our casino in Florida, -

Operating Results—Our aperating results for the petiods presented have been affected, both positively and negatively, by current economic conditions
and scveral other factors discussed in detai) below. Our historical operating rcsulls may not be.indicative of our futurg results of operations because of these
factors and the changing competitive landscape in each of aur markets, as. well as by factors discussed elsewhére herein, This: ‘Management's Discussion and
Ahalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations shauld be read in con_]uncuon with and giving consideration to the following:

liems Impacting Income (Loss} from Continuing Operations—Significant items impacting Gir incoié (Joss) from contining operations during the fiscal
‘years ended April 29, 2082, April 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010 are as folfows:’

53 week in Fiscal 2612— Our fiscal year ends on the Jast Sunday in April. Tlns fiscal year conv ention creates more wmpambxlﬂy of our
.quarterly operations, by generally having an equal number of weeks (13) and weckend days (26) in'each quarter. Periodically, this convestion
necessitaics a 53-week year. The fiscal year ending April 29, 2012 was a 53-week year with the cxtra week in the fousth fiscal quaner. The fiscal years
ending April 24; 2011 and April 25, 2010 were 52-weck yeurs.

Flooding and Inxurance Recoveries— Our fiseal 2012 operating results were impacted by flooding along the Mississippi River, which resulted in
five of our properiies being closed for differing periods of time.

Number Days

e Closing Date Reapening Date Closed _
Davcnpnrt Towa, .= T e A APAL IS 20N T Mayr L 200 st et 1'5{/_\) ]
Larulhcrsvll]c Mnsmurl May 1, 2011 ’ Mdy 13,2011

. May'i "Oll_‘frr w"’]mw3 2000 & ";' ;,,,A' 4 .zl*i
st ',L_A;\Semcmber 242011 ¥ 9iiB).

Wayp’j, 2001 Junc !7, 2011 o 41

V:csturg MISSTESIpPI, .o St My 1, 20T12 5% 2 T ey 27, T N A AT DT )

(A)  Sixdays of closure in the first quanter'of fiscéal 2012 and nine days of closure in the fourth quaner of fiscat 2011.

(B}  The second casino barge reopencd on Seplember 2,201 after flood damage was remediasted.
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Related 1o the floading, we filed and settled flood insurance claims resnlting in the recogmuon of $9.6 million business interruption recoveries in
our stafement of operations in fiscal 2012

Vafuation Allowances and Expenye Recoveries— As a result of our annual ?mpairment tests of goodwill and long-lived intangible assets under we
récorded-an imipairment charge of $14.4 million related fo goodwill a1 our,Lula property in iseal 2042,

In comnection with the sale of Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc., mciudmb its garmng license, a riverboat gaming vessel and certain other equipruent, we
recorded a vahation charge of $16.1 million t6 reduce the carrying vulue of tlfc net assets: sald to the net proceeds realized upon'sale during fiscal 2012.

During fiscal 2010, we recorded a reduction in other expensc of $6.8 millipn representing the diseounted value of & receivable for reimbursement
ot developmeént costs expensed in prior periods relating to a terminated plan td dévelop a vasine in Pittsburgh, Pennsyivania’ This feceivable was
recorded following owr assessment of collectability,

iIncome Tax Provision{Benefit)— During fiscal 2012, as a n:sult of evaluating the expected net realizable value of our deferved tax assets, including
Gar nel opefaiing loss carry forwards, we recorded a xaluat:un al)owance of approsiniately $%.7 miion felated 10 olr ineome {foin continging’
operations. Qur fiscal 2012 wax provision of $15.1 million includes the $8.7.related 1o the valiition chirge as well as the impact of permanent items and
other items.

Florida Gaming Law Changes— Effective July 1, 2019, the state portion_ nfgdmmg taxes apphcah]e 1o aur Pompano property was reduced from
30% 10 35% of gaming revenues. Additionally, this Ieg]slauon removed poker betting limits and allo\xed s to expanid oitr poker hours-from 12 hours
_per day to 18 hours per day Mondav through Thursday and 74 }mun; per day on Fndny through Qunday Qur casino revenues and gaming taxes reflect
the favorable impact of these changes in state gaming laws in fiscal years 301 'and 70]"

Increased Compemron— From time to time, new or expanded facjlitics'by éur competitors impact our resulis. For example, competition from a
new casino in Kansas opened during February 2012 ncganw.,ly :mpactcd our-Kansas City casino and expansion by a Native American casine in
Febnrary-2012 negatively impacted our Pompano casino.

frems {mpacting Current and Fuluré Operarions—During the fiscal years endéd Aprid 29, 201?.-_, ‘April ?'.4, 2011 and April 25, 2010, we have cntered into
agreeménis or completed transactions as fotlows: ’

Discontinued Operations

Ag: ‘eement to Sell Biloxi— During March 2012, we entered into a definitive purchase agreément to sell our subsidiary, which owns and operates
our casino and hotél aperations in Biloxi for $435 million subijéct 1o rcgulamry approval and’other custgmary closing conditions: In fiscal 2012, our loss
from discominued operations includes anoncash valuation charge of* S1128 5 miljjon o reduce the carrym g value of Biloxi's net assets held for saleto
the expécted nét realizable value. We expect this transaction ta clnse during fisea) 2013

Sale af Blhte Chip Casinos— During fiscal 2010, we completed the sale of our. Bluc Chip castne properties, lcated in England under a plan of
adminisiration and have no comlnuml_ » involveiment in its operation.. During ﬁsca] 2011 we recognized a gain of $2.7 m:!lmn inchuding txx benefiis of

$1.2 million, upon complr.uon of the administration process. We also recoynzcd in fiscal 2011 a
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tax benefit of £ $0.8 million in discominued operations representing the resolution of previously imrecognized tax positions following the completion of
certain federal tax reviews.
Acquisition .

Acquisition af Rainbow Casino— We acquired Rainbow Casino:Vicksburg Partnership; L.P. {"Rainbow™) located in Vicksburg, MlSSlsqlppl on
“June 8, 2010 acquiring 100% of the partnership interests for $76.2 million and have included the results of Rainbow in our consulldaied ﬁnancml
siatements subsequent to June §, 2010. The acquisition was funded by borrowings f_rom our senior sceured credit facnl_;ly

Development Activities

Cupe Girardeau— We continte construction of a new casino locatéd in' Cape Girardeau._.Under our developient agreement with the City of Cape
Girardeau, our planned casino is expected 10 include 1,000 slot machines, 28 uible games, three restaurants, o lounge and terrace overlooking the
M[:mssmp: River and 4 750-seat event center. We currently estimate-the cost nﬁhc praject at appmxmwlcly $135-miition with $49.9 million s spcm
through Apn] 29,2012 Subjcct to regulatory approval, we anticipate ppenitig by Nov emher 1,2012. During fiscal 2012, we incurred £0.8 miillion in
_preopening costs and expeet 1o incur additional prcopcmng costs of approxifiately $5.5 n'ulhon durmg fiscal 2013.

Neridgcolin— On'April 14, 2011, our prepased casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pennsylv dnia Gaming Control Board to
receive the final resort gaming llcense in Pennsylvania. We have enicred into o dcvc]npmem and management agréement with Nemacolin Woodlands
Resort to build and eperate & casino which is cxpecied to include approximately 600 slot machines and 28 table games. We curvently estimate the
praject cost at .zppmxxmatcly $30 million. The award of the Pennsytvania license to Nemacalin has been appealed to the Permcyhmnm Suprcm-: Court,
by one of the other applicants, Subjcct to a suceessful ruling in the appeal, we expect to comp]ete‘c.qns,t[gcnqn of the facility within approxjmalc]y nine
‘months after commencing construction. The timing ot"addiiim;a] significunt expenditures is dependent upon resolution of the items discussed above.

Capital Transactions -

FEquity Offering— During January 2011, we completed the sale of $:3.million hares of common stock generating net proceeds of $51°2 million,
Procccds from our equity offering have been-used to repay long-term.debt.

Senior, Notes— On March 7, 2011, we issued $300 million of 7.75% setijor notes due 2019, Proceeds from this debt i issuance were used to repay
borrowings under our seniof secured credit facility.

Senior Secured Credit Fatilitp— On March 25, 2011, we amendéd our senior secured credit fucility. Foitowing this amendment, ur credit facility
10otals 8GO million, cuns:s:mg of a $300 million’ rcvolvmg line of credit and a $500 million' term-Joan. The credit facuhw ratures on’ Noverober 12 2013,
or if the' 7% senior subordma‘lcd notes arc refinanced on or prior 1o that dmc the revolving line of credit matures on Marceh 25, 2016 and the term loan
maturcs on March 25, 2017.

These equity and debt transaciions have resuited in a reduction in our total debt, extenision of our mamirities and provide borrowing capacity to fund
current and finure capital expenditures for both our existing properiies and for our development projécis,
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Results of Operations

Our.resnhts of continving operations for the fiscal ycars ended April 28, 2012,-Apdl 24, 2011 and ‘April 23, 2‘0l0 refiect the consolidated operations of ull
of our c.ubmdnancs Our Biloxi and Blue Chip entitics are preséited as dncom:nued operations. Qur reselts been rcciaf.'ilﬁed to reflect the classification of
Biloxias a discontinued operations during the fourth quaner of fiscal 2012, as well as to conform our financial presentation o our currcm Vear financial
statement format.

1SLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

Operating lm:mne {L.ns)

Nel Revenues Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Yéar Ended
April 29, April 24; April 2%, April 29, Aprit24, April 2%,
{in th ds) . 2012 2011 016 2012 2001 2010
MissisSippi =22+ . g R A ST S L A
Natchez 3 78 643 % ?0 7875 32 826 S 6, 4785 7 :9] $. B.B68.
L,._,_Lula T S Y5256 7340”? CRATITEI0, 671 12471 10692}
\’icl.-;ljurg(l) , 32,695 "7 035 -— 4 145 4:148 —_
[,___\hssnssmm Tmal__.__h_&__l’zzlsrﬂ 5126,062,°100,973:%20;204; ¥24:250 % 19 560}
[.ouisiana
[ Takes Charies wooitor B oo 138,634 213 1214 8130.42 TRV FIL6712 13,638y 13.317)
Missouri |
1 Kapsas Gy a3 280 2075 80703, §77,7 102 76,815, 15, 962, 14 6194_13 717]
Boenville . 81,796 78,7716 77 ?59 26, 018 22,670 21 125

'—C.lrmhcrsvllle o 5 35,039,:_33,696% 32,685 s 497 . 3,909 18 331.
Mlssuun'lolal SR \97 5.18 190 182 13‘?,'239 4‘5 7 41 198 33 6‘)5
lowa P kY A N T

Bmendorf - 79 136 79,003 79,32_7 |2,79'§ 13 7'86 12, 674
‘Davenporl_ & -+ - #4326, 143,651, 48,075 1x8,26] = 8,171 _110,993)
Marquette 78'036 27,307 27176 4169 3780 1 330
[ Waterlon.. &% e T 86 AR 83 0T R1 3617039955 17,9531 1614} .
lowa Tcla] . 738 102 "33 24% 236, 039 45 622 43,290* 36, 067
('Ol()md() : ’?;_*'"’_"__‘)_ﬁ;;*_“_:‘:-..r\f‘f 4?,,; e t{( Ay ‘. R
Black_jl-lawk . ) 1"4 051 113, 482 126, l40 17,468 10,993 14,39} “'
Pll)l'ldd Ut '_-_1_-_ < B “c"v ":,"- v i . Wk ﬂwz&rg t:,m‘_... AT l . .
2
- Pon}pann o ——— 154 740 “|33 704 |35£2§_‘__1'7;12§_':_|_:,030 (6 931) .

* Lot e R &N,
£ -.,‘t 't."&

ot ) "'}’ b.:g" -t‘,f
& - “

~ K

Pio
'r:_:" " ;’6, 3

Viludtion cham.s and cxpemc
L_;;m:o\*enewi’) CH T i S : :
Corporate .md other 1,443 1,769 1,403 (41 933) (43, 468} (49, 975)

From’ continuing apertiong: <. S‘)T." 3717$936,601°5927,235'5/84,383, '>101 93E: SJ 36u

Naote:  Thid'table excludes our Biloxi and Blue Chip'operitions which hiave been cladtitied as discontinued operations.

1) Reflects results since the June 2010 acquisition efféctive date.

(2)  Valuation charges and expense rccoveries include valuation charges, expense recoveries and other charges. See Exeewive Qverview—
Valuation charges and expense recoveries for 4 detailed discussion of such items.
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Fiseal 2012 Comparcd to Fiscal 2011
. Revenuey

Revenves and aperaling expenses for the fiscal years 2002 and 2011 are as follows:

Fisenl Year Fnded

N i April 24, April 24, Percentage
. (in lhousamls) i 2012 . 201! | Variance Variance
.Revcnuc:> e ~x., e gt e TSR S e P e i
Casino , . 10065 3 L5 968423 5 38100 3.9%

. Roofis -« = T F E R 23R IZHA 2947 S Y090
Food be\.mge, pari- mumcl and other ‘128,560 121,935 4,605 5.4%
[nqurhnce TECOVENes e 1Yl B sy Ca ORIT D i e 39637 T uNIMTL

" Gross revenues 1,177,158 1,122,522 54636 4.9%
ECLZ 2 Less promational’ al]owanccs'f L S el 199,787 5 J(183861) . (13,926)5 < - o (1:5)%3
th re\ enues 977 371 936,661 40 710 4:3%
o TR R Jn:p- e O A N
'-Operatmb ﬂpen_ : 2oL o T LL’. SRR,
Casino 153 743 142 642 TR 71.8%
T Caming takes g 1 2., - = oe _ae i ;ng,;,j_f;;h_zal‘,?_so 24_,%_9 T RBIL_ T 36}
Rooms - 7.007 7,290 (263)_ i 216)

L Food, Beverage, pari‘mutuel and others® ;. "2 ogh Py 2o N A108Y) 40,559 _ 0 T7A2T a7 180”3
_ Marine and facilitics ) 57,225 55,211 2,014 3.6%
£ Marketing and admintstrative s .. w7 23 ;mw#w% B S AT0 % 285y 8 713: -_,__' 3.9,

Corporute and development- o 20,248 42,709 2,361) (3.8)%
T-\'umaﬁon‘chameéfsnd-csménsc”‘recb' 681, __cidibe g o 0049 L e s o _:’3‘0,5&49, YR
Preonening . 613 — 615 NIM
i Depr:c‘?zﬁmn and amonization £, AR a2 v 16, 0“0_,__,;_ 33, 6!3 TGN L (208
Total operating expenses $ 892 948 5 834, 730 38,239 1.0%

Caysino—Casino revenues increased $38.1 million; ar 3.9%, in fiscal 2012 compured to fiscal 2011. Far fiscal 2012, casino revenues for our properties
not closed due 1o flooding incrensed -$49.1 million, or 6.6%. This inchuded mcrmscd «casing revenues of $18.7 ml}lmn a1 our Pompano property, $10.4 million
atour Lake Charles property and £9.5 million at cur Black Hawk properties. Our other properties combined for an increase of $10.5 million in casino
revenues, The properties closed for part of the fiscal year due to flooding had decreased casiiio revenues of $11.0 riillion, or 4.9%,

Casino operating expenses increased $11.1 million; or 7.8% for fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 201 1. Net increzses in casino expenses reflects the cost of
incredsed z.ompllmemar) rooms and foord and txvcmgcs provided to vur casine customers and, increased saliries and wages due to expanded hours of
operation at Pompano and a2 new pokcr room at our Black Hawk property.

Gammg Faxes—State and local gaming taxes increased 38,8 million, or 3. 6%, for fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011 consistent with the 3.9% increase
in gaming revenues.

Rooms—Rooms revenue increased $0.3 million, or 0.9%, in fiscal 2012 compared 1o fiscal 2011, Rooms revenue for.our properties not closed due 1o
ticoding increased $1.0 millton, or 3.4%.

)t'uqd'. Beverage, Pari-Mutuel and Other—Food, beverage, pari-mutue] and other revenues increased $6.6 mi!lio_n, or 5.4%-in fiscal 2012 compared to
tiscal 2011. Food, beverage and other revenues for fiscal 2012, increased $6.5 million, including increases at our Pompano property of $3.4 million.

33



http://increa.se

Tablé of Contents

Promdtional Allowances—Promotional allowanees increased $13.9 million, or 7.5%; in fiscal 2012 compared 10 fiscal-201 . The increase'in promotional
allowances is primarily attributable to our 3.9% increase in gaming revenues as we revise o our marketing plans as a resubt of competitive factors, cconomic
conditions and regulations.

Marine arid Féicilities—Marine and facilities expenses increased $2.0 million; or.3.6%, for fiscal 2012 compared 1o fiscal 2011. The overall increase in
marine and facilitics reflect increased spending for repairs and maintenance,

Markermg amlAdmm:-.trach—Marketmg and administrative C‘lp& nses increased $8,7.million, or.3. 9%, for fiscal 2012 compared ta fiscal 201 1..The

overall incrense corresponds to a 2.9% increase in casino revenues and reflects additional marketmg expendinires des:gned to increase market share and
customer visits, . -

Corporate and Development—Dunng fiscal 2012, our corporate and dev elnpment cxpenses were $40.2 million compared 1w $42.7 million for fiscal
2011. The decrease is a primarily, a result of financing re]ated costs of $4.0 million and acqiisiten and devclopmcm costs of $3.8-miilion in fiscai 2011 offset
by increaséd ifisurdnce costs and a $2.0 million acerual related to i_llrg.illun

Preupenmg—Preupemng expenses relate to our casino upder construction-in Cape Girardeau, Missouri- and include payroll, outside services, insurance,
utilities, travel and various othier expenses related 10 the new operation. The new ¢asine is expected to'opeh dunng October 2012, subject 10 regilatory
approval

Depreciation and Amoriization—Depreciation and amortization expense for, fisca) 2012 compared w fiscal 2011 decressed $1.6 miltion, primarily due 1o
certain assets becoming fully depreciated.

Other Income (Expense), Income Taxes and Dixcontinued Operations

Interest expense inierest income, derivative expensc, income tax (provision) henéfit and’income from discontinued operations, net of iricome taxes for
the fiscal years 2012 and 2011 arc as filows:

Fiscal Year Ended

- Aprit 29, April 24, Percenlage
tin thousaads) " . - n 2012 2011 . Variance Variance
Iftérest expenelan, TR T N A T e o8 (8790508 (91,935} __~41030_ . .(3.47%)
Lhterest income . 819 1,903 (I 084) (57 0)
Deriy atl&{gmc,umr'-:(c_-‘ip:nié)‘;ﬁ__ﬂ.__..;u*-_.,y___,ML »_;.:_“'ﬂ,: Yk w330y (T2Ld) L1653 < NI
Lncome tax provision. ' U119 (6,950) (s 169) 117.5%

lncnme e.(loss) fr from discontinued 0 iix (] T3 370) it 805 3 (H3,175) NM_,_E
Jnterest Expense—nterest éxpense decreased $4 0 m:]]:on ord. 4%, m f'l:ca] "01 2 compared to fiscal 201 1. The déciéase is primarily a result of interest
rate swaps maturing in fiscal 2011 and fiscal 3012, Wc capitalized $1.1 million in‘interest related to construction: projects during fiscal 2012,
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Fiseal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010
Revenves

*  Revenuces for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Vear Ended

Aprit 24, April 25, . Percenlage |
(mlhnusands) 1 2010 Varisnce ) Variance
Revenues: £ RS " R |
Casino N $ 968,423 § ‘§43,234 $ 25189 2.7%
oo g ¢ GRvE e e e E T M32,144_""='~ o AnsAR w a0 o e 0a3)% ]

Food, beverage, “pari-mutue) and olhcr 121,955 {243) (Q._-Z)%
" ICross revermes, TR ot B ¥ B T TMen a0 saa e 1*093 0824 3540 = e or1%]
Less promotional allowances (1R5,862y (L71,747) (14,115 . (8.2)%
+ Netrevenues, P L o1 @ Fyo v %o ;;mgggt};{,gjsa. 927,238% ;. K9435y T~ 10% ]

-Casino Reverey—Casino revenues ingreased $25.2 mitkion, or 2.7%, in fiscal 2011 comparcd 10 fiscal 2010 For fiscal 2011, casino revenucs increased
£8.9 million at our Pompano property, and incieded $36.8 million fram vur Vtuksburg casine. These'increases were offset by decreased casino revenues at our
Black Fawk and Quad Citles properties of $15.2 niillion reﬂcctmg the impact of competition and’a'deérease at our Lake Charles; Lula and' Watchez properties
;fappmnmdtc]y S11.4 million primarily due to current economic: conditions. Our other properties wmhlnu.l for'a netincrease of $6.1 million-in casino
J'CVLI.'II.'IES

Reoms Revenwe—Rooms revenue decreased 51.4 million, or 4.2%, in fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. The majority of this decrease has oecurred at
vur-Black llawk property where we have experienced declines in both roem rates and occupancy. following the opening of a competitor's new hotel during
October, 2009. ) ) ’

Food, Beverage, peri:muniel and Other Revenues—Food, beverage, pari-mutoe] and other revenues decreased $0.2 million, or 0.2%, in fiscal 2011
compated to fiscal 2010.-Food, beverage and other revenues for, fiscal 2011 included $2.3'million from our recently acquired Vicksburg casino.

Promotional Allowaences—Promotional allowances increased 514:1 million; or g "%, in tiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2016, Promotional allowances for
fiscdl 201 | included $11.1 million from our V:cl.sburg casino. At ‘our existing pmpemc:, ‘chaniges in our promotional allowances reflect revisions to our

marketing plans as 2 resiilt of competitive factors, econornic conditions and regulatiors.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

. M April 24, April 25, Percentage

tin thousands) . z(m 10 Varinnce Variance
Operating expenses: _go=e  sea St5 hash o3 Al ateh . ool e R i P 7 3
Casino $ 142,647 § 137,305 S '3, 337° 3:9%
Gaming taxgs s w T e i i e Eem, B A 947049 T, ASLIIAL (1IN {46 ]
Rooms 1,960 (670) (8.4%%

i Food! Beveraye s pafi-mutiiel ind’ mhen R e b TR 40559 % 40,088, -2 2 471" T12%A
\1anm:andfacmnce e eemee e 3521 55,539 _ (gj_g) (0.6)/..

5 Matketing ‘AN BARINTSrAL Ve i e o N S e 8 e st 2, 2A8H 15T 78223, TR 1,9295 e . 0.9%.1
Corpomte and developiient - - 42,709 46,750 - (4.041) (8.6)%-

[ \‘ lidtion chdnzcs and: expcmc rucuvenes P “‘;—::‘ A6;762)_x, 1{)'.‘-7}5_2? - '7 NM___J
Dcprec:anon and amortization 77.613 93, 478 (17,865) (IS 1%
& iTotl opcmtmg cxpenscs% R iats L TER T T ST BII0IS, (RS4RI . (20,[39) 1 SI(a)%]

$ # -

Casino—Csiio opemtmg €Xpenses murcascd 55 3 nitillion, or 3.9% for fiscal 2011 n.ompared to'fiscal 2010. E'(c]udmg cabine costs of $4, 8-million
incurred by, our Vicksbuiy casino, our casino costs would have’ increased $0.5 millib, This net change irr casino operating expeses réflects a slight increase
in Lasmo expenses at our Pompano property followmg the expansion of gaming hours effective July 1, 2080 offset by net cost reductions in casino cxpense al
most of our, properties. .

-Gaming Tare_s—S:ate and local gaming taxes decreased $11.8 million, or 4.6% for. fiscal 2011 _compared 1o fiscal 20140. Reductions i in gaming taxcs for
fiscal 2011 veflect the decrease in s!ale gaming taxes at our Pompano ﬁ!(‘l]lt} from:$0% t0 35% effccme July 1, 2010 and’ changes'in the mix of our gaming
revenues derived fron states with different ganiing tax rates. Gaming taxcs for fiscal 201 | included $377 mlllmn from our Vicksburg casino.

Rooms—Rooms expenses decreased by $0.7 nul]mn or 8.4% in fiscal 201 1-compared to fiscal 2010, This decrease in roums expense is reflective of a
4:2% reduiétion in odr hosel revenues fir-fiseal 2011, rnbpeuwely, a5 eompared 1 {iscal 2010, N

Foud, Beverage, Pari-mutuel and Other—Food, beverage; pad-mutuel and other expenses increased by S0.5 million, or 1. :2%, in fiscal 2011 compared to
fiscal 2010. Excluding food: beverage and ul.her costs of 1.1 million incurred by our Vn.ksburg casino, our food, bcvemgc and othcr gxpenses would have
decreased $0. 6 million.

o for fiscal 201 | compared to fiscal 2010, Excluding marine and
fac:]ny cosis of §1.4 :mihon mcum:d bv our acquired \':cl.sburg casmo aur marmc and fau]m' caosts would have decreased $1.1 million. This decrease
includes reductions in facility costs across most propertics g5 we continue to focus on cost reductions efforts.

Marketing and Adminisirative—Marketing and administrative expenses-incrensed $2.0 million, or.0.9% for fiscal 2011 compared to fisea) 2010.
Excluding marketing and administrative costs of $8.6 million incurred by our Vicksburg casino, our marketing and administrative costs wi ould have decreased
$6.6 millien: These decreases reflect reductions in our operating cost 1o align such expenditures with changes in visitation and spend per visit by our
cuslomer';
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Corparate and Dmvm'npmem—DunnL fiscal 201 |, our corparate and development u-:pcncec were $42:7-million compared 10 $46.8 million for fiscal
-2010. The nct decrease in corporate and development expense reflects decreases'in insnrance costs and incentive compensation. Corporate and development
expenses for fiscal 2011 include financing related costs of $4.0 million and development and acquisition costs of 4.0 million. [n fiscal 2010 we incurred
$1.8 million in costs related 10 an amendment of our senior eredit fucility.

Depreciation and Amortization—Depreciation and amortization expense for-fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010 decreased $17.9 million, primarily due.
to cermin assets becoming fully depreciated offset by depreciation at Vicksburg ot $476 million.

Other Income (Expense), Income Taxes and Divcontinwed Opevations

Interest ev.pcnse imerest income, derivative expense, income tax {provision)-benefit and income fromi discontinued aperations, net of income tares for
‘the fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are as follows: :

Fiscal Year Ended

April 24, April 25, -, Percentage
{in thousands) - 201 L. -, 010" }:-a\'arimca“ Variance
LoteTost eXPenSe oY . o B at A B o doe TG e e e ';.;-’"3.3&'”(‘).1193_5)_53(15;43g{)$5_f'(16,‘50[) 2195
tntercst income’ __ o N 1,903 1 814, 89 4.9%
Derivative expense oo~ gee oy, 0 R TR A T i (1,214) (370)_,._,_,(844) TN
Hncome tax (pmv:smn) benefit ' (6 950) 6,909 (13 859) N

tncdme (1655) from dlsmmuﬁed Operations; ne m:l ofmcnmg“tdvﬁ:‘:'f'” RTINS FRO5.= (8 753) 275056~ o M)

.fmermf Etpeme—lmercs: expense’increased 516.5 million, or 21.9%; in fiscal 2612 compared to fscal 2011 pnman]v duc increased interest rates on
borrowings under our senior secured credit facility, fo]]OWm_s_r our amendment of this faciliy. dunnb s the fourth quarter of fiscal "01 0 and higher outstandmg
borrowings following our, acquisition of Vicksburg casino during June 2010. Fiscal 20!7 interest expense includes a'$3.2 million write-off of deferred
financing cowus as a result of the amendment of our semnr.sccumﬂd credit focility during the fourth quarier and an $8.5 million decrease in'interest associated
with our interest rate swaps os certain of owr swaps have matored..

Income Tax (Provision) Buiéff—Our income tax (provision) benéfit from wminuing operations and our effective income 1ax rate have been linpacted
'by vur slate in¢ome taxes and our incomc for financial statement’ purposes as wellas our. pcnentdge of permanent and other.items in relinion to our income or
loss. During:fiscal 2010, our effcetive income tax fate was alstrimpacted by our settlement of certain tax linbilities for $4.7,million less than our estimated
atcerual,

Liquidity snd Capital Resources

Cash Fiows from Operaiing Aviivitiey—Diring fiseal 2012, we generated $118.1 million in cash flows from operating activities compared 1o genesating
$123, 7 million during fiscal 201 1. due primarily to a pet use of working capital of $3.7 million:

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities—During fiscel 2012 we used $60.0 million for investing activities compared to using $144.6 million during
fiséal 2011, Significant investing activities during fiscal 2012 included capital expenditures of $75.2 mllllon mcludmg, y $34.9 million relating 1o Cape
Glrnrdcau and net proceeds fraom the sale of Grand Palais Riverbout; [nc. ﬂfS 14.8 million. Significant investing activities dunng fiscal 2011 inchided the
purchas:c of the Rainbow Casine in \'lcksburg,, Mlss:ssmp: for 576.2 mlllmn, capital cxptndﬂurgs of 858.6'millien.tincluding §13.3- million relating to
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Cape Girardcau and Nemacolin, and increases in restricted cash-and investments al our captive insurance company by $9.5 miillion to-fund insurance reserves
in liew of providing letters of credit.

Cash Flows used by Financing Acn'virr'a.v—[)uﬁng fistal 2012 our net cash Mows wseddn financing activities were $38.7 million primaﬁ]y.com’prised of
net reductions in our Senjor-Secured Credit Facility 6538 .4 million,

During fiscal 2011 oiir net cash flows provided. by financini activities were 528.1 million primarily comprised of:

. Net proceeds from our common stock offering of $51.2 million:

- Nev proceeds {Irom the issuance of our 7.75% senios.notes of $297 8 milkion;

. Nei reductions in our Senior Secured Credit Fac'ilfry of $306.1 milljon: and

. Payment of $14.8 million in deferred financing costs associated with the issudtice of our 7.75% sedior notes and amendment of our senior
secured credit facility. .

Avmlahn'm qumh and Adn’rrmna! Capitali~—At April 29, 2012; we had cash and cash equivalents of £94.5 million and marketable secufities of
24 9 willion. Asof April 20, 2012, we had no outstanding borrowings under aur revolving credit and $493.0 willion in term loans outswnding under.our
senior secured credit {acility. Our net line of credit availahility at-April 19,2012 was approXimately $25% million a3 timited by ‘our senior secured levéragé
covenant.

Capital Expenditurés and Developmeni Acifvities—As part of our busmcss developnient activ itics, historically we have entered into agreements which
“have resulted in the acquisifion or.developmient ofhusmcucs Lorassets. These busmcss dcvcl()pmt‘m efforts and related agreements 1yp|caily require the
cxpendxture of cash, which may be significam. The amoun: and nmmg ‘of our cash expenditures rcl:mng 1o develapment activities may vary based upon our
evaluation of current and future development opportufiities, our financial condition and the condition of the financing markets. Qur development activities are
_subject.to &' variety of factors' mcludmg but not limited to: obtaining permits;- Ticenses and’ approvals from appropriate regulatory and other agencies,
legislative changes and, in certain circumstances, neguuatmg acecplable leases.

Construction is proceeding ahcad of schedule for. our Isle Casino Lapu G:mrdwu developmgin, We anticipate opcmng by November 1, 2012, subject to
regulatdry approv als. We currently cstimate the cost of the project at'approximiately, $135 millionand have incurred capna! expenditeres, mcluqu capitalized
‘interest, of $50 mitlion !hrough April 29, 201 2: I fiscal 2013, we plan 10 invest approximately £35 million in pmjtct capnal in our Cape Girardeau
developnient project, harring any delays n.]alcd to licénsing and pcrmmmg, contractor negatiations; wcathcr ar oLhcr items.

Our proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pcnnsy]\ama Gaming Contsol Bourd to reeeive the final resort gaming license in i.
Pennsy tvania § in April 2011, "This award has been appealed to the Pennwivanm Suptiéme Court by another applidait. We have adevelopment and mamgmmm
agreement with Nemaculm ‘Woodlands resort to build and dheraté a casino with 600 slot miachines and 28 1able games. Subject to-a successiul ruling-in the
appeal’and the receipt of all regulatory and other approv d]s e expect to complete construction of the facility within approximately fiine months afier -
commencing construction, We currently estimate the cost of the project at approximately 550 million: To date, we have'incurred capital cxpenditures,
including capitaiized interest, of $1 .0 million. The timing of additional significant expenditures s dependent upan résolution of the appeal,

Historically, we have made significant investments in:property, and equipment and expec that our operations will continue to demand ongoing
invesiments to l\ccp our propenties competitive.
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We have identified several capital projects primarily focused on refreshing our hutel soom inventory as'well as additional improvements 16 our, Black
Hawk and Lake Charles propertics, and further Lady Luck cenversions. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, we commenced improvements (o the hotét at our
Lake Charles property and began rebranding our Vicksburg property.to a Lady, Luck. Additionally we expect to make several other i improvements 1o our.

propenties including additional Farmers Pick buffets and other food and beverage outlets as well as ongmng maintenance Lapnal Wwe € expect 10 incur capital
expenditures of approximately $55 million to $63 million in fiscal 2003 related to these items. “The timing, completion and amount of additional capital
-projects will be subject 10 improvement of cconomic and local market condmons cash {lows from our continuing operations and borfowing availability under
our Credit Facility.  ~ .

Typically, we have funded our daily operations through net cash provided by, operating activities and our significant capital expenditures through
operating cash flow and debt financing. While we believe that cash on hand, cash flow from operations, and available borrawings under our Credit Facility
will be sufficient to support our working capital needs, planned capital expenditures.and debt service requiremenis for-the foresceable ﬁ.nurc, Lhcrc isno
assurance th:n these sources will in fact provide adequate funding for our planned and necessary expenditures or thal the ]eve] of our.capital investments will
be suffictemt 10 allow us 10 remain competitive in our existing markets. .

We are highly Iwcrancd and mav be unable o0 obtain additional debt or equity findncing on acceptable terms'if our current sowrces othu:dlty are pot
sufficient or if we fail to stay in complmnce with the covenants of our Credit Facility. We will continue 10 evaluate our p]am:cd capnai expendimres at each of
our existing locations in light of the operating performance of the facilities at such tacations.

‘Critical Accounting Estimates

Curconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U:S. generalty accepted accounting brij:cip]és,mhk require oiir manugément 1o
mazke estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Mapagement identifies critical accounting estimates as:

' those that require'the use of assumptions about matters that are inherenily and highly uncertaisn a1t the time the estimates are ma'dé:'

. those estimates where; had we chosen differem estimates or assumptions; the resulting differences- wowld have had a material impact on our
financial conditiun, changes in financial condition or Tesults of'opcratlons and

. those csiimates that, if they were to change from period to period, likely would result in a material impact on our financial condition; changes in
financial condition or results of operations.

Based upon' management's discussion of the development and sclection of these eritical accounting estimates with-the Audit Commitiee of our Board of
Directors, we believe the following accounting estimates involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity.

Goodwill and Qiher lnlanglb!c:!nch—f\l April 29, 2012, we had  goodwill ad other intingible asseis of $387.5 million, representing 24.6% of to1at
assets. [n accordance with ASC Topu: 350, lnmngibles——Goodwﬂl and’ O!hcr, if necessiry, we performan annual impainiwent tést for goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible assets in the fourih fiscal quarier-of each yéar, or oivan interim basis if indicators of mpdinment exist. For propcrues with goodwill and/or
ather intangible assets with indefinite lives, this test requires the comparisan of the lmleed Fair valse of each reporting unit to carrying vahe.

We must make various assumptions and-estimates in-performing our impairment testing. The implied fair vatue inc]udes estimates of future cash flows
that are hased on reasonable and supportable :
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" assomptions which represent onr best estimates of the cash flows expected to resuit from the.usc of the assets including their eventual disposition and by a
miarket #pproach based upon valuation multiples for similar companies. Changes in estimates, increases in our.cost of capital, reduciions in transaction
maltiples, operating and capital expenditure assumptions or application of allemative assumptions and definitions could produce significantly different results:
Futuré ¢dsh flow,estimales are, by their natre, subjective and actual results may differ ‘muterially. from our estimates, If our ongoing estimates of fiture cash
flows are not met, we may have to record additional impainment charges in future accounting periods. Our estimates of cash-tlows are based on the current
regulatory, sodial and economic climates, recent aperating information and budgcts of the various propertics wheré we conduct operations. “These estimates
could be ncgauvc]y impacted by changes in federal, state or local regulations, economn. downturns, or other eu:nls affecting varions forms of travel and
access 10 our propénies. We engage an independent third party vahiation firm to assm managemenl in our annual smpamnem testing.

Based upon our fiscal 2012 annual impaimment testing, we noted reporting units with'goadwill and/or other long-lived intangibles had fair values which
exceeded their camying values by at leass 10%, except for our Lula and Black Hawk reporting units: In éonjunction with this impairment testing, we recorded
an impairment chatge related 1o goodwill at our Lula propesty of §14.4: mnllmn rcqulung in a'remaining g,oodwﬂi balance of $80.6 million. Black Hawk's
.goodwill and indefinite-lived assets as of April 29, 2012 were $37.7 million; which fair. value exceeded its carrying value by 9%

Property and Equipmeni—At April 29, 2012, we had propertv and cqmpmcnt net of accumviated degreciation of5950 million, represcntmg 60.3%of
our total assets: We capitalize the cosi of propenty and equipment. Ma:mcnancc and repairs. that ncnhcr materially add to’ ‘the value of the property of
equipment nor appreciably prolong iis life are cha:ged to expense as incurred. ‘We deprcmate propcrty and eqmpmcm ona strmght-lmc basis‘over their.
estimated useiul lives. The estimated useful lives are based'on the nature of the assets as Well as our current operating strategy.’ Future evenits such as property
expansions, few competition: changes in technology and new regulations could result in‘a Lhange in the manper in which we are using certain 3sseis requiring
a change in the estimated useful lives of such assets. .

Impairmant of Long-lived Assets—We evaluate long-lived assets for. impairment in accordance with the guidance in the Impairment or Disposal of Long
Lived Assets subsection of ASC Topic 360, Praperty, Plant and Equipment {ASC Tomc 360%). Fara IOilg-ll\‘ed asselto be held and used; we review the asset
for impairment whenever events or changes-in circumistances indicate the carrying ampunt may not be recoverable. In assessing the récoviermbility.of the
carrying valhe of such property, equxpment and other long-lived assets, we make .xssumphons regarding fumre cash flows and residual values. If these
estimates or the related assumptions are not achieved or, change’in 1he fiilure, we'may be required 1o rc.cord animpairment 1oss for these assets. In evaluating
1mpa1m1em oflong-l:vcd assets for pewly opened operations, estimates of tumn: cush flows and rc:nduai values may require some Jperiod of actual results to
provide the basis for an opinion of future cash flows and residual values used i inthe deter mination of an: ‘impatrment toss for thesc,assets, For.zssets held for
disposal, we récognize the asset at the lower of carrying value or-fair.market value, less cost of disposal based upon appraisals, discounted cash flows or other
‘methods as appropriate, An impairment loss would be l‘ecngm?ed as a non-cash mmpuncm of opemtmg income. During fiscal 2012, following our agrecment
to sell our Biloxi property, we recognized an impairment lo3s of §1 12.6 mn[hon in discontinued operationg related to the assets held fnr sale. We also
recognized during fiscal 2012 an impairment charge of $16:) million related 1o the sale of certain long-lived assets at our Eake Charles property.

Self-Insurance L. fahilities—We are self-funded up 10 a maximum amount per claim for Gur employee- -related health care benefits progiam, workers'
conipensation aind general liabilities. Claims in excess of this maximum are ful]y insured through a'stop-loss insurance policy. We accrue a discounted
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cstimate for workers' compensation liability and gencral liabilitics-based on claims filed and cstimates of claims incurred but not reponted. We rely on
independent consultants to assist in the determination of estimated accruals: While the ultimate cost of ¢laims incurred depcnds on future developments, such
as increases in health caré costs, in our opinion, recorded reserves are adequate to cover futire cluims payments. Based upon our cwrent gecrued insurance
liabilities, a 1% chinge in our discount factor would cause a $0.7 million change in our/acerued self-insurance liability.

Income Tax dssets and Liabilities—We account for income 1axes in accerdance with the guldanoe inASC lup:c 740, Income Taxes ("ASC Topic 740").
We are subject to income taxes in the United States and in several states in which we operate. We Tecoghize a current X asset of liability for the estimated
taxes payable ar refundable based upon application of the’ enacted tax’ ratcs 10 hxable income in the current year.-Additionally, we are’fequiired 1o fecognize a
deferred tax liability or asset'for the estimated futire 1ax éffects’ atifibutable to tempdrary differences, Tempaorsry differences occur when differences arise
between: (4) the amount of taxable income and pretax financial income for a year and (b) the tox basis of assets or liabilities and their reported amounis in
financial statcments. Deferred tix nssets recognized musi be reduced by a vahation allowanec for any tax benefits that; in our judgment and bascd upon
available evidence, may nol be realizabte. At April 29, 2012 we have reduced our deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance of $54.2 miliion.

-Wé ussess our tax positions uding & two-step process. A tad position’is fedognized if it meets s "morelikely than not” threshiold; and is mvasired at the
largest amount of benefit that is-greater than'50 percent likely of being realized-Uncertain tax: positions must be Teviewed at each-balance sheet date.
Liabititics recorded as a result of this analysis must geneml]y be recorded separately, (rom any, current or.deferred income tax accounts, and are classified as
current or. lone term i the balance sheet based on the time uatil ‘éxpected payment in accounts accrued liabilities- other or other long-ténm liabilities,
.rcspecuvely We recognize accrued interest and penaltics related to unrecognized tax benefits i in income tax expense.

Stack Bused Compensation—We apply the guidance of ASC Topic 718, Compt:n-ialidn—Stocl\ Compensation ("ASC-Topic 718") in accounting for
‘stock compensation: Generally, we are Tequired 10 measure the cost of employee services reecived in x.xchangc for an award of equity insruments basedon
the grant-date foir value of the award. The estimate of the, fair vatue of the stock- options is caleulated using the Black-Scholes-Meston option-pricing model.
This modcl requires thé use of various assusaptions, mcludmg the historical vulat:lny ufour stock price, the risk f:ree interest rate; estimated expecied life of
the grants, the estimated dividend yield atid estimated rate of forféitures. Subseguent te our tiscal year éiided April 39, 3013, we graméd sEstricied stock units
("RSUs") coniaining markei performance conditions which will dctermmc the smount of shares 10-vest, if any: The fair value of these RSUS is determined
utilizing a lattice pricing model whithi considefs a fange of assumptions including, val.mlny und Tisk-free-interest rates - Stock based compeénsation expense is
included in the expense category corresponding to the employées' rcgulu.r compensation:in The accompany ing consolidated stutements of operations.

Derivative Instrumenty-—We utilize an investment policy for managing risks associated with our current and anticipated future borrowings, such as
interest rate risk and its potential impact on our fixed and variable rate debt, The policy doés not allow for the use of derivative financial instruments for
lradmg or speculame purpases. To the extent we employ:such financial instruments pursnant.to this policy, and the instuments qualify for hedge accounung,
we may designate and account for them as hedged inswrumends. [n order 1o galify’ for hedge accounting, the underlyi ing hedged item musi expose us 1o risks
associsted with market {Tuctuations znd the findncialinstrument- used must be dcangnalcd s a'hedge and must reduce our exposure 1o market fluctuations
throughout the hedged period. 1i these criteria arc not met, a change in the market value of the fi fiancial instrument is recognized as a gain (loss) in the period
of change. Otherwise, pains and losses related to the charsgc in the miarker value
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are-not recognized except to the cxtent that the hedged debi is disposed of prior to matvrity or t the extent that unacceptable ranges of incffectiveness exist in
‘the hedge. Net interest paid or received pursuant to the hedged financial instrument iy included i interest expense in the period. Our current interest rate swap
agreements; which were designated as cash-flow hedges, became ineffective upon thie amendment of onr senior sccured credit facxlnv In February 2010. We
tecord them at fair value and measure their effectivéness using lhe ]on;_,-h.mi method. The Lfl"ecm'c pomon of any giiin or loss On our interest rate swaps is
recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) We use the' hy‘polhcncal denvatwc methiod to measire the incffective portion of our interest rate swaps. The
ineffective portion; if any, is recorded in other income (expense). We measure the nrark-to-market value of ‘our interest rate swaps using a discounled cash
flow analysis of the projecied futre receipls or payments based upon the iorward Yyield curve'on the date of measurément. We adjust this amount to measure
the Tair value of our imérest rate swaps by applying a credit valuation deustment to the miark-to:market exposure profile.

Contingencies—We are involved in various legal proceedings and have: ldcnnﬁed certain loss coptingencies- We record liabilizies re]aled to these
rcontingencies when it is dc1crm1ned that a loss is probable and rcasonabiy cst:mablc in accordance with the guidance of ASC Tapic 450 Commgcncucs ("ASC
Tapic 450"); These assessments are based on our knowledge and c\perlem.e as-well as the advnce of legal counsel regarding eurvent and past events. Any such
estimates are also subject to future events, coun rulings, nq,uuauons between the pamcs ‘anil other uncertamucs [ an actual:loss differs from our eéstimate, or-
the actilal outcointe of any of the legal procccdmgs dlﬁcrs iroin expectations, fiuture dperating Fegulss could be: lmpm.tcd.

Cootractual Obligations and Commercial Cummltmcn ts

The following table provides information as of the cx}d of fiscal 2012, zbout our contraciual obligations and commercial commitiments, The.1able presents
voniractuat obligations by due dates and related contractual commitmens by xpiration dates (in millions).

Piymenls Due by Periad

Less Than .
Contmctual (‘lhligations “Total. I. \'ear 1 -3 Years 4-5Years After S Years.
VomasTormDebt __ S.% Lo o Tiar o USINISEMS_ 54 35 _8A%, 5. 0.5 S_ 3026}
Estimated interest pa)mcms on km;, tcrm debt(l) 3517 ° 728, 8. 3 475 _ 49.1
Operating Ledses, A TR 2L CRIRAE L3397 R 33310 FaRdd4)
Pl:ggg-'['erm ()bh;:gi_i_(_)_r_\s(") T 146 18 6.1
Construction Contractual Gbligations(3) r" I 85 0z %850 =
Other Long-Term Oblipations ' s il 2;,1 ]

T——————
TotalCenmicmalCathbhg'mnna e a2 301,999, S*il‘)ﬂ? 2519733

(1)  Estimated interest payment on long-termy' debt are bas«,d on principal amaimnts oitstanding at our fiscal yearend and forecasted LIBOR
’ rates for oiir senior sectfed credit facility,

{2)  Long-term obligations inclide furure purchase commitments,

{3) Construction contractual obligations represent the estimated remammg capital expenditures on the construction of our new casino in
"Cape Girardeau, Missouri.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Recently fssued Accouniing Siandards—In Septeiber 2011 the Financial Au,ounlmg Standards Board, ("FASR") issued Update No. 2011:08,"Testing
Goodwill- for Impairment,” which amends ASC 330 "Intangibles—Goodwili and Other.” 'I'hJs update permits entities to make a qualitative assessment of
whether a reporting unit's fair value is, more likely than not, less than its carrymg amount. lfdn entity concludes it is more likcly than not'that the fair value of
a reporting unit is greater tham its carrying amount, the entity is not rcqulrcd to pcrform the, two- -step’ mp;urment test for that rcpomng unit; “The update is
effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal vears beginiing after’[Jecember 15, 201 1, with ear]y adoption permitted,
During fiscal 2012 we adc)ptcd this standard, which did not materiatly impact our consolidated financial statements.

in June 2011, the FASB issued Updaie No. 2011-05, "Compnchcnsnc Income (Tapic 220): Presentation ofComprchcns:vc income,” which allows for
the presentation of tots] comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of othér campirehensive income either in a ';mgle
contintuous staternent ofcomprehcmue income or in two separate out consccutive stitements. In addition; the guidance eliminates the option of presénting the
companents of othef comprchensive income as pan oflhe statemént of::hdns_.,t.s in sluckhnldcrs cquu) This guldam.e is effective for fiscal yeurs and intérim
periods within those fiscal § years beginning after December 15 2011. Whllc the adopuon will § impact-where We disclose the components of other
comprehensive income in our consolidated financial statemenls, we do not expect the’adoption to have a mntcnal impact on those consolidated financial:
statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AROUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the Fisk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rales and prices; inchiding interest rates, foreign curreney exchange rates,
commodity prices and equity prices. Our.primary exposure 1o market risk- is interest ratg risk associated with our sentor secured credit facility.

Senior Sccured Credit Facility
‘During fiscal 2012, we maintained intérest ratc swap agreements “and ntercst rate cap ATANECments. with'an aggregate notienal value of 350 waillion and

$ L0, million as of April 29,2012 n.spccmeiy The' swap agreemcnt eﬁccmelv cnvens portions of the senior secured credit facility variable debt to a fixed-
rate basis until the swap agrecment [erminates, wi ‘hich occurs infiscal 2014.

The following table provides information at Apfil "9 2012 about our financial instruments that are sensitjve to changes in interest mries. The table
presents principal cash flows and relaied wesghwd averdge intérest rates: by expectcd niturity dates.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity
Princlpul (Notiomal) Amuum by Expccn:d M'nunt\
Average Inferest (Swap) Kale

Isé Fnir
Flzséal year Vatiie
(dotlars in millions) 00 Total 4!29.’20”

Liabilitles:o®_ ~ 57 <.~ I o RN R, I s
Long-len'n dcb:

mciudmg current

portior

fixed s~ 2:8:0. 78357548, 028107, 0125 36w $6aoxesm(ﬂ
_1.38%

?08’. 184% 785%

a}iubie ‘I'I?C s %5 ﬁ“.. : 7.' ; ]
Avemgc interest
rate(1) 4.80% 4. 80’;.. 2.97% 0. 00% 0. 00% 0. Og%
g a NS . Ay A

i
]
A\.eragc piy rate_3.00% _4.00% 0.00% 000% 0. 00% 0, 00% . 0. 000:. '
Jo——t Gl e P \7 -
.»\verage reccive - - A : P
ADUN 1P A9 | _,fnﬂ%]_ﬂ []()(ﬁo O 00/u (}[.\0/* ‘

(1}~ Represents the'annud] averageé l.IBQR from 1hc't6nvhﬁi'3'ie]d'cdwé at April 29, 201 2-plus the weighted average margin above LIBOR
on ol consolidated variable rate debn
As of Aprl, 29, 2012, owr senjor. secured credit facility contained variahle rate debt based on,1. IBOR with a floor of 1.25%, which is above the cumrent
market LIBOR rutes we receive undcr [QUE-inlerest fate swap agreement. in addmun, we hive purchased interest rate caps 8t 3% fora notional 2mount of

$100 million 10 fusthef hedge our interes: rate exposure, The following tabic dcplus the csumakd impact on our annual interest expense for.the relative
changes in interest rale based upon cumrent debt levels:

‘Increase ta Increase/idecrease)
variable rate {in millians)
2L .. S e T Ll s L JOSY]
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ITEM 3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The folfowing consolidated finaneial statements are included in this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Controt Over.Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Repistered Public Accounting Firm on Consolidated Findncial Stotéements

Consolidated Balance Sheets—April 29, 2012 snd April 24",:20! I

Fiscal Years Ended April 29, 2012, April 24, 2011 and Apn] 23 2010
Cnnsolldnlcd Siatements of Op_huns

Canselidiited Statcments of Cash Flows

Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements

Schedule H—V alustign and Qualifving .—‘\ccnunls—Fncn! Yc-.lrs l"nded A_pnl 29 2012 n! 24, 201 1 and April 25

2010
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Report nf Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.

We have andited Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of April 29,2012, Jbased on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Oiganizations ofthc Lreadway Comrmssmn {the COSO critéria). 1sle of Capri
Cisinos;y Inc.'s tuanagement is rr:spon51ble for m;untammo. eﬁ“ecuve intemnal control over fnanc:al reporting, afid for-its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal contro] over financial reporting inchided in the accompan)mg Marmgemem § Report on:Internal Conwol over Financial Reporting, Qur responsibility
is 10 express an opinion on the company's internal contia] ovér financial reporting haged on our audit.

We conducted our audit-in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversighi‘Board (United States). Those standards require
thay we plan and perform the audit to ebiain reasonable assiirance abowm whether effective intemial controd over financial reposting was maintained in all
maierial respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of imemal control'over. financial reposting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
testing and evaluanng the desigh and operating effectiveieds of internal cantrolibased on'the assessed nsk and perforiiing such other pmu:durcs us we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A coropany’s internal control over financial reporting is a.process. dcs:gned ta provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the p:reparatmn of financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance WJth generally accepted accounting principles: A company's internal contro]
aver financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonzble detail, acéurately and fairly
reflect the transaciions and dispositiens of the assets of the.company: (2). pmwde reasonable assurance that u:msncnons are recorded as necessary 10 permii
preparation of financial statements in accordancc with generally acccplcd accoutiting principles, and that n:ccxpl:. and cxpcnduurcs of the company arc being
made only in accordance with suthorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurdnce regarding prevention or
umel} detection of unauthosized acquisitfon, use or dnsposatmn of the'compaity's assets that could have a matetial effect on the findncial staterients.

Because of its Inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect mi'sstatemcnm Also, projections of any evaluation
nfeﬂ‘ecmencss 10 future periods are subject to the risk that Lomrols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance wnh the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Isle ofCapn Casinos, Inc. mamtai.ncd;in-’ail material respéets,-effective internat control over financial reporting as of April 29, 2012,
‘based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in sccordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated halance
sheets of sle of Capri Casinos, Inc. as oprnl 29, ”012, and Aprit 24, 2011, and 1he rclalcd cunsohda:ed staterients of operations, stockholders' equity, and
cash flows for the fiscal’ ycars ended April 29, 2012, April 24, 2011, dnd- Apnl 25,2010, of isie nt'Capn Casinos, [nc.and our report dated June.14, 2012,
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Emst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
June 14, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
[ske of Capri Casinos, Inc.

We have audited the sccompanying consolidated balance sheets of Iste of Capri Casinos, Int: (the Company) as of April 29,2012, and April 24,2011,
and the related consolidazed statements 0fopcmu0n§ stockholders' equity, and cash' flows. for.the, ﬁscal years ended April 29, 2012, Apnl 24, 2041 and’
April 25, 2010. Our audiis also inchided the financial statement schedule listed'i ln the! Index at ltem IS(a) These fipancial statements and schedulc are the
responsibility of the Company's management, Our fesponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and scheditle based on our audits!

We vonducted our audiis in accordance with the standards of the, Public Company. Accounting Oversight Board (United States)., Those standards require
-that we plan and perform the audit ta obiain reasonable assurance about wheiher the financial statements are free of material misstatement.. An audit-includes
examining, on a t¢st basis, evidence supporting the amounts and d:sc]osurcs in the financiz) sialemients. An andh also mcludes assessing the accounting
pnnupit.s used and sngmi:cam estimates rmade by minugément, as well ds evahiating the ov erul] financial staternent présenaiion. We belicve that dur audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

\fvour opinion, the financial statemenis referred ‘o above present faisly, i all inaierial respects, the consolidated financial position of Isle of Capri
Casinos, Lnc. at April 29, 2012 and April 24, 2011, ond the consolidated resulis ufns aperations and its ¢ash flows for the years ended Apri! 29, 2012,
April 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010, in conformity mih U.Ss. gcnerully accep:cd accounting pnncxp]cs Also, in our opision, the related financial stalemcm
schedule; when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a \»hole presents fairly, in al} matermi respects, the information
sct forth therein. )

We also have audited, in accordance with the siandards of the Public Company Accounlmg Oversight-Bodrd (United Suates), [le of Capit Casinos, Inc.'s
internal control over Imanual repofting us of Apnl 29, 2012, based on the criteria cslabllshcd in-fnternal. Control—Integrated Framework Jssued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Orgumz;nmns of the Treadway Commission, and our report datcd June 14, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon..

#s{ Erns1 & Young LLP

St L0u15 Missotri
June* 14 2012 -
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ISL.E OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except shar¢ ant per share amonnts)
April 29, April 4,
22

i 2011
TR T A X A O e S SR I

Current assets:

L_Cash ‘and cash equivalents;=? er B e e T T 5944618 751781
Maiketable securities 24643 22173
{__: Accounts receivablé,net of allowance fur doubtiul dccounts, ofS2.5()'} and 51’010 réspectively_o-2 6,941; 29,367
" insurance receivable, . . L. . 7497 7 34
{__:[ncomc taxes reccivable, 2ok TR Wy sk _F Ta T SN 3866
Dcfen;_c_l__gcome taxNes . . R , 627 12,097
'Pl‘cpmd cxpcnsc:. and’ oﬂler asscts!'_ g et b o 1 SN Rl R o e o _'___“_18930&_\__ a4l
) Asseb held forsale  © h ) ) 46,703 —
Lot ot CurEnt ssets gkt LT oo s A2t T e ool o n B 50 202,283 148:359)
Propenv and cqummcnt net N . . 930 014 ] ,113. 13 549
Other megels o o s T o e T R TR T T e oy e T A b
Goodwill R -330,903 345303,
52 Other i iﬁﬁ'ngjbfé'a'hgbts' pet,, et BNy T iy dgh, T : e o o 3RERE. .8 ;303
Deferred hnancmgﬂsg;g net, ,.7 13,203 18911
“Restricied,cash ond INVESIIEREs & g - e e R e e e T 13,5501, 12.810]
Prepaxd deposits and other ' ' 9,428 12,749

Do Zowlassers, & Mo o e T R, o o T T 7S1,574.970750,733,888]
LIABH ITIFS'A,\D S‘TOCAHOI DERS’ LQUIT}’

Ty et - XL v b M R e ey .-,' ¥
Current liabilities: . R TR T T STE MRS
. Cusrent fiaturities of Jong-lerin débt 'S 5393'§ 3373

| Bl 'Accbﬁnts?niaﬁi?: A e ;i'h"i.fc.‘-’.‘f &5 s "J';'f"!' g 1 AR T W o W £23,336;__.:26,0 013}
Accrued habllm:s i

la 2 Payroland relaed i, < =5 2o 4, ﬁwwﬂﬁmmﬂx O IR AT T TSN T N T
Property and other taxes 19,322 19,391

o Terst s e B T T % o0 s 0,306; L 10,807
Propressive jackpots and slo1 club swrds . 14.862 15,230

o 2 Hiabilities “Telated 10 assets held for sale_ Bt x T M iL._m..«»._E‘u;';L ;:?r}‘—“{f_ N T L AT |
Other 40,549 32,332

{70 5ml curiont Liabilitics 2o o Loy 156116 153,878]
Long-tcrm dcbt ]ess curment maturitics . . 1,149,038 l 137,’_’21
Dcfcm-d TRCOME WXes e s Lo, g AT = S R R G ':.g_.36 057_" 30 ?6';1
Qmer accpied liabilities _ e - 33 383 36,303

Other Tong e TbIliTies:, i e Shoi o 3 b, S0y 3 3 A e et T 16336 16694

Smckho]dcrs equny i

N Pn:fcn'cd Etoc.k, $.01:par. va]ue 2, .000; 000, share% aullmmed nnnc lSSltt.d‘ e
Common stock, $.01 par valhee: 60 600, 000 shares authorized; sharrs xssucd 42,066, 148 a:

Tr-__ _.—E_‘

s g

SR

April 39, 2(_)[_',’ andd 063 569 at Apnl ‘74‘,_2£]‘Plr 4"]_ . 421
= Class B éommon’ Stock, S Dliparvalue; *3.000 000000 shares: AhOTIZed: NONEHSSUCa 56, T we Po o o e T oo
Additional pard -in c.amtal — . ..47 835 254013
E;;_.'Rm.ned armings (Qeficil)_ el s L i g e v g E T Taaa A e <o (26,658) 103 "95)
Accumulated other comprchenswc income (Iuss) {855) (2,235
F T T T T I T ey ey e 252207637 _T155:294]

rreasury stock, 3,083,867 sh.nes at April "9, 2012 and 3,841 ,2'83 sharcs at April 24, ')01 i (37.143) (46,2 266)

e g : o - ey
E ;..E‘Total stockholders’, équiry’, e S e "TM P&sﬁ‘ R e e e R e R 836207 1309, 028]
Tota] liabilities aid stockholders' equity "$1,574 970 51,733,888

Sce accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements,
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ISLE OF CAP_R__I CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Io thousands, except share and ‘per.share amounts)

Fiscat Year Ended
Aprl B,  April 13, April 25,

002 2011 2010
R - - i gt e e he T "-‘5
Casino . N S ] 006 523 § 968 423 § 943,234
RGBT T 3 3R e 3 A " 33.54%)
Food, beverage, pari- muluel and other L . . L 128,560 121,955 122200
t.lnsurancc rct:mcnc' S AN T ; R Xy A LR F:'-::-'}
Gmss reventes ' L177,158 1,122,522 1,098,982
™ T, protiotionil, allowum,e:sﬂ i a""’* :@;@:“i“vw‘r AT st n e Bl ([99 ?87)_-\(!83 861) \(171 '}47)
. 'Net révenues . _ 977371 936,661 92?,235
'Opcraungcxnensc's I R A L e I T
. Casina - . 353,743, 142,642 |37 303
 Gaming taxes) R I ISR G S TR T 7805 242,949 ~3540718
Rooms’ - o 7,027 7290 7,960
L. Fdodibeverape, parrmuticl and. othc.r‘ RN I Y 16 T T 359 ) 40@
Marine and facilities. . ) . (37225 35211
2 Marketing and administiatived . 8. 77 S aln. Do s gt e S v e P 234470 1 225 737
Corporme and de»c[npmcm | . 40,248 42,709
{: Valifation chatpcs and eXpense reCovEndel: Y Lt m‘“—éaﬂ' S "'-‘ 30,349 s s
Proopening ekpénse ) 615 —
l-DEprauamnzmd amottizationg, s 6 g S “‘-}W N O IR 76,0507 37611 A 25;41@
Total operatmg expenses . ] 892,088 834,730 834,874
Ofcrating income_ £ . & o L 9w R &a" T 7 T gadRy s #1091 723618
{nterest é expcnsc . o (87 905] _ (91, 93\) (?5 434)
Interest i mcomL R R R ”E.ﬁf_”'_’-‘?‘.‘:ﬁg B e m o LE10aTat 1903 v 1,814)
Derivative _;mcmc(cxpcnsc) o 439 (1,2 14) {370
iicaTae (1055 oM CORUNLIE ORCTALIONs, DETOrE LICG e TAX S AL st roatabios i b poria (2,268 s 10,685 ¢ _(1629).
tncome tax (provision) benefit . , _ o ns 1i9) (6,950) - 6,609
TnTo'nic {10s5) from' cunur?ﬁ?uj;oummns g s i B ek €L (17383 30735 L 5 9080}

Income {loss) from discontinued operations; ‘including loss 6n sule, net of inconme’ mx
bencfit of $2,026, $5.128 and 52,330 for the figcal years ended "0!2, 204 and .
2010, rcqpcctivélv oo (23710 803 8,253)
[}

Nét incone {loss) utm‘outablc 16 COMMON STOCkhOIIETS L i e, o W™ - "5 $ _€(129: 753)5 £47340.8,. (3] 273)

Edmmgs {loss), Aer g common share atiributable to wmmun htuukhnlderb——basm
et L

L‘ Tneoine (10;5) from ‘eantinuing opemuom,_a,_,.,__,_,_.m MSM 210, 4‘)3_@:_() 1i S,_,h__‘ _l] ]3}
Income (loss) from discantinued opcmnom including gain on sale, net of income

taxes’ {2.90) 0,02 {0.25)
Net meome, 11055) AlHDTIABIC COmmon Cic kOIS Sty et g g br et a P L o8 2 (335)8F - 0.1uS» - (010}
Earnings (lc_n_i_g] per comman _Rs_harc aﬂ.ﬁhutablc to common slnckhoiders——dﬂuied - .
Piincomme (José) rom, ConLining OPErations, , ;. o3 i« Pt U Al W i079)8 LML Sy OMsY
Income (loss) from discontinued operations including gain on salc net of income )
taxes (2.90) D [12) (9.23
Eltet income (1055) attribuable common SIockhoIGCrelE 1 & ad godime 5 5 o6 6 Sag! - v i 3§ (g, EO)

\‘v‘ct[zhtcdaw.mgcbasm >harc< L 38.753,098 34,066,159 32,_2”%2;_'3"’_6"}3
Weighted Averaga dilited Sharesze % o B 0 e brag oo o b et Ty 38733,008 234 74,717 32,363,380}

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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. ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED §T ATEMENTS OF.STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In lhdusnnds., except share asmounts)

1

_ JAccum,
i . Other
' Shares of Additienal Retained Comprehensive B Total
Common Common Paid-in  Earnings Income ‘Treasury Stockholders'

. Stock Stock  Capital  _(Deficity (Loss) Stack l-.guul\
Bélﬂnc(;‘;\, o_? ‘1;* S L T A '?'-EL A -'.:_ = ;‘-540§ _{45.»“-. B e-e _,m. . ‘. , X
[:*Apri 2, Fy :':r R ff‘;ﬁ’:;w %-:-a,is«g e b ™ {
[ 20093%2% .35, lll 0895, 5. 361,51 L Sial15; 191)3(52,399) $ 228 4"6

.th loss

Unreahzcd gam
g

nf mcomc m.\
pmvlsmn of'
52,683,
Deferred hedge
adjustmem
nét'of income
tax:provision
of 31, 463

L. adjustments;
Conxpl:hcnsi\'c
. income
EXCICISE of 7%,
Lﬁmck options .
[ssuance of

deferred

bonus shares L (292 — 292 —
OlhEIL' AT -"."‘96615" ¢ 2 DR Vo) ’:d!.él .f.:lo—;l'
Issuance of

restricted

slock, net of -

forfeltures 638,375
Stock™ TETTE
Lcampcnsauun

REr L IR

NI VN
& \"‘:pgé_ N 'L‘ 4“-’""‘9 \'cg{f ';:, ":’i..-g;"_ it
g owms, o T g
: PR ;?'#-qu. Loty “:2 u.":6__2_“

exXpense o L

Halance
April 25, C
2010 36 771,730 367 201,464 98555 (8,060) ( 2,!07) 240,219

Net.income "w_ £ R g ey 74;5_4() i ‘:'.'.if"lf'.""-’i"’- ‘i'”;_"’“_f_“ i 4\5403
Deferred hcdge
adjustment
net of tncome
tax provision

_of$3,408
Un;cahzcd Jossi e ~ Ty
i nn[memm AN

e ERES -
i bencﬂmf"
L SI9TRa e, .
Foreign
currency
translation
a'djuslmems — — - — 133
'Com n:hcnsn' . r"" T R e ST
P sn e 3;;,»;_‘ r?\'& -5”

Common stock

offering. 5,300, 000
fxerc ;seof‘., S ’°1"f' .
T stock options 25007




fssuance of
deferned
bonu‘: share:

l-orfc:tun.s an

tuothelfs s ..

Issuance of
restricted

. qtock

Stock -

Eexpeuw

Balance,
April 24,
011 42063560 420 234043 103095 {2,218 (46?_@_) 302,028

Netlosers | g B T a e T TR 109,753 ey, e e s B (129,753)

Deferred hed hcdgc :
adjustment
nct of income
tax provision
of §789 —

Unrealized gai Qs

[tk

H on’inlcrest.. 'r

ract
. ‘_u;il‘ iconid tax"
prowsmn of I R
1aSal & o gt
Comprehensive
Joss
-I;V(eruse XS ERRCHEr S A
}stock opudnq__._:;_g’!,OOO e
Issnance of
restricted
'-;tocl.
Rl:du(.lmn of < o
b faX bengfiy
ted

custock Based, i

.. REH
L Zcompensation®, g, % I tehe o
S:(x,k
compensation

expense

See accompanylig notes to consolidated fu_mnc'ial stafements.
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{SLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Fisczl Year Ended
TAprilas,  April M,  April 15,

[ . " 002 1011 2010

ODCmnng ACHVIHOE: [y § v b B Wh s ?%ﬁ,"‘i\:j'_‘x?"-'};& I L A ST A P
Net income (Logg) . — S(l"‘} q3)$ 4,340 3 (3,273)
‘Adjustments 10 reconcile net income {16s3) 1o ‘et cash prmldu} hy oper.itmg d(.llet:S ¥ BN J

Depreciation and amoniization - , . ) 83526 89,040 109 504

¥* AmoTTization I sinick wiite Soffof deferred i'mancm;, co-;ts» Y N G 0?2;,___6 266 _m

Amortization of debt dlscounl . . 211, 23 —
[_Va]u‘itmn "Charges and eXpense F6COveriess SR ;f’" : R Vs 'ﬁ{(ﬁ,lﬁ_’l)

T .76 2;508 (453)
TER BT A R TA0 159520, 7 f633§

Deferred income taxes
L_Smck COMPCRsaljon CXpense i Ly b il TN,

Defened compemannn etpense o i — —— 101
[ (Gam) 15 on darivative: IStRmCnts ychd © e e Mmoo g 4(439) TS

Loss {rain} on disposal of assers . . , 93 (’96)
Changes. i OPEratuiE assels and Lubibties: » e o =tk = PR R T % N AN

{Purchases) salcs s of trading sccurlucs - . ." . 2 769)_: 753 _ (5;;_15})-
C:\ccoums mccnable' oy, WX ‘ R TR ) S (460) _-"-_:":‘-_%

income taxes receivable . ) N . 1 By{th) 4,333 (;&fﬁ
Elusurancn receivablel . % Sorpiel  aar Wim o ewdoes e % 7,263) L0 i (]_4_1L

Prepaid expenses and other assets . . N 8 ,468 7,426 4,546
E_Accounts piyable and acciued iabilities, « = e O (5,8050,5 1,066 ~(8,575)
Net cash provided by operating activitics ) . . F18,059 123,684 106,382
Investing aetivities: = =3 RS IR RN G RN T P
Purchase of pmpcnv and cquipment ’ __(27, 690)

Praceeds from divesiitures - oan o v L T B ey e

'11!_1} ments towards zaming license _ ) . .

Nt Cosh paid (07, ACGUISTIONS oo o do i s Aottt S o oy 5 o s st 2 (16, 167)_
Restricted cash and investments . s 344 (9.870)

Net eash ised ininvesting activitiess, 55 84 7 .;,-;*ﬁ;‘;& TR v _(60 049); (144 637)~ (30,990)
Fi‘nanciiu, activities: i _ . —

-Principal, epayments on. long: e, oz, e T N 374) (317,609) **(8,730)
Net bﬁmw.mgs {repaymemr.) on line of cred\\ . - (33 000y 11,500 L AR S58)
Proceeds from longstenn debt bormwmgsx e R 2 = W :_.z,"_"?ﬁ e "97 79" : ‘2;.-.2':':3
Pa)mt:m of defefred tinancing costs . ] (366) t]_{ 823} .13, S'M)
Proceeds fmm‘lsauancn: of common: Smck and-éXereise,of: .smck opuons R RN E3"‘ 51 730 = O-H
Net cash {used in) provided by financing activitics {38 :"7) 28,110 (-103.953)
Eftectof fa"réig?i’61irréné§"{1c§{c}i§ﬁgé*mie's oncash @i R mﬂ*w—-‘*g;_"‘h e T e R (A8 (19)
Net increase {decrease) in cash und cash eqmvalcnls‘ _ , L8 l9,283 1,109 (’8 385)
CaSh and cash €quivalents ol BegiNING O1-Year s sl s 1, ottt oa s — 23 215178 - 68,069~ 1. 96,6541
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ycar S 9446185 75178 S 68,069

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{amauiits in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
I. Organization-

Or‘l,'ci}:i:minn—lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in February 1990, Fxcépt where otherwise poted, thé words "we,”
us,” "our™.and similar terms, as well as "Company,” refer 1o Isle nf‘(‘apn Casinos, Ine, and all of its subsidiaries. We gre o Peadmg developer, owner and
opéraior of branded paming facx!mcs and related Jodging and entenainmem facilities in marke:s mroughom the United States. Our wholly owned subsidiaries
vwnind operate fourteen casino. gaming faulmes in the United States located in Black Hawk, Cilorado; 1ake Charles, L. Ouisiang; Luld, Biloxi, Naichez and
Vlcksburp,, Mississipii: Kansas City, Boonv iHic and Cammerswllc Mlssoun Bettendorf, Davenpont, Marquette and Watcrloo, lowa;.and Pompano Beach,
Florida. We are currently constructing a new.gaming facility in Cape Gua.rdcau Missouri, which we c‘pecl to open by November '], 2012, subject to
regulatory approval,

2. Summary.of Significant Accounting Policies

 Buisis afPrafemarmn—'I he consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
‘ha]am.ee and wansactions have been climinated. We view each property as an opcmtmg segment dnd all-operating segments have been aggregated into one
reporting segment.

Discontinued operations includes our: Biloxi, Mississippi property: our former casinas: in'Dudley and Wo]verhamptun England sold ist Nevember 2009;
and in Freeport; Grand Bahamas exited in November 2009. Assets and ligbilities related to our Biloxi operations expecicd 1o be sold during fiscal year 2013
are classified as assets held for sale and liabilities related to assets held tor sale in our consolidated balance sheet as of April. 29, 2012,

Fncal Year-End—OQur tiscal year ends on the last Sunday in Aprll Penndncally, this gystem necessitates 5°53-week year. Fiscal year 2012 is a 53-week
yéar, which commenced on April 25, 201 1,-with the fourth quarter having 14 weeks: Fiscal years 201 1 and 2010 dre- 52:week years, ~which commenced on
April 26,2010 and Apnl 27, 2009, respectively, Fiscal 2013 will be a 52-week year.

Reclassifications—Cenain reclassifications of prior year presentations have been made (o conform to the fiséal 2012 presentation.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statemenis n conformity with'accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stites requires
rmanagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reportcd in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actnal resuls could
differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis—We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an origina) maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents,
Cash also includes the minimum operating cash balances required by state regulatory bodies, which totaled $24;778 and 524,230 at April 29, 2012 and
April 24; 2011, réspectively.

Marketahle Secuririey—Marketable securities consist pr:manly of uading sccurities héld by our captive insurance subsidiary. The trading securities are
primarily debt and equity securities that are purchased with the inténtion to resclbin the near term, Thc trading securities are carried at fair value
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ISLE OF CAPRI-CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{arzounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounfing Policies (Continued) .

with changes in fair value recognized in current period income in the aceompanying statements of operations. .
Inventoriev—Inventories are stated at the lower of weighied average cost or market value.
- ea L Y . .- el [P, D - R P - - - .S . * . 3 - . -
Property and Equipment—Property 2 equiptriehy are statéd at €ast or if purchised through 4 business adquisition, the value determined under pirchase
‘accouniing: We capitalize the cost of purchased property and equipment and capitaiize the cost of improvemerits to pioperty and equipment that increases the

value or extends the useful lives of the assets. Costs of normal repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incumed.

Dcpreciation is computed using the straight-line method over. the following estimated uscfil lives of the assets:

Fumiture, ilxturcq and equlpmem
i ""hold :mpmm 3
P e e
Buildings-and improvements
Certajn property currently-ledsed in Benendorf, [owa is accounted for in“accordance with-Accounting Standards Cedification ("ASC") Topic 840, Leases
("ASC 8407).

We.periadically evaluate the carrying value of-long-lived assets to be held and usg:d‘ in"accordance with- ASC Topic 360, -Property, Plant and Equipment
{"ASC 360") which requires impairment Josses to be recorded on long-lived assets used in opérations when indicators of impairment are present and the
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generted by those assets are less than the assets' camying amoynts. In that event, a loss is recognized based on the
“amownt by which-the camrying amount exceeds the estimated fair matket valoe of e’ lnnb-hved assels.

Capitalized Interest—The interest cost associated with major development and construction projécts is capitalized and included in the cost of the project.
When na'debt is incurred specifically for a project; interest i capitalized on amounits expended on the project using the weighted-average cost of our
borrowings. Capitalization of intérest ceases when the project is substantially conplete or devélopment ctivity is suspended. Capitalized interest was $1,105,
3125, and 875 for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Restricied Cash and Investmeniy—We classify cash and investments which are either stawtorily or contractually restricted as to its withdrawal or usage
as restricted cash short-term, inchuded in prepaid expenses and other assets; or restricted cash and investments long-term based on the duration of the
underlying restriction. Restricted cash primaily incledes amounts refated to state tax:bonds and other. gaming bonds, aid amounts held in escrow reluted to
leases. Restricted investments relate 1o trading securities pledged as insurance reserves by our captive insurance company.

Goodwill and Other Imangible Assets— Goodwill represents the'excess of cost over the pet identifiable tangible and intangible assets of acquired
businesses and i3 stated a1 cost, netof
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except.share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Signiﬁénnl Aceounting Policies (Continued)

impairménts, if any: Other. intangible assets include valies attribunable 1o acquired: gaming licenses, cusiomer lists, and trademarks, ASC Topic 350,
Intangibles—Goodivill and Other ("ASC 350"} requires these asscts be reviewced for impairment at'least annually or on an interim basis if indicaters of
lmpmrmcm exist. We perform qur annual impaimment test during our fourth quarter. Lf necessary, goodwill for relevant reporting units is tested for impairment
‘using; 1) a discounted cash flow analysis based on forecasted future results discounted at the weighted average cost of capital and, 2).by using a market
approach based iipon valuation multiples for siilar compahies. For intangible asséts' with indéfinité lives ot subject to amortization, we review, bt Teast
annually, the continued use of an indefinite usefu] life. If these intangible assets are determined 10 have a finite useful life, they aré amortized over their
estimated :em'unmg useful kives

Deferied Financing Costs—The costs of issuing long-term debz are capitalized and amortized using the effective interesi method over the term of the
related debi.

Self-insurance—We arc sclf-funded up 10 a maximum amount per claini for employee-related hcahh care benefis; workers’ compensation and general
liabilities. Claims in excess of this maxintiim aré fully, insured through stop-loss insurance pc)]]c:eb We aecnie for workers' compensation and general
liabilities on a discounted bas:s based:on claims,filed and estimates’of claims-incurred but fiot féparted. The LS[]I‘I'I-’JIC§ have been discounted at 1.1% and 2.0%
at April 29,2012 and April "4 2011, respectively, or a thwum of 5949 und: 81,758, respectively. We utilize mdt.pendem consilants to assist management in
its dctcrmmatmn of estimated insurance lmbxlmcs As of April 29, 2012 and Apnl 24, 2011, we have accrued 333,514 and 533,046, respectively, for
empluycc -related hca]lh care, workers' compensation and general liability cldims, Accruals for eraployee health care. and workers compensation are inclhided
in accrued hablhucs—payroll and accruals for gencml Habilities are mcludcd in accrued liabilitics—other.in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
While the total cost of claims incurred depends on futare developmients, in management's opinion. recorded reserves are adequate to cover future claims
payments.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815") requires we recognize all of our derivative
instruments as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated halance sheet at fair valoe and disclose u:rtam qualitativé and quantitative information. We utilize
dnnvat:\e financial instruments 1o manage intcrest rate risk associated with a‘portion of our variable rate. borrowings. Derivative fihancial instiuments are’
intended to redute our exposure 10 interest rate vol:mhry We account for changes in the fair vajue of a derivative instrumens depending on the-intended use of
the derivative and if the derivative has been designated as effective or ineftective, which is es:abl:shcd at the inception of a derivative. ASC 815 requires that
a company i‘nrmally document, at the inception of @’ hcdgc the hcdgmb relationship and the entity's risk management objective and stratégy for undcnakmg
the hedge, including identification of thc hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the natere of the risk being hedged, the method used to assess
effectiveiicss and the method that will be used o measuré hedge. mcff(.mvmcsq of derivative instruments that reecive hedge accounting treatment. Far
dcnv.m\c instruments designated as cash flow hedges, changcq in. falr value, to the extent the hedge is effective, aré recognized in other cnmprchcn-.wc
ncome until the hedged item js recognized in earnings, and incifective hedges are rccognmcrl as gther income or loss below operating inconte. Hedge
-effectiveness is assessed quarterly.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuid)

{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

-2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conlinued)

Revenue Recognition—In accordance with gaming 'induqtry practice, we recognize casino reventes as the net win from gaming activities. Casino
revenues are net of accruals for anticipated payouts of progrcsswc slot jackpots and certain tble games. whcrem mcrcmcmal jackpat amounts owed are
acerued for games in which certain wagers add to the jackpot total, Revenucs fram rooms, food, bev erage, enitertoinmet and the gift shop are recognized at
the time the related service or sale ts,performed or realized,

Promotional Allowances—The retail value of roams, food and bC\rC]’dgC and other services furnishied to giests without charge or at a discount is included
in gross revenues and then deducted as promotional allowances to arive at nel revenues:included j in the accompanying ‘consolidated statements of opcratlons
We'also record the redemption of cotpons and points’for cash as promotional allovances. Thie estimated cost of providing such comphmcnmry services from
continuing operations are included in casino expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as follows:

fiscal Year Ended

_April 29, Aprd M, -Aprid 25,
_ . L 2012, 2011 2010
Reome oy T T T T s 86035 8,043 48 a7,692]
Foad and be»eraec ' ) 60,25" . 32905 50,873
Other s e e T PR s 98T 991 676]
Total cost of complimentary services $§ 69842 § 61939 S 59,193

Players Chub Awards—We provide patrons with rewards based on the amounts wagered on casino games. A liability has been estabiished bascd on the
estimated value of these outstanding rewards, considering the age ofithe points and prior, redemption history.

Advertising—Advertising costs are expensed the first time the related advertiscment appears. Tora) advertising costs from continuing operations were
$33,207, 832,033, and 528 444 in fiscal years 2012, 201 Land 2010, Tespectively.

Operating Leavex—We recognize rent expense for each lease on the sln.uuhl line basis, aggrcgaung all future minimum rent payments-incloding any
predetermined fixed escalations of the minimum rentals. Our liabikities inclade the aggregate difference between rent expense recorded on the siraight-line
basis and amounts paid under.the leases.

Development Cosiy—We pursue development opportunitics tfor new gaminq facilities in an DIIECIil’llb effort to expand our business. In accordance with
ASC Topu. 720, Other Expenses ("ASC 720, costs rclated 1o projeets in the dcvclnpmcnl stage are *Tecorded as a development expense, exeepl for those costs
capitalized'in accordance with the guidance of ASC 7208 ('dpltﬂll?ed dev e]oplnenl cosls are expensed ‘when, e dt.vclnpmcnt is degmed less than probable.
Total development costs expensed from continuing operations were secorded in the consolidated siatements of operations in corporate and c_le\ elopment
expenses. .
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1SLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{(amounts in thousands; except share and per share amounts)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) -

Pre-Openmg Costy—We cxpcnqe pre-opening cosis'as ‘incurred. Prc—openmg costs include pﬂyroll outside services, advertising, insurance, utilities,
travel and various other expenses related to new operations prior. to opcnmg

!nwme TaxesFWc accuunt for.i income takes in accordancc .-\SC TOplC ?40 Im,ome Taxes ("ASC 7407). ASC 7404 rcqmrcs the recogmuon of deferred
Rccognuab]c future tat benet_ls are subject toa »aluat.mn reserve, un]cs: such tax: bcncﬁls are determined to be more hkel} than not realizable. We rewl,mz.c
accrued interest and penaltics related 1o unrem;,mzcd tax benefits| in income lax cxpense:

Earnings (Loss) Per Conttion Share—In accordance with the puidance of ASC 260, Eammgs Per Share ("ASC 260™), basic eamings (l0ss) per share
{"EPS") is computed by dividing net income (loss) applicable ta common stock by the weaghted average common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS rcﬂcct‘: the additional dilution for all potenuall} dilutive secarities such as stock options.-Any potentially d]lumc securities with an exercise

price in excess ofthc average | market! price ofnur common: 5|0ck durmg the pcnods prcscmcd are not considered when calcul.mng the diluive effect of stock
npnons fordiluted earnings per share calcutations as they would be anti- -dilative,

Stuck Compensation—Our stock based { Comipensation: 15 Ficcoudted for in .Juur(ldnce with ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation ( ASC
718"). Stock compensation cost is measared at the grant dae, based on the estimated. fair. value of the award and is recoumzcd us expense on a straight:line
basis over the requisite service period for sach separately vesting portion ofithe dward as if the awurd was, in-shbstance,: ‘multiple.awasds,

Allewante fur Doubtful Aceounts—We reserve for feceivables that may not be céllected Methodologies for estimating the allowance for doubtfu
accounts range from specific reserves to various percentages applied to aged receivables, Historical colleétion rates are considered, as are customer
relationships, in determining specific reserves.

Fuir Vatue Measuremenis—We follow the guidance of ASC Topic 820, Fair Valie Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 820") for our financial assets
and liabilities including markeiable securities, resticied vash and invesiments and derivative instromenss. ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring the

fair value of financial asscts and liabilities. A description of the vahation methodologies vsed to measure fair value, key inputs, and significam assumptions
follows:

Marketable securiries— The estimated fair values of our marketable securities are based upon quoted prices aviilable in activé markiets and
represedit the amounts we would expect to receive if we sold these marketable securities.

Reswricted cash and imvestments— The estimated fair values of our restricied cash and investments are based upon quoted prices available in active
markets and represent the smounts we would expect to receive if we, sold these restricted cash-and investments.
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i.;S;mfmal_’y of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Dername instrumenis— The estimated fair.value of our derivative 1mtrumcnts i$ based on market prices obtained from dealcr, guotes, which are
bised on interéstyield curves: Such quotes represent the estimated amounis we woilld receive or-pay, 1o terrinate the contracts.

*Récenily Issued dccounting Standards—In September 2011, the Financial Amuuntmg Standards Board, ("FASB”) issued Upd..:te Na: 201 1-08 " Testing
Gnodwuil for- lmpaument " which amends ASC350. "lmang‘oles Goodwill and Other." This: update pcrnmts emmes to make a qualitative asseiSment of
whether a repur:mg unit's fair vilue is, More likely than 1ol ess thar'its ‘carTying amodnt. Ifai c11t1ry conc]udc mofe likely, than noi that the fair value of
a mpomng unit i& greater thai its calrying amoont; the enhty is not requ:red 10 pcrfmm ﬂmr: tw&step lmpau'ment test for thay rcportmg unit, The update is
! ua] and mlenm goodwnll mlpamnem usts performed fnr nscal years begmnmg afier December'l 5 "0!1 with carlv ‘adopiion’permined.

.In-June 201 1; the FASB issued  Update No. 2011* 03, "Comprehcnsne Encome (I'up:c 220) ‘Presentation ofComprehensne Income,” ‘whichi allows for
the prescnmnon of toral comprehensive i income, the compnnems of net’ mcnmc: and the" cnmponenl‘: of bther cofmprehensive incdme enher in-a:single-
conlmuuus qmtemcm oI compn:henswc anrne ur in two scparmt: but consecu ve s!al‘ fricnts: ln ad.dmon lhc gutdancc elunmales the opuun Of presentmg ﬂlc

penods wﬁhm thosc ['scal years beynmn" atter Decembcr 15, 2011~ While the adopt:on will' 1mpac1 ‘whe
L{)ﬂ]p]'(.‘hCBSJVC incame in our consolidated Imancml statemhents; we do not expret:the adoplion to’ Have 2 Watéial inipact o those LOHSOl]ddlCd ﬁnﬂnmal

statements.

Jﬁf-])i.s'c_;nn_ti}i ued Operations

Dlswnunued operaiions méludes our: vasine in Biloxi, Mississippl, which is c,umtnt]y le&s:ﬁt:d 25 held for sale:-and our former casinos: Dudley.and
Walverhampmn England ("Rhue Chip") sold in ! Sovember 2009 and Frecpart, ‘Grand'Bahamas exited in Movember,2000,.

The results 6t our discontinued operations are Summarizéil as follows:

Discontinued Operatons
Fis¢al Yeéar Ended
Aprtl 29, cApril 24, Aprit 23,
12012, 2010 200!
o --fwcc

T TEvenUEs b 1. 2 o SUER 6745448 168334 8F 130'003§
}@muon charges ) (1 17,564) —
Pretax (lass) Hain‘om sa[r. of discantifited onerauons;ati R &;ﬂéﬂmr T A T (617}
"Préta | (]055) income from discontinued up’gggyons ) (114, 3‘)6) (4 3"3) (IO 383)
Income; 1ax bem:ﬁi it discontinned’ operauu;smg__- i e R '_'___3;2,076 & 5% 378" &“E‘J 33&3
Income (I6ss) from discontinued Hperations. 112 370) 305 (82
* -Dufing fiscal 2012 we entered into a definitive purchasc agreement 10 sell our, Biloxi casino operations for. $45,000 subject. w certain working capijial
udjustmen:'; and: regu]amrv approvals. As a rct:u]l we recorded a nanc.a:,h pretax valuatmn charge of §1} 2;564 to reduce the carrying vatue of
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“{amounts in fhousands, except-share and per share aniounts)

3-Discontinued Operations (Continned)

Riloxi's nevassets held for sale to the e‘(p&:cied net realizable value upon -.,ompleuon of the sale trarigaction. The transaction is expected to clase hefare the end
‘of calendar 201 2:and we do not expect 10 -have any contifuing iny u]vcmcm f‘o!]owmg cqmpletum of the sale. The income tax benefit of $2,026 recorded in
d:ecnmmued'opemhons for fiseal 2012 is net _of avaluation allowance of $4l 029: Tncluded in:nét revenues from discantinted dperations in the tble abave
for fiscal 2012 Is an insurance recovery. of §993 resulimb from settlement of fost, pmf‘ ty and buginess intermiption at gur. Biloxi property related 1o the oil spill
i the Gull of Mexico diring fiscal-2011. .-

The asseis held for sale and Jiabilities related to assets held for sale are as follows:

April 25,
L ] 2012 .
Cm-rem uSsCt\ RTA 'ﬁp e f#%? i e e e S3e 3 o
Accourts recclvab]e nel__ . 5 414
e e S e i T o T
\_Pn:pald cXpenses; and olla_er._a,sgg:lst = ’5"- R i“' e ”’g;,_f{‘ P LTI
Total current aqseLs 1 703
S L:-"-r—y. ,
P'fb'pcny and’ eqummcnl P R SN g i :g 37 45 000“1

'Iotalasscts - o B 46.10"

'Cum,m habllmes_'f AT 3
Acconnis pa\;able : . ]. 6”6

l;;omer Ftctiied: ]1ablhncs§g=;g-;«4__s__,_ & S ; ; e 1, 71’3
" Total current fidbilities _ _- ; 4,362

Nerassets T2 T e paes F L g3 -f'“‘ T \ 2341

During fiscal 2011, we recoghized a an after-tax-gain of $7,65%: mcludmg Certain. tax; 'bcncﬁs updn completian &F 1hic Bhue Chip administration process,
We aiso recognized a tax benefit’ of $794in*discontifiued operations repn:scntlng the résohition of prevmus]y Unrecogmzed 1ax positions refated io Blue Chip
fol luwmg the omplction of certain federal 12X reviews,

Durmg fiscal 2010, we completed'the sale of our: Blue Cth casino propertics under a plan of ; admmlsnauan and have no continuing involvement in their
operation, The sale of our Blue Chip assets resulted in a pretax’ “charge GF 8617 r(:(.orded in fiscal: 2010

Interest incoime of $3, $13, and $25:for {iscal years: 2017 2011, and 2010, respc(_nvclyf fas beer d]lu:.aled 18 discontinued operations, No interest
cxpense was allocated to our discontinued operations as 1o ihird-pérty debt is 10 be aa,surned by the. purchaqcr
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4. Flooding

Fiood.mg aldng the: M!ss;:.s:ppl River caused five of our praperties 1o close for portions of fiscal 2012, A summary of the ¢losure daies and subsequent
rebpetiing is.a8 follows::

hummx Days

Closing Date Reogemng Date .
Davcnpon, FoWa _ YRR o f""‘;.t"&pn ‘15%201 l““ Ao ARV 20T SRS e
VCnmtherswi] 3 Misqnun’ '\Aayﬁl 2017, . May 13, XL
LulafMigsissippia, « XEMAVA 0L =

o Septcmbcr
. iy B Ml 01 A ;.fum::rl Y5 0T IRt 7 L%
Vlcks_burg,‘x\*lis's'issippi May'1 1, '?Ol 1i

{A)  Six'daysof closure in'the first quarner of ﬁsca‘_l?ﬂIZ‘and'niﬁE"da‘}is of closure in:th’e fourth quarter of fiscal 201 1,
(B)' The =ccond cas:na bargc rcopencd on Scpmmbcr 2 ."01 l aftér f]ood dama;e Wis rcmcd:aled

¥ G, “Tevenue, mduded in tnsurance recov eries in
nsurancx, polmc: At Apn] 29/ 2012;we have'an insiirance

the cunsohdatcd stalemcm ofopcranons as nlmbmcmcnl undu our - biisincss: mmn-uptm
receivahle of ‘B'J'_,497.
S. Aequisition -

A(qmwlmn ‘uf Ruinbipw Catino—0On:dune 8, 2010 we completed the acquisition of Rainbovr, Casino- Vlcksburg Partnership, L:P. (* Rainbow") located in
Vtcksbuxg, Mi u:s)ssspp; We acquired i(l(}% of the rmcrstup uuerests and'havc md' dul thc rcsu]ts of Rambow inout consolldated ﬁnanc' i tatements
nbsequent 1o June 8‘?010 “The allocation’ ufth 3
c\'d ualmm of the et assets acquiréd. The'd ;
Aucuuntmg Standards Cod.lﬁcanon Toplc 805, Business Combinations. 1\5 a result; thc net agst
the'exeess bl the P rc'nasr: price over. ‘the fair.value of the net assets acquired’ n!locatcd 0] goudw
secnired credit mulny

‘of Rainhow were: recorded at thur esumatcd fair value with
€ acqms:llon was ﬁmdcd by ‘borrowings from ‘our senior
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5. Acquisition {Continued)

The following table sets forth the determination of the considerasion-paid for Rainbow.and the purchase price allocation-based updn management's
valuation of the net assets acquifed.

LS e e Rl o T
Gmss cash; p\svchase um,c -
Deduct

&Pm.hdae prlce#"‘r

Purchase price a\]ocanon

ey T 2 “
= C-uITEnldS>CIS~ e W R R

Proueny and equnpmem
gf;n‘fgnp_zble assetss TR N
Cistoner. list
[ T radename i i 2 g, S g, Bt NG N o
Cuslomer'rc'iatit)nship's' ) 6,700.
o . T ey

S Total mmngxb!e» i
Gmdmll - .
- *EWKW;;& ST o
Current liabilities.

OB iab sy s ik L A S R ””"‘*if

Purchaéé';‘)rice

The usefal lives of assets acquired are estimated as follows:- cu'alomcr hslﬁlhrec -years: tradename 1. 5 years; customer re]aslonshlps eight ye.'us furnimre.
anid equipment one to, five years: and ather property and equipmnt. ﬁﬂeen 10 twenty- “five years. Deductible: goodwil} for.tax purposes:is approx:mately
$33,000,

"Net revenne and income (loss)-from continuing operations for fiscal 2011 rélated to_Rainbow were $27,935 and (§1,724); réspectively,

The pro tornia résults 6f operations, as if the acquisition of: Rainbow liad occurred on thé first day of fiscal 2011 and 2010 is as foliows:,

Fiseal Year Ended

Apnl 24, ‘April 15,
i 2011 S }11]
Pro fomm:_gﬂ_i EA xa.}::_”', "§ A ool Fis ok it N S
N€L revenues S 940 689 5 964 381
: [ncnmn. fmm cnmmumg ommtmm bcfon. ficome, lawcs%ﬁ;fmv' ] f_ -‘____ﬂ“;gh__; 10,9817 zgg; 55,004
_ Net income from contmumg Operanons . } 3‘870 9,225

‘[ sBasic earmings per share.from commump, ouemuanc o A o G0 BEH 0. 26
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 0:11 0.2¢
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6. Property and Equipment; Net
Property and equipment, net consists of the following: .

‘Apﬁl 29. April 24,

) 2012 2013
T - T

‘5 177,524 ' 202,773
e 146,005, " 336,769 ]

32,137 C 627,907
St L : ST R133,031 A3 A18],
Fumlt‘ure’f"(iures aii cqmpmem o ‘ . 49*,469‘:‘ . 331 258
i e g = b -
ZConstuction mpmgrmf g f:f_ s’%'g? RS R R N e |
Toml pmpeny and equglpmcm _ ) . . B! 643 L1958, 1°834 935
655 e - T T T (603, [4d) = ol (1115406),
Propeny’ d.l'l(.l equ:pmcm net B '950,014°°S. 121131549

7. Gdodill and Other Intangihle Assets?

A roll forward of goodwill is as follows:

Balanct Apand-:ZOlk TR o iy o il
Impaimeit chifge: : ’ o 3 (14 400)
Balance: Apnl"Q“?OlZ 2 il g s S a2 330,903
CGioadwill inchudes accuriuiated i lmpaument ‘losses of $2‘),201_.

Othef intangible 3ssets vonsist of the followirig:

April 29; 2012 __April 24447
Gross ‘Net UG :\el
Cnrnmg&\ccumutmcd Cnrr\mg
— Aingun

1ndeﬁnm. inedjgssets P e AR

Gam“%rﬂu ticenscs 344 342 $ B $66 i"ﬁ
FEademarks e * 5 5 <5 L7149
Intangible assets—subject to

] qnlurtiznﬁnn_ o
-Chistomer Jisis _ 2a AR LI TN TR A e i B3 (12.655) A2 1381
“Trade haiié, _ 544 (4d) = sdd. 0317). 227
Chstomer, relationships E s 20w ¥ .7, ~ 6,100 (I} 608 L2309 S BB 700 ARG @(733)&,9 97},
" Total §74,128, § (17,542)856,586 595,912! 'S (131705)$82,207-
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ISLE OF CAPRI] CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuid)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per sbalze ‘amounts)
7. Gaodwill and Other Intanglble Assets (Continued)
Ourindefinite-Jived intangible assets consist primarily ni‘gaming"licén:eq und trademarks for which i'is reasonably assured that we wiil continue 10
.rencw indefinitely. Qur finjte-lived assets consist of customer lists amortized over 210 4 vears, a tradé name amontized over 1,5 years; and customer

relaiionships amontized over 8 years. The weighted average remaining life of our.other |mang|b]e assets Sub_]cct to amortization is approximately 6.1 years.

‘W recorded amortization €xpense 65.3.3',337,_84_,271 ,and §3,91 3 for our intangible usséts It:ubﬁ‘:ct 10 amortization related tu_dur'cénﬁ'nuihg operations for
the fiscal years ended 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Fiture amortization expense of eur amortizable intangible asséts is as follows:

AT LN T I

TI0I3T T R a

2014 ., ' ) 838
T S S i R, A TN NP O 50N |
2016, . . s . . 834
R R RCINEA T R s ARGl L Pt e TR T RIR T
Thereafter ) . - ' 305
T R R Ao W A T u;..__;i:‘,,‘s,@i]

8. Long-Term Debi

Long-term’debt consists of the following:

April 19, April 24,

2012 2011
Scntor,Seeured Gredis' }-acmty R A mm Tfﬁ__ G T e o
" Revolving line of credit, expires Nov cmber 1, 013 mtcrcst payable at least
Guarterly at either LlBOR and/or prime, plus a margin_ $F —5 33000
Vanahlc rte ferm loans, ma m..:ture lovember132013; pnnc:p‘ﬂ an(l interest - 7 . 7. N f’,}
mymen:q due “quarerly, at eitheri.IHOR andfunpnmc,plus a rmrj.:n"3__%_,,,..**;‘1._.w 93&00;:500,000

7.75% Senior Notes, interest payable semi-annually March 15 and Seprenber 13, net
of discount )

725 Scnjor ! Subordmalrd Nolcs mlercq pn}'ab]e Semj‘annually M.'m.h' A

LoSeitember] Jaiie X s S gl ST R g s

Other 3130 4,504
o T N N L 1 154431,.1,192,594]

L ey g

_vt_ L
T

Less current maturities : 5393 53,3713

"’-!-""""'"“"""“"'""'"f -+ TR Fa) T T Y :

L Om B ar QoD e e T L o e S 10149,038 5 111 87,221}
62




Tabte of Contents

1SLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

NOTES TO coNSOL_m,\TED;F'mA'Ncl..\L_s-'f;\"-"ﬁ-:-}\-iEN'TS (Continued)
{amounts in thopsands, except share and per share amounts)”
_ 8 Long-Term:Debt {Continned)
Senior'Sécurad Credit Fatility, ds amended dnd restared—Qur Credit Facjlity as-amended and restated | “Credit Facnlny") consiss of a $300,000
rcvolung line of crcdu and 3 5500, 000 term toan, The Credit Famlny is secured on a first prumty bam by substantially : all, ofour assets and guarantccd by

substantialty. alt'of our s:gmﬁczmt subsidiaries..

O et revo]vlng lme ofcredll dva]ldblllry at Apn] 26, 2017 as limited’ by QU MAXIMT Senior SecuTed: lt_u.rage covenint wiis approximately 3"38 000,
aﬂcr cnnssderanon of, S79 000 in outs:andme surctv bonds and Ietters ot credit. We have an annunl commnmem ee. related to the unusc:d ponmn of:he Crcd:t

ra
u:num mvcstmcms or dlsmbmmns Wc ucrc e compham:c with thc covenants as’ of Aprll "9‘*‘?01 2!

in M.chh "Ul I ,.WL amcnded ar}d res!ated our. Crcdu Facxhry w!mh (1) extendcd lhc mamrny of, the credn fac:llty to No» embcr 1, 2013 or 1f Lhc %

As'a result of 2 previous amendmient, we incirred a charge of approximatcly $2;143: related to fees and the wiite-off of cértain unamonized defsred
finaneing costs, of whlch ‘approximately, $309 was non- cash, and capitalized deferred: ﬁnancmg costs of $.> 874 in fiscal 2010.

7:73% Sénior Nowes—On March 7,201, ~we, Issued $300, E)UU af;7.75% Semor Notes doe 70[9 | al a.price of 90.264%, ("7.75% Senior Notes™}. The net
proceeds from the issuance were used to- repay ‘term loans under our Credn Fac ty TThe'7.75%'s Semor Notesare gmrameed oivd joini and qcvcral Jbasis, by
‘subgtan :__gal]y all ofour s:amﬁcam 5ubs:d1anes a.nd cerlam othes: subsld uries as déseiibed in ' Note 20, All of the’ guArantor subs;dmnes are;wholly owned by us.
7. iafto all &f our senior, sccu:ed mdebtcdncss and senior to our senior subordinated
indebtedriess. The 7: ?5% Semor Notes are redeemab[g- 'n‘who]c orm ur- opuon al any time on'or after March I5 Ol:a with ealb ‘preniiums as
‘defired i the indenruire: goveming 1 1he 7 T Senior Notes. As a result of thelissuahce;we c.apnahzcd deferred financing costs of $5,346 in fiscal 201 1 and
$275in fiscal 2012, . -

“Theindenture govéming the 7.75% Senior Notes limits, among other Lhmg,a our, db]]lly aid ow- restricted subsidiaries dblhi\’ to oW oney, make.
restricted payments, use nssets as security in other transactions, enter into trahsactidiis with affiliates; pay div ld('ndS ‘or rcpurr.hasc stack. The. mden:ure
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8. Long-Term Debt (Contimaed)
also limits our abiiity to issue and sell éapitn] dock of subsidiaries, sell assets in excess ot specified-umaounts ar-merge with or into other companies.

796 Senior Subor d“nmedee.s—Dunng 2004, we issired $500,000 of 7% Senior Suhordmaied Notes due 2004 °("7% Senior. Suboridinated Notes"), of
which'$357 000 remain omsianding. The7% Sqmor Suburdmaxed Nm,: are guammeed, on > )mm and several, asisrby ol) of odr Significants su\mdmncs And
CErtain otheét -:ubsad]anes 3% deseribed in: Note 20: A0 of lhe guaranlor SUbbld]drtE'; afe who]]y owned by s The 7% Seniof Subordmdlcd Notes are gcm.m]

unsecured ob]lgalmns and rank jusiior:to a].l ofour senior mdebtedness ‘The 7% Sénior Subordinated. chs are redeemablc, in whole or ifi’part; at ol gption
al'any time on or. after. March 12009 wsth call premlumﬂ as definéd 'in 'the lndan.re govcmmq the ?% Semor Subordinated Notes.

The’ mdenture goveming the 7% Senior Sobordinated Notes hmm;, 'mmng ‘other things,'pitr’s 'ib;hty and our resmcted subsidiaries: ahl]lry 1o borrow
money, make restricted payiments, USe assets 45 sécurity in other transactions;, cnter mm transactions: mlh aftiliates? pay, dividends, of rcpl.lrchase stock. The
indenture also linaits our ability 10 jssie and'sell capita) stock of subsxdmncs sell assets in excess of spccmed ANIOUNS'OT. mérge wiih or into other companies.

Furure Principal !_?ciymenm of Lang-term Deht—The agpregate principal pa¥finients due on long:term debt as of ‘April 29, 2012 over the next five years
.and thereafter, are as follows:

Fiseal ear s ERdimp i o e o g W BT R :'.-".-'.-_.__*,_--, Y T Tae 3
70[3 3,393
Y 539;]

. 439;
e e R e R ¢*o
1,136,405
Una?ﬁoﬁjzcd debt disconfirs, PR Bt .,%: @";&; g A Sas A (1.974) 3
5 15154431

9, Othiér Long-Térm Obligativns

Quad-Citiex Waterfront Convennmr Center—We entered into agreements with the City.of Bettendort, lowa undef which the City: construeted a
convention center which opened in Jamxary 7\}09 adjacent 10 our hote), We leasé,’ ; manage, and providé financial and Operaimg support for ‘the convention
center: The Company.was deemed, for. 3cc0ummg purposes only; to'be the mvncr of the’ LonVCntlﬂn center dunng the construction period. sUpédn cumpleuon of
the convention cenier we were precluded Afrom accotinting for the Tnmsau' a <a]e and Ieasebacl». aie 1o our coutmumg involvemient. l'hen:fore We dre
accounting for.the trnsaction u':mg ‘the dirett ﬁnancmg melhod As of Apn 701 2 we have recorded in othéf long-1erm obligations 516,556 related to our
liability under ASC 340 reldted 10 the canvenfion center. Under the terms of ouf agreements for the convention
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9. Other Long-Term Obligations (th!inlle'd)
center, we h.ﬂy.;-guarameed certain obligatians related to 513,815 of notes issued by the City of Bettendaorf, low‘n for the convention center.
The other 1ang term obligation will bé reflecied-in our consolidated balance sheets until completion of the lease term; a1 which tife the rélated fixed
assets, net of accumalated depreciation, w1.l] be remaved from our consolidated financial awlementq “anid the.net Femaining obligation over;the net carry ing

Vd]ua of lhe fixed asset will be recognized asa gain (1oss) on sale of the Iaclhtv

Fiititre minimum payments due under other long-term obtigations . including interest; as'of Apnl 29; 2012 as follows:

FiscaliYears:Ending:a . 7w e

2013

R ek i 2
2015

7[}1(,&, e "* ’:ﬁ‘g" T

2T

FHETaleT_ 2 o mne e ]

Total mifimum payments

10.. ¥aluation Charges:and Expense Recoveries

We recorded pretax-valuation charges and expense recoveries from comihuif‘!g npemiibn_s as follows:

Fiseal. 20{2—An impaiment (.hdrge of $14,400 related 1o gocdwill was retorded at our Lula; MlSSISblp]J! ‘property as a result of our annual lmpalrmcnt
test required weded ASC 330, The fair value used in out ‘detervaifation of the tupaitment Lharge considered discounted cash flow ‘2iid market based valyation
multiple methods. The impaiiment was a resuli of an expected decrease’in futore cash flows! résnlting fridm the pro!nnged recession and "from raahgnmem of
miurket share tol}owmg flooding dunna fiscal 2012,

Ln connectioi with the sale of Grand Palais Riverbaat, Inc,, including its gammg license; a ‘Fivérboat § gaming vessel and certain olhcr equipment, wc
recorded a valuagipn-charge of 316, 149 10 reduce the carrying, va]ue af the nét assets 561d 16 the net proceeds 1 realmrd upon sale dunng ﬁscal year 2012, This
g.a‘m,lng,l'l,cgnsc and riverboat were used-as a portion of our Lake Charles, Louisiana’ gggyng,opgmtlgn: ~W'e continue to operate a casine riverboat operation in
Lake Charles,

Fiscal 2000—We recorded an expense recovery of 56,762 répresenting the discounted value of a receivable for reimbursement of development costs
expended'in prior, pnrmds rt:]duni, 1o a terminated plan to dev :!{)p a Casing in-Piftsburzh, Pennsy]\'dma This recéivable wis recorded following s t revised

assessment nfmlleciabnhry
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11, Income Taxes

Income tax (benefit) provision from continuing operaiions consists of the flowing:

Fiscal Year Ended

" April 29, April 24, “April 5,
2032 2011 20107

Gzl
- (6 460)
lricométax (benem) provision: '" R T el T30 19 £S5 n Lo mﬁ 950 MchHEZII(Y 609);

A recnncmmmn aof incoine 1axes from cortinuing opemnonf, at I.‘he smmtory cnrpnrazc federal tax rate of- 35% to the income tax (henefit) provision
reporied in the aécompanying consohda:cd statcments of operaops is as-follows:

Fiscal YearEnded

April 29, April 24. April 25,
. s 01 200 0
STRULOT 1A (DT, GV ision s i S (19), S5 S0 8 e A(569),;

Effects of

e RS 2 85 ] B (11458),

L‘Other"‘— R ;:-

Lohbvmg .
s ;:.;E.mpluvmem 3% crcdns F e T
Fmes & Penalues»

AP, .ﬁiﬁ iﬁmﬂmmaﬁ

39 {25

f.r%fﬂ)wn-llﬂwﬁiﬂﬁj

Hitérest _7 (18)____ (13 13

|52 Babamas stock: 1058, G- 30 00 B Tl S (27 et ;;_i"?«';"*" &

cht basmdnffcrcnna] . ’ ] . ,‘53-9

\f a]nanon allowance .
B T Other s e R T S e ) % !
Income 1ax {benefit) provision . T 154 !.9‘, $ 6930 § (6,600
We allocated the income iax provision and valuation allowance between continuing dperations and discontinued operations consistent with the
provisions of ASC 740, -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cuntinuéd)

{smounts in thousands, except shiare and per share amounts)

11. Income Taxes (Continued)

Significant components of our domestic net deferred income 1ax asset (liability) are"as follows:,

Fiscal Year fnded

“April 25; Apri 24;
<2012 . 011 i

Dctentdtaxlmbllmcs PSP S VN ‘_"‘W~: _ L iy |

Prop_t_‘._}' and & cqulpmem \ - " e S {51 71_1) 3 (68 0?5
L_&G()Odwl" and intdngibles__- o gty LR o A - (26; 740).._h (0, !6")
Gain gn carly cxlmgulshmcm ofdcbt — . ("l 64!) (21,593)
O T AL S SR R Wl sk OO AN P 850)= S (1R09)]
Total deferred tax liabilitics (10._,933) {121.239)
Deféired tox assels:i__ NIRRT AN NG T 1

Net opcmlmz 1asses . . 36,.44; 64,042

i ;Ag!:ct impairiy 5 e N R L4 26" s

Emplm, ment Lax credits . 19,171 17,398
EW \ccmed ‘expenses, e i T e e AT L L6932 10,5217

A!tcnmmc rnmlmum 1ax credn o 1 3’58 17338
Other o, Ee TR T fi‘«j\.—.;n‘-rgﬁwﬁ:" Gy TS L 15 771—_‘_&____ 39715

Tnh';] deferred tax assets A . l”l 738 107,'270
'Valuation allowance on deferred fax assets? s %33 e Dz - 154,215)____ (4 6—‘-]

_Net deferred tax asset. 67,523 102,574
Netdeferred tx sssey(liahilin ) s o 5 5.7 Tn oo 2o e Sk (35430018 (181665)]

Deferred iiiconie tax aSsets represent amounts available to reduce i income 1xes payable on taxable income in tuture years: Such assets arise because of -
temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, as well as. from nct opetating loss and tax credit camryforwards.
We evaluated the n:ahzabl]lr} of our deferred tax assets and pcrfon'ned an analysls of all available evidence, both positive and negative; consistent with the
provisions of ASC 740-10-30-17,The thrcc-ye.;u Lumulamc loss is a significant piece of negative evidence and while it is primarily the result ofa pre-tax
charge related 10 marking the Isle Casino Hotel in Biloxi, Mmlssmpl assets to their net rcalnah]t. \-alue and not an: ‘indication uf‘commumg, operations; we are
required to give objective] historical evidence significamly more weight than- Subjttilvc cwdcnct such as forccasts of futsre’i income. Accordingly, in the fiscal
20172 fourth guarter, the Company recorded 2'849,5t9 valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets- This allowdnce does not preclude us from utilizing the

deferred 1ax assets in the future, nor does it reflect a change in our long:term outlook .

A recanciliation of the beginning and ending amowrts of valuation allowance is as follows:

Federat State Totat
Bakince: April 24 201 Iz o 4 S3l & ey s om S0 o Sl L BRY ¢ 4 GOBETS V74,6967
Current year provision 46,805 2,714 49519
Balance; April 29530127 w2 - dgmen; - cwren s Sagkpl t46,805° 81 < 7AN0L S- T 54215
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ISLE OF CAPRICASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO C().\'S_OLIDATHD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conlihucd}
(amounts in thousands, except shareand per share amounts)
11. Income Taxes (Continned)

We have determined that it is mare fikely than not that we will tiot be able 1o unhze §46,R05 of the federal deferred tax assets and have established
valuation al!m».mce"- accordingly. We have determined that it is 'mope:likely than not that we will not be able 1o utitize $7.410 of the state de('ermd tayx tssets
and have cstalphshcd valuation allowances accordingly.

. At April 29; 2012, we have federal net operating loss cnrrvforwardq of $78,775 for income tax _purposcs, with expiration dates from fiscal 2024 10 2032.
Appnmmate]y S49 649 of these et operating | !Lmu are atiributable to 1C llu]dmgs Columdu, Inc. and ity wholly-0wneéd: subudxary CCSC!Blac}.huwk Int.-
) {“!C l[oldmgs Inc. & Sub") and can only be used o offset income earned by these eritities. The remdining federal net operating losses are subject (@
* limitations’ ‘under: the internal revenue code and underlying treasury regulations, v.hlch ‘may limit U amount uliimately uiltized. We also have various state
income tax net operating loss earryforwards totaling $221;535 with expiration dates from fiscal 2013 10 2032. This includes both consolidated and separate
company net operating loss camyforwards. if or, when recognized, the tax:benefits relating to any revémsal of the va]uauon allowance on deferred tax assets as
of Apsi} 29, 2012 will be actounted for as a reduction of income (X expcnse Wealso have u federal’ general business and AMT eiedis carryforwards of
'$20,509 for'income tax purposes, with expiration dates from fiscal 2[)22 w0 2032 Dcterred income taxes related 1o NOL camyforwards have been classified as
‘néncurrent to reficet the expected wilizaiion of the carryforwards.

We accoint for unrecognized tax benefits in accordance. with ASC 740, A reconciliation of the beginniag and ending amounts of unrecognized tax,
“benefits as follows:

April 29, April 24, April 15,

. —_— . 2012 2011 2010
BeRinning Balinec, ado. ~ & - Fa tr LB yiit el U8 TILA91LS 122645 19,482]
GFUSS an’EabEﬁ—mx Dl)s ans in currcnl n\,nod . i - e

7 S i pHior T ‘*144" P
—_ —_ 1. 5259
TR T L ‘_[2:102)‘:
Lapse ofstamrc orhm:lauom ] (7 4] 9) — T

EndmgBalance“ s S 07245 L 1149I S8 l76_:1

Included in the balance of untecognized tax bcneﬁ_ts at April 29, 2012 are $2,647 of tax benefits that, if re::og,m?ed, would affect the effective tax rate: -
There are ng tax benefits in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at April 29, 2012 that, if recognized, would fesult in adjustmients to deferred taxes.

We recognize acerued initerest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in'incare tax expense. Related to the unrecognized tax bengfits noted
above, we recorded interest expense of $310 in fiscal 2012 reluted 10 prior-periods, We ‘aeerued no penalties durmg the fiseal yeur ended "OI 2: In total, as of
:April 29, 2012, we have recognized 2 liability of $2,060 for interest and no amount for penaltics.

“We believe that an inc ase’in unrecognized fax benefits related to federal and’ state cxposures-in.the coming year, though possible, cannot be rcnsondbly
-estimated and will not be. Slgmﬁcanl [n addition, we believe that it is rcnsonably prS]bh: that an-amount between:$0 and $2,647 of our currently remaining
urrecagnized tax positions may be recognized by the end of the fiscat year ending ‘
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11. 1ncomc Taxes {Continued)

Apri] 28, 2013, These amounts relate to positions taken on Mississippi income tax retums for the fiscal years ending April 2002 through April 2008. The
Mississippi Dcpanmcm of Revenne has completed its examination of the income tax retumns for these years and has issued its assessment. We have, filed an
appeal and motion Tor summary judgmient and expect to resolve this issue durln;, the-next twclve months.

On April 30, 2011, the Federal statute of limitdtion for the fiscal years ending Apiil .30 2006 and Apnl "9 2007 lapsed Conisequently, we recognized
‘approximately 86,704 of Federal and 5475 of statc tax benefits during the ‘fiscal year endmg Apnl 29,2012, Related to the tax benefits recognized during the
current fiscal year, we reversed interest expense of ($404) related to prior periods:

We file income tax returns in the U.S. Federal Jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. During fiscal 2010; the 1RS completed its examination of our
Federal income tax retims for the 2006 and 2007 tax years which relate 10 our figcal years ended Al 29, 2007 and April 27, 2008, respectively, We
-recorded a 1ax benefit of $168 in fiscal 2010 related to the examination. Thesc jngome tax examination’ thangeq were reviewed by the U.S. Congress Joint
Comm:mc on Tauxation and agreed to during the fiscal year ending Apnl 75 2010. The'tax-returns for, suchqucm years arc also Sub]CCl to cxamination.

We file in momerouns siate jurisdictions with varying swatutes of ﬁﬁ':iia_lio_ps. Our wnrecopnized sizie 1ax benefits are related to siale tax rewrns open from
tax yezrs 2002 through 2012 depending on cach state's statote of limitations.
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{amounts in thousands, ¢xcept share and per share amounts)

12.Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings '(]nss)‘pcr share {in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Ended

Aptl29,  Aprild,  April 25,
) . ] ) 2012 2011 2010
Numeramr_h PR OSSR M N TS
anome (lgs_s] apnhcablc 10 common Shares; ‘
. . icome. (]os<} from c.ummumg operations’ aurlbuublc 10 common’ aluckholders v v (1 7, 383]5 73,735, S 4, 980}
[ncome {loss) from discontinued operations { iz 370} ‘803 (8,253)

Net incore {loss) attributable, 10/the common,slockhn]dcrs*‘ it thY Fﬂ AR .."$‘__:(‘lg?,';_‘53)‘$'," £4:540 8, 5 1(3:273)

Denommator

[ Dénomiinator; for basic eammgs (]oss) per_sharé—, we:ghtcd a'.erage shareq 38 753, 093 34,066,159 32,245;769]
Eﬁ'ect of diluiive securities

B . sEmployce stock options ; T TR 116,511}
Denominator for dituted earnings {loss) per share—adjnsted wclghted av cragt: T
shares and assumed conversions 38,753,098 34,174,717 32,362,280
Busic’camings (lossy per, share alritmmable 1, contmon fockholders &gy e A .|
Income {lossy from ontinuing opemimne . . § _(gg_s_)s 0.1 S____ _0ls
- [ricome {logs) from discontinued operationss - - - vt - g0 T e o (2.90) __1.0.07: (025 25
Neti mcame (loss) attributable 1o commaon stockholders 5. {3.35)$ 0.13% (0.10)
\ Diuted &arnings (1685) per, share “aturibitable te common. slucl.hnldcrs i X S oo Ree o 2%
‘ income (Ioss) from conlmumg opcrauom . . 5 (0 45)5 0.41 S Q:15

el Y 3

| {%__Incorne (loss) irom dlscommucd Operutions I, DT T At T (290), 0 L 0027~ e (0.25)
Net income (loss) attributable to common'stockholders ‘$ {3.35)8 0.13% (0.10)

During January 2011, we completed the sale of 3,300,000 shares ofcnmmon stock generating net proceeds of $51,227. Proceeds fromour equity offering
| were used-to repay long-term debt.

Due 10 the'loss from continning operations, stock aptions representing 21,845 shares, which are potentially dilutive, and 1,161,710 shares, Whlth wert
anti-dilutive, were excinded from the calculation of eommon shares for diluted earnings per share for fiseal 2012, Stock nptmns representing 469 710 shares
| and 495,474 shares, which were anti-dilwive, were excluded froni thé calculation of commen shares for dilnied' eamings per share for fiscal 2011 and fiscat

20140, reapet.tlvely
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(ameunts in thousands, except share and per share antounts)

13. Stock Based Compensation
Under our amended and restated Long Term Incentive Plan, we have issued restricted stock and stock options.

Réstricied Stock—We issue shares of restricted common stock th employees and directors under our Long Term Incentive Plan. Réstricted stock awarded
1o cmpIo)ees primarily. vests one-third on cach anniv ersary of the grant date and for direciors vests one-half on the grant date and one-half'on the first
anpiversafy of the gram date. Qur estimate of forteiturcs for restricted stock for employees and directors 1§ 5% ‘and 0%, respectively.

Stock Optiony—We have issned'incentive stock Op‘hons and nonquahﬁed stock op'nom which'have 2 maximim term of 10 years and are, generally,
excreisable in ycarly insiallments of 20% comimencing ofte year afier the date of grant. As of April 29, ‘2012, our aggrcgate forfeiture rate was 11%.

We granted stock options during fiseal 2010 and estimated the fair value of the optign grant on the date of the ‘grant u;.mg the Black-Scholes-Merton
option-pricing model with the mnge of assumptions disclosed:in the fol]uwmg table:

1Fiscat Year Ended
-April 25, 2004

. S TE e T D 6T.86%
Expccted dmdcnd \,'lr]d 0.00%
We]ghlcd a\'emge ctpected térm (inyears) . i Lo r SRR Rmat e T L 1.1
i . 3.07%
Wc:ghled average fairvaluelof, options grun YaE Aaﬁﬁ BT IR UTRgT 5 N Dm
Weighted average volatility is calculated sing the histéricat \.olanlny of our stock pricé over a range of date's cqual to the expecied term of a grant's
options. The \velghtcd average expected term is ca]culatcd using historical'dala that is representative of the option:for \\hlch the fair value is to be determined.
The expected termrepresents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The wc:gh‘ted average risk-free rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury vield curve in effect at the time of the gramt for the approximate period uf time equivalent to the grant's expgcted term.

Stock Compensdtion Expensé—Total stock compensation expense from continuing operations in the accompanying consolidated swfeiments of operations
was $7,642, 57,442, and 57,467 for the fiscal years 2012, 201 1, and 2010, respestively. We recognize campensation expense for these awards on a straight-
line basis gver the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award.
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13. Stock Based Compensation {(Continued)

Activity Under Our Share Based Plans—A summary of resiricted stock and option activity for fiscal 2012 is presented below:

Weighted
Average
. Grant-Date
Restricted Stock . Fair Value . Ogigns

Weighted

Average

Eaereite
Price

Oitstanding at April 23; 201 1, S Ay B 1109139948 876 ¢ 1367, mo)__s» 108}
Gratted . o ] ?3? 99“ 750

Exefeised’. SN A R = NSRS s TR 3000) .6 71
Vested — (959, 069)_. 7.63 —
'E-ontned and e‘tpm:d g5 *“‘_ ®ha _3?.;&,_;‘? B - "T*“ar%-‘aﬁ L TER e (93, _mg) 3 *’3
Outslandmg at April 29, 2082 890,525 s 899 1,271,710 S 1133
IS ot AN 20,2012 e rn® v T TR el v e RN

1,041,810 5 1192

T STy o]

Outstanding exercisable options ,
e ey ey e
—“Weighted av Lra}..e remaining cnmmcmal WM e X S

Aggreqatc intrinsic value: ) .
. Ouistanding eXercisable, (oo o F _ fa oA R ARt . *8. 0RO ‘1
Oustanding 5 179
L_i\nmes‘ed’ A PN %&T BT 'f‘,-k \ MRS
Umeco;,mzcd campensation cost 8 2 656 3 235.

L T Weigludd averge remaining vesting peviod - ="~ gk g s T3 TR0 yeurst @ - o b:3yeamse ]

Additiona) information relating o our share based ptans is ag folim\s

April 29, April 23, April 15,

i} 2012 2011 2010
ReStricted Stocki_com 2 & Su s Y S Al BT T S i T )
_Fuig value of rtsinctcd siock vesied | during the year, S ,317 5 4 45? § 2146
Stock Options: u=@s - 7 Gua %:__A ,@_,Jim E ‘:’% T A e e
lmnnslc value of stoek Dplmns excreised 5 11 30

Proceeds froft S10ck OPLIOR CXCTCISes ook, d 2 bt g tar Beitl o s r e R feeq Yoo 9y R T opd)

We have:l,143,246, shares available for future issuance under our cquity mmpt.ns.mnn plan as of April 29, 2012, Upnn issuance of restricted shares or
exercise of stock options, sharcs may be issued from available wreasury or common shares.

-Resrricrcd Stock Units—Subsequent to our fiscal year ended April 29, 2012, we granted restricted stock units ("RSUs") containing ma:kct performance
conditions which will determine the ultimate 2meunt of shares if any to be awarded up to 728,570 sheres. Any shares eamed will vest 50% three years from
the grant date and 50% four.years from the grant date. The fair value of these RSUs is determined utilizing a lattice pricing model which considers a range of
assiinptiong mcludmg volatility and risk-free interest rates. The aggregate compensation cost related to these RSUS is 52 350 to be recogmzed over the
vesting perjods.
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13. Stock Bas-ed Campensation (Continued)

Tax effect af Stock Based Compensation—Upon the exercise of certain stock options and vested restricted stock, the 1ax benefit (provision) related 1o
stock compensation, subjeet to ceriain limitations, is rccugmzcd as an addition 107or deduttion from Addiiional pald in capital. Dufing fiscal year 2012, we
reduced our Additional paid in capital by 54 738 reﬂecnng a tax: pmvmon relited to the impact of stock option‘exercises and restricied stock vesting. At
April 29, 2012, we have deferred 51,433 of tax benefits ass_oc:a_led with stock exercises and restricted stock vesting due to our net operating 16ss position.

Stnck Repurchase~—Qur Board of Dircctors has approved a- stock repurchasy prégram, as amended, allowm;, up 106,000,000 shares of our common stock
10 be repurchased. As of April 29, 2012, we have repurchased 4 895 792 shares of common stock, and retired 533,800 shares of common stock under this
stock frepurchase program. No shares were repurchased in fiscal years 2013, 2011 or 2010. .

14! Deferred Compensation Plans

2005 Deferred Compensation Plan—Our 2003 Pefered Compensation. Plan [(the "Plan”}, ss amended and restated; is an unfinded deferred
compensation .m'zmgemeni far the benefit af Ley managetnent atficers and cmployccq of the Company and its subsidiaries. The terms of the Plan includé the
ubility of the participants o defer, on-a pre-tax basis, salary, ani bonus payments'in excess of the afmiount permitted under IRS Code Section 401{k). The
terms also allow for a discretionary annual matching contribution by the Cumpany ‘The Plan allows for the aggregaiion and investment of deferred amounts in
nnnoml investment aliernaiives,: mc]udmg, units’ reprcscmmg shared of our comimon smck “The llahjlnv relatéd.to the Plan as of April 29, 2012 and April 24,
2611 was'$2;796 and 53,016, n:spcuwd) andd is ncluded in lohg-termn viher acerued Habilities in'the umsohd.m:d balance sheets. Expense from continuing
opérations for our contributions related to the Plan was 569, $53 and $73 in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

15. Supplemental Disclosure of Cush Flow Information

For the fiscal years- 2012 2011 and 2010 we made cash payments for interest, net ofcapna]wcd interest of 583,004, 584,506, and $71,623, respectively.
We made income tax payments; net of refunds; of §1, 547 for fiscal year 201 Xand mllccted awincome tax refund, net of paymenis, of $5,599-and §1,561 -for
tiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.

For fiscal 2002 and 2011, the change in accrued purchase of property and equipment in accounts payable-increased by $8.315 and $1.642, respectively.

16. Employee Benefit Plan

401 (k) Plan—We have a 401(%} plan covering substantially. a1l of our eniployees wha have completed 90 days of service. Expense for oor contributions
for continuing operations rclated to the 401(k) plan was $1,485, §1,242, and $1;315 in fiscal years 2012, 2011,-and 2010, respectively. Qur conwibuion is
based un a percentage of employee contributions and iay. include an additional discretionary amount.
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17, Interest Rate Derivatives

We have catered into various interest rate derivative agreements in order 1o manage market risk on variable rate loans outstanding. We have an interest
Tale swap agreement with an-agpregate notional value of 530,000 with o maturity darw'in fiseal 2014, We have also entered intd interest Tate cap comiracts with
an aggregate notional value of $100,000 having maturlty dates 1n fiscal 2013 and paid premiums of $203 at inception.

The Bt values of derivatves included in gur cdngelidated balance cheet are g tollows:

Type of Deriv atiw ¢ lnstruineﬁl

. Balande Sheet Location o April 29, 2012 ) April 24] 2011
Tiitérest mtc eap. Lumracts N st <Prepaid, dr:pusns and'otherf . & T % o e e TS N "9}
Imerc'it rme swap contracts ) Accnyed interest; . . —_ . 1:439
Intetest raie;swap, contias - e Other, long:torm Habihtes B s s 2F o & 3493 .~ T.E’:ﬂ

The interest fate cap ng:reemcms méet the eriteria for hedge accounting for cash flow. hedges and have been’ e\‘alualed, as of April 29, 2012 45 being fu]]y
effective. As aresult, there is no impact on our consolidzted statément of ‘operations from changcs in.fair value ofthc interest rate.cap agreements. The loss,
recorded in aceumulated other comprehensive income (16ss) for gur interest rate cap eontracts s recorded net of deferred income tax benefits of $8 and 5§49 as

of Apnl 29,2012 a_nd r\pnl_’d 2011, respectively: The change'in unrealized guin'(loés) on onr derwamcs quahi‘ymg for hedge aceounting was 568 and $5
for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Our interest rate swaps no longer meet the criteria for hedge effectiveness, and thevefore changes in the fair value of the swaps subsequent to the date of
ineffectiveness in I-ebruaqr 2010, are recorded in derivative income (cxpenlic) in the mnsohdatul statements of operations. The cumulative loss recorded in
ather.comprehensive income (Joss) through the date of meﬂ'ccuvcness is-béing r amortized into derivative ¢xpense over.the remaining term of the mdmdual

interest rate swap agreements or when the underlying’ transacuon is no longer expected o oeetir. As of Apnl 29, 2012, the weighted gverage fixed LIBOR
interest rate of our interest rate swap agreements was 3.995%,

_ {The loss recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of our interest rate swap contracts is recorded net of deferred income tax benefits of
$506 and 51,295, as of April 29, 2012 and April 24, 2011, respectively.

Derivaiive income (expense) related to the change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 19, April 24;
e : P —— 20!2 2011
=, 5 e 3 T AT P et
Derivative income {expense) 3 _ - 50 T gien R Sy - 8 ,3'405.__5,\.;_ .__'.’2.913,3
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(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounls)
17. Interest Rate Perivatives (Continned)

Derivative income (expense) realized associated with the amartization of cumulative loss recorded in ather comprehensive income (loss) for the interest
rate swaps through the date of ineffectiveness is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
LApril 19, April 24,
J2012- .- 2011
A T qu ,\qs . -:.;5‘774]-
7R . .3,308

SRS ;»(9?]

nterest rate swap contraci and the, interest tate cip contracts mafuring

fcome; (cxpcnsc)w ; .
The amount ofuccumulaled other ccmprehcnﬂne income (Eoss) relatcd 10 Ihc
within the next twelve months was $608, net of tax of $365, as of Apnl 29,2012,

18. Fair Value

The fair value of our interest swap and cap ¢ontracts are rccordcd usmg Level 3inputs at the present value of all expected future cash flows based on the
LIBOR-based yield curve as of the date of the valuation.

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 assets and liabilitics measured at fhir value on a recurring basis for the fiscal years ended April 29,
202 and April 24, 201t

Fiscal Year Ended

Inferest Rite Derivatives : » . April 29; 2012 - april2a:2011

Beéginning Bakinctdo 2, - T TR MR et (5004, S 3" (12,920}
_Realized gam 2,540 7,918

T Unrealized (1055). 8300 2o -5 %o i Sl s 0 s Toe 2QOVe 32 gw T8 5

Esding balance 2493y 8 (5.004)
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" ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

18. Fair Value {(Continued)

Financial Instruments—The estimaied carmying amounts and fair values of our other financial instruments are as follows:

April 29; 2012 April 24,2011
Carrying Carrying :
. Amoum ant___ _ Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Finf:iﬁ:éial.n's‘g‘as‘;l, R I Fa W" s m@i}:ﬁ,’ﬁ R e L P M nr?‘q:r s e ,\j
Cash and cash equivalents . . ‘5 . 04461 § 94,461 3 75,178 § 75,178
Marketable Securities = oo El et e 23083 7F '29;5{43(.?‘*.\ 23T g 2.173]
R::stnmcd cash and m»cstmcnw o __12ssy 12551 12,810 12,810
Nétes reccivable. - R ARRRE N 1293 1293 2 Dl 43788, ,*3,@
Financfal liabilities:’ - .

RevaIving line of credit =~ 7, "t s e sBSy o BT SR AR ST 33000785, 313350
Variable ritc ferm loans . L 495000 . 498,713 500 000 505,000
775% Semiornatesy s T P T 308076 .- 308.829, ni<207.815 51305.055]
rw Senior, subordma{ed notes . s 35?,275 338,168 '357,2?:5 158 615
Oftlicr Tong-Aetm debt. .~ % g o » by T30 gt SAH30 o 45047 745041
Other lnng-term obligations 16,556 16,536 16,694 16,694

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fdir’v’alug:‘o'f cach class of financial instrutiients for which it is practicable to estimate
thai value:

Cash and cash equivalents and nates receivable afe carfied at cost, which approximates fair value due to their shon-term maturities,

Marketable securities and restricted cash and 1nve<1mcnts arg based upon Level-1 inputs obtained from quoted prices available in active markets.
and repreésent the amonnts we would expect to réceive if we sold these assets..

The fair value of our !nng—term debt or other long-term obllbanonc is estimated bascil on the quoted market price of the underlying debt issue (Level 1
input) or, when a quoted market price is not available, the discounted cash flow. of futurc payments utilizing corrent rates available to us for debt of similar
remaining maturities (Level 3 mputs) Debt obligations with a shor remaining matirity have a carrying amount that approximates fair value.

19. Accumnulated Other Comprchenswc Income {Loss)

A detail of sccumedated other comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

. April 29, 2012 Aprid 24,701
T o At g A T - —- >
Interest rate cap contraciss_. s AR S “;“‘(14)‘ N T S ¢ 73

Interest rate swap com.mcls _ (841) {2,153}
R K b A )MS .,:?.‘.. i) l‘(sss]t_ ™o Litee, T (2‘235”
=

e _,._ LI T
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ISLE OF CAPRICASINGS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

19. Aceumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Laoss) (Continued)

The amount of change in the gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related 10 derivative instruments'is as follows:

I-m:al Y cxr Ended

Type of Derivative lasirumen

. i . Apnl 29. 2012 April 24, Zﬂll
-Inferedt rate cup Lontrietsz & i e wnl 4" P ..r-“ ST 63 LS e (32)1
Interest rate swap comracts ) ‘ . 1312 3,724
f, e T e Lt S b e 5,,?5:,"_‘4"«?’»1?*3;.,1;37 D H380 T L $rie ,69"3
N - — —————  —1 m

20. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information

-Certain of our whol]y owned subsidiartes have fully and uncondnmnally guarzmtccd on ajnml and several basis, the payment of all obligations under our
7.75% Scnior Noics and 7% Senior Subordinated Notes.

The following wholly owned subs:dlanes of the Company are guarantors, on a joint : and several basis, under the 7.75% Senior Notes and 7% Senior
Subordinated Notes: Black'Hawk Holdings, LILC. CCSC!Bldeh.LwI-. Inc.:'IC! Haldmbs Colurddo, lne.; IOC-Black Hawk Distribution Cormpany, L. [..C.
0C-Boonvilie, inc.: 10C- Camthersville, LL.C3 10C- Kansas City, Ine.; ioc- Lula, inc.; 10C-Natchez, inc.; 1OC-Black Hawk County, inc.:.10C-Davenport,
‘Inc.; [OC Haldings, L LC: lOC Services, L.LC iO(.«-V:csturg. Inc.: 1QC- Vncl\sburg, LLC: ‘Ralnbow Casino Vicksburg Partnership, L. Piocc ape
-Glrardeau LLC: Isle of Capti Betterdorf Mariia Comoration.: Isle of Capii Benendorf, L. c: Isle of Capn Black Hawk Capital Corp.; Isle of Capri Black

Hawk, L.L.C.: Isle of Capri:Marquette, Inc.;:P.P.1, Inc.: Riverboat Corporation of \d:‘i%lss‘lppl Rn edmm Serviees, Inc.: and St. Charles Gaming Company,
Inc. Each of the subsidiaries';guarantees is joint and several Wllh the _guarantees of the otkier mbsadlancs
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, eéxcept share and per share amounts)
20, Consolidating Condensed Financia! Information (Continued)

Consolidating condensed balance shéets as of April 29, 201 2'and April 24, 2011 are as follows (in thousands): _

A anp_nlI‘) 202

Isle of Capri Consolidating,
Casinas. Inc. Non- and 1ste of Caprl
{Parent Guaranior, . Guarantor Ellminating Casinas, Ine.

Balancs Sheet Obdienr) . Subsidiarics Subsuhuncs Entries _:Consolidated
“Currét assets____& 5oy o 8.8, 252,532,5.120,7118729,32455 . X(284)5.:2
lmcrcomp_:_lgy TECEY: ab]ee 673,849 ([76 88") (50, 94'7‘)_3_(446 023) e
INVESHLETS iR subsidiaries., < ios 644424 % (?9 793) Ty T (614;620) % R
Pmp_ye{_t\ and equmrnent fet 9,194, Q08,386 32234 'e—- 950014
Other as3ets fra ot c s o vt - 2RGe (S5 24) 283844607 5 (L T,0000,e 26519 -7 322,673
Tota) assets $1374,475 81,207,089 §:27,825 $(1,034,419)51,574,970
Corrent liabiitics. o " yams o S M3T,509.5;  89,213-15529, 59’0‘"5 l”9'6)$';£ 1S6L'16)
Intcrcompany nayablcs . — 446,025
ong-terni depi, lesy ot . PR AN
{Emammiesl '.-.t ; '145,30: 3i764" 1
Qther accnved liabilities £,045 1? I8 !4 A43 26,531 86 196

Stockholdersy equity CH R e 1831620063141 2,:09(16, 783)%(614%29)%133 1620)
iz

Total ljabilities and ;lmkholdcrs L
eqitity §$1,374,475,51,207,08%9- § 27,825:5(1,034,419)51,574 970

Ay of April 24, 2011

Lste of Capri . Cansolidating
Casinay, Inc. Non- and Iske of Capri
(Parent  Gurrantor Guarantor  Eliminating  Casinos, Inc.
Balance Sheet Uhlisor) -Subaidiaries ‘subndl!nﬂ I‘nlrlm .. Cansolidated
T Tt — ey ~ Vo | agi1Eq
“Cuiient assets v T i Sy 28(886:SLRT,650587.32,27408, L 8 (45 1)SE_148,359]
intcrcompany_&rscenabicc e P 070 A93 (226, 776} (56 599) A737.768) _—
Invesmentsin submdmrn.s' Span ,:e TR 7675**,(65 2"9)“’“ i (3?)%2.(333 SO1Y. 0d | fs

Pmpert) ‘and equ:pmenl net 10,215 "1,071,415 31,919 — 1 113,549
Dherenett . TS e B B T I63 R0 AT, 104 20,00 (3307057247 11080},
‘T'otal assets 51,542,350 £1,309,404 $ 27,559 $(1,145,425)51,733,888
Carent TbIes g o oi 2 18, 240,714,54 841565548529,050,57 Hag(451)S11 531878
Intercompany payables | =137, 768 — {137,768) —
I,ong term debt 1655 cus current T aahe o n 1w Twahelr By N
S i in = o g ¥ g TR 091 b *‘3!;171%,&%6133“&1_.,&1 187"’1
Other accnied liabilities _ 9517 114,205 13,744 (33, 703) 83,761
sty bt L Aermgrar e g
Stockholders'equity, g 0. 309,028 . 369,349M(1a 848)“‘ (353 DOI)M?U‘) 023}
Total liabilities and stockholders’ .

equity 51,542,350 S1,309,404 § 27,559 $(1,145,425)51,733 888
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS/INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and pershace amoonts)
20. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued)

Consolidating condensed statements of operations for the Niscal years ended ‘April 29, 2012, April 24, 2011 and April25, 20§0 are as follows:

Far the Fiscnl Year Ended April 29. 2012

I1sle of Capri ) Consolidatiog’
Casinos, Inc. Non- and Isle of Capri
. (Paren_l Guarantor  Guaranior’ I‘Iunmzlmg Casinns, Ine.
Stateinent of Openllom - ()bliﬁa'r] Subsldilrms ‘suhndlags! Entries.  Consolidated
Révenied e 205 o5 v ¢ IR T T S A
Casino. - $ C— Sl 006,5"3 $ — $ — 31 006,523

Rooms,, foad, be\emv.c, pan mulue] e T ; w5 2 J
(Rt fo 643”“’5 e (9. 90),__170 633}

L__and oﬂlcr ng‘ E b "1-088' i
Gross reventies, 1,088 1 15,715 9 045 (9 90) 1,177, 1*8
L& p prommmnal allowances________;____‘_‘d(w‘) 787) " U (199 TR
_l‘!:OSS 975,928 9,@513 ) (9,..90) 977:371_
T T e o T e T 4
Opemungctmnses L S T, b By STe T A
Ciisino,___ ‘ R e O V-5 Y £ TR 153,743
Gaming | takest .. . - ¥ ey 51780 ,___‘___,"-‘__:zj__, =231, ff’é-(ﬂ
Rooms, food, beverage, pari-rgutuel
and other 41,502 ‘371,16?{ 8 036 . (9 "90) 411',415
.\'1anagcm;:nt,fge'_e'iliﬁsg‘_(revé’ﬁﬁc)' N ,(3;1;15‘]): S48 L .....-,iL . n
Depreciation und amortization 1 960 73,538 S‘i" — 76,050
{Total operiling EXpenies . 8711 <%884,979 5, T8, 58875 T (9,290); . 892 1088}
Opemnng income (L‘LS_S,} (7,623) 90, 249 _— 1,057 = 84,383
lm,eresl expense; net & S I (28383 _s(54, 045)&_“(656)’:_ AT : 487, 086)
Gain on extinguishment ofdcbt = e - _
Denvative, mmn‘f_g\ M B _i:_439 N D ) *:5'—’ s ‘43-53
Equity in income{loss) of .
subsidiaries 54,462 — -

fmm continuing. < » i
opcr:mcms before lncomc tﬂ’(ES} - n". N
Cand: nnm.umullmg mlen::,l REME 13 803 o= 32 904

= “x 4UI5 '{54 462}

Income tax (provision) hencﬁt (36.276) 2],279 {122) —.

Income (loss) from conhnumm(z . TR e ‘,‘ s

{ Joperitions’, 2~ *%(IT*JM) 154, 183,_, £:379; 2 (54 46") (17 383)

Income (loss} ofdjscomlnued e
operations (112;370) (114,125} — 114,125 (112,370)

Net ncome (Joss)oar e tr S{129,753)8 (59,042)0°8, 52795, 359,663§5,(129:753)
79 '
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

20. Consolidating Condensed Financial Infermation {Continued) .

Far the Fiscal Yuar Ended April 24, 2011 -

1se of Cxpri- Cansolidaling
Casinas, Inc, Non- and <Iste of Capri
(Parem Guarantar  Guaranter l*llmln:tmg Casinos, Inc..
bulemcnlnl’Upcrnlmns ——— Obligary Subsldlnriﬁ Subsidiaries Emries ~_ Cansolidated
Re\.-cnucs R T - R ‘M SRR
‘C«'mno ) $ —8 968 4’.’_'5 L — — 5 968473
Rooms, food beveiage: | pan BT B 5% i o A Y ]
£ nd’ mhcr____:f_;.__ P PR N T 670 192,331 20, 6761‘23\;_(0 ‘523)__,‘I54 ODQJ
Gross revenues 1,670 1,120,754 9,626 {9,528) 1,122,522
‘Less. promotional allowances v, 8o g i (185186 1)) A ) ¥ T (185:861)
Net revenues 1,670 . 934.893 9,626 (9 528] 936,66!_
?‘"".a'd;? o t«. T =R B e R T g
Ly .

Opemung expenses: »‘ L S ; S
Casino e i) 'I47'64‘3 . i L7 X P
Gaming taxes_ "0 w ol L = 2470940, A TR N 1'3242,9f19;
Rooms, food, beverage, pan mulue] ) . ;

and ol_hcr : 42 837 ;3_2_§3_925 9,292 (9,;_2_3) 371,526
Management fee expernise, {revenue)_“t_‘ (}"”"55!)““_;_33';259,@ IS D L=
Depeéeiation and amontization 1955 75,086 572 — 77,613
Total operating expenses. ' e V1533 §27R61-E... 9864 ;;;4-:(9,'52_8);834730}
Qperming income tlnss) (9,863)  112:032 ,(238) = 101,931
Thterest expense; neloe. M B o(20,638) - (615096) 5 648 . e 100,032)
Gain on e\!m;.,rulshmem ofdebt i — — i —
Derivative income (expense )z o, (T2MN A ol e s R = ""iz:(l,?l;i]
Equity in incomie (loss) of

subsidiaries ! 36,389 —=

——
1ncum'u‘ (oss) | fmm u)mummg =
Enpcmuons before.i income, mxcc

R A, b !
and noncontolling interest goi ;i ;_';(4‘377 ﬁl [}(]9 A 410 (16 41")
- Income tax (provision) beneiit 8,057 i 12,995) (2, 012) ==
' Income (Jo<<) fmmcommuuung § WV R % VR R J
{ Jopcranionsik R I | 73::,,“____,38 014 el 607)__;1(36 41") : 3 ;735

Income (loss) of dnconnnuu.d
aperations 805 - {4,827) 1,475° 3,332 803

e, -
Neét income (Imq)‘___““_{mi_‘____gs G 454055 P33 8T S N2 T 8 (33 060)$ > 4,540j
- . 80
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(amounts in.thousands, except share and per share amonnts)

20. Consolidating Condensed-Financial Information {Contipued)

Far lhe Fiscal \'ur Erided April 25, 2010

“Isle of Capri Conwltdaunﬂ
Casinos, Inc. Non- _ . and

lsIeolCzprI
(Parent Guarantor  Guarantor, Eliminating :Casinas, Inc.

QIllcmenlnf(lpernlmm . (lhllgur) Gubndurics Suhs:d::rm |«nmes (‘nnmlldated
Revdnifess 7508 Bes N G R D R
Casino | $ — S 943234, .8 — .8 — $ 943,2.:4
Rooma.“ﬁmd,’- g‘_‘\cmgf, p..m mutlsc}%' v ey qﬁ P ~.-\ ﬂ &} ) o T

_t_:md oLhcr g R B 320 - 1627 L (

Gl‘oss revenues ! 320 71 097,580 kA 654 . (9}7’} 1 ()98 98"
LL‘i‘i promouonal allm\.anccs. g(l?l T4 T e F 313(]71 T
“Net revenues  __ . . _‘_1,320 9"5 833 9,694 (9 5?") 977,233
Opcm[m re ‘(pcnscs : F5n ¥ - el ELENT R e s
thln() — . — 137305 — — 137 305
Gaming taxes.o - -l i BN = T R N N R R 1T ) lS;

Rooms, food, beverage, pari- mume]

_aid’ other 45,479 327,487 3,979 R (9 5?") 367 373
Management, ol fee e expense fre\t'nuc) ~(23,800)__¢ 123800 7 = S8 T —}
Dcpreuduon and amomzﬂuun ) 4115 50,753 610 95,4?8,

:'10tal opcmmb expcmu:_;_f_____ 25,7942 83406385 - 41580 % B (9;5_]2)‘"‘?*354*'8?4}
Opcralmg income (Ioss) (24.474) 91770 5 065 — 12361

[ntercﬁ: expenseinet % R ,.(IO 827)__(62564), 5 (2290 Y . = < (T30 620]
D'c_n\!_a_\we income {\:‘&DEBSE) . (370}

Equity,in-income (loss) of" ~ s,
{ slibsidiaries’s" 7o :

-t 2

T

S

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes

and noncontroliing intefest 94") 30,671 .3,386 (_..,744)

(i,629)

Inconie tax (provision) Senefit " : 17922_L(10009),¢__(: 303) e e a7 6609

Income (loss) from cominuining

__opérations_ 4980 20662 _:2,08) 22,744)___ 4,980
Income (loss) om dxsconunued» R O P‘- (2RI eﬂﬁ Y=
upt,rduum net ofitax.g HE Lt SB)M(IG Osh)» 5 _,300) e 12,386 ol (8,2 :‘3)

Net income (1oss) ) S .-73)5 10,576, & "(218) S (10,358)8

(3.273)
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FEINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
20. Cnnséiid;iling Condensed Financial Informatien {Continued)

Consolidating condensed statements of eash flows for the fiscal years ended April 29, 2012, April 24, 2001 and April:25, 2010 are as follows:

For the Fiscal Year linded April 29, 2012

Isleof Capri” Consalidating ,
Casinos, Inc. Non- " “and ‘Isle of Capri .
. {Parcnt Guarantor Guarsntor  Kliminatiog  Casinos, Inc.
Ststeenent af Cash Flows- -, Ubligar)  Subsidigeics Subsidiaries l'tllrm Cunsolldn(ed
Net cash prm'lded by (used m) opcmung e SRR T = IR J
b activies 8L ,960;%33OliSOlLS;.B;Ef)STf__SE 2 —-'~S‘rl 14,059
Net cash, provided-by (us;d m) :m-c:tmg
. Jactivitics 60,806 (57 955) (l 03() (6! 864)9__(60 049)
Net cash, prcmded by (used ul) ﬁnancmg By S ; e
t__amvmct__,_ . (38 353)’ (55 07) e (7‘ 036)#;_61 864 dd (13 727}
Net increase (decreasc) in cash and cash
B cquwa]cms , 15,413 (ll 356) L — 19,283
Cash'andzash equ c’;uw-]]cms ot bcgmmng nfp % G g ST e
1 sthe herigd: o 957 ~E 62 105 e M G LA IS
Cash and eash equwa!cms atend of 1hc .
period 5 3‘),36'\ § 50,749 S 4,347 3. — $ 9446l
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 24, 2011
1sle of Capri Conselidating
Casinos, Inc. Non-+ and Iste of Capri.
. (Pnrenl Guarapter  Guaranter  Fliminating  Casinos, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows (lhllgur! QUhaldmrla Sulrsidiaries Fnlncs Consolidaled
Net cashi pravided by, (uzcd m) opcmlmg et w TR e - '{.,:&5' S iy
L Sactivitiese & -7 ¢ P &«‘,(S (l 327)5 ‘l I9 073:&_@(!3345,_&__——'8}_!% 684
Net cash pmv:ded by. (used in} investing
N nctwme: . (’9 490) (179 743). (10 I60} 24;736 {l44.9_§_]_)
_th cash prm:ded b) (used ln) tmancmg BRI ‘m\ ey “'-" Ny
Fadtivitiese e gy it W i A :%-2 2307650 i (1 373),______(’4 756}~ :28:110

Effect of forcign currency ﬂchangc rales on
cash and cash cquwalcms

Net intrease (dcueaee) ircash am cmd CdSh RO

L_cquwalents S S ST - R

Cash'and cash equivalengs at beginning of -

(48)

lhc_ period | -_ 9 68,069
Cjt'h“cmd cusll cqmvalems at end ur the o IR o PR ‘1J
Frperad T30 < : i L 62} 59 i 73,178




L'able of Contents

1SLE OF CAPR] CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(amounts in thousands, except shure and per share amannts)

20. Consolidating Condensed Financial laformation (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 25, 2010

Isle of Capri Consalidating ’
Casinos, [nf. Non-  ° and Isle of Capri
. . {Parent Guaramor Guaranfor  Eliarinating  Casinos, Ine,
Statement of Cash Flaws ()blignr) Quhskﬁlnes Subsidlanus Fntries  Consolidated .
.Nét cash provi _cdb)'(uscdm)oncratmg“""i‘”& ‘M“"” DWT g i
L7 Getivitids B s B 4 s G SES (9, 00")331 18, 27TLSR(2 S‘N)*Si B '8 106,382
"Net cash'provided by (used tn) investing
- acuvmcs 109,297 (30, 3"1) 722 (l 10 688) (30 990)
Netcagh prav prav Lded Dy (uscd m) fmanc:_ng _ff LT TRiF B »é’
Lsadctivities s 47 s ""’& - (102:565),,;(109 643)»1 438) l=10 68'&__(103 958)
Effect of foreign LlllTE:ﬂC} c'(ch:mge rales on
cash and cash qu]lVﬂ]Cl'llS i - L. {19) —_ (l‘))

¥

16%1)? (4(93)"‘*5 e (543

Net increase {dccmmc inl A cash an and cach
L jeanivalens g~ i Sl S
Cash and ¢ash équivalents atl beginning of’ )
the périod 8,776 68,681- 19,197 —_ 96,654
("a.sh and cach equiv alems at end oI theE - vt ;
Loperiod. o Soew wy & -

Ay 20

wfaf

650655, 46 9)4,Lsa”"”._, 6
83

5 Ms, 63069':1
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cuntinued)
{amouets in thousands, except share and per share amounts) )
21. Selected Quarterly Financial Information {unaudited)

Our.selected quartesly financiat informatien has included reclassifications for.amounts shown in or previously filed reponts on Forms 10-Q to reflect the
discontinued operations presentation for our Biloxi, Mississippi, Freeport, Grand Bahamz and UK casino properties.

Fiseal Quarters Ended

July 24, Qetober 23, January 22, April 29,
. 2011 . 51 1012 2012
Netrevenmes, ! Dus osr o o o IR e ‘?«w“*?""« 'S 22716047 $7_231426/SL_7227:320(82,_<291,020f
Opcratlng income S ) .. 17 693 19,773 "0 813 26,104
Thicome. (16ss) from coninuing operations .yt .2, S En (235 (L030) & - (316)2. L (13.478)
Incomc (Ioss) frony d:sconunucd uperanons, net of i l[lCDmL taxcs | 236 427 (866) (e .:13)

T

—— Fa
Net'income ﬂosﬂ)&f Tt S TR
Earnings (!oss)‘pcr comman share basic:..

=22 3”3) N (] 182 (I’4*79I)

i Income, (kissY trom wmin‘ﬁihﬁ'éner%liﬁn?h.' o ik E SE 2o (0TS 2. (0 0%, . Z(0.00)5_-__(033)
Income {loqs) from discontinued operations, net, ofmcomc taxes. 0.01 {0.01) {0.02) {2.85)

LLI\CI ifcome (1058) 2 inf car' we o oib B FELETTSY T O(0.06)F, - (0. 03*)3._-_(0 03)S. L _(320)

Earnings ( (loss).per colman share diluted: i

K Income, (loss) from Continuing OPeralions =« fiv a4 ota S’" £.(0, 07)3’___‘_., {0055 OO0 - (0-35)
Income (Ioss) from, d]sconumlcd operdtions, net ofmcnme taxes 0.0} © (0.01) (0.02) {2.83)

{ENincome (1058) s T e it e i o e 258 3 (00608 S(0.04)8 T 2, (003)8 . (320}

Wclghlcd avi cmgc basic shares . _ 38,277,130 33 753049 38082231 38, 982,281
WeJthcd average dilutive sharedor 2503 o o et e tanet o382 77:150,.% 8*75) 049 .18, 982,231 38 982,281_,]
R4
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC:
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts}

2L Seléc_ted Quarterly Financial lnformatien {unaudited) (Continued)

Fiscal Quarters Ended

+July 15, Octuber 24, Jaouary 13, April 24,
2010 -1010 2011 2011

NETTOVentes . el 00 ot 2 B s in o S r 29..0.233,282:8 - 229,383 ST :717,362.5_ 256,633]
Opera:m; incone E e . e 21,334 21,748 19317 39 332
-Indome (1oss) irc from continiing npcratmm. AR Sl (203} S92 (1324) . 183 3561
[ncnmc (!oss) from d]sconunucd opemnons ncl of income ta¥es (i@r 172 (! 333) '2,31 5
Netiincome, (lo§s) " <. F PTAS TEYI R {2,654} _. L, 0"0)____{1657) 7 A0871)
Earmngs {Lg_g) per comman share basic: -

Income (lass) from continuing | opcrauansf B O 5PN a‘v“ﬁm *V'*f“ L 06)S_ .= (0.09S;~~ -(0.04)5 % -0:22]

lncome (loss) from discontinued aperations, net of income taxes {0.02) . 0.01 {0.04) 0.07
Rt icome floss) 1o oo ¢ o e Ay BT e T0.08)S_ (0035« (0.08)5_ 0739
Earnings (Ioss)_’pcr common share diluted: o . j -

lncome (lass) from c.onunumo vperations 2 Tk G TS (0 0685 - _{0.04)5__- (0. 04)5 2’1

lr)(;omejloss)zfrgm dlscqmmued oper:nmns actof income taxes {0.02} 0.0l (0.0 0.06
E_:Netiingome (loss) 2. 3. DR o i o SioL (008)ST . S(0.03)87x  L(0.08)S | 0.28]
Weiphted av erape basic shares ) - ‘ 32,447, 904 32,783,726 32, 929,965 38,103, 040
Weighted’ averugc dilutiveshares 2 e 25 R E e ¥ *532.447 904 -32.783,7"6 +32,079, 96);_:‘5,232 693}

A summary of certain revenues and expenses fmm our coptifying Gperations impacting our quiarterly financial results is as follows:

{1} The fourth quanter of fiscal 2012 contained fourieen wecks as compared to the fousth girarter of fiscal 201 1 which vontained thirteen weeks.

(2)  During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, we recorded 2 goodwill impairment charge of $14,400 related to our Lula property and a. valuation,
charge of $16,149 at our f.ake Charles prupcny associated with' ‘the sale of Grand’ Palais Riverbaat, lnc.

(3}  During the first and second guarters of fiscal 2012, five of our pToperties were temporarily closed for floading along the Mississippi River.
22. Related Party Transactions

{Effective in February 2010, we amended 2'lease With an entity owned by certain of our stockholders sesulting in a'payment of $60 annually for a'parking
area adjacent to.one of our casinos. Prior to this lease. amendment, we leased on a month to month basis this parking area and a warehouse for $23:per-thonth.

In 2003, one of onr wholly owned subsidiaries, Isle of Capri Bettendorf; L.C., entered into a Development Agreement with the City of Bettendorf, Iowa
and Gireen Brldgc Company relating to the devélapment of a eanference/events center.inBettendorf, lowa, the expansion of the hotel at
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ISLLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
. (amounts in (housands, except share and per-share amoants)
22 Rclatu.i Party T'ransactions {Continued)
Bettendort and related facilities, including a skywalk between the hotel and conference/events center and a purking. facility- (‘neen Bridge Company 15
indirectly owned by certain of our dircetors. 1sle of Capri Bct!cndorf L.C; will hold CGircen Bndf,e Compiny harmless from certain future increases in

assessmients on adjacent property owned hy Green Bridge ¢ ampany, cupped ot §4,500.

23. Coinmitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases-—The Company leases real estate and various equipment under operating lease agreements: Futurc minimum payments over the lease
term of non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms of one year or mare consisted of the fol]owmg at Aprl "9 2012:

Fiscal Years Ending:

WL R e e B VT T e e ety g i e T TSE oood 18570
2014 - . e o - T 17,248 .
RN O A N TP LY S S T A I W lsdﬁ;_]
2016 . - L 8NT
R RNE AT .4_g~»m RIS I SR T6.611.]
Therafter o a 383,372

ATy

.loml min i icase; paymcms B Wi 7

A SE w T "4:;971'7(,}_'}"
Rent expense from continuing operations was $28,557, $27,41 I and $25, 979 in ﬁscal years-2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Such amaunts inchide

comingent renials of 53,655, 54,129, and $4,259 in fiscal veais "012. 011 and "010 fespectivily. Cummacm rend 18 based upon casino revendes or other
metrics as defined in our lease agreemenis. Certain of our leases are suhjem to renewals and may contain escalation ‘elaiises.

Development Projecis—Construction i proceeding ahead of. sehedule for owr 1le Cusine Capé Girandeau development. We afticipate Opening by
November 1, 2012, subject to regulatory approvals. We currently estimate the cost of the  project ut approxiniately $135,000 and have incurred capitat
expenditures, incinding capitalized interest, of $49,900 10 date, mdudmg current year capn.nl expenditures of 334, 935

Qur proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was SElected by the ]iennsylvauia Gaming Control Board to receive the final resort gaming license-in
Pennsylvania in April 201 I, This award has been appealed to the Pennsylvania Supreme Court by another. applicant. We have a development and management
agreemieit With Nemacolin Woodlands Subject 1o a'successful ruling i the appeal, we expect 10 complese construction of the facility within approximately
nine monlhs afier commencing eonsiruction,’ We currenily estimate the cost of the project at approximately $50, 000 To date, we ha\'C incurred capital
expenditures, including eapitalized interest, of $996, including $721' in tiscal 2012. The timing of additional slgmftam cxpendlmrcs is dependent upon
resolusion of the appeal.

Legal and Regulalory Proceedings—We and onr wholly-owned' subsidiary, Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi ("RCM™), are defendants in g lawsuit
filed in the Cirensi Count of Adams County, Mississippi by Silver Land, Ang., alleging breach of contract in éonnection with our 2006 sale of casine openations
in Vicksburg, Mississippi, o a third party. In January 201!, the court ruted in favor of Silver
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- ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounis)
23-. Commitments anr_l Contingencics (Conlinu;fd)

Land and in Septémber 2011 the court awarded damages of $1,979. We filéd-a'notice of appeal in November 2011. While the autcome of this matter is still in
doubt and cannoi be predicted with any degree of certainty, we have acerued-an estimated liability'including interest, of $2,042 in fiscal 201 2. We intend to
continie a vigorous and appropriate appeal of this judgment.

Oui wholly owned subsididry, Lady Luck Gaming Curporauun and sevcml_]um: Veirture puriners hive been’defendants in the Greek Civil Courts and the
Greek ‘Adniinistrative Courts in similar lawsuits brought by the céuntry of Grecce. The actions allege that the defendants failed to “make specified payirents in
connection with the gaming license bid process for Patras, Greece. Allhoug,h it is difficult 1o dt,tt‘.nnmr., the damages being sought from the lawsuits, the action
may seelk damages up ta that aggregate amount plus interest from the date of the ; action.

kn thie Civil Court lawsuit, the Civil Court of First Instance yuled in our.favor and dismissed the lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed to the Civil Appeal
Caun and, in 2003, the Coust rejected the appeal. Greece then appeuled to the Civil'Supreme Court and, in- 2007, the Supreme Court ruled that the. matter was
not propcrly before the Civil Courts'and should be before the Administative Court.

In the Administrative Court lawsuit, the Adriinistrative Court of First LiStance J'C_jt.cled the lawsnit stating that it was not competent to lear the mater.
Gieece.then appeated tiy the” ‘Administrative Appml Couit, which count rqct,u,d the appeal'in ‘2003, Greece then sppeiled to the Stpreme Administrative.
Céurt, which remanded the matter back 1o the Admlnlstratlw ‘Appeal Couit for a-hearing on the merits. The re-hearing wook place in 2006, and in "003 the
Administrative Appeal Count rejected’ Grecee's appeal on procedural grouhds. On December 22, 2008 and Junuary 23, 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the
Supreme Administrative CourL A hearing has tenatively been scheduled for Ouobcr 2012.

The outcome of this matter is still in doubt and cannol be predicted with-any degree, of certainty. We intend to continuce a vigorous and appropriate
defense 1o the clatms asseried in this marter. Through Apr:l 29, 201’ we have 'mcrued an estimated labikity, including interest, of $12,349. Qur accrual is
based upan management's cstimate of the original claim by the ptalnuffs for lost payments.-We continue to accrue interest on the asserted claim. We are
unable to estiniaie a total possible loss a8 information as 1o possible additional (.]all'llb ifany, have not been asseried or quantified by the plaintiffs at this time.

We are subject to ccmm federal, state and local environmental protiction; health and safety Jaws, segelotions and ordinances that apply to busmesses
‘generally, and are sub_}ect 10 cleanup requirements at certain of our facilities as a result thereof We have not made, and do not anticipate m.al.m}_. material
expenditures, nof do we anticipate incirring delays with respect to env ironmental :cmcdlauon or protection, However, in part becanse our present and fture
development sites liave; in some cases, been used as manufacturing facilitics ot other. facilities that generate materials that are required 10 be remediated under
environmental laws and régulations, there can be no guarantee that additional pre-existing coirditions.will not be discovered and we will not experience
material liabilities or delays. -

We ure subject o various contingencics and litigation matters and have o nuniber of uaresolved claims. Although the ultimate liability of these
contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannot be determined a1 this time, we belicve they will not have a material adverse efféct on our consalidated

tinancisl positon, results of operations or cash flows,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
SCHEDULE il—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In thoasands)

Accounts Recejvable Reserve

Balance at Charged to Deductions ~ lexn_ce:
Beginning of .Casts and fram at End
Period Year Fypenies - Reserves L of Year
¥ ear. Ended April 29, 2012 Sipecior. « o a8 aid BU0T0, 28, KT S. * 2 (21985 23507]
Y car Ended Apnl "4, 20]1 98 i, {1,043) 1,010
[FF TR AL »‘«]
5 E A ] B g TRy
Year: End(:d April 25 010 o 1400 T35 s 19351

Other Receivables Reserve

Bitlance al Charged to Deductions

L Baiance
Begmmng of Costs and from a1 End
Period Year I;\p_cnses . Rescrves _of Yedr
@ = N

Bl

¥ car Ended April 29, 2013 oo, v B B gk YRipigs2l s §Y

i At

$5att882]

-1 882

Year Ended April 24, 201 — 1,000)
I LTS ‘{ il 5"["‘“. o -
Year Ehded April 357901 0cs, = “,’jfs’ Pty ?,"'f}’z
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TTEM 9. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL D]SCLO.SU’RE
"Nnne.

I'PEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controly and Procedurey—Based on their evaluation as of' April 29; 2012, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls #nd procedures {as defined in Rules’13a:15e) and: lSd 13[::) under the Exchange Act) were effective to
ensure that the infarmation :cqu'.red to be disclosed by us in this Annual Repon was' recorded, prcx_esscd'mmmanmd and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC's niles and instnactions for Form 10-K.

. Managemenr’s Report on Internal Cuntrol ever Financial Repurting—Otr management is resporisible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
coritro] over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchangg'Act). Our management; inchiding our. Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of our intemal control over tinancial rcpomng as of April 29,2012, In’ making this assessment, our management
used the criteria st forth by the Commitice of Sponsoring Organizations of the ? Ircadway Commts:,:un i Internal Control—Lntegrated Framewuork. Our
‘management has concluded that, as of Apiil 29, 2012, our imemal control over financial reporting is effective based on these criteria. Frnst & Young LIP, an
independent registered public accounting firm; who uud ited and reported on the consolidated financial statements included in this Annuel Repor on Form 10-
K, has issucd an atiestation report on the effectiveness of the Company's interal contrd] over financial reporting as stated In their report which is included in
[tem &.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting—There have beeri o chasiges in i, internal coniréls over financial reparting during the quarter
ended April 29, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls aver financial reporting.

Inherent Limitaiions on E;[Tec"m eness af Cantrols—Our manzguncni im.luding our. Chief E'\cccuﬁ\e Ofticerand Chief Financial Officer, does not ¢xpect
that our disclosure controls apd procedures or our internal canfrols wil prevent all crrors and all fraud. A control systcm, no matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absohute, assurance that the objcctives of the v.ontrol system are met. Further, the design of a contiol system. must
reflect the fact that there are resource consiraings; and the. benefits of controls must-be considered reldmc 10 their costs: Because of the inherent limitations in
all control systems, fio evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control i issues and'instances of fraid, if any. within our company have

heen detecied.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

"None.
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PART 111
ITEM'10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

“This iteny' has been omitted from this report and is incorporated by reference 10 [sle.of Capri's definitive proxy statement 10 be filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal-year covered by this report. .

ITEM.11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This item has been omitted from this report and is incorporated by reference o isle of Capri's definitive proxy staicmenl to be flled with the ULS.
Sccurities and Exchange Commission within 120 days siter the end of the fiscal year covercd by this report.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

‘The :nformatmn required by this item relating to secunty ownership of management has béen omitted from this report and is incorporated by reference to
Isle of Capri's definitive proxy statemeni to be filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchangc Conimigsion within 120 days atter the end of the fiscal vear
covered by this Teport.

Equity Compensation Plans.  The following table provides information ahout securitics authorized for issuance under our 2009 Long-Term Stock )
Lacentive Plan for the fiscal 2012, -

{a) (h) te)
Number of securities
. remammg available for
Number of securitles ta be \\r’éighltd-mersge future issuanee undey

issued upnn exercise of exercise price ol equity compensation
outsianding opthons, nutslnndmg options, plans (exr.'!udmg Securities
Plan catedory “arnnls and rlghls \\armnls nnd rwhls reflected in colump {8))

b

Equity: compcnxanun plans apprmed A A T *
¥ - bylsecunity holders, 812 & 17 op, - i:s:- P l*"'-'l 105 uS,__)._,,!I 337 _..a._,u.«:-i 143248
Equity compensatmn plansnot - R

approved by, secumy holders o — R .
Total o 2 & St T e B WYL T a8 L33 3171437246}

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPE \l)l-..\'CE

This item has been omitted from this reportand is incorpofated by reference 1o 1sle of Capri's definitive proxy. sr.atcmcnl 10 be filed wnh the U.S,
Secorities and Exchanpe L.ommls:.;un within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

‘Thi$ item has been omitted from Lhis réport and is incorpurated by reference to T5le of Capri's definitive proxy statement 1o be filed with the .S,
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days afier the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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PART 1V

ITEM 13, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8K

The following doeuments are fited as part of this Form 10-K.

(@) Consolidated financial statements filed as pant of this repor are listed under Part il -ltem 3.

(b)  The exhibits listed on the “Index to Exhibits” are tiled with this report or incofporited by reference as'sel foith below.

Al other schedules are amitted because they are not applicable or not reqifired; or Fecause the required infonmation‘is included in the consolidated
financial statement or notes theréto. - :
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reqiirements of Section 13 or 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regisirant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ASLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

Dated: Jane 14, 2012 fst VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

Virginia M: McDowell,
Chief Executive Officer. President and
- ) Director
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchanpe Act of 1934, this feporthas been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
-registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: June 14, 2012 45/ VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

Virginia M. McDowell,
Chicf Executive Officer, President and
-Director
{Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: june 14, 2012 /s/ DALER, BLACK

Dale'R. Black,
:Chief Financial Officer
{(Principal Financiaf and Accounting

Officer)

Dated: June 14, 2012 s/ JAMES B. PERRY

JamesB. Perry,
Executive Chairman of the Board

Dated: June 14, 2012 - /s ROBERT S. GOLDSTEIN

Roben §. Goldsiein,
Vice Chairman of the Buard -

Dated: June 14, 2012 15/ W. RANDOLPH BAKER

- W. Randolph Baker,
Director

Dated: June 14, 2012 fst ALAN ). GLAZER

Alan ). Glazer,
Director
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Dated: June 14, 2012

Dated: June i4, 2012

Dated: June 14, 2012

Dated: June 14, 2012

Dated: June 14, 2012
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st JEFFREY D.GOLDSTEIN

Jef[rej( D. Goldstein,
Director

fs{ RICHARD A. GOLDSTEIN

Richard A. Goldstein,
Director

fs! GREGORY J. KOZICZ

Gregory 1. Kazicz,
Director

/= SCOTT.E. SCHUBERT

Scott E. Schubert,
Director

/SILEES. WIELANSKY

Lee S. Wielansky,
Director
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INDEX TO EXHIRITS

EXHIBIT .
NUMBER DESCRIFTION
21 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 4, 2012, by and among Golden Nugget Biloxi, Inc., 25 Buyer,
and Isle of Capri Castnos, Inc., as Seller, anid-Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (lmorpuraled by
reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 1o 1he Cuwrent Report on Form'8-K filed on March 8, 2012)
31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Ingrioration of [ske of Capri Casines, Ine. (Incorporatéd by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annval Report on'Forny: 10-K filed on June 16;2011)
32 Bylaws, as amended (Incorpora!cd by reférénce to Exbibii3:| to'the Current Report on Form 8K n!cd
on June 25, 2010)
4.1 Indenture, dated as of March 3, 2004; among Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.; the subsidiary- guarantors
named therein and U.S. Bank Naiional Association, as’ Trostee (!ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
to thie Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on May 12, 2004}
4.2 indenture, dated as of March 7, 2011, among the Company, the goaranrtors named theréin and U.S. Bank
National Association, a3 trusiee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 10 the Current Report on
Form §-K filed on March 8, 2011)
10.1 Agreement, dated January 19, 2011, by and among Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., and Mr. Jeffrey .
Goldstein, Mr. Robert 8. Goldstein, Richurd A -Goldétein-and GFIL Holdings, LLC ¢ Incorparated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 10 the Currest Repon on.Form 8-k filed on January 19, 2011)
10.2 Amendment Number One to Governance Agn:emcnt dated’ February 23, 2011, by and among Isle of
Capri Casinos, Inc., GFIL- Holdings, LL C, Jetfuy 13.Goldstein, Robert S. Goldstein and Richard A.
Goldstein [lncmpormcd oy reference 1o Exhibit 10,1 to the Quaterly Repert on Form 10-Q filed on
February 28, 20113
10.3f  Amended Casino America, Inc, 1993 Stock Option Plan (Inco’rpomwd'hy reference to the Proxy
Statement filed on August 25,.1997)
1041 Isle’of Capri Casinos, Inc. 2009 Long-Term Stock lnccmwe Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 1o the Quarterly. Report on Form 10-0 filed on December 4,-2009)
10.5f  Isle of Capri Casines, Ine. Corporate Level Incentive Compensatien Plan {incorporated by reference 1o
Exhibit 101 10 the Quarterly Report on'Form 10-Q) filed on December 3, 2010)
10.61  Isle of Capri Casinos, [nc. Deterred Bonus Plan (Incorperated by reference 1o the Proxy Statement filed
on August 13, 2000) i
10.7t  Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Deferred Bonus Plan Code Section 409A Compliance Amendment
10.8%  Iske of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s Amended and Restated Deferred Cormpensation Plan
1094 Isle of Cupri Casino, inc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan Adoption Agresment
10,10+ Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s 2005 Non-cmployee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibir 10.33 to the Quarterly Report Form 10-Q filed on March |, 2003)
10.11%  Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Non-employec Director Deferred Compensation Plan
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION.

10.12t  Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc; Medical Expense Reimbursement Pran (MERP)

1013+ Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, duted January 18, 201 i,' between Virginia M.
McDowell and Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (Incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 1o the Current
Report on Form 8-K Hled on January 18,2011)

10.14t  Emiployment Agreement dated as of December 3, 2007, between Isie of Capn Camnos Inc. and Dale R.
Black {Incorporated by reference to. Exliibit 10.1; sto the Curren Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 7, 2007)

10.15f  Amcaded and- Restated Enlployn;cnt Agreement, dated Janvary 18, 2011, between James B, Perry and
[sle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (Incorporated by reference-10 Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Repott on Form 8-K
filed on Janvary 18, 2011) ’

1016+ Emplayment Agreement, dated as of July:1,/2008, hetween Jsle of ‘Capri Casinos, Ine. and Edmund L.
Quatmann, Jr. {[ncorporaled by reference 10 Ethlblt 19.18 10 the Annual, chon on Form 10-K filed on
July 11, 2008)

10471 Isle of Capri Casinos, [nc. Employmem Ag,rc_cm_c_ril_ani;iliancc Addendum—Dale R. Black
(Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 1023 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 6,
2009) 8

10.18%  Iske of Cupri Casinos, lne. Employment Ayccmcm Compliancé Addendum—Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report onForm 10-Q filed on March 6.
2009) .

10.19f  Employment Agreement dated as of August 6, 2009, between Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Erie
tanster {Incorporated by neference 1o Exhibit 10:19 1o the Annval Report on Form 10-K/A filed on
June 8, 2010)

10.20f  First Amendment to Employment Agreemcent, dmed Las of June 18, 2011, between-isle of Capri
Casinos, Inc. and Amold Block (Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 to the Cusrent Report on
Form 8-K filed on June 29, 2011)

10211 Form Employment Agreement for Sentor Vice-Presidents of [sle of Capri Cusinos, Inc. {Incompurated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to-the Annual Report on Form 10-K: filed on July 11, 2008) )

10221 Fonn Stock Option Award Agreement (lhcorporated by reference to:Exhibit 10.20 t the Annual Repon
on Formy 10-K filed on July 11, 2008)

10.23+  Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Incosponited by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Annual
Report of form 10-K @iled on June 25, 2009)

10.241*  Form of Performance Based Restricied Stock Unit Agreement

10.25 Credit Agreement, duted as of July 26, 2007 among [sle of Capri Casinos, Inc.. the Lenders listed herein,

Credit Suisse, Cayman Island Branch as administrative agent, issuing bank and swing line lender, Credit
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, as'lead arranger and buokrunnér, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc, and

CIBC World Markets Corp., as co-syndication agents and LS. Bank, N.A. and Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as co-documentation agents (Incorparated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 1o the
Current Report on Form B-K filed on July 31,2007
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[0.26

[0.27

10.28

10.30

10.31

10.32

1033

10.34

Security Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2007, among Isle of Capri Casinos, Ine.,'its material
subsidiaries party thereto, and Credn SUIS’SB Cayman 1stands Branch, as Admmlsumnc:\gcm for and
representative of Lhe financial institutions party 1o the Credit Agreement and ‘any Hedge Providers {as
_defined therein) (Incorporated by refererice to-Exhibit 10,1 to the Current Repont on Fosm 8K filed on
July 31, 2007)

First Amendment to Credit Agrecment, dated as of February 17, 2010, among the Company, as
borrower, the financial institutions listed theséin, as lenders, Credit Snisse AG, Caymnn tslands Branch,
as administrative agent and the othicr agents refeffed 1o'therein améng Isle of Capii Casinos, Inc., the-
Lenders listed 1hcw;m_(lncorpo_ralcd by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to the Current Report on Form 8 K
filed on February 29, 2010)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of March, 25, 2011, among lsle'of Capn

Casines, Inc.; as borrower, certain subsidiaries of Iske of Capri Casinos, Iic., the findncial institutions
listed therein, as. lenders, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as admiinistrative agent (ag'successor
to Credit Sutsse- AG, Cayman tslandds Branch (Ok/a Credit Suisse. Ca}man Islands Branch)), and the
other agents referred to therein (Incorporated by reference’to Exhibit 10.1. to the Curremt Repon on
Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2011)

Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease dated May 12, 1986 with-Paint Cadet Developiment Corporation
{Biloxi) (Incomporated by reference to an exhibit 1o the Annial Report on Form 10-K for the fiseal year
ended April 30, 1992)

Addendum to Lease Agreement, dated August 1, 1992, betwecn the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, Point
Cader Development Corporation (Biloxi) { lncnrporated by reference to an exhibit to the Annual Repont
on Form 10:K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1992}

Second Addendum to Lease, dated Apiil g, 1994, by and between the City of Biloxi, Missis§ippi, Poim
Cadet Dcvc]opmem Corporation, the Biloxi Port Commission and Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi
(BI!OXI) (Incorporated by refercncc to an exhibit 10 the Annual Reportan Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 1994)

Third Addendum to Cusino Lease, dated April 26, 1995, by and between the City of Biloxi, Mississippi,
Poim Cadet Development Camoration, the Biloxi’ Port Commission and Rnerboat Corporation of
Mississinpi {Bilexi) (Incomnrated by reference 1o an exhibit to the"Anaual Report on Farm-10-K for the
- figeal year ended April 30, 19935) )

Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease dated as of April 9, 1994 by.and between the City of Biloxi, Mississippi
and Riverboat Corporu!ion of Mississippi {Biloxi) (Incorporated by refierence to an exhibit ta the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiseal year ended April 30, 1994)

First Amendment to Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease (lotel Lease), dated as'of April 26, 1995, by and
between Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the
Aanual Report an Form 10-K for the fiscal yedr ended April 30, 1995)

Point Cadet Compromise and Sctilement Agreement, dated Augist 15, 2002, by and between the
Secretary of State of the State of MlSSlSSIppJ ‘the City of Biloxi, MISS]SSIppI., the Board of Trustees of
Suate Institutions of Higher Learning und tsle of Capri Cadinos, Ine. and Riverboat Corporation of
Mississippi {Biloxi} {(Incomporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on July 30, 2007)
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10.36

10.37

1038

10.39

10.40

T10.41

10.42

10.43

10.94

10.45

1146

Biloxi Waterfront Project Garage-Podium Leasc and Eas:,mcm dated as of August 13, 2002, by and
between the Secretary of State of the Statc of Mississippi, the Cllv of Biloxi, Mississippi, the Board of
Trustees of State Insumnons ‘of Higher Learnmg and Iste of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Riverboat
Corporation of Mississippi (Blloxl) (lncmporatcd by reference ta Exhibit. 10.30 to the Annual Report on
Form 10-K fited on July 34, 2007)

Amended and Restated Berth Renta) Agreément dated May 12; £992 between the Biloxi Port
Commission and Riverboat Corpom!lon OfMIS.':ISSlppl (Bllu‘(l) (lncnrporalcd by referénce 10 an exhibit
to the Annuai Report on Form 10:K: Tor the tiscal year ended April 30, ]99")

Second Amenditent to Berth Rental- Agrcenn.m duted-August 13;1996; (i) Third Amendment to.Berth
Rental Agreement dated Decémber 14, 1999 and’ (111) Létter Agreement to Berth: Rental Agreement daied
Qctober 17; 2006 (Bllmu) (Incorporatcd by reference 1§ Exhibit 1032 1o the Annual Reporn on Form .10~
K fited on July 30, 2007) - R
Agréement on Casino Berth Tract dated ag of August:15, 2002, State consented 1o dredging, wharfing
and filling by Isle of areas to n:conf'gurc Berth Tract to accommodatc a farger gaming vessel {Biloxi)
(incorporated by féference to Kxhibit 10.33 to the Annisal Report on Form™10-K filéd on July 30, 2007)

Amendedand Restated Lease, dated as of April19, 1999, among, Port Resources. Inec. and CRU, inc., as
landlnrds and Si. Charles Gaming Cnmpany, Inc, as’ tena.m (St Charics) (Incorporated by refencnee 1o
Exhibit 10.28 to'the Annual Report on-Form 10- I( tﬂcd on July 02 , 1959)

Lease of property in.Coahoma, M hsslssmpl dated s of November 16, ‘993 by and among Roger Allen
Johnson, Jr., Charles Bryant Johnson and \4agno]1a Lady, Tine. (anorpnra:cd by rcfercncc to the
Registration Staternent on'Form 8 41A filed June’19,2002)

Addendum to Lease dated as of Juic:22,:1994 by and smang Rog::_r";\l]cn Johnson, Jr., Charles Bryant
Johnsan and Magnelia Lady, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to'Exhibit [0.46 to the Annual Report on

Form 10-K-filed on July 28, 2000)

Second addendim 1o Leasc dated as of October.17,- 1995 by-and among Roger Allen Johnson, Jr.,
Chasles Bryani Johinson and Magnolm Lady, Ine..(Incorporated by reference to I:xh]bn 10.47 to the
Annual'Report on Farm, 10K filed ons !uly 28, 2000},

Master, Lease between The City.of Boonville, Missouri and ‘1OC-Boonville, Inc. formally known as
Davis Gaming Boonville, lnc. dated as of July 18 .1997. {incoporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July i1,2008)

Amendment to Master Lease between The Clty of Boonw]le, Missouri and [OC-Boonville, Inc. formally
known as Davis Gaming Boonvite, Inc: datcd as of April 19, 1999. (lncorpomlcd by reference to
Exhibit 1041 to the Annual’ Repon ofi Form1 0-K: filed on .luly 11, 2008)

Second Amendment 10 Masier Lease between The City of Boanville, Missouri and 1QC-Roonville, Inc.
formerly known as Davis Gamm;._. Beonville, Inc. d:m:d as of September:17, 2001. .{Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.42 1o the Annual Reéport on l—mm L0:K, filed on July 11, 00‘4)
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10.47 Third Amendment to Master Lease between. The City of Boonville, Missouri and 10C-Boonville; Inc.
formerly known as Gold River's Boonv:]ic Reésont, Ine. and Davis Gammg Bounv:]]e Inc. dated as of
November 19, 2001, {Incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 10.43 1o the Annual Repcn on Form 10-K
filed on July 11, 2008)

10.48 Amended and Restated Lezse Agreement by and betiveen the Port Authorily of Kansas City, Missouri
and Tenant dated as of August 21, 1993 {Incomaorated by ceferenee ta Exhibit't3.44 ta the Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed June 23, 2009}

10.49 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease Agreement | by and between lhe Port Authority of
Kansas City, Missouri and Tenant dated as of October 31, 1995 {Lncorporated by Teference to
Exhibit 10.45 to the Annual Report on Form'10:K mcd Jiine25, 2()09)

10.50 Second Amendment to Amended and Ru.l.:[cd Legse Agreement by and. bctwecn the Port Authority of
l(ansas City, Mlssnun and Tenam dated as ufJunc 10, 1996 {Incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 10.46
1o the Anmual Report on ¥orm 10-K filed June 25, 2009)

10.51 Assngnmcm and Assumpllon Agreemcm (Leate Agreement) between ‘Flamingo't Hmon Riverboat
Casino, LP, Isle ofCapn Casmos Inc. and 1QC-Kansas’ Clry, [nc. dated as ofJune 6 2000,
(Incorporated by reference 10 Exhiibit.10.44 to the Annual Réport én Form 102K filed on July 11;-2008)

10.52 Lease dnd Agreement- Spring 1993 between Andrianikos I imited 1 iability Company.and [sle of Capri
Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of Augist15, 1995 {Incomporaicd by, reference to Exhibit 10.45 to.the
Annbal Report on Form 10:K filed on July 11, 2008)

10.53 Addendum to the Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 betiveés Andrianakos Limited Liability Company-
and lste of Capri Blch Hawk, LLC. dated as of April 4, 19%6: (incorporated by reference 1o
Exhitsit 10:46 1o the Arniual Repan onFoimi10-K filed on July 17T, 2008)

10.54 Second Ad‘dendl;m to the Lease and:Agrecment-Spring 1995 betiveen Andrianakos Limited Liability
Company ind Isle'of Capti Black Llawk, LLC: duted as of March 21, 2003.(Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.47 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K fled on July 1 1, 2008)

10.53 Third Addendum 10 the. I ease and-Agreement-Spring.1 995 between ;\ndnanakm Limited [iability
Company and Isle of Capri Black Hawk, L. LC. dated’as of April 22, 2003. (Incorporated by reference 1o
Exhibit 10.48 {o the Annual Report on'Form IQ-K filed'on-July 11, 2008)

14,36 Uevelupment Agreement by and bétween 1OC-Cape Girardeau, LLEC and the City.of Cape Girardeau,
Missouri dated as of October 4, 2000 (Incorporated by reference to-Exhibit 18.2 io the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed on December 3, 2010)

211 Significant Subsidiaries of [ste of Capri Casinos, Inc.

23.1*  Consem of Emst & Young LLLP

3i1*  Cenification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant w Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934

31.2*  Centification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 10 Rule 13a-14(a) under.the Securities Exchange Act of
1034

321+ Cenification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350

32.2*  Cenification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350
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99,1+

101+

Description of Govermmental Regulation.

The following financial statements and notes from the Isle ofCaprl Casinos, Inc. Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the vear ended April 29, 2012, filed on June 14 2012, formatted in XBRL.: (1)
Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii} Consolidated Statements ofOperatmm (:11) Consnhdaled Smtements
of Stockholders' Equity; (iv) Conselidated Statements ofCash Flows: and (v) Notes.to Consohdaled

Financial Statemenis, tigged as blocks of text,

* Filed herowith,

t Management contract of compensatory plan or arrangement,
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Exhibit 10.24
PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
2009 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

This Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (this "Agreemend”), cntered into as of (the "Grant
Date"), by and between (the "Participant”) and lsle of Capd Casinus, Inc. (the "Company™).

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Corapany maintains the Isle of Capri Casines, Inc. 2009 Long-Term [ncentive Plan (as may be amended
from time to time, the "Plan™), which is mcorporatt.d mto and forms a part of this Agreefmdnt; and the Participant has been selected by
the committee admmlslenng the Plan (the "Committée™) to receive 3 Full Value Award under the Plan in the form of a Restricted Stock
Unit Award (as defined in paragraph 1 below) under the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED, by and between thé Company and the Participant as follows:

L. Award. The Company hereby grants to the Participant, and the Participant hereby accepts, an award of restricted
stotk units ("Resiricted Stock Units™) with threshold, target and maximum numbers of . ,and . respectively (the
"Restricted Stock Unit Award"), Each Restricted Sxock Unit represents-the right to receive one share of Stock (or its cash-equivalent as
provided in paragraph 3(c)(iv) below), upon the termis and subject to the conditions set forth.in the Plan and this Agreement and,
except as provided in paragraph 3(c)(iv) below, the Restricied Stock Units which becoriie vested and payable under this Agreement
will be paid to the Participant solely in shares of Stock (subject to payment of any fractional share in cash as described herein).

2, Rights as Stockholder, Except as otherwise provided herein, the Participant shall not have any rights of a
stockholder with respect to the Restricted Stock Units.until shares of Stock are distributed to-him or her in settlement of such
Restricted Stock Units,

3. Determination of Number of Restricted Stock Units that may be Earned; Vesting; Payment.
(2) Determination of Numbher of Restricted Stock Units that may be Earned.
(i) Except as provided in subparagraph (if) below or otherwise in tliis subparagraph (i), the number

of Restricted Stock Units that may be carned by the Participant-(the "Earnable Restricted Stock Units") shali be determined as of the
Measurcment Date and shall be equal to the number set forth on the chart included as Exhibit A (th "Stock Price Chart") based on the
Companys correspending 90-Day Stock Price, interpotated on'a lincar basis berween the levels of corresponding 90-Day Stock Prices
set forth in the Stock Price Chart, reduced by thie Committee.'if at all and in its sole discretion, only by applying the TSR Factor.




Notwithstanding the foregeing, in the event that the Paicipant's Date of Termination oceurs prior to the Measurement Date due to
(A) termination by the Company without Cause or (B) the Participant's dt,d!h Disability or Retirement, the number of Earnable
Restricted Stock Units shall be determined in accordance with-the foregoing provisions of this. subpdmgraph (i) (including after
application of the TSR Factor) multiplied by a fraction (not excecding:one (1)), the numerator of.which shall be the number of
¢alendar days during the Measorement Period prlOl’ to and including the Participant's Datc of Termination and the denominator of
which shall be the total number of catendar days in the Measurement Period.

(it) In the event of the cccurrence of a Change in Coiitrol on or prior to the Measurernent Date, the
number of Restricted Stock Units that may be cared by the Partic¢ipant (the "CIC Earnable Restrictéd Stock Units") shall be determined
as of the date of the Change in Control and shali be equal to the number set forth on the Stock Price Chart based on the corresponding
Change in Control Price, interpolated on a linear basis between the levels of corresponding Change in Control Prices set forth in the
Stock Price Chart. The number of CIC Earnable Restricted Stock Units shall not be subject to'reduction based on .application of the
TSR Factor. wallthslandmg the foreguing, in the event that the Participant'’s' Date of Termination accurs priar to a Change in
Control due to (A} termination by the Company without Cause {other than a termination without Cause that occurs within thirty’ (30)
days pnor to such Change in Comrol) or (B) the Patticipant's death; Dlsablllty or Retiremerit, the number of CIC Earnable Restricted
Stock Units shall be determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this subparagraph (i) multiplicd by a fraction (not
exceeding one (1)), the sumerator of which shall be the nuiber of colendar days duning the-Measurément Period prior to-and
including the Participant's Date of Termination and the denominitor of which shall be the total number of talendar days-in the
Meisurement Period. In the event the PdruClpdms Date of']‘ermmatlun oceurs as a'result of the Participant's termination of
cmployment without Cause or “for Good Reason, in each case which vccurs within thirty (30} days prior to a Change in Control, the
Panticipant will be entitled 10 the CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units determined in auordame with the first sentence of this
subparagraph (i) without any reduction based on .1pph(_at|0n of the TSR Factor or reduction based on application of the immediately
preceding sentence.

(i) In no event shall the number.of Earnable Restricted 'Stock Units or CIC Earnable Restricted Stack
Units, as applicable, exceed the maximum numbér permitted-by-the Plan. Any determination by the Committee as to the sumber of
Eamnable Restricted Stock Units'or CIC Eamnable Restricted Stock Units, as tipplicable, shall be final and binding.

(v) The occurrence of a Change in:Control foilowing the Measurement Date shall not have any effect
on the determination of the number of Earnable Restricted Stock Units or the vesting or payment schedule thereof.
(b) Vesting of Earnable Restricted Stock Units and Earnable CIC Restricted Stock Units.
0] (A) Fifty pereent(50%) of the’ Earnable Restricted Stock Units shall become immediatcly vested

as of the Measurement Date and (B) the remaining fifty percent.(50%) of the Eamable Restricted Stock Units shall become vested
upon the one-year anniversary of the Measurement Date provided that the Participant's Date of Termination does not occur

2’ ) -




prior to such one-year anniversary other than due to (1) termination by the Company without Cause or (11) the Panticipant’s death,
Disability or Retirement.

(i) (A) Fifty percent (50%) of the CIC Earnable Restiicted Stock Units shall become immediately
vested upon a Change in Control and (B) the remaining fi ifty percent (30%) of the CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units shall become
vested upon the one-year anniversary of such Change in Control provided that the Participant's Date of Terminatien does not occur
prior to such one:year anniversary other than due to (1) termination. by the Company without Cause, (IT) the Pamupam $ death,
Disability or Retirement, or {LI) the Participant's voluntary termm'mon of employment for Good Reason during thie lime period
spf:cmed in’paragraph 18(1))

() Payment of Restricted Stock Units,

(i) (A) The fifry percent (50%) of the.Eamable Restricted Stock Units that have vested on the
Measurement Date in accordance with paragraph (b) and that have not been forfeited shall be paid to the-Participant within sixty (60)
days following the Measurement Date, and (B) the remaining fifty percent: (50%) of the Earnablc Restricted Stock Units that have
vested on the one-year anniversary of the Measurement Date in accordance with paragraph (b)and that have not been forfeited shall .
be paid to the Participant within sixty (60) days following the one:ycar anniversary of the Measurement Date.

(it} if a Change in Control oceurs, except as provided in subparagraph (i) below, (A) the fifty
percent (50%) of the CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units that have vested:on the Change in Control-in accordance with paragraph
(b) and that have not been fdrfeited shall be paid o the Participani Within sixty (60) days following the Measurement Date, and (B) the
remaining fifty percent (50%).0f the CIC Earnable Réstricted Stock: Units that have vested on the one year anniversary of the Change
in Control in accordance with paragraph (b) and that have not been forfeited shall be paid to the. Paruc:pam within sixty (60) days
following the one-year:anniversary of the Measurement Date.

(ii1) If a Change in Control occurs and provided | that the Change in Control also constitutes a.change
in control event pursuant to Treasury Regulations section 1.409A- 3(1)(5)(\«’) (a "409A CIC"), (A) the fifty percent (50%) of the CIC
Earnable Restricted Stock Units that have vested on the Change in Control in.accordance with paragraph (b)-and that have not been
forfeited shall bie paid to the Participant within sixty (60) days.following the date ofthe 409A CIC, and (B) the. remaining filty pereent
{50%) of the CIC Eamnable. Restricted Stock Units that-have vésted on the one-year anniversary of the (.hange in Conwrol'in
accordance with paragraph (b) and that have not been forfeited shall be.paid-to the Participant within sixty (60) days following the
one-year anniversary of the 409A CIC.

(M AIICIC Earnable Restricted Stock Units thar have vested in accordance with paragraph {(b) and
that have not been forfeited shall be payable solely in cash: The amount of cash payable in respect of vested CIC Earnable Restricted
Stock Units shall be based on the Change in'Control Price. In-addition, all Eamable Restricted Stock Units that have vested in
accordance with paragraph (b) and'that have not been forfeited shall be paid in cash

- 3




based un the Change in Control Price if a Change in Control oceurs before payment isimade. for such vesred Earnable Resuricted Stock
Uuits.

4. Termination_of Employment. Upon the Participant's Date of Termination that results from termiaation of
employment of the Participant for any reason other than (i) the Participant’s termination of employment by the Company without
Cause; (ii) the Panticipant's death, Disability or Retirement or (iii) the Participant's termination of employment for Good Reason
durmg the time period specified in paragraph 18(i); the Participant shall forfeit any then unvested Restrictéd!Stock Units and such
Restricted Stock Units will terminate for no value,

5. Adjustments to Shares. In the event of a corporate transaction involving the Company (including, without
limitation; any stock dividend, stock split, extraordinary. cash dividend, recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-
up, spin-off, combination or exchange of shares), the Committee shall adjust the Restricted Stock Unit Award (including any Eamable
Restricted Stock Units and CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units) to preserve the benicfits or potential benchis thereof by adjusting the
gumber and kind of share$ subject to the Restricted Stock Unit Award, the price and kind of sharés used in determining the 90-Day
Stock Price, and the price and kind of shares used in calculating the’ Companys TSR. Nothing herein is‘intended to limit the
Committee's discretion to make adjustments pursuant to the terms of Scction 4.3 of the Plan (or any successor théreto).

6. Section 409A. Tt is intended that the provisions of this Agreement comply with scction 409A of the Code; and all
provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and: interpreted in 2 manner consistent with the requirements of section 409A of the
Code. No changes shall be made to the Restrictéd Stock Unit Award, including but not limited to the payment dates set forth in
paragraph 3(c), tinless such changes comply With section 409A of thé Code and the regulations thereunder.

7. Complianée with Applicable Laws: Limits on Distribution.

(a) Compliance.with Securities L'awe [f the Participant is SubjCCl to.Section 16(a) and 16(b) of the
Exchanwc Act, the Committce may, at any time,,add-such conditions.and hmltanons to any of the Restricted Stock:-Units (or the shares
of-Stock upon payment of the Resiricted Stock Unit Award) as the Committee, in its sole discretion, deems necessary or desirable to
comply with Section 16(a) or 16(b) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder or to obwm any éxemption
therefrom.

(b) Certificates: Cash in Lieu of Fractional Shares. To the extent that the Plan or this Agreement provides
for issuance of cenificates to reflect the payment of the Restricted Stock-Unit Award, the transfer of such shares may be effected on a
non-certificated basis, to the ¢Xtent not prohibited by applicable law or the rules of any securities exchange or. similar entity. In licu of
issuing a fraction of a share.of Stock pursuant to the Plan or this Agreement, the Company imay pay to the Participant an amount equal
to' the Fair Market Value of such fractionat share.




(©) Lock-Up Period. The Participant hereby agrees that, if so requested by the Company or any
representative of the underwriters (the "Managing Underwriter™) in conneetion wuh any-régistration of the offenng ofany securitics of
the Company under the Securitiés Act of 1933, as amendéd (the "Securities Act™), the Participant shall not sell or otherwise transfer any
Stock or other securities.of the Company durmg the 180-day period, or siich other pertod as may be requested in writing by the
\danagmg Underwriter and agreed to in writing by the Lompany (the "Market Standoff Perivd") foHowmg the effective date of a
registration statement of the Company filed under the Secunities Act. Such restriction shall apply only to the first registration
statement of the Company to become effcctive under the Securities Act that includes sccurities to be sold on behalf of the Company to
the public in an underwritten public offering under the Securities-Act. The Company may- impose stop-transfer instructions with
respect to securities subject to the foregoing restrictions uitil the end of such Market Standoff Period.

8. Withholding. The grant, vesting and payment of the Restricted Stock Unit- Award under this Agreement shall be
slibject to withholding of ail applicable taxes. Such withholding obligations shall be satisfied through the surrender of shares of Stock
or the deduction of ¢ash payments to which the P'tmc:lpam is otherwise entitled under the Plan; provided, however, that such sharcs
may be used.to satisfy not more than the Company's minimum statutory withholding obligation (based on miniinum statutory
withholding rates for Federal and state tax purposes, including pavroll taxes, that are appllcable to such supplemental taxable income).

9. Nontransferability. Neither the Restricted Stock Units nor any interest of right lhcrem or part thereof may be sold,
assigned, transferred, pledged or OIhCI'W‘lSC encumbered in any manner otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent or distribution.

i0. Heirs and Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upun, and inure to the benefit of the Company and its
successors and assigns, and upon any person acquiring, whether by.merger, consolidation, purchasc of assets or otherwisc, all or
substantially all of the Company's assets and business. If any rights exercisable by the Parti icipant or benefits deliverable to the
Participant under this Agreement have not been-exercised or delivered, respectively; at the time ‘of the Participant's death, such rights
shall be exercisable by the Designated Beneficiary, and such b_eucﬁls_thI] be delivered to the Designated Beneficiary, in accordance
with the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan.

11 Administration: The authority to manage and control the operation and administration of this Agreement shall be
wvested in the Committee, and the Committee shall havé all powers with respect to this Agreement as.it has with respect to the Plan.
Any interpretation of the Agreement by the Committee and any decision made by it with respect to thie Agreement is final and binding
orrail persons.

12, Plan Governs. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the terms of this Agreement shall be
subject to the terms of the Plan, a copy of which may be obtained by the Participant from the office of the Secretary of the Company
and this Agreement is subject to all interpretations, amendments, rules and regulations promulgated by the Committee, from time to
time pursuant to the Plan,




13. Not An Employment Contrict or-Contract of Continued Service. The grant of Restricted Stock Units pursuant
to this Agreement will not confer on the Participant any right with respect to continuance of employmmt or other service with the
Company or any Affiliate, nor will it interfere in any way with any right the Company or any Affiliatc would otherwise have to
termintate or modify the terms of such Participant's employment or olh(_r service at any time.

14, Amendment. This Agreement may be amended in accordance with the provisions of thé Plan and may otherwisc
be amended by written agreemcent of the Participant aiid the Company without the consent of any other person.

15. Severability. The invalidity or uncnforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or

enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement and each other provision of this Agreement shall be severable and enforccable
1o the extent permitied by law.

16. Applicable Law. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the Staic of
Delaware, without regard to the conflict of law provisions of any jurisdiction.

17. Entire Agreement. The Plan-and this Agrecment constitute all of the terms with respect to the subject matter
hercof and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the Company and the Participant with respect 1o the
subject matter hereof, including but not limited any ¢employment agreement between the Participant and the Company.

18. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, words and phrases used in this Agrecment shall be defined as
follows: :

(a) 90-Day Stock Price. The term "98-Day Stock Price” means, the average of the closing market prices of the

Stock on the principal exchange on whlch the stock-is traded for the mnety (9m calendar day penod ending with the Measurement
Date.

)] Beginning Price. The term "Beginning Prive” means the average of the closing market prices of a
company's common stock on the principal exchange oa which such stock is traded for the nincty (90) calendar day period ending with
the first day of the Measurement Period.

(c) Cause. The tefm "Cause” shall mean any (i) dishonesty, disloyalty or.breach of corporate policies, in each
casc that is material to the ability of the Participant to continue to function 4s din effective executive given the strict regulatory
standards of the industry in which the Company.does busingss; (ii)-gross.misconduct cn the part of the Participant in the performance
of the Participant's duties (as determined by the Board); (i) the Participant's termination for cause under-pursuant to the terms of his
or her employment agreement with the Company, (iv) if applicable; the Participant'é failare to be licenscd as z key person' or simjlar

rol¢ under the laws of any jurisdiction where the Coinpany does business, or the loss of any such license for any reason, or (v) the
Participani's repeated poor performance.
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In order to terminate for Canse pursuant to subparagraphs (i)-(iv) above with respeet to an event or circumstance
that may be cured during a ten (10) day peniod, the Boadd must give the Participant advance written notice of the event or
circumstance giving rise to the Company's ability to:terminate thc Partictpant's employmient for Cause and a ten (10} day period
following the daté of the written notice to.cure such event or circumstance to the Board's reasonable satisfaction. In order to terminate
for Causc under subparagraph (v) above, (x) the Board must give the Part:cnp'mt advance written netice of the repeated poor
performancc setting forth the specific details of the poor performance and a minety (90) day period following the date of the written
notice to cure such poor performance to the Board's reasonable’ bdtlHﬁtLIlUﬂ and (y) such termination must oceur prior to the first to
oceur of the Measurement Date or-a Change.in Control.

(d) Change in Control Price. The term "Change in Control Price” shall mean the highest price per share of
Stock paid in a transaction or event that results in a-Change in Control.

(c} Date of Termination. The tcrm "Date of Termination” means, the first day occurring on or after the Grant
Date on which the Participant is-not employed by the Company or.any Affiliate, rcgardless of the reason for the termination of
employment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a termination of employment shall not be deemed to occur by reason of a transfer of thé
Participant between the Company and an Affiliate or berwceri two Affiliates, and the-Participant's employment shall not be considered
terminated while the Participant 15 on a leave of abscnce from the Company or an Affiliate approved by the Board.

(N Designated Beneficiary. The'"Designated Beneficinry” shall be the beneficiary or bencficiaries designated
by the Participant in a writing filed with the Committee in such-form and at such time as the Committee shall require. If a deceased
Participant fails to designate a bencficiary, or if the Designated Beneficiary does not survive the Participant, any rights that would
have been cxcrcmablt. by the Panticipant and any benefits distributable to the Participant shall be cxercised by or distributed tothe
iegal representative of the estate of the Participant. Ifa deccased Pamc:lpam designates a beneficiary and the Designated Beneficiary
survives the Participant but dies before the Designated Benefi iciary’s excreise of all rights under this Agreement or before the complete
distribution of benefits to. the Designateéd Beacficiary under this A gru,mcnt then any nghts that would have been exercisable by the
Designated Bencficiary shall be exercised by the legal representative of the estate of the Designated Beneficiary, and any bencfits
distributable to the Designated Beneficiary.shall be distributed to the legal representative of the cstate of the Designated Bencficiary.

(2) Disability. The Participant shall be decmed to have a "Disubility" if, by rcason of a medically-determinable
physical or mental impairment that can'be expected to result in death-or tolast for a continuous period of at least twelve (12) months,
(i) the Participant is unable to-engage in any substantial gainful employment, or (i) has been recciving benefits the Company's
separate long-term disability plan for a peried of at least thrée months. The Board shall certify whether the Participant has-a Disability
as defined herein.

(h) Ending Price. The term "Ending Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a company's
common stock on the principal ¢xchange on which such




stock is traded for the ninety (90) calendar day period ending with the Tast day of the Measurement Peniod, or if applicable, for the
ninety (90) calendar day period ending with the Last Trading Day.

(1) Good Reason. The Participant's terinination shall be considered to be for "Good Reason" if the Participant
terminates his or her employment with the Company within thirty (30) days prior the occurrence of 2 Change tn Control or upon or
within twelve (12) moaths after a Change in Controt following (i) a significant reduction’in the Participant’s authority, respousibilities,
position-or compensation or (i) a-material relocation of the. principal place at which the Participant performs services for the
Company, but in no event less than thirty-five (35) miles from the principal place at which the Participant performs such services
immediately prior to the Change in Control, .in either casc-which-the Company has failed to remedy within thirty (30) days after
receipt of the Participant's written notice thercof,

)] Last Trading Day. The term "Last Trading Day” shall mean the last day on which the stock of a Non-
Public Pecr Group Company (as defined n subparagraph (p)(ii) betow) is publicly traded.

(k) Measurement Date. The term "Measurement Date™ shall mean April 26, 2015.

)] Measurement Period. The term "Measurement Period” means the period commencing on the Grant Date

and ending on the Mcasurcment Date.

(m) ‘Peer Group Companies. The térm "Peer Group Companies” means Ameristar Casinos, Inc.; Boyd Gamiog
Corporation, Penn National Gaming, Inc., Pianacle Entertainment, Inc., and MTR Gaming Group, Inc.

(n) Retirement. The term "Retirement” shall mean the termination by a Participant of his employmem after
attaining age sixty-five (63) and completing at least three (3} years of service with the Company or its Affiliates.

(o) TSR, The term "TSR" means compound annual total stockhelder retum of a company and shall be
determined by dmdmg (i) the sum of (x) the Ending Price less the Beginning Price plus (v) all dividends and other distributions paid
on such company's common stock during the’ Measurcment Period (or the period commencing on the Grant Date and ending on the
Last Trading Day, if applicable) by (ii) the Beginning Price: Any non-cash distributions paid on such company’s common stock during
the Measurement Period shall be ascribed such dollar value as may . be determined by or at the discretion of the Committee.

(p) TSR Factor. ™I'SR Factor™ shall be determined-as follows after giving cffect to subparagraphs (i)-
(ii)) below: If, as of the Measurement Date, the Company's TSR ranks last among the TSRs of the Company aad the Pecr Group
Companies and (x)} the Company's 90-Day. Stock Pricé is Icss than $11. 00, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, reduce the
number of otherwise Earnable Restricted Stoek Units to any number but not below zero (0) or (¥) the Compariy's 90-Day Stock Price
l; $11.00 or greatcr, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, reduce the number of Eamable Restricted Stock Units by up to seventy-
ve percent.




(i) {fthe common stock of any company included n the Peer Group Companies ceases ta be publicly
traded during the Measurement Period on or prior 1o November 1, 2013, such company shall be éxc¢uded from thie final TSR Factor
calculation.

(i) If the common stock of any company. mcluded in the Peer Group Companies ceases to be
publicly traded during the Measurement Period after November 1. 2013 (2 "Non-Poblic Peer Group Company™), for purposes of
determining the Company's TSR as compared to such Non- Pliblié Peer Group Company's TSR, the TSRs of bolh such companies
shall be measured as of the Last Trading Day of the .ipplnab]e Non-Public Pecr Group Comp.my

(1) If; as of the Measurement Datc, the number ofcumpdmes remaining in the Pecr Group
Compdmcs is fewer than three due to the application of subparagraph (i) above, in lieu of measuring the Company's TSR against the
TERs of the Peer Group Ccmpamcs the TSR Factor shall be determined based on the Company's TSR percentile ranking among the
TSRs for the companies comprising the. Russetl 2000 Index as follows: I, as of the Measurement Date, the Company's TSR
percentile ranking among the TSR for the companies comprising, the: Russcll 2000 Index as of the Mcasurement Date i is in the bottom
quartile of the Russell 2000 Index, and (A) the Company's 90-Day Stock Price is less than $11.00, the Comunittee may,lin its sole
discretion; reduce the number of Earnable Restricted Stouk Units to’any bumber but not below zero (0) or (B) the Company's 90-Day
Stock Price is $11.00 or greater, the’Committee may, in'its sole discretion, reduce the number of Earnable Restricted Stock Units by
up to seventy-five percent.

Q) Plan Definitions. Except where the context clearly implies or indicates the coatrary, a word, term, or
phrase used in the Plan is simalarly used in this Agreement..




_ IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Compony has cansed these presents to be executed in its name and on its bebalf, all as of the
Grant Date,

Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.

By:

Its: Chief Executive Officer

By accepting this Agrecement; the Participant-acknowledges that he or she has received and read, and agrees that this
Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be subject to, the terms of this-Agrecment and Pian.

Name of Participant
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SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES OF ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent oflndcp-endenl Registered Puﬁlic Accounting Firm
Woe consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statcmcnts-:
(€3] Registration Stateruent (Form $-3 No. 333-160326) of Iste of Capri Casinos, [nc.,

{2) chisn"ation'Statcment (Form S-§ Nos.-33-61752, 13-80918, 33:86940, 333-50774,3533-50776, 333-77233,1333-111498, 333-123233,
333-151}337. and 333-163543) of Isle of Capr: Casinos, [ne.

of our reparts dated June 14, 2012, with respect to the consatidated financial statements and schedule of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., and the effectiveness of-
internal coniro] over financial reporting, of isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. inclided in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year ended April 29, 2012,

fs/ Ems1& Young LLP

St. Lonis, Missouri
June't4, 2012
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A:44(A)
UNDER THE SECURIT IES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

L. Virginia M. McDowell, Chief Executive Offiver of Iste of Capri Casinos, ine., tentify that

). Ihave revicwed this afinual report an Form 10-K of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.;
2. Based onmy knnw]edge this-repori does not contain any untrie stutement of 1 material fact or. omit to state a material fact neccssary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such staterents were made not misleading with respect to the perjod covered by this report:

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repon, l‘auly present in all material rcspec:s the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods’ pn:semcd in this repor;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and toaintaining disclosnre. controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange ActRules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}) and internal control over financial reporting {as défined in Lxch.'mgc Act Rules 13a-15(f) and §5d-13{f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Dcergned such disclosure contrals and pmmdurcs or.caused such disclositre controls and procedures to be dea;bncd under our supervision, to
ensre that material information relating to the rt‘gls\mm mdudmg its consobidated subsidiarics, is thode knowi 1o vs by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is betng prepired;

(b} Designed such internal control over. financial reporting, or.caused such internal, Luntml over finsncial reportiiig to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rcgardmg the reliability of financial reponting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes it accordance with generally aceepted acmunlml., principles:

{c) Lvalnated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosiie controls and procedures and presentedin this report our concivsions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as af the end of the period coviered by thisireport biased on such evaluation: and

(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal cositrol over. financial feporting that accurred during the registrant's first fiscal
quarter that has materialty affected, o1 is reasonably likely to materially.affect, the regisseants internal control ovér-financial reporting: and

5. The registrant’s other ¢ertifying officer and I have disclosed; based 66 vur most recent evalugtion of internal cantrol over finuncial reporting, tw the
rey:.tram s awditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors {or persons perfarming the equnalcnt functions);

-(1) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal eontrol ever financial reporting which are reasonably
likely 10 sdversely affect ihe registrant's ability to record, proccss, summarize and report financial information: and

(b Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employces who have a significant role in the registrant's iniernal
contso] over financizal reporting,

Date: June 14, 2012 fs/ VIRGINIA M, MCDOWELL

Virginia M. McDowell
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A)
UNDER.THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

1, Dale R. Black, Chiel Financial Officer of 1sle of Capri Casinos, lnc., centify that:

I. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit 1o state a materia] fact necessary 1o make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misteading with respect to:thé period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this réport, fairly present in all material respeets the
financial condition, resuhs of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the perinds presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for csldbllshlllb dl'ld miiniaining disclosure conurpls and procedures (a5 defined in

tixchange Act Rules 13a-15{c)and 15d-15(¢)) and mlemal control over financial reporiing (as defined in’ Exclidnge Act ‘Rules 134- 15(f) and 15d- lS(f)) for the
registrand and have:

(), Designed such disclosure controls and proccdures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that-material information relating to the registrant, mc]udang its cansolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within those entities,
pastiutarly during the period in which this report is being prepared:

(t) Designed guch'i'mcnm] conwrdl over financial reporting, &7 caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reparding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c} Evafuated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosiire controls and procedures'and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procédures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation: and

(d) 'Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's intcraal cantrol over financial reéponting that occurred during the registrant's first fiscal
quarter that has manerialty affecied, or is reasonably likely 10 materially affect, the regisiram's internal comrol ‘over financial reponting: and
5. The registrant'’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based 0h our most recent evalvation of intemal control over financial reportinig, to the
registrant’s anditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of dircctors (or persons peiforming the equivalent functions):

{a) AN significamt deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or vpeTation of intenal comral over financial reponing which dre reasonubly
likely 10 adversely affect the registrany's ability 1o record, process, summarize and repori financial information; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or nLhcr employces who have a significamt role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2012 /s/ DALE R. BLACK

Date R. Black
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE:SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 (18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connectivn with the Annual Report of isle of Capri Cusinos, Ine. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ended April 29, 2012, as filed with-the
Securities and Exchunge Commission on the daie hereof (the "Annual Report"),’T, Virginia M. McDowell, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
plrsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 {18 U.S.C. Section 1350), that:

{1} The Annval Report fully complies with the requirements of Seetion 13{a) of the Sceuritics Exchange Actof 1934; and

{2) The information comained in-ihe Annual Report §airly presens, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the
Company.

Date: June 14, 2012 - fsf VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

Virginia M. McDowell
Chief Executive Officer




QuickLinks

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 (18 U.S.C.
SECTION 1350)




QuickLinks -- Click here to rapidly navigate through this document

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TQ SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 (18 US.C. SECTION 1350)

In vonncctiun with the Annual Report of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. {the "Company™”) on Form 10-K for the period ended April 29, 2012 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (lhe "Annual Report"), [, Dale R. Black, Ch:cf Findneiat Officer of the Company. cenify, pursuant to
Section 906 of thie Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C."Section 1350), that:

(1) The Annuat Report ﬁjl]y complies with the requirements of Section 13{a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934:and

{2} The information contained in the Annual Report fairty presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the
Company.

Date: June 14, 2012 , /sf DALE R; BLACK:

Dale R:.Black.
Chief Financigl Officer
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Exahibit 99.1

DESCRIPTION OF GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

The awnership and operation of casing gaming facilities are subject 1o evensive siaie and. local regulatians.. We are required to obtain and maintain
ganing licensey in each of the fiivisdictions in which we conduct gaming. The limitation, conditivning or suspension of gaming licenses could (and the -
revocation oF nom-renewd! uf gaming licenses, ur the faifure 1 reawthurize gaming in cer iain furisdiciions, wild), materially adversely affect our dperation
in that jurisdiction. Inr addition; changes in law that vexerict or pr ohihit eur gaming operarions-in any furisdiciion could have a material adverse effect on us.

Coforado

The State of Colorado created the Division of Gaming ("Colorado Division” ") within the Departinent of Revenue 10 license, implement; regulate and
supervise the gonduct of limited gaming under the Colorado-Limited Gaming Act: The Dircetor of the Cnlorndo Division ("Colorado Direcior®), pursuant to
regulations promulgated by, and subject to the review of, a five-member Colorado Limited Guming Control Comrmssmn ("Colorado Commission?), has been
granted broad power to ensure compliance with the Colorado gaming laws and rugu]ahuns (collectiv e!y, the "Colorado chuldnons ")- The Colorado Director
tizay inspect without notice, impound or remove any. gaming device. The Colorade Director may exaniiie and copy any Ticensee' s records, may inv estigate the
background and conduct of licensees and their employees, and may bnng dnscnplmary zCtions against Ilccnsccs and their. t.mp]oyu:s The Colomdo Directar
may also condhict detailed background investigations of persons who loan moncy 10, or otherwise provnde financing to; a licensee.

The.Calorado Commission is cmpow:rcd 1o issue five types of gaming and gaming-related licenses, and has delegated authority to the Colorado Director
to issue certain types of licenses and approve certain changes in ownership. The licenses are re»acable and non-transferable: The failure or mab:hty of'the Isle
of Capri Hlack Hawk, LLC or CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc: (each, a *Colorads Catino™ ar. Lullecuvely, the "Colosailo Casmas ). o1 the failuse oy inability of others
associited with any of the Colorado Casinos, including us, to maintain riccessary. gaming Jicenses or afiprovals. would have a marerial adverse cifect an our
operations. All persons cmiployed by any of the Colorado Casinos, and involved, directly or indirectly, in gaming operations’in Colorado also are required to
obtain a Cuiurado gaming lcense, All Heenses must be renewed every two years -As a geeral ke, under the Colorzdo Regulations; no person may have an

"gwiicrship interest” in mare than three etail gaming licenses’in Colorado. The Colorado Commission has ruléd'that a person does not have an ownership
iniérest in 2 retail gaming licensee for purpases of the muliiple Heense prohibition it

' that person has less than a 3% ownership-interest in an instilutional investor that has an ownership interest in a publicly traded licensee or
publicly traded company affiliated with a licensee; .

' a person has a 3% or more ownership interest in an institutional investor, but the institutional investor has less than a 3% ownership interest in a
publicly traded licensee or publicly truded company affiliated with a licensee;

. an institutional investor has less than a 3% ownership interest in a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with a licensee:

+ ' an institutional investor pessesses voting sceurities in s fiduciary capacity for another person, and does not exereisc voting conirol over 5% or
more of the outstanding veting securities of a publicly traded icensee or of 2 publu.ly traded company affitisted with a licensee;




. a registeréd broker or dealer retains possession of voting securities of a publicly 1raded licensee or of o' publicly traded company affiliated with a
Yicense: o its customers and not §or its own accduint; and exeicises voumg rights for-less than 5%'of the outstanding voting securities of 2
publicly traded licensee or publicly waded company affiliated with a licensée:

. a registered broker or dealer acts as o market maker for the stock of a publicly traded licensee or.of a publicly taded company affiliated with a
licensee und cxercises voting rights in less than 5% of the ovtstanding voting securities of the publicly traded licensee or publicly raded
company afiiliated with 2 licensee:

. an underwriter is holding securities of a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with a licensee as part of an.underwriting
for no more than 90 days after the beginning of such underwriting'if it exercises viting rights of Jess than 5% of the outstanding voting securities
of 2 publicly tradcd licensee or publiely traded company affifiated with a licensee;

. a book entry uansfer facility holds voting sccurities. for third partics, if it exercises voting rights with respeet to'less than 3% of the outstanding
voting securities of a publicly traded licensee or. publicly traded campany affitiated with a ficensee; or

' a person’s sole ownership interest is less than 5% of the outstanding voting securities of the publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company
atTiliated with a ticensee. .
Because we own the Coloradd Cusinos, our biisingss opportinities, sod'thest of persons with an "ownershig fiterést” in-us, or any of the Colorado
Casinos, are limited to interests that comply with the Colorado Regulations and the Colorado Commission's rule.

,1n addition, pursuant to the Colorado Regulations, no wanufacturer or aiilﬁbulbr of slot machines or associated equipment may, without notification
being provided to the Colorado Division within ten days, lmowmg!y have an |mercst in any casino operator, allow any of its officers or any other person with
a substantial interest in such business 1o have such an interest, employ ARY.PEISON; if that person is emploved by a casino aperatar, or atlow any casina operator
or-persoq with a substantial interest therein to-have an'intérest in 3 manufhcturer's or distribittor's business. A "subsiantial interest” means the lesser of (i) as
large an interest in'an entity as any other person or {ii) any financial or cquity intérest equal to or greater than 5%, The Colorado Commission has rijed that a
person does not have a “substantial interest” if such persan's sole owncership interestin.such licensee is 1hr0ugh the ownershlp of less than 5% of the
oulstdndmg voting securities of a'publicly traded licensee or publicly traded affiliated company of a licensee.

We are a "publicly raded corporation” under the Colorado Regulations.

‘ Under the Colorado chujanons any person or ¢ntity having any direct or indirect interesi in a gaming licensee or 2n applu.am for a gaming license,
mcll!dlng? but not limited 20, us, Black Hawk Holdings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, lnc 10C Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or either of the two
Colorads Casinos and theis security holders, nay be required 1o supply the (“olorado Commlsumn with substantial information, ingluding, but not timited 19,
background information, seurce of funding information, a swom stateinent that such person or enfity is not holdmg his or her interest for any other party, and
fingerprints: Such mformntmn, investigation and ]u:cnsmg (or ﬁndmg of siitability} as an. "associated person” aummaucally ‘will be required of all persons
(other than cenain institutiona investors discussed below) which directly or mdtrcct]y heneficially Gwn 10% or mure of a direet or indirect beneficial,

ow nelshlp or interest'in either of the 1ivo Colorado Casinos; through their beneticial. ownership of dny class of vonng securities of vs, Black Hawk Hoidings,
LLC, i Hoidmgs Coloradd, ine., 10C Black Hawk Distribmion Company, LLC or eithér of the twoe Colurado Casinos. Thase persons musi report their
interest within 10 days {including instittional inv es‘mrﬂ) and file apprapriate applications, within 45 days after acquiring that interest {other than certain
‘institutional investors discussed below). Persons (including institutional investors) wha d:rccﬁy or indirectly

2




benceficially own 5% or more (but less than 10%) of & divect or indirect beneticial owncership or intgrest in cither of the two Coloredo Casines, through their
beneficial ownership of any class of voting securities of us, Black Hawk Holdings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., 10C Black Hawk Distribution
Company, LLC or gither of the two Colorado Casinos, must report their jnterest to the’ Colarado (..omrmss:on within IO days after acquiring that interest and
may be required to provide additional information and tu be found suitable, {1t isthe current practice of the gaming regulators to require findings of suitability
for persons beneficiatly owning 5% or more of a direct or indirect beseficial ownership or interest, other than certgin institutional investors discussed below.)
If centain institutional investors provide specified mmmmnon to the Colorado Comunission vwithin 45, days after au.[umng their interest (which, ander the
current practice of the gaming regulators. is an interest of 5% or more, directly of md]rcctly) and are holding for mwestmem purposes only, those invesiors, in
the Colorado Commission's discretion, may be permitted to own up to 14.99Y% of the Colorado Casinos through their beneficial ownership in any class of
voting of securities of us, Black Hawk Holdings, LLC , IC.Holdings Colorado, Inc., [OC Biack llawk Distribution Company, LLC or either of the two
‘Colorado Casinos, before being required to be found suitable. All licensing and ifvestigation fu:s will have to be paid by the persenin question.

The Colorado Regulations define a "vating security” o be a security the holder of whicki is entitled 10 vote generally for the election of a member or
members of the board of directars ar board of trustees of a corporation or a comparahble.person or persons:of another form of business organization.

The Colorade Commissian also has the right to request information from any person directly or indirectly interesied in, or employed by, a licensee, and
to investigute the moral character, honesty, integrity, prior activitics, ciiminal record, reputation, habits and associativns of: (1) all persons licensed pursuant
to the Colorado Limited Gaming Act; (2) all ofﬁcers directors and stockholders of a licenscd. pm'atclv held corporation; (3) all officers, dtrec,lors and
.smckholders hoidmg cither a 5% or greater interest or a controlling interest in-a Ticensed publicly traded corporation: (4) all genera] partners and ail limited
partners of a licensed partnership; (5) all persons that have a relauonshlp similar to that of an officer, director or stockholder of a corporation (such as
mernbers and managers of a limited liability company); () all persans supp]ymg financing or loaning money to any licensee connected with the establishment
or.operation of tifited gaming; (7) all persons having a contract, least or nngomg financial or business arrangement with any lmcnsce where sich contract,
lease or ammangentent relates.to limited gaming operations, equipment devices or premises; and (8) all persons contracting with or supplying any goods and
services 10 the gammg regulators.

Certain public officials and employees arc prohibited from Kaving any direct-of indirect-interest in a license or limited gaming.

In addition, under the Colorado Regulations, every person who i5 a party to a:."gaming contract” (as'defined below) or lease with an applicant for a
license, or with a licensee, upon the request of the Colorada Commission or the Coulorudo- Director; inust promptiy provide the. Colorado Commission or
Colorado Diredtor ali mformauon that may be réquested concerning financial history, financiil holdings; real and personal property awnership, interests in
other companies, criminal hlstory, personal history and associations, character, réputation in the community and all other information that might be relcvant to
a determination of whether a person would be suitable to be licensed by the Colorado Commission. Failuré to pmwde all information requested constitutes
sufficient grounds for the Colorado Director or the Colorado Comnus:smn to requife atlicensee or upplicant to terminate its gammg contract” or lease with
any pcrson who failed to provide the information requcsted In addmon the Colorado' Direetor or the Colorado Commission may require changes in "gammg
contracts” before an apphcauon is approved or participation in the contract is n!]owed A "gaming contract” is defned ag an agreement in which a person does
business with or on the premises of 2 licensed entity.




‘The Colorado Comntission and the Colerado Division have interpreted the Colorado Regulations te permit the Colorado Commission to investigate and
find suitable persons ar entities providing financing to or, acquiring sécurities from us, Black Hawk Holdings, L1.C, IC Holdings Colorado, [ne:, [OC Black
Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or cither of the two Colorado Casinos. As noted above, any person or entity required to file information, be licensed or
found suitable would be required to pay the costs thereof and of any investigation. Although the Colorade Regulations do not require ihe priorapproval for
the execution of credit facilities ot issuance of debt securities, the Colorado regulators reserve the.right to approve, require changes 1o or require the
termination of any financing, including if a peison or entity 35 required w be found suitable and i3 not furnd suitible. In any event, lehders, note holders, and
others providing financing will not be able'to’exercise certain rights and remedies without the prior approval of the Colorado gaming authonties. Information
regarding lenders and holdess of sccurities will be periodically reported to the Celorado gaming authorities.

Except under cenain limited circumstances relating to slot machine manufacturers and distributors, every person supplying goods, equipment, devices or
services (o any licensee in return for paymient of o percentage, or calculated upon a percentage, of limited gaming activity or income. must obtain an operator
license or be listed on the retailer's license where such gaming will take place.-

An application for licensure or suitability may be denied for any couse deemed reasonable by the Colorado Commission or the Colorado Director, as
appropriate. Spemfmaﬁy the Colorado Commission and the Colorado Director must deny a license to any applicant who, among other lhmgs 1) fails to
prove by cléar and convincing ev idence that the applu.am 15 qudlmed {7) tails 1o prox ide mionnmon ind documientation requested: (3) fails to reveal any
fact mdlerlal 10 qualification, of supplies information which is untrue or n:uslcadmg a5 to a material fact pertaining to quallﬁcallon (4} has been convicted of,
or has a director, officer, general partner, stockholdey, limited parinef or other person w ho has a financia! or cqul!y interest in the applicant who has been
convicted of, specified crimes, including the service of a sentence upon conviction of a felony in-a correctional facﬂlry city or county jail, or community
correctional facility or under.the state board of parole or 2ny probation department within ten years prior 1o the date of the application, gnmbhng-relatcd
affenses, theft by deception ar crimes involving fraud or,mjsreprescatation, is-urider current prosecution for such crimes {during the pendency of which
license determination may.be deterred), is a career otfender or a member of associate of a career offenider cartel, or is o' professional gambler: or (5) has
‘refused to cooperate with any statc or federal body investigating organized crime, offiéial corruption or.gaming offenses. If the Colorado Commission
determines that 2 person or-entity is unsuitable to directly or indirectly own intérests in.us; Black Hawk Holdings, LLC, IC Holdings (‘olomdu inc,, or cither
of the two Colosado Casinos, one or more of the Colorado Casinas may, be sanctioned, which may iiciude the Tess of our appruvals and licenses.

The Colarado Commission docs not néed to approve in advance a public ﬂﬁ'éri!\g of sceurities but rather requices the filing of notice and additional
documents prier to a public offering of {i) voling securities, and (i1) for-vuling sceurities ifdny of the proceeds will be used 1o pay for the construction ot
gaming facilities in Colorado, to directly or indirecily acquire an interest in @ gaming facility in Lolomdo to finance the operation of a gaming facility in
Calorado or to retire or extend obligations for any of the foregoing. The Calorade Comnussmn may, in'its d:scretmn require additional infarmation and prior
approval of such public offering.

In addition, the Colorado Regulations prohibit a licensec or affiliated company thereof, such as us Black Hawk Haldings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado,
Inc., I10C Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or either of the.two Colorado Ca:ino'c: from paying any unsuitable person any dividends or interest upon
any voting securitics or zny paymenls or distributions of any Kind (except as set forth below), or paying any unsunable person any remuneration for services
or recognizing the cxercise of any voting rights by any unsujtable person? ‘Forther, under the Colorade; Regulatmns -¢ach ot the Colorado Casinos and [OC
Black Hawk Disuibution Company, LLC may repurchase #ts voling secaritics from
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anyone found unsuitable 2t the Jesser of the cash cquivalent 10 the origing) investment in the applicable Colorado Casino or [OC Black Hawk Distribution
Company, LL.C or the current market price as of the date of the finding of unsuitability unless such voting securities are transferred to a suible person (as
determined by the Colorado Commission) within sixty (60) days after the finding of unsuitability. A licensce or affiliated company must pursae all Jawful
efforts to require an unstitable - person to relinguish all voting securities, muludmg purchasing such ¥oting securities. The staff of Colorado Division has taken
the pomlcm that a licensee or affiliated company may not pay any unsmtabic peraon any interest, dividends or other payments wi 1th respect 10 non-voting'
securitics, other than with respect © pursiiing all lawit] efforts o reqiire an wisuitable person to relinquish non-voting securities, 1nc]udmg hy purchasing or
redeeming such securities. Further, the regulations require anyone with a material involvement with a licensee, including a director or officer of a holding
campany, such as us, Black Hawk Holdings, LLC, lC Haldings Colorada, Inc., LOC Black Hawk Dismhutzon Company, LLC or cither ut the two Colorado
Casinos, 1o file for a finding of suitability lfi‘t:qulred by the Colorado (‘nmmxssmn

- Becanse of their authority to deny an application for a license or suitability, the Colorado Commission and the Colorado Director effectively can
disapprave a change in corparate. position 67 3 licensee and with respect 1o 4ny eiitity which is required 10 be found suitabile, or indirectly can cause us, Black
Howk Holdings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, inc., 10C Black'Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or the apphicable Colorado Casine to suspend or dismiss
managers, officers, directors and other key employees or sever relationships with other persons who refuse to file-appropriste applications or who the
authorities find unsuitable to act in such capacities.

Generally, a sale, lease, purchase, conveyance or acquisition of any interest in a licensee is prohibited withoul the Calorado Commission's prior, approval.
lowever, because we are a publicly traded corporation, persons may acquire an-interest; inus (even, under current smﬂ‘mtcrprelanons a controlling interest)
without the Colorado Commission's prior appm\'ai bm such persons may be rcqun'cd 10 ﬁ]e notices with the Colorado Commission and applications for
SUltﬂlelty (as discussed above) and the Colorado Ccrnml%smn may, after such acquisition, find such person unsu.unblc and require them to’dispose of their
interest, Under some circumstances, we may not sell any interést in our, Colorado, gamlng busincsses without the prior-approval of the Céloratlo Commission.

.Each Colorado Casino must meet specified architectural reguiremenis, fire safery standards and standards for actess for disabled persons. Each Colorado
Casino aiso must not exceed specified gaming square footage limiis a3 a toal-of each floor and the tell building. Each Colorado Gasino may. permit only
individuals 21 or olderto gamble in the casino. No Colorado Casino may provide'credit 1o'its gaming patrops: Each Colorado Casino must comply with
Coloradd’s Gambling Paymient Intercept Act, which gaverns the collection ot unpdld ‘child support LO:.!S on certain cash winnings from limited gaming.

As originally enacled by amendment 10 the Coluradu Constitution, limited stakes gaming:in Colorado was lmmed to slot machines, blackjuck and poker,
with 2 maximum <mgleb€1 of $5.00, and casinos could operate only berween 8 am; and 2 am.. On November 4, 2008, however, Colomdo voters approved a
subscquent amendment to the Colorado Constitwtion that allowed the towns of Cnpp]c Creek, Black Hawk, and Central City 10 add table games of erapsand
roulette; incréase the maximum single bet 10 $100.00, and increase the permitted hours of operdtion to 24 hours per day effective July 2, 2009.

A licensee is required to provide information and file periodic reports with the LColorado Division, including identif¥ing those who have a 5% or greater
ownership, financial or equity interest in the licensee, or who have the abiliry 1o control. the ficensee, or who have the ability-to exercise significant influence
over the: licensee, or who loan money or other things of value to a licensee, or who have thie right 1o share in revenues of limited ¢ gaming, or to whom any
intcrest or share in profits of limited




gaming has been pledged as security for a debt or performance of an act. A licensee, and any parcnt company ar subsidiary-of a ticensee, who has applicd to a
foreign jurisdiction for licensure or permission to conduct paming, or who pnssucce a license to conduct furclgn gaming, is rcqmrcd to notify the Colarado
Division. Any person licensed by the Colorado Commission and any associated person of a licensee must report criminal convictions and criminal charges to
the Colorado Division.

The Calorade Commission has broad autherity to sanction, fine, suspend and revoke a license for violations of the Colorado Regulitions. Violations off
many provisions of the Colorado Regulations also can result in criminal penalties.

The Colorado Constitution currently permits gaming only in 8 limited nimber of ¢ilies and certain comméreial disiricts in such cities.

The Colorado Constitution permits a gaming tax of up to 40% on adjusted 2ross gaming procéeds, and authorizes the Colorado Commission to change
the rate annually. The current gaming tax rate is 0. 2373,.. on adjusted gross gaming proceeds of up to and mcludmg $2.0 million, 1.9% over $2.0 million up 10
and mc]udmg $5.0 million, 8.55% over $5.0 mllhon up to and inctuding $8.0'miltion, 10.45% ovér $8.0 million up te-and'including $10.0 million, 15.2% aver
£10.0 million up to and inclrding $13.0 million and 19% on ad_;uetcd grass gaming proceeds in excess of $13'0 million, The City of Black Hawk has impased
zn annual device fee of $750 per gaming device and may revise jt.from time to rime. The City, of Black Hawk also has lmposed other fees, including a
business improvement district fee and tranisportation fee, caleulated based od the nuinber-of devices dnd may révise the same or impose additional such fees.

Colorado participates in multi-state lotteries.

The sale of alcoholic beverages is subject to licensing, control and regulation by the Colorado liquor agencies. All persans who directly or indirectly hold
a 10% or more interest in, of 10% ar more of the issued and owtstanding capital stock of, any.of the Colorado Casinos, thioegh their ownership of us, Black
‘Hawk Holdings, LLC, 1C Holdings Colorado, Inc., or either of the two Colorado Casinos, must file appllcauogs and possibly be investigated by the Colorado
liguor agencies. The Colorado liquor agencics also may investigaie those persons.who; direetly o indirectly, loan moncy 10 or have any finencial interest in
liquor licensees. In addition, there are restrictions on stockholders, directors and officers ot liquor licensees preventing such persans from being a stockholder,
directar, officer or otherwise interested in some persons lending money to liquor Jicensees and from making loas to other liquor licensees. All licenses are
revocable and transferable only in aéeordunce with all applicable Iiws, The Colarady liquor agencicy have thé full power 1o limit, condition, suspend or
revoke any liquor license and any disciplinary action could {and revocation would) have a material adverse effect upon the operations of us, Black Hawk
H.old.mgq. LLC, IC Haldings Colorade, Inc., or the spplicable Colomde Casine. Edch Colonxdo Caame holds a retail gaming tavern liquor ticense for its
casine, hotel and restaurant operations, .

Persons directly or indirectly interested in either of the iwo Colorado Casinos may be limited in certuin'other types of liquor licenses in which they may
have an interest, and specifically cannat have an interest in a retail liquor license (but may have an inferest in a hotel and restaurant liquor license and several
other types of liquor licenses). No person can hold more than three retail gaming tavern liquor licenses. The rémedies of certain lenders may be limited by
applicable liquor laws and regulations. .

Flovida
An June 1995, the Florida Department of Business and Proféssional Regulation, acting through the Division of Pari-Mutucl Wagering (the "Florida
DlVIGlOn") issued its final order approving the transfer io the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, PPL, Inc. ("PP! "}, the pari-mutuel wagering permits which

authonze the acceptance of pari-mutuel wagers on hamess horse and quarter harse races conducted at
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the Pompano Park Raceirack (" Pompano Park™) located in Pompane Beach, Florida, Hamess horse racing av Polmpann Pask has been coninuously conducied
by PPl since the time it acquised the foregoing described hamness horse permit throug,h the prescit. The license to conduct live evening harness racing
performances at Pompana Park must be rencwed annuali) and was most recently.rencwed in March 2012 ‘for the State’of Florida's fiscal yecar bcgmnmg
July 11,2012 to June 30, 2013, PPl also has a quarter horse permit that i not currently dctive.

“The Flarida staiutes and the applicable rules and-régulations of the Florida Division set forth in the Flonida Administrative Code (the "Florida L..\w")
establish a regulatory framewark for pari-mutuel wagering activities in the State of Florida, including l:censmg requirements, a taxing struetuse an pan-
mutuel permithalders and requircments for payments 1o the horsemen! inclading owners and breeders, The' Hcmda Law grants 1o the Florida Division full
regulatory power over all permitholders and licensees, including the power to revoke or suspend any permit ar l;ccnsc upon the willfl vielation by a
permitholder or a licensee of the Florida Law. The: Florida Division must approve any transfer of 3% or more of the stock or other evidence of ownership or
equity in all pari-mutuel recing permitholders such as PPL. tn addition 1o the power to suspend or revoke a permit or license on account of a'willful violation
of the Florida Law, the Florida Division is also granied the power to-impose various civil penalties on the permitholder or licensee on account of other
violations. Penaltics may not exceed 51, 000 for cach count or separate offense,

.Pursuant to Florida Jaw, PP1 is authorized to conduct full-card pari-mutuel wagering on: (1} simulcast hamess races from outside Florida throughout the
racing season; and (2) night- tlmc {after 6 p.m.) thoroughbred rages conducteéd outside ot theé Sl:m. of Florita if such races are simulcast 1o a Florida
thoroughbud track and then rebmadcast 1o PPL- PPI also has the nght under-Florida Law to conduct full-card sxmulcastmg of ha:ncss racing on days durning
which ho live racing is held 3t Pompano Park. However, on non-race days, Pompann Park musi rebroadcast the simuleagt stgna]s to other pari-mutuel

facilities that are eligible 10 conduct imertrack wagering. tn addition, Pompany Park may transmit iis live harness races intd any dog Tacing or jai alaj fdcﬂny
'in Florida, mcludmg facilities in Mismi-Dade and Broward Counties, for intertrack wagering; Pompano Park also receives live races from other Florida pari-
mutuai facilities for intertrack wagering. Florida Law establishes the allocation of contributions to the pari- n.u:lucl pools between Pomipane Park and the other
factlities sharmg 3 such signals,

Florida Law authorizes pari-mmtuel facilities, including Pompano Park; to;operate curd rooms in those counties in which a majority vote of the County
Commission has been obtained and a local drdinance has been adopled: The Coumy Cumrmssmn of Broward Cnunly, where Pompano Park is focated, has
approved the aperation of curdmomu in Bruward County. Although the provisions of Florida:Law teg,‘mlmg curdrogm operations have heen amended
frequently by the Florida chxs]amre the amendments have generally resulted in the regulatory scheme becoming more liberal as opposed to being more
restrictive, Under amendments which. became effective on July i, 2007, the beneficial chunges includled pérntitting da:]y operations tor any 12 hour period
wnthoul 1he requirement for live Tacing. raising the limit on the maxinum bet amount trom S2 .00 1 $3.00 with up 1o 3'raises allowed per round, providing
less restrictive regulations for tournamenis and allowing the operator to award prizes and create Juckpots not tied t6 the amount bet.

In Nevember 2004, the voters in the State of Fiorida amended the Florida State Constimtion 10 allow the voters of Miami-Dade and Broward Counties to
decide whether 10 appm\es]nt machines in racetracks and jai alai frontons in-their respective cmmhes Broward County voters approved that county's local
referendum’in 2003 and Miami Dade voters approved that county's local referendum in 2008. chﬂ]atmn enacted by the Florida Legislature in 2003, and
amended in 2007, (the “Florida Slot Law"} impleménted the consittutional amendment by authori izing Pompana'Pirk and three other pari-mutué] facilities in
‘Broward and the pari-mutuel facilities in Miami-Dade County 10 offer slot. machine gaming 1o patrons at these facilities. Although there are pari-mutye]
facilities in numercus other .




countics in the State of Florida, slot machine gaming is presently authorized only in Broward and Miami-Dade County. in April 2007, a new easino facility
was opened at Pompano Park adjacent to the harness race facility.

Under the Florida Slot law, the-following regulatory provisions arc applicable to slot machine goming at-Pompano Park:
. The facility may be operated 363 days per year, 18 hours per weekday and 24 hours on weekends;
. The maximum number of machines is 2,000 Vegas-style (Class 111) slot machines per facility.

. The annual license fee is §2,000,000.00.

. Effective July 1, 2010, the tax payahle 6 the State of Florida is 35% of net slot machine revenue.

. The machines will not accept coins or currency, but are ticket infticket out.

. The minimum age to play the machines is 21 years.

. ATMs are permitted in the facility but not on the garming iloor.

. The Florida Division is the regulatory agency charged with the duty 10 enforce the provisions of the Florida Law.

.PPl also pays combined county and city taxes Ofappm‘nmmely 3.5% on the first $250. million of net slot machine revenue and 5% on net slot machme
revenne over $250 million,

In Aprit 2009, legislation was passed which sct forth the paraniciers under which and granied the Governar authority to enter into an [ndisn Gaming
Compart {"Compact™) on behalf of the State of Florida with the Seminole Indian Tribe of Florida for the purpose of sothorizing Glass 11 gaming.
Addmonally the Jegislation provided for a reduction of the tax-rate on slot machines operated by pari-tautuel facilities from 50% to 35% with a grarantee of
tux révente 16 be no less thin.the 2mount that vas colleéted in the fiscal year éndéd June 30, 2009. The tax guardiniee was casily met. Two new lot facilities
opened in Miami:Dade County after the proposed cffective date of the legislation These-facilitics would create enough new tax revenue to ensie that total
revenues excecded revenue collected in the base year. The legislation, also reduced the annual licerise fee from 33 million to $2.5 million for the State of
Florida's 2010 Fiscal Year and $2 million per fiscal year thereafier, It allowed slot.machines to be linked using a progressive system and cxpanded poker
aperations 1o allow operation for 18 hours per day on wecek days and 24 hours per day on weckends, In addition, it avthorized no limit poker games and
wumnaments n order for this legislation 1 become effective in 2009 the following conditions must have been met:

(1) it must have been approved by or allowed to become law by the Governar;
{1}  a Compact must have been entered into with the Seminole Indian I'ribe of Florida by August 31, 2009; and

{(iii)  the legislature must have ratified the Compact and the Compact musi have been published in the Federal Registry.

All of the provisions ontlined above became effective July |, 2010, The same act expanded the number of slot facilities in Miami-Dade county by
authorizing u license for Hialeah race track. The act also set forth the method for possible further cxpansion of slots at other pari-mutncels throughout the state
by mandating a county. wide refercndum on slots. The Flarida Supreme Court recently npheld the authority of the legislature to expand slot licenses; the actual
expansion at other pari-mutuels willbe delayed due 1o the Florida Division's recent miling that the wording of the act requires further legislative action or an
amendment to the constitution before the expansion of sloi licenses may be implemented by counties.
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lTowa

In 1989, the State of lowz legalized riverboat gaming oh the Mississippi River and other navigablé waterways located in lowa. The legislation authorized
the granting of licenses 1o non-profii corporations that, in tum, are permitted to enter into operating agreements with qualified persons who actueally conduct
riverboat gaming operations. Such operators must lkewise be approved and licenised by the luwa Racing und Gaming Cofnmission (the "lows Gaming
Commission™).

The Isle-Hettendorf's operator's contraét with the Scort County Regional Autherity, 2 non-profit corporation organized for the purpose of facilitating
riverboat gaming in Bettendorf, lowa, is automatically renewed for succeeding one-year periods as long as gaming remains approved in Scott County, Under
the aperator's contract, the steBettendorf pays the Scon Catnty Regional Authority a fe¢ cqual to 4.1% of the adjusted gross receipts, Fusther, the lsle-
Rettendorf pays a fee 1o the City of Bettendorf equal 1o 1.65% of adjusted gross receipts.

In June 1994, Upper Mississippi Gaming Corporation, a non-profit corporation organized for the purpose of favilitating riverboat gaming in Marquette,

lowa, entered into an opcraml"s agreement for the Isle-Marquette for a period of twenty-five yeass. Under the manggement agreement, the non-profit

organization is-to be paid s feé 6f SO 50 per passenger. Further, pursuant 16 4-dock site agreement (whn,h also hds o € of twemy—tn'e years), the isle-
Marquette is required to pay 2 fee to the Cny of Marquette in the amount of $1.00 per passenger; plus a fixed amount of $15 1000 per month and 2 5% of
gaming revenues (less state wagering. taxes) in excess of 520.0 mllhon but less.than $40.0° milliosi;. 5% of gammg revenues (less state wagering taxes) in
cxtess of $40.0 million but fess than $60.0 million; and 7.5% of gaming révenues (less state wagering l:m:s) in‘excess of $60.0 million,

In October 2000; the Riverboat Development Atithority, a non-protit corporation enteréd into an operatof’s dgreement with the Isle-Davenport to conduct
riverboat gaming in Davenpory, lowa. The operating agreement was amended: in June 2009, The operating agreement requm:s the Isle-Davenport to make
weekly payments to the qualified sponsoring ofganization cqua] to 4.19% of cach week's adjustcd gross Teeeipts (as defined o the cnabimg ]cglslanon)
[Further, the Isle-Davenpont has agreed that the Riverboat Development Authoriry will be paid at least the minimum amount ' of 52,000,000, which minimum is
subject to certain termination events {.¢. increase in the number, of area casinos or squcn:,mn of Isle-Dav enpon 5 ||ghl uider jis leases with the Cny of
Divenpurt or any city penmits for more than 30 days) and an appropriate negntmled rujuulon should thé cising's gnm.mg floor losé its current smoking ban
excmption. This agreement will remain in effect through March 34, 2019; provided that as long as tslc»Davenpon has substanually complied with the
upreement, gaming laws and regulations and 1he parties’ gaming license is renewed and’in eifect, the agreeme'm will amomatically renew on an annual basis
for successive one-vear terms. it addition. the Isle-Davenport pays a docking fcc adnission tce, gammg tax and a paymcnt in lieu of taxes to the City of
Davenport. Pursuant to & development agrecment with the City, the Isle-Davenport his exciusive duckmg privileges in the City of Davcnporl until March 31,
201 7-in consideration for this docking fee. The docking fee has both a fixed base and a per passenger increment. The fixed fee commenced-April 1, 1994 a1
$111,759 and increases annually by 4%. The incremental component is a $0.10 charge far.each passenger in excess of 1,117,579 passengers (which charge
also increases by 4% per vear), The City is also guaranieed an annwal gaming tax of $538,789.50 per year (based ona minjmym passenger floor count of
1,117,579 passengers at $0.50 per passenger). In lieu of the foregoing, the [sle-Davenpon is currenty paying the City, of Davenport a.fee of 1.63% of adjusied
gross receipts. Finally, the Isle:Davenport is abligated t6 pay a payment in lieu of taxes 1o support the downtown development district. This annual lvmp sum
paysueni is in the amount of $123 516 plus 50.20 per passenger in excess of 1,117, 379 passengers, This paymens in liev of taxes is further-subject wo a
minimum $226,179 per year payment.

_ In November 2004, the Black Hawk County Ganing Association, o non-profit comeration organized for the purpose of facilitating riverboat gaming in
Waterloa, lowa entered into an operator's




agreement with the Isle-Waterloo to conduct riverboat gaming in Waterloo, lowa. The operating agrecment requires that Isle-Waterloo make weekly
payments 16 the gualified sponsoring orgamization equal 1o 4:4% of each week's adjusied gross veceipis and an additional fee of 1 65% of each week's adjusied
gross receipts in licu of any admissicn or docking fee which might otherwise be charged by the county or any cigy {as defined in Section 99E.1(1) pfl.hc lowa
Code). This agreement will remain in effect through Mareh 31, 2015 and may be ektended by the isle-Waterloo for three-year periods so-Tong as it has
substantially complied with gaming Jaws and regulations and helds a license to conduct gaming. in addition, the [sle-Waterloo has agreed 10 pay a
development fee to the City. Pursuant o an admission fee adifinistration and development dgicemernit with the Ci:y and Black Hawk County Gaming
Association the Isle-Waterloo shall pay a development fee equal to 1% of each week's adjusted gross receipts.

[owa law permits gaming licensees to offer unlimited stakes gaming on games approvcd by the lowa Gaming Commission on a 24-hour basis, Land-
based casino gaming was authorized on July 1, 2007 and the [owa Gaming Commission now permits licensees the np:mr. 1o operate on pcrmancnlly moored
vessels, . moored barges, or approved gamblmg structures. The legal age for gaming is 21.

All lowa licenses were approved for renewal at the March 8, 2012 lowa Gaining Commission meeting. These licenses are not transferable and will need
. tobe renewed in March 2013 and prior to the commencement of each subsequent annnal renewal period.

The ownership and operation of gamiiy facilities in' [owa are subiject W extensive state laws, regulations of the fowa Gaming Commission and varions
county and municipal ordinances (collectively, the "lowa Gaming Laws"), conceming the responsibility, financial stability and character, of gaming operators
and persons financially interested or involved in’ gaming operations. lowa Gaming Laws seek to: (1) preveTit unsavory or unsuitable persons from baving
direct or indirect involvement with gammg at any time’or in any capacity;, (2) establish and maintain rcsponsﬂ)lc accounting practices and procédures;

{3} maintain effective control over the t'na.ncna] practices uf licensees (lnciudmb the establishment of minimum procedures for internal fiscal affairs: the
saféguarding of assets and revenues, the provision of refiable record kef:pmf, and the filing of periodic reports with the lowa Gaming Commission):

(4) prevent cheating and fravctulent practices; and (3) provide a source of stal,c_a'nd local revenues throngh taxation and licensing fees. Changes in lowa
Gaming Laws could have a material adverse effect on the lowa gaming operations.

The lowa gaming operations must submit deml!ed financial and cperating reports to the lowa Gammg Commission. Certain contracts of licensees in
excess of $100,000 mast be submitted to and approved by the lowa, Gnn:ung, ; Commission. Certain officers, directors, managers and key employees of the lowa
gaming operations are required to be licensed by the lowa Gaming Commission, Gaming licenses granted to individuals must be renewed every year, and
licensing authorities have broad discretion with regard to such renewals. Licenses are not transferable. Employees associated with gaming must obtain
occupational licenses that are subject to immediate susmnsmn under specifig circvmstances+In addition, anyone having a material n:!anonshlp or involvement
with'the Towa gaming operations may be required to be found sunablc or 1o be licensed, i which case those persons wonld be required to pay the costs and
fees of the lowa Gaming Commission and Dms:on of Criminal lmemgauon in connection with the investigation. The lowa Gaming Commission may deny
an apphcquon tor a license for any cause detmed reasonable. In addition to its auihomy to deny an application for license, the lowa Gaming Commission has
jurizdiction to disapprove a change in position by officers or key cmpluyecl: and the power 1o require the lowa gaming operations to sespend or dismiss
officers, directors or other key employees or sever relationships with other persons who refuse to file appropriate applications or whom the lowa Gaming
Commission finds unsuitable to act in such capacitics.




The lowa Gaming Commission may revoke a gaming license if the licensce:

. has been suspended from ol.)cn_ating 4 gaming operation in another jurisdiction by a board or commission of that jurisdiction;

. has failed 10 demonstrate financial responsibility sufficient 1o meet adequately the requirementsaf Lh;: gaming entemprise;,

. i not the true owner ()flhc enterprisc;

. has failed to disclose ownership of other, persons in the cll_tcmrise;'

. is a corporation [ 0% of the stock of which i is subject to a contract or option to purchase at any Gme during the penud for which the license was

issued, unless the cantract or option was disclosed 1o the lowa Gawming Commussion and the [owa Gaming Cammission approved the sale or
transfer during the period of the license;

+ knowingly mukes a false stateroent of a material fact 16 the lowa Gaming Comunission]

. fails to meet 4 monetary obligation' in connection with an excussion gaming boat:

. plexds guilty to, or is convicied of a f¢lony:

. Inans to any persen, money or other thing of value for the purpase of permitting that person to wager on any game of chance;

. is delinquent in the payment of property taxes or other taxes or fees or a payment of any other contractual obligation or debt due or owed 10 a city

or.eounty; or

. assigns, grants or thms over to another person the operation of a licensed excursion boat {this provision does not prohibit assignment of a
management cantract 2pproved by the lowa Gaming Commission) ar permits another peérson 1o have a share of the money received for. admission
1o the excursion boat.

If it were determined that the lowa Gaming Laws were violated by a licensee, the'g gunung licenses held by a licensee could be limited, made conditional,
suspended or revoked. In addition, the kicensce and the persons ivolved could be subject to substantial fines for each scparate violation of the lowa Gaming
Laws in the discretion of the lovwa Gaming Commission. Liniitations, conditioning.or-suspension of any gaming license could {and revocation of any gaming
license would) have a material adverse effect on operations.

“The lowa Gaming Cammission may also require any individual who has a material.relationship with thé lowa gaming operations 1o be investigated and
licensed or found suitable. The lowa Gaming Commission may require any person who acquires 5% or more of a licensee’s equity securities to submit to a
background invéstgation and be found suitable. The applicant stockholder is required to pay all costs of this investigation.

Gaming taxes approXimating 22% of the adjusted gross reccipls will be payable by cach licensee on its operations to the State of lowa. in addiuon,
assessments paid by certain licensees during fiscal year 2004 in an amount equal 1o 2.152%% of each licensee's adjusted gross receipts for fiscal year 2004 are
currently being reimbursed by an offset 1o state gammg taxes paid by each licengee in the amount of 0% of the asséssments paid each year beginning July 1,
2010 for five consecutive years. The state of lowa is also reimbursed by the licensees for ull costs associated with monitoring and enforcement by the'lowa
Gaming Commission‘and the.lowa Department of Criminal Investigation.




Louisiana

In July 1991, Lovistana enacted legislation permining ecrtain types of gaming activity on certain rivers and waterways in Lowisiana. The legislation
granted authority to supervise riverboat gaming activities to the Louisiany Riverboat Gaming Commissivn and the Riverboat Gaming Enforcement Division
of the Lonisiana Siate Police. The Loujsizna Riverboat Gaming Commission was duthorized to hear.and determine all appeals reative to the granting,
suspension, revocation, condition or rénewal of all hu.nsea penmu. and applicatioas. In dddmon the Louisiana Riverboat Gammg Commission established,
regulations conceéming autherized routes, duration of excursions, minimum levels of insurance; constrection of riverboats and penodlc nspections. The
Riverboat Gaming Enforcement Division of the Louisiana State Police was authorized to investigale applicants and issue licenses, investigate violations of the
statute and conduct continting reviews of gaming activities,

ln May 1996, regulatory oversight of riverboat gaming was transferred to the Louisiana Gaming Control Board, which is comprised of nine voting
members appointed by the governor. The Louisiana Gaming Contro) Board now oversees all licensing maiters for riverboat casinos, Jand-bascd casinos,
racines, video poker and certain aspects of Native American gaming other than those responsibilitics reserved to the Louisiana State Police.

The Louisiana Gaming Control Board is cmpowered to issue up to 15 licenses to conduct gaming activities on a riverboat in accordance with applicable
law. However, no more then six ficenses may be granted to riverboats operating from any one designated watcrivay.

The Louisiana State Police continues to:he involved broadly in gamjng cnforcement and reports to the. Louisiana Gaming Control Board. Louistana law
permits the Lovisiana State Police, among other things, to continue to {1} conduct suitability' mvcst:gatmns {2) audjiy, investigate and enforce compliarice with
Standing regulations, (3) initiate enforcement and administrative actions and (4) perform "ail other diities-and filnctions necessary for the efficient, efficacious;
and thorough regulation and contm] of gaming activities and opérations" undef the Louisiana Gaming Control Board's jurisdiction.

Louisiana gaming law specifics certain restrictions relating to the operation of riverboat gaming, incliding the following:

. agents of the Louisiana Staze Police are permitted on board at'any time during gaming cperations;

. gaming devices, equipment and supplies may nn]y be purchased or leased from permitted suppliers and, with respect to gaming equipmeny, from
permitted manufaciurers;

. gaming may only take place in the designated gaming arca while the riverboat is docked on a designated river or waterway;

. gdmmg equipment may not be possessed, malnt,.:mcd or exhibited by any person on a riverbodt éxcept in the specifically designated gaming ared
or in a secure area used for inspection. repair or storage of such equipmeir:

. wagers may be received only fron: a person present on a licensed iivérboat;

. persans under 21 are not permitted in designated gaming areas;

- exceps for slot machine play, wagers may be made only with 1c;kcn5, chips or electronit cards purchased from the licensee aboard a fiverboat;

. llcenscuz may only use docking facilities and routes for which they are licensed and may only board and discharge passengers at the riverboat's
licensed berth; .

. _V]iCL‘nSC\‘:S musthave adequate protection and indemnity insurance:




. licensees must have it necessary federa] and state eenses, certificates and other regulaory approvals prior to operaling a riverboat: and
. gaming may only be conducicd in accordance with the terms of the license and Louisiana law.

To receive a gaming license in Louisiana, an applicant must be found 1o be a person of good character, honesty and integrity and a person whose prior
activines, criminal record, if any, reputation, habits and associations do not {1) posk a threat to the public interest of tlie State of Louisiana or.to the effeciive
regitlation and contral of gaming or (2} créate of enhanee.the dangers of unsuitzble, unfair or illegal practices, methods and activities in the conduct of gaming
or the carrying on of business and firancial arrangéments of gaming activities, In addition, the Leuisiana Gaming Control Board will not giant a lieense unless
it finds that, among other things: .

. the applicani can demonstiate the capability, either through training, educatjon, business experience or a combination of the preceding, to operate
a gaming operalion;

. the propased tinancing of the riverboat and the gaming operations is adequate for the nature of the proposed operation and js from a suitable and
acceptable source; '

. the applicani demonsirates a proven ability to operaie a vessel of comparable size, capacity 2nd complexity to a riverboat so as 10 ensure the
safety of 1ty passengers;

. the applicant submits with its application for a license a detailed plan of design of the riverhoat;

. the applicant designates the docking facilities lp—ﬁ'c used by the riverboat: A
. the applicant shows adequate financial ability t construct and maintain a riverboat; and

. the applicant has a good faith plan to recruit, triin and vpgrade mindrities in 811 employment classifications.

An initial lrcense to conduct riverboat gaming operations is valid fir a tefni of tive yearsand ]cg'islutiu‘n passed in the 1999 legislative session provides
tor renewals every five years thereafter. Louisiana gaming law provides that a renewal application for.the period sueceeding the initial five-year.term of an
operator's license must be made to the Louisiana Garmng Control Board and must include a statément under oath of any and ali changes in information,
including financial information, provided in the previous application. The trangfer of a license or an interest in i license is prohibited. A gaming license is
deemed to be a privilege under Lobistana law.and, as such, may be denied, revoked, suspended, conditioned or limjied at any time by the Louisiana Gaming
Control Board. St. Charles Gaming Company, Ine. and Grand ' Palais Riverbeat, Inc. reccived their first five-year renewal of their licenses on July 20,1999
and received their second five-year renewal of their licenses on Ma.!'ch 29, 2005, The'third five (5) year renewal was granted to Grand Palais Rn erboat, Inc.
on July 21, 2009 and $1. Charles Gaming Company, Inc. on February 23, 2010

On June 13, 2011, Isle entered into an Option Agreement with Paradise Casino to s alt the capital stock of Grand Palais Riverboeat, Inc. o Paradise
Casino, LLC, subsequently Bossier Casino Ventore, LLC. -

On August 18, 2011, Isle received approval fom the Lonisiana Gaming Control Board of the following transactions:

1. St. Charles Gaming Company, Inc.'s transter of the Crown Casino, No. 1023327, to Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc. in exchange for the transfer
of the Grand Palais, No. 1028318, to St Charles Gaming Company, Inc.

2. 10C Holding., LLC's transter of 100% of the shares in Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc. to Bossier Casino Venture, LLC
3. The merger of Bossier Casino Venture, LLC with and into Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc.
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A Stock Purchase Agreement was executed hetween the Parties on Febmary 9, 2012,

St. Charles Gaming Company, i, is the sole Isle licensee in Louisians uperating jts gaming operations on the riverboat known as Grand Palais in
Calcasieu Parish. .

Cenain persons affiliated with a riverboat gaming licensee, including directors and officers of the licensee, directors and officers of any holding company
of the licensee involved in gaming operations, persons holding 5% or, greater intercsts in the licensee and persons exercising influence over a licensee, are
subject to the appl;catmn and suitabilily requirements of Louisiana gaming law.

The sale, purchase, assignment, transfer, pledge or other hypathecation, lcase, dispasition or acquisition by any person of securities that represent 5% or
more of the total outstanding shares issued by a licensee is subject to the approval of:the Louisiona Gaming Controt Board: A security issued by a licensee
must generally disclose these restrictions. Prior approval from the Lonisiana Gaming Control Board is required for the sale, purchase, assignment, transfer,
pledge’or other hypothecation, ‘lc-we. disposition or acgnisition of any nwuership interest of, 5% or more of any nun-cnl‘pof'att. licensee o for the transfer of
any "economic interest” of 5% or more 6f aiy licensee or aftiliated gaming.- person. An-' "cconomic. interest” is defined as any interest whereby a person
receives or is entitfed 16 receivi, by sgreement or otherwise, a-profit, gain, thing of value, ]oan credn ‘Security interest, ownership interest'or other benefit,

Fees payable o the state for conducting ganing aclivities on a riveiboat include {1) $50,000 per riverboat for the first year of operation and $100,000 per
year per] riverboat thereafier, plis (2) 18.3% of net gammg proceeds: Legislation was passed during the 2001 legislative session that allowed those riverboats
that had been required to conduct cruises, including the riverboats at the; !sle Lake Charlcs 10 remain permanenllv dockside beginning April 1,:2001. The
legislation also increased the gaming tax for opérators from "18.5% to 21.5%. A statite also authorizes local governing authorities to levy boardmg fecs, We
currently have development agreements in Lake Charles with certain local governing suthorities in the Jurledicl:om in which we operate pursuant 10 which we
make payments in licu of boarding fees. :

A licensee must notify andfor seek appmvnl from the Lovisiana Gaming Control Board i in connection with any withdrawals of capital, loans, advances or
distributions i excess of 5% of retained earnings for a corporate licenyee, or of capital accounts for u'paftnership or limited liability company licensee, upon
complction of any such transuction. The Lovisiana Gaming' Lommi Board may issue an emergency order for not more than ten days prohibiting payment of
profits, income or accruals by, or investments in, a licensee. Unless excepted or walved by the. Louisiana demg Control Board, riverbost gaming licensecs
dnd their aftilizted gaming persans must notify the’ Lovisiana Gaming Control Board €0 days prior to the receipt by any such persons of any loans of
extensions of ¢redit or modifications thereof. The Louisiuna Gaming Contrul Board is required to investigate the repatted loan, extension of erediy or
modification thereof and to determine whether an excmption exists on the requirement of prior written approval. and, if such exemption is nol applicable, to
either approve or disapprove the transaction. if the Louisiana Gammg Contro) Board disapproves of a tmnsaction, the transaction cannot be entered into by the

llcensee or affiliated gaming person. We are an affiliated gaming pefson of our, suhaldmry that holds the license to conduct riverboat gaming at the S1. Charles
(,‘ammg Company, Inc.

The faiture of a licensee to comply with the requirements set forth above may resolt in the suspension or revocation of that licensee’s gaming license.
Addmonal]y, if the Louisiana Gaming Control Board finds that the individual owner of holder of 3 security of a corporate Yicense or imtermediary company of
any person with an economic interest in a licensee is not qualified under
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L.onisizna law, the Louisiana Gaming Contro) Board may requise, under penalty of suspension or revocation of the license, that the person not:

. receive dividends o jnterest on securitics of the corportion;

. exercise directly or indirectly a right confermed by securitics of the corporation;
. receive remuneration or economic benefit from the licensee:

. exercisc significant influeence over activities of the licensee: or

. cuntinue its owncrship of economic interest in the licensee,

A licensee must periodicatly report the following information lq\lhé Louisiand Gaming Control Board, which is not confidential and is available for
public inspection: (1) the licensee's net gaming procecds from all atthorized games, (2} the dmouitt of iiét gaming proceeds tax paid and (3) all quarterly and
annual financial siatements presenting historical data, including annval finaricial statements that have been andited by an’independent centified public auditor.

During the 1996 special Session of the Lovisiana legislature, legislation was enacted placing on the ballot for a Statewide election a constitutional
amendment limiting the expansion of gaming, which was subsequently passed by the voters. As a result;:local option elections are required betore new or
additional forms of gaming can be brought into a-parish.

Proposals to amend or supplement Louisiana's iverboat gaming statute are frequently, introduced in the Louisizna State Legislature. There is no
assurance that changes in Louisiana gaming law will not accur or that sux,h changes will not have a materia] adverse effect on our business in Louisiana.

Mississippi

In'June 1990, Mississippi enacted legisiation legalizing dockside casino ‘waming for counties along the Mississippi River, which is the western border for
most of the state, and the Gulf Coasi, which is the southern border for most of the state. The legislation gave each of thosc counties the opportunity 1o hold a
referéndum on whether to allow dockside casino gaming within'its boundaries:.

In its 2005 regular session, the legislature amended Mississippi law to allow gaming to be conducted on vessels or cruise vessels placed upon permanent
structures located on, in or above the Mississippi River, on, in or above navigable waters in eligible counties along the Mississippi River or on, in or above the
waters lying south of the counties along the Mississippt Guli Coasl Later; afier Hurricane: Katrina, the' Mlss:ssxppi lcgis]amm agein amended the Jaw to allow
land-bascd gaming along the Gulf Coast in very limited circumstances. Mmsxss:ppt law permits unlimited stakes gaming on a 24-hour basis and does not
restrict the percentage of space that may be utilized for ghming. There dre no limititions on the number.of gaming licenses that may be issued in Mississippi.

The ownership and operation of gaming facilities in Mississippi are subject to extensive state and local repulation intended to:

. prevent unsavory or unsuitable persons from having any direct or indirect involvement with gaming at any time or in any capacity;
. establish and maintain responsible accounting practices and procedures for gaming operations;
. maintain effective control over the financial practices of licensces, including establishing minimum procedures for internal fisesl affairs and

safeguarding of ussets and revenues, providing relizhle record keeping and making periodic repornts:
. provide a source of state and loca) revenues through taxation and licénsing fees;

. prevent cheating and fruudulent prmactices: and




' ensure that gaming kcensees, to the extent practicable, employ Mississippi residents.

State gaming regulations are subject to amendment and interpretation by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. Changes tn Mississippi laws of
regulations ay limit or otherwise materially affect the types of gaming that may be conducted in Mississippi and such changes, i enacted, could have an
adverse effect on us and our Mississippi gaming aperations.

We are registered as a publicly traded corporation under the Mississippi Gaming Conunl Aet. Gur guniing operations in Mississippi-are sabject to
regulatory control by the Mississippi Gaming Coramission, the Mississippi Department of Revenue and various othes local, city and county regulatory
agencies (collectively referred 10 as the "Mlssnssmp] Guming Authorities"). Our subsidiaries have obtained gam:ng thlleb from the Mississippi Gaming
Autherities. We must obtain a waiver from the ‘vhssuis:ppl Gammg "Commission before beginning certain propo:,cd gaming operations outside of Mississippi,
and we must notify the \hssmsxpp: Gaming Commission in writing within 30 days after commcncmg ceqtain gaming operations outside the state. The licenses
held by our Mississippi gaming operations. have terms of three years and arenot transterable. The [sle:Biloxi, the 18le-Natchez and the !sle Lula hold licenses
effective from May 23, 2012, through May 22 '2015. [n addition, our wholly-owned subsidiary, I0C Manufacturing, Inc. holds a mafufacturer and
disuibuter's license, so thal we may perform cenain upgradts 10 ovr Mississippt ph}'c:r lrtckmg system.:This license has a testo of three vears, 15 effective
from June 16,201 1 through hme 15, 2014, and is not transferable. There is no assurance that new licenses can be, obtained at the end of each three-year period
of a licénse. Moreover, the Mississippi Garnlng Commission may, at any time, and for any-¢ause it deems reasonablc. revoke, suspend, condition, limit or
restrict a license or approval to own shares of stock in our subsidiaries that optrate’in Mississippi.

-Substantial finés foreach violation of Mississippi's gaming laws or regulations rifay be lévied against us, our subsidiaries and the persons involved.
Disciplinary action against us or one of our subsidiary gaming licensees in any, Junsdlcuon may lead to dxscnplmary acuon against us or any of our subsidiary
licensees in Mississippi, including, but not limited to, the revocation or suspension of any such subsidiary gaming license.

We, along with each of our \-I|5515s1pp1 gamm;, subsidiarics, must pcnodma]ly submit detatled financial, operating and other reports to the” Mississippi
Gammg Commission and/or the MlSSISSIppl Depanmem of Revenue. Numemus uaneacnonq mgludmg but nol limited to substantially all loans, leases, sales
of securities and similar financing wensaéions entered inte by any of our, \11ss:551pp1 Laming subsidiaries mu:.l be reported to or approved by the Mississippi
Guniing Comamission. [n addition, the M:ss:sslppl Gaming Commission may, at jts dmtrctmn, require additional information about our uperations.

Certain of our officers and employees and the officers, directors and cetain’key employees of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries mitst be found suitable
or be licensed by the Mississippi Gaming Commission: We believe that all required findings of suitability and key employee licenses related o all of our
Mississippi properties have been applied for or obtained, although the \1ISSiaSll,lpl Gaming Commission at its discretion may require additional persans to file
-applications for findings of suitability or l.w f.'mployee licenses, In addmon any person having a material relationship or involvement with us may be
required to be found suitable or licensed; in which case those persons must pay the costs and fees associated with such investigation. The Mississippi Gaming
Commission may deny an apphication for a i'mdmg of suitability for any cansc that i deems reasohable. Changes in centain licensed positions must be reponed
to the Mississippi Gaming Commission. In addition 10 its authority 0 deny an application for a finding ofsmmhn!ny, the Mississippi Caming Commission has
jurisdiction to disapprove a change in & licensed position. The Mississippi Gaming Commission has the poweT to require us 2nd any of our Mississippi-gaming
subsidiaries to suspend or dismiss offivers,
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dircetors and other key vmployees or 1o sever relationships with other persons who refuse 1o file appropriate applications or who the anthorities find
unsuitable to act in such capacities.

Employees associated with gaming must obtain work permits that arc subject to immediate suspension under certain circumstances. The Mississippi
Gaming Commission will refuse to issue a work permit 1o a person who has been convicted of a felony, committed cenain misdemeanors or knowingly
viclated the Mississippi Gaming Control Act, and it may refuse to issue a work perhit to a gaming emiployee for.any other reasonable cause.

At any time, the Mississippi Gaing Commission has the power to investigaie and require the finding of suitability ‘of any record or beneficial
stockholder of ours. The Mississippi Gammg Control Act reqaires any person who individually or, in association With others acquires, d:rcclly ot indirectly,
bemf'cml ownerslup of more than 5% of our common Stock to report the acqmmwn ta the Mississippi Gammg Commnssmn. and such | persoii may be
requlrcd to be found suitable. Ln addition, the Mississippi Gaming Control Act s n:qulrcs any person who, mdlv:dua]ly or in association with others, becomes,
diréctly or md:rectly a beneficial owner of more than*10%% of our.common smck sas.reported to the U.S. Securities and Fxchangc Commlssmn to apply fora
‘finding of Snitability by the Mississippi Gaming Commussnon and pay the costs-and fees that the Mississippi Gnmmg Com:mssmn incurs in conducting the
mve:.ngauon. .

The Missiséippi Gaming Commission has generally excreised its discretion to rcqil'i‘fi: a finding 01:5uilabf]ilv of any beneficial owner of 5% or more of a
registered publicly traded carporation's stock. However, the Mississippi Gaming Commmmn has ddop[cd a regulation that may permit certain "instimtional”
investors to obtain waivers that allow them 1o beneficially own, dircctly or indjr e tly, up to! 15% {19%in centain specific mstanccs) of the veting securitics of
a registered publicly traded corporation without a. fiiding of suitability. Ifa mock.ho]du who must be found siitable is a corporation, partnership or wust, it
‘must submit detailed business and financial information, including a list of beneficial owners.

. Any;person who fails or refuses to apply for 2 finding of stitability or a license within 30 days after being ordered 10 do so by the- \fllSSlS'%lpp:l Gaming
'Commission may be found unsuitable, We belicve that compliance by us with. the ]h:cnsmg proccdures and rcgu]ator} requirements of the Mississippi
Gaming Commission will not affect the markemb:]ny of our securities, Any pérson fonnd unsuitable.who Thalds; dlractly or indirectly, dny beneficial,
ownership of our securities beyond such. tisue as the Mississippi Gaming Commission presmbcs may. be guilty of a misdefbeanor. We are subject 10
-disciplinary dction if, after receiving notice that a person is unsuitable o be a stockholder or o hive any other n:la!wnshlp with us or our subsidiaries
operaling casinos in Mississippi, we:

. pay the unsuitable person any dividend or other distribution upon its voting securitiés; i

. recognize the exercise, directly or indirecty, of any veoting rights conferred by its securities: -

. puy the unsuitable person any remuneration in any form for scrvices rendered or othenwise, except in certain limited and specific circumstances;
or

. fuil to pursue all tawfu) efforts to require the unsuitable person to divest itsélf of the securities, including, if necessary, our immediate purchase of

the sceurities for cash at a fair market value.

+ We may be required to disclose to the Mississippi Gaming Commission upon requést the identities of the holders of any of our debt securities. In
addition, under the Mississippi Gaming Control Act, the Mississippi Gaming Commission may, in its discretion, 1)) require holders of-our securities,
including our notes, 1o file applications, (2) investigate such hdlders and (3) require such holders to be found sunab]e to own such securities. A]lhuug,h the
Mississippi Gaming Commission genenally does not require the individual holders of nbhgatmm such as the notes to be m\.csngated and found suiiable, the
Mississippi Gaming Commission reiains the discrition'to do so for any reason, including but not :
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Vinited 10 a default, or where the holder of the debt instrument cxercises a material indluenee over the paming operations of the entity in question. Any holder
of deht securities required 10 apply for a fifiding of suitability must pay all investigative fées and codts.of the Mﬁsnsqappl Ciaming Commission In connection
with such an investigation. -

‘The-Mississippi regulations provide that a change in contro] of us may not occur withoutthe prior approval of the Mississippi Gaming Commission.
Mississipp ldw piohibits u§ from riiaking a public offe¥ing of bur sceurities Withdw ﬂm approval uof the Mis ‘1.~,slpp: Guning Commission i any part of the.
‘proceeds of the offering is 1o be used to tinance the construction, acquisition or operation nfg'lmmg facilities-in Mi issigsippi, or.to retire of extend obhgat:ona
incurred for one or more such purposes, ‘The Mississippi Gaming Commissionhas the’authority to-grant a contintous appmval of securities offerings and has
granted such approval w us, subject to renewal every threc years.

Regutations of the Mississippi Gaming Cummlssmn prehibil certain repurchases of securities of publicly, traded corporations reglstcrcdu.slh the
Mmsaqq\p;&t Gaming Commission, including ho]dmg companies:such as ours, without prior approval of the Mmlsetppl Gammg Commmmn Tmncacnons
covered by.these regulations are generally aimed at disconraging rcpnrch'zscs of securitjcs at a premiurm over market price from cenainholders of greater than
3% of the outsianding securities of the regmered ppbhcly iraded corporation.: “The rf:gulmmn‘: of the Mississippi Gaming Commission also require prior
approval for.a "plan of recapitalization” as defined in such regulations. '

We must mamtam in the Statc of \4:551551pp1 currenit stock-ledgers, which may be examined by the Migsissippi Gaming Authorities at any time, 1f any
securities are held in trust by an agentorbya nommee,.lhc, record holder may be n:qumtd o d[sc]osc the Jdenutv of the beneficial owner 1o the Mississippt,
Gaming Authoriti¢s. A failure 10 make such disclosure may. be grounds for fifiding the mcord hoider unsuitible. Wé must render maximum assistance in
determining the identity of the beneficial owner.

Mississippt law requires that cerlificates representing shares of onr common’sto alegend to the geneml effect that the securities arg SUhjéu o the
Mississippi‘Gaming Control Act and re;,ulaunns of the' Mississippi Gammg CGmmISSl . The. Missiséippi Gaming Commission has the amhonry 10 grant a
waiver from the Iegend requirement, which we have' nbmmed The: MlS‘ilSHIppl Gaming C‘nmmlsqmn throtigh the power 1o regulate hLCﬂSC'i has the power to
impose additional restrictions on the Holders of or securities at any.time:

The Mississippi Gaming Commission enacted a n:gu]anon in 1994 requiring.that, as a condmOn to-licensuze, an applicant must provide a plan to devclop
infrasuucture faciiities wmounung 1o 25% of the'cost of the casino and a pdﬂ\m‘é facilit "s.apdbk: u.[ a(.c,emmmla\\ma SO cams. in 1990, the Misgissippi Gasnmg
Comm:s::,wn approved dmerdments to ‘this rcgulauan 1hat increased the' mfm'iirucmre'devdopmcm requuemcm from 23% ta [00% for hew casinos {or.upon
acquisition ot a closed casino), but arandfalhen:d c\usung ficensees and dcvclopmcm plans approved prior to/the cffective date of the new :cgu]anon
" Infrastructure facilities” include any of the folluwlng

0 a 250-roam or larger hote] of a1 least a two-star rating as defined hy the cuirent cdition of the. Mobil Travel Guide;

. theme parks;

. goit courses:

. marinas;

. entertainment facilitics;

. tennis compiexes: or

. any other facilities approved by the Mississippi Gaming Commission.
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Parking facilitics, roads, sewage and water systems or civie facilities are not considered "infrastructure facilities.” The Mississippi Gaming Commission
may reduce the number of rooms required in a hotel it s, sant:tned that sufficient rooms are available;to agcommodate the anticipated number of visitars. In
2003 and in 2006, the Mississippi Gaming Commission agam amended its regulation regarding dev c]opmcm plan approval but left ihe 100% infrastructure
requirement intact: kn 2007, the Mississippi Gaming Commission further amended this regulation. Among other things, the 2007 amendment retained the
100% infrastructure requirement and added a requirement that the qualified infrastructure be owned or leased by certain specified persons.

"License fees and Laxes are payable to the State of Mississippi and to the counties and cities in which a° Mississippi gaming subsidiary’s respective
operations will be conducted: The license fec pavable to the state of MlSSlS:.:pp] is based upon gross revenue of the licensee (generally deiined as gaming
;réccipts less payout to customers as winnings) and equals 4% of gross reveniic of $50,000 or less per month, 6% of pross revenne in excess of $50,000 but
less than $134,000 per calendar month, and 8% of gross revenue in excess of $134,000 per ealendar month. The foregoing license fees are allowed a3 a credit
against the licensee's Mississippl income tax liability for the year paid. Addltlondl'l), a Jicensee must pay @ 35,000 annual license fee and an annual fee based
upon the number of games it operates. The gross revenue tax imposed by the- Mmsrwlppl communities and counties in which our casine operations are located
equais 0.4% of gross revenue of $50,000 or less per calendar month, 0.6% of gross fevenue over $50, 000 and less than $134,000 per calendar month and 0.8%
of gross revenue greater than $134,000 per calendar month. Thesc fees have heen inposed in, among other cities and counties, Riloxi and Coahoma County.
Certain loeal and private laws of the state of Mississippi may impose fees or taxes on the Mississippi gaming subsidiaries in addition to the fees descnbed
above.

In April 2010, the Misstssippi Gaming Commisston adopled a rcgu]almn amendment that imposes a flat apnual fec on each casino operator licensee,
covering all investigative fees for that year associated with an operator licensee, any entity rcglstcrcd as a-holding company or publicly traded corporauon of
that ticensee, and any person required to be found suitable in connection with that licensee or any holding company or publicly traded corporation of that
licénsce. The particular fee s based on the average nurubier of gaming dévices opcmtcd by the licensee durmg a twelve (12) month period, as reported to the -
Mississippi Gaming Commission: The investigative fee is $325,000 for licensees with 1500 of more g,ammg devices, $250 000 for licensees with 1000 to
1499 gaming devices, and 5150,000 for liconsees with less than 1000 gaming devices. The fec is pays able in four (4) cqual quarterly msml]mcms The
amendment provides that should such total investigative fees collected by the Mississippi Gaming Commission exceed the amount allowed by Mississippi
statute, then the excess fees will be credited to the licensees for the following year, ‘The amended regulation also provides a schedule of various fees
dppllcabk to licensees and persans hot covered by the annual investigative fee.

The Mississippi Guming Commission requires, us 4 condition of licensure or license fenewal, that casing. w:t.wls on the Mississippi Guif C\msi that are
hot self-propeiled must be moored to withstand a Category 4 huricane with 155 mite- per-hour w inds-and 15 foot tidal surge. However, after Humcane
Kairina, Isle—Biloxi reopened its casino on shoje rather than on a vessel. A 1996 M:ssmtppn Gaming Commission regulation prescribes the hurrieane
emergency procedure to be used by the Mississippi Guli Coast casinos,

The sale of food or akeoholic beverages at our Mississippt gaming locations is subject i6'licensing, control-and regulation by the applicable state and local
authoritics. The.agencies involved have full power o limit, candition, suspiend or tevoke any such license, and any such disciplinary action could (and
revocation wonld) have a matenal adverse effect upon the optrations of the affecied casino orcasinos. Cénain of our officers and MInapess and our
Mississippi gaming subsidiaries must be inv estigated by the Alcoholic Bev erage Control Division of the Mlss:sslppl Departmem of Revenuc in connection
with liguor permits that have been issucd. The Alcoholic Beverage Control Division ofth.:_Ml;snssnppl Dcparlmcm of Revenue must approve all changes in
licensed positions. -
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On three separate occasions since 1998, certain anu-gam:ng groups have proposed referenda:that, if adopied, would have banned gaming in-Mississippi
and required that gaming entities cease operations within two years after the ban.All three refercnida were declared invalid by Mississippi courts because each
lacked a reguired government revenue impact staternent.

Missourri

Conducting gambling activities and operating an excursion gambling boat in. Missour] are-suhject.to éxtensive regulation under M:ssoun s Riverboat
Gambling Act and the nutes asid regulations promulgated ihercundcr The Missotiri Gaiuing ("onumss:on (the "Commlssmn") was created by the Missourj
Riverboat Gambling Act and is charged-with regulatory am.humy dver, nvr:rboa't  gaming operatmns in Missouri, including the i issvance of 1iv erbua\ gaming
licenses to pwners, operators, supphcrs and cetain affiliates ofrwcrboat gamlng Tacilities. In June 7000 10C:Kansas City, Inc.. a subsnd!a.ry of oIS, was
issued a riv Erbom gaming license'in conneetion with our, Kansas C[ty operation., in December. 2001, 10XC-Boonville, Inc., a subsidiary of curs. was'issued a
riverboat gaming license for otr Baonville opcrauun Tn- une of 2007, 10C-Caruthersville,; LLC ﬁ‘k.’a Aztar M:ssoun R.l\'erbo{lt Gaming Compzmv, LLC.
wiis acquired by us and nperates.as a subsidiary of ours undér ’\-ht:soun nverbont gaming ficense. (n 70!0 10C- Cape Girardean LL.C, a Sl]b‘;ldlﬂﬂi’ of ours,
participaied in a:competitive process established by the Commission, thmugh Wh]ch a'new gaming facility development in Missouri would be selected for
prioritization. [n December 2010, 10C-Cape Glrardeau LL(‘ on this | PrOCESS whcn it p n'posed gaming facility develnpment i Cape Gll"drdcall "Missouri
was selecied by the Commnsqlon for prioritization. While there are NEMEFous condmnm mlatmg to fise. opsmng ‘of the guming Tacility in- Missouri, mc]udmg
regulatory approvals, it is anticipated that the facility in Cape Glmrdeau will'be uperatmna] in-the fowrth quarteér af 2012,

-Asa pnmcxpzml in this process, 1OC-Cape Glrardcau LLC applled fora Cl'

5 B ijerboat Gammg L:ccn-;e in Mlssoun The decision by Lhe Commissjon

such alicense will he gamsd The Class B’ Llccnsc requu‘ed for, lOC Capc Glmtdeau L [ Cw opcmte isi proposed paming facility cannm be gmmed by the
Commission untit the gaming, facility dx:w.lopmcm is sub'atanually ‘camplete zad teady. t dccept patrons: The:grant of this livense'is subject 1o numerous
conditions described below.

In ofder o obtain a ficense to eperate a riverboat garuig faumy the proposcd aperating business entity must complete a Riverboat Gaming App]JLaIwn
form requesting a Class B License. [n order.to oblain #license to"own’ and/o’ conlro]'d riverboat gaming facility as its ultimate holding company, a company
must complete a Riverboat Gamlng Application form fequestinga ‘Clags A Llcen:.c Che! Riverboit Gaming Apphcatmn furm is comprised of comprehensive
queqtmns regarding the nature and suitability 6f the applicant. Apphl.amq who submif the Rivérboat G'mun;, Application form requesting gither a Class A or
Class B Liccnse undergo an extensive baekgronnd | investigation by the Commission: [n2ddition, each key person assaciated wit the applicant (including
directors; officers, managers and owners of a smml'cam direct or- mdm:cl Lerest in thc Class Aor Class'B License applicafnit) imist complete & Key Person
and Lével 1 Application (Persona] stciosure Form'1) and unr.[ergo a eubstanual background investigation. Cenain key business eatities closely related to the
Bpphtan( of "key person business entities” must undergo a smular wpphuuon process and: backgm\md cheek, An applicant for a Class A or Clasz'B-License-
will not receive a'license if the applicant and its key persens, mchdmg key. persoi business entiries, have not established’ good répute and moral character, and
no licensee shall either employ-ar contract with any person who hidis pled guilly to; or been convicted oty a felony, 16 perforin any duties direcily comnected
‘with'the licensee's privileges under a license granted by the Comnn_ssmn

Each Class B License granted entitles a Jicensee to conduct gambling activities on an cxcursion gambling boat of t0 operatc an excursion gambling boat
and the cquipment thereon from a specific

)l




location. Each Class A License granted entitles the licensce to develop and eperate a Class B licensee of, if swmhorized, muhiple Class B licensecs. The
duration of both the Class A and Class B-License initiaily rons for two one-year teems; thevcafter, for. twnlyear terms. [n conjunction. with the renewil of. each
lieénse, the Commission requijes the filing of a Riverboat Gaming Rencwal App]lcanon form-and rcncwa] fees. Tn: conjunction with cach rencwal, Tthe
Cumm]qsmn may cenduet an additional investigation of the licensee with speum emphasison new informiation provtdcd in the’ RJ\'erbml Gammg Renewsal
App]lcauon form. The Commission also possesses the right 1o pcnodlcally conduct a'comprehensive; investigation on any Class A, ClassB, supplier or key
perkan Jicensee since the dite the last comprehensive investigation was conducted. The Cominigsion 5o licenses the serving of aleoholic beverages on
riverboats and related facilities.

.in determining whether to.grant a license, the Commission considers the tollowing factors, among others: (3) the integrity of the applicant:'(ii} the types
and variety of games the applicant may offer; (iii) the qual]ty ot the ph}uca.l f‘acxhty 1ogcﬂ1u with improvements:and equipment; and how soen the project
will be compieted; (iv} the financial ablhty of the dpp]}cant to.develop and’ opc:alc the tacility successfily: (v) the status of _l,ovemmcnml actions required by
the taul:ty (vi) the management ability of the applicant; (’vu) compliance with ﬂpphcahic statutes; mles, charters ‘and ordinances; {viii) the economic,
ccological and socia) impact of the Faclhty as well as the cost of public improvements; (iX) the extent of puh!u: support or opposition; (x) the plan adopled ov
the homie dock. eity or county; and {xi) effects on compétition.

A lidensee is subject io the imposition of penalties, suspension or rt:vcx.auon Jof its Ticense- for any act that is mJurmue, torthe pablic health, safety, morals,
good ordér and general welfare of the people of the State of Missouri, or that wcmld dxsucdlt or tend to dlscrcdjt thé Missowri gaming industry or the Statc of
Mlssoun mcludmg without limitation: (1) failipg-to comply. with or make pmv:smn fo; mmphance ‘with' the legisi the sules promulgatcd theréunder or
any f'edcral state or Jocal law of rcgulauon' (n) fallmg 1o comply with any rizles; Ordcr or rullng of the Commxssmn or its agenis pertainifig fo garmng.

(i} recciving goods or services from a person or.business entity who does fiot hold a8 suppilcr s license but who'is fequired {o hold such lizense by |he
legislation or the nules: (iv) bcmg suspended or ruled ineligible or. hd‘r‘!.l'lg alicense revoked'or suspendéd in dny state or; gammgjunsdlcuon (v) assocnaung
with, either socially or in business affairs, or, empluymg persons of nomrlous OFUNSAVOTY reputatich or who have exlenswe police reconds, of who have failed
io‘cooperate. with dny oﬁ:cmlly conshtmed mvc.mgmorv or admmmlrﬂuvc Body and wotld advcrr:c]y affect pub[lc conﬂdcncc and trugt in gaming:

(vi) emplnymg in any Missouri gaming operation any, persnn knnwn to haw: ‘necn:tﬂund gulhy of chealmg or sing any-improper devwe in connection with
any gamb]m gamc; (vii) use of fraud, deception, nnsrcpresemanon or bnber} in‘securing :my license or’ pcmm issued pursuant o, the !eg;shlmn
{¥iii) obwaining any{ee; charge or. mher cumpemauon by frand, dcct:puun or mi L.prt:acntatmn and (:x) incotpetence, misconduct, gross’ neghgencc fraud,
'mlsrcprcsentauon or dishonesty in the performance of the functions or dutics regulated by the Missouri- fverboat CGambling Act.

Any transter or jssuance of ownership interests in a publicly held  gaming:Jicense or its-holditig ¢company that results in an entity or group ‘of entities
acting in concen swning, dircctly or indifectly, an aggregate uwncn!up mtu‘c“t at 3% o more in the gaming liccnsec must be rcpom.d 10 the Comrmsmon
within seven days, Further, any plcdge or. hypothecation of, or grafit nf‘a scu.lmy mtcn._st in; 5% or.more of the ownersmp interest jin a pub]lclv held gammg
licensee of its holding company raust'be reported 10 tie Commission within seven days: The Commission, will impose certain licensing requirements ppon a
holder of an aggregate ownership i mlemsl of 5% or more’in'a pub]lciyvlradcd stsoun Class A or Clas:v B ltcensee un!csn- such holder app]les for.and obtains
ari instinitional i invesior exémption in’ accordancc with the Missouri gaming rcsn!l‘mons The Executive Director of the Cormmission may grant a waiver to an
institutional investor. that hotds up to 10% 6f the outslanding
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equity of the Missouri licensee. The Commission itself may grant a waiver to n institutional invester that halds up te 2096 of the outstanding cquity of the
Missouri licensee.

Every employee participating in a riverbeat gdmmg operation must hold an occupational Ticense. ln addition; the Commission issues supplier's licenses,
which anthorize the supplier licensee to sell or lease geming equipment and Suppl:ea to any Jicensee involved'in the operation of gaming activities. Class A
and Class B licensees may not be ficensed as snpp]rem .

Rivernoat gaming activities may only be condicted on, or within 1,000 fiet of the main clunnel of, the Missouri River or Mississippi River. Minimum
and maximuin wageis ‘on games are set.by the licensee, and wagenng nmay be’ conductcd on]y with a cashle':s wagermg system; whercby money is converted
to tokens, clectmruc cards or chips that can enly be wied for wageiing. No person vhder te age of 24738 permmcd 10, WageT, and wagers may only be faken
from 2 person present on a licensed excursionzambling boat. .

TheMissouri Riverboat Gamblmg Act IMPOses 3 N, wageriig wx on ad_;us.ted gross receipis (gcncra]ly defined as gross reccipis less winnings paid to

wagerers) from: gambilng games. The tax imposed is'to be paid by the Ticensee to.the. Commission an'the day’ aﬁer the day when the wagers were mide. Of the
.praceeds of the wagering tax, 10% of such proceeds goes 1o the local government where thé'home dock is.lacated, and the remainder goes to the State of
Missourn.

The Missouri Riverboat Gambling Act also requires that licensees pay a $2.00 adm!ssmn tax to the Lumm:ssmn for each person admitied to'a gaming
cruise. One doHar of the admlssmn fee goes to the Statc of \11:.suun ando c‘do]lar, goes 10 thc home dnck city in ' which the licensce operates. The licensee is
required to mpaintain pubhc bonks and records clearly showing’ amaums recewe}i from: admission fees; the totat gmiotiit of gross receipts and the total anjount
‘of adjusted gross receipts. [n. addmun all local § :ncomc. camings, e, propénty, arid sales: taxes are app abie m hc:cnsees l'mm time to umc Lhcre havc been
several proposed bilis pcndmg beforc the Missouri Geperat Accemb]y which mdlwd
used in food and beverage pumhases {2) ad_]ust the amount of waggering ia; 1mpnscd on adjusted £r055 ru:elpis of:- hccnsecs ‘and/or (3) adjusl the amount of
admission ta% paid by the licensee for.each person adinitted for 2 gaming cruise:

Pennsylvania B

n 2004, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania established the Penn\ylvama ('amlm, y Control Board ("PGCB") to oversee the creation of the pew casing
industry. Initially, only slot machines were permitted, but in-2010, the 15w wa scd o, au!hnnze table games as well {collectively, the "P!\ (Gaming Law®
The law created’ three categorics of licenses—Eategory 1 slot machmc licenses for up to;seven jicensed rﬂcd.mck tacn]mcs, five Category. 2 2 Ticenses (1wo i
Philadelphia, one in Pirtsburgh and two "t large"). and three Categury 3 licenses. to wc]l-e‘;!abhshcd resort hot:]s having po fewer than 273 ghest rooms under
common ownership and-having substantial. vear-around recreational guest amemh ORe o wh;ch C'ncgorv 3:licenses cannot be issued before July, 2017,
Hoiders of Category '] and Category 2 licenses are entitled 1o up 10 5,000 $iot mac ines and 230 rable' games. Holders of Category 3 licenses are entitled to up-
to 500 slot mackines and 30 1able games.

The holder of a Category 3 license may only permit entry into the gaming area of the facility by.the following:

(1} A registered overniight guest of the resart. -

{2) A pouon of on¢ or more of the amenities of the fesort, A pairon of an, amenity'is any individual who is a repistered attendee of 2 coivention,
meeting or banguet event or panicipant ina Spoit of Teereational event ur.any cther social, cultral or Basiness event held o o reson hoéd or who
participates in one of more of the amenitics provided to registered -
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guests of the hotel In retum for non-de minimus consideration, currently defined by the PGCR- &5 S10.00. A _patron of an amenity at the resornt may
he'permitted unlimited access 1o the gaming floor for one 24 hour period within 73 houts of use of the amienity.

{3)  Anawmhorized employee of the licensce or paring service provider, of the PGCB or any regulatary, emergency response or law enforcement
agency while engaged in the performance. of the employee's dutics,

{(#)  An individual holding a valid membershlp approv ed by the PGCB or 4 giest of such individual: The PGCB may approve seasonal ar year-round
membershins that allow ap'individual to use one ar.mare of the amenities nrovided by the resort; hased v upar the duration of the membership, the
amenity cavercd by the Membership and whethes the fee charged represents the fair market. w.\luc for the use of the amenity.

‘The first two Category 3 licenses arc not'to be located wnhm 15 linear mileés of unother licensed facility. The 'third Category 3 license to be issued on or
atter. July 20, 2017 is not to be located within®30 linear miles Dfdnothcr licensed facilily. The license fee for a Category 3 slot machine license is 85 million
dnd for.a Category 3 tible game operation certificate is$7.5 million,

The first Category 3 license was awarded to the Vallr:y Forge Canvention Cénter'in April 2009, which opened the Valley. Forge Cagino Resort on
March31; 2012. IOC-PA, LLC (“IOC PAY), a wholly:owned sub51d.lal‘y of Is]c tesmed _up with Nemacolin'Wood lands'Resort ("Ncmacoim") and Woodlands
Fayette [_C ("Woodlands Fayetie") to dcxclop and manage a proposed Categdry 3.cadino at Nedacolin i i Fa\'ctte County, Pcnnsylvanta Thc casino will be
called "Lady Luck—Nemacolin”. Three other apphcams competed wnh ‘Woodlands Fayette tor, the remdmmg a\allablc Category 3 License and in April 2011,
Woodlaids Fayetté wiis aWwarded thé Cateory 3 lcense., One of the othr:r apphcants appculcd theaward of the license 1o Woodlands Favette to the
Pennsylvania Sypreme Coant and oral argumen: was held'on March ? 2012’ The:Supreme Court is required to:aftim the adjudma:mn unle:c 1! ﬁncb; that the

.PGCB commiitted an error of law or.that the order; delfrmmatlon ar, dr:msmn of ihe'PGCB was athitrary. and Lhcre was a capricions disiegard of evidence, We
are awaiting a ruling from the Supreme Court.

1OC-PA must bé licensced as the wanager of Lady Luck—Nemacolifi: 10C-PA-is Tequised 1o prme by clear and convincing evidence its financial stability
and integrity, and that of its.affiliates and holding companies, and their; good charaL honesty andi integrity..tn’ addition, the table garme operation certificate
needs 1obe applied for and obtained befare the opcn.mg of Lady Cuck—Nemaoolin: Thelicenses ta be idsied 10 Wébdlands Fayetic and 1OC-PA & rill be
‘issued for onc year and will need to be renewed annually theréatter.

Thé Managément agreement between 10C-PA-ad Woodlands Fayétie. is not effective.umil the terms-ind conditions thereaf havé been approved by the
PGCB: In addition, any amendmens to the management apreement must-he submitied to the PGCB 30 d'nys prior to the effective date of the proposed
amendment nd shall not become effective until the: PGCB has reviewed and: applovcd thie lerms, and condnuuns l.hcreuf “As the management company, [OC-
PA may, be ij!]V and severaliy liable for any act or omission by Woodlands Faye[le as the slot machine lcensee in violation of the Act or the regulations,
regerdicss of actual knowledge by IOC:PA of the act or.omission.

Cenam persons amhmcd wnh HQC- PA mciuqu our duecmn key employccﬂ 'md any pcmm wim acquue: a \% or greater bencﬁcsal :meres'. of our
‘lppllcant establish by clear and wnvmcmg evidence ih lhe applu.am ennd Chm’acler hnne'ﬂy and mtegrny In addmun ‘any trm: tha1 holds 5% pcn:cm ar more
of our u:m.ng securitics is required to be licensed b, the PGCB and’ Each indiv ldlel who is 2 grantor, tustee or bcncﬂcuary of the.trust is also required 10 be
licensed by the PGCB. Under cértain cm.umshmces antt uider. the regu]auuns of:
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‘the PGCB an "institmional investor,” as defined under the regulations, which acquires ownership of 3% or more, tiut fess than 1026 of our voting securities,
may, not be required to be licensed by the PGCR provided thatamotice of cwnership £5rmi is filed with the PGCB..In addition, uny beneficial owner of cur
voting securities, rcaardless of thc raumbcr of. sharcs bcncﬁudlly owncd may he. rcqmrcd a ahc d:scrcuon of the’ PGCB 0 tlic an app]:canon for licensure.

Non-renéwal, sispension of revocation of a- license, permit, certification-or registration may oceur f'or sufficient cduse consistent with the PA Gamiag
Law 4nd pubhc interest. A persan whose applu.almn has been denied or whose license, pcnmt ‘Certification’or mglstrauon has.been’ revoked may not apply for
a license, permit,-certification or reg!stratmn for five years from the date of denial er, revocation, excepl vnder certaincircumstances. in the event any of our
security holders is required 1o be licénsed arid is rot found qualified, the security holder may be mqmrcd by the PGCB to divest its interest at a price nat
exceeding the cost of the interest.

1t is the cmmnumq duty of all holders of licenses; permits, certitications or registrations to fully cooperate with the PGCB in the conduct of any inquiry
or investigation and to provide supplcmcnmr_\, infarmation requested by the PGCB.

JOC-PA T required to notify the PGCR of any proposed appoimment, appointment; proposed nominatien, nomination, clection, hiring, tender of
résignation, resignation; removal, firing, incapacitation or death of any person required tw be; licensed as 4 prmCIpaI or key employee undei the PA Gaming
Law or Lhc reguiations promul},dxcd thereunder. In addition, 1OC-PA is also required 1o nouty the' PGCB aé soon 3s it becomes awire that it intends to enter
into a transaction which may result in any new financial backers.

The PGCB has broad authority to sanciion, fine, suspend and revoke a license for violations of the PA Gaming-i,aw.

10C-PA is required-to submit to the PGCB with respeet-to Lady Luck:Nemicolin: (1) fu)ly, signed copjes of all written agreemenis with manufacturers,
suppliers and vendors, 2)a description of any oral agn.cmcn:s with-any manufacturcrq qupphcrs and vendors! {3) copies of all agrccmcms relating to land-
and real estate and (4) copies of all writien agreements or a‘description of: any ofal agitémenti with a'person which’ 1nvolvcs or may involve paymems of
5300,000’01 moTe per year t0-a Penasylvinia slot machine licensee; together with-any changes nr,amcndi_'ncnls ihcre[o and any oLhcr.qgreements as requested
by ihe PGCB. -

We must notify the PGCB.immediatély upon becoming awire of any proposed or contemplated change in the ownership of [sle or.10C-PA by a person
ara group of persons acting in concert which involves any ofithe following:

(1)  more than 5% percent of our securities or other ownership interest;

(2)  more than 3% of the securities or other ow nership interests of a cotporation or othér form of business entity that owns, dircetly or indirectly, at
least 2057 of cur voting or other securities or ownership interests;

(3)  the sale, other than the nomal course of business, of Isle or iOC-F.A:'s'assehs; and

(4)  other ransactions or acenrrences deemed by the PGCR 1o be'relevant to:license qualifieation.

PGCB approval is required prior & the completion of any proposed change of ownership that meets the above criteria.

Upon'a cﬁangp of control of Woodlands Fayette, the acquirer of the ownership inierest would be required to qualify for licensure and pay a new license
fee 0 $5 million. The PGCB retaias the
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discretion 10 ¢liminate the need for qualification and/or reduce the license fee required upon a change of control.

Pennsylvania imposes up to a 35% tax on slot nmiachine revenues, consisting of 34% of slot machine revenues to the State Garning Fund, 2% 10 Fayetie
County, 2% to Wharton Towaship, up to 13% to support live racing and 5% to the Pennsylvania (‘ammg Ecenomic Developrment and Tourism Fund. In
addition, during the initial two years of table game operations, Pn.misy]\ama imposes a table game tax-of 14% of table game revenucs to the Commonwealth,
plis a 2%, local share to each of Fayette County and Wharton Teivnship. Following the initial two vears of operation, the table game tix to e’
Commonwealth is reduced to 12% of wable game revenucs, plus 2% to cach of Fayette County and Wharton Township.

Slot machine and table pame operators in Pénnsylvania are also required 1o reimburse the PGCB for its administrative and opemung expenses. The
assessment rate of these fees has not been finalized by the PGCB. In addition, in order to fund operations of the PGCB, an initia} loan ofapprnx:mately
$36.1 million was granted to the PGCB from gaming tax funds received by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, followed by additional leans in the aggregate
amount of approximately $63.8 miltion, all of which was to fund the PGCB's opémtional costs,

On July |1, 2011, the PGCB adopted a schedule governing the repayment of the appro“mately 363.8 million in doans by licensed gaming emmes The
schedule provndea that the leans will be rcpald in quancrly installments over ten years, with one- tenth of the iotal injtial loan balance as it existed on July 1
2011 repaid each year by the operating gaiming facilities, Lumrncm.mg on January. 1, 2012, Each operating facility's fortion of the payment for each year is
calculated on a pro rata basis in rélation to an average of the fac;hty s annual and cumu]atnc gross terminal revenue. The repayment of the' initial
£36:1 million in appropriation comtinues to be deferred uniil all licensees have conumenced opcrauons Lurrent!y there are eleven licensed facilitics
operational in Pennsylvania,
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STA'I‘Ea\‘I}hV'I‘S‘

This Annual Report contains statements that we believe are, or may be considered to be, "farwam‘-loakmg statements™.within the meaning of the Privats
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1895. Al statements other than siatements of. historical lact inchuded in this Annual Report regarding the prospects of our
industry or. our prospects, plans, financial position or business straltegy. may. cansr{ture forward-looking statements. in addition, forward- foakmg stalements
genera!ly can be:identified By the use of forward-looking words suchas "may," “will,” “expect, ™ “intend, " “estimate, " "foresee,” “project,” “anticipate,”

“believe,” “p!ans " “forecasts,” “contimie™ or "coufd” or the negatives of these lerms or variations of them or similar terms. Furthermore, such forward-
looking staterments may be included in various filings that we make with the SECor press Teleases or oral statements made by or-with the approval of opc of
aur authorized executive officers. Although we believe that the expeczauons reflected in these forward—laokmg statements are reasanab!e we cafifiol assire
yau that these expectations will prove 1o be correct. These lorward- -locking statements are subject to certain known Snd unknown risks and uncertaintics, as
welf as assumptions thar could cause actual results to differ materialfy from those reﬂecred i1 these forward- fooking statements. Factors that might cause
actual resufts to differ inciude, but are not limited to, those discussed in lhe section entitled.“Risk. Factors"” beginning on page 9 o this reporr Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-iooking s:afemen:s canramed herein, which reffect managemenrs opinions om’y as of the date herof,
Exr:ep: as reqmred by law, we undertake ne obligation to revisg or publfcf_y reiease me results of any revision to any fanvard—laa!rmg statements. You are
advised, however, to consult any additional disclosures we make in our reports to the SEC. A!! subsequenr written and oral forward.- .locking statements
aliributatile to us or persons acling on our behalf are expressly quatified in their entirety By the cautionary stalements contained in this Annual Report.
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PART1
ITEM I. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilitics and related lodging and entertainment facilities in regional markets it the
United States. We own and operate 13 gaming and entertainment facilitics in Louisiana, Missistippi, Missouri, lowa, Co]orado and Flonda. Collectively,
these properties feature approximately 13,000 stot machines and over 370 table garnes (mcludmg approximately 110 poker iables) over 3,000 hotel rooms and
more than 40 restaurants. We also operate a harness racing track at our casino ifi-Florida: Our portfolio of properties providss s with a diverse geographic
footprint that minimizes peographicalty concentrated risks caused by weather, regional economic difticulties, gaming tax rates and regulations imposed by
local gaming anthoritics.

~ Strategic Plan Components

The Isle of Capri senior management tcam brings over 200 collective years of gaming industry experience spanning 20 states, six foreign jurisdictions
“and over 73 individual gaming properties. Since joining the company in 2007, this team developed and are executing a strategic operating plan that focuses un
the financial discipline and core operating principles of the company in order to increase oug chistomer’s satisfaction with our produci offerings while at the
same time increasing stockholder value. Our business approach is anchored by the fo]]owme sr.mu.glc components:

Financial discipline.

We utilize a disciplined approach to evaluate financial decisions with the contmnmg goal 1o improve our capital strecture and tinancial fiexibility. We
have redueed our outstanding debt from approximately $1.5 billion as of April 27,°2008 io approxifiately $1.2 billion as of April 24, 2011, a reduction of
approximately $310 million. W¢ achieved this reduction primarily through the use ot cash oained from the.sealement of our Harricane Kamm claim and
cash flows from operations. We retired $142.7 million of cur 7% senior suibordinated notes for $82:4 million 1hrough a tender offer in February 2009 and
prepaid $35.0 million of our term loans under our eredit facility in March 2009.

On January 23, 201, we continued to improve our capital structore by raising $51.2 million in net proceéds through the issuance of 3.3 million shares of
our common steck. [n March 2011, we issued 3300 million in 7.75% scnior notes and utilized the proceeds to repay borrowings under onr eredit facility. Also
in March 2011, we entered-into an amendment o our Credit Facility: which; among other things, exrended the maturity of the revalving credit facility and
term foan and increased flexibility in operitions and Capital spending. We continually seck opportunities to improve our capjtal structure.

Focusing on core aperating principles that have proven successiul.

Our operating focus is 10 deliver a superior guest experience by prov Jdmg customers with.the most popular gaming product in 2 clean, safe, friendly and
tun environment: These arcas have been shown through customer rescurch to cmbody the attributes of a gaming entertainment experience most impartant to
our customers in choosing which casino 1o visit. We emphasize, among other things, customer courtesy and we have 1mplemcmed a proprietary program io
measure our progress against standards for cenain courteous behaviors. In additioh, many of Guf capital and operaiing plans are intended 10 improve on goest
satisfaction, including quality, accessibility and cleanliness of areas frequented by vur customers, such as hotel rooms and other public areas in our hotels and
casina floors. We also have implemented employee incentive programs designed to encourage employees to deliver superior custonier service and courtesy.
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Driving value through product offerings and branding.

Our current branding strategy includes two separate brand names: Isle and Lady Luck (which we re-lminched in fiscal 2009). Through comprehensive
market studics and custemer fecdback, we have found that our brands convey excitement, entertainment, consistent high-quality service and value to our
customers. B

We use the Esle brand primarily at properties that have a regional draw. These are generaily casinos:in larger markets where we have cxpansion poteniial
demonstrated by either the size of the market or excess fand that we control. The [sle-branded propertics typically offer expanded amenities, such as hotel
roams, expanded foud and beverage offerings and conference and convention capuabilities.

We use the Lady Luck brand for properties that predominantly draw local customers, which are typically in smaller markets with less expansion
potential. The goal of the Lady Luck brand is to offer a first-class gaming experience and high quality entertainment options, featuring casual dining and
popular local entertainment in a comfortable setting.

We have compieted the refurbishment and rebranding of three of our existing Isle propertics under the Lady Luck brand: Marquette, lowa In September
2009, Colorado Central Siation in Black Hawk, Colorade in June 2009 and Caruthersville, Missoust in December 2008. Assuming economic conditions
improve and capital availability is enhanced, we intend to rebrand additional properties under the Lady f,uck name during the next few years. Our current
expectations are that Natchez, Lulz and Vicksburp, Mississippi: Lake Charles, Louisiana: Boonville; and Kansas City, Missouri will eventually be rebranded
as Lady Luck casinos,

We offer all customers membership in our customer loyalty program, which rewands customers with-points and complimentary benefits that can be
redeermed at any of our properties by using a players' club card. As a result, we have developed an extensive proprietary daiabase that allows us to create
cffective targeied marketing and promational programs, merchandise giveaways, gaming tournaments and other special events. As of April 24, 2011, our
database contained approximately 1.3 million members, of whom approximarely 0.3 million receive regular communications from vs. We belicve we
effectively use our database 10 encourage repeat visits and increase our custemers' lengih of stay 41 our properties.

Aggressively pursuing prudent growth opportunities.

On December 1, 2010, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected our proposed casing prajéct in Cape Gitardeau (the "Cape Girardeau Project™) for
prioritization for the thirteenth and final gaming license in the State of Miszouri. We intend 10 brand this casino as an Isle property, which we expeet to
include approximately 1,000 slot machines, 28 1able games, three wstanrants, a lounge and terrace overlooking the Mississippi River and a 750-seat event
centerat an estimated cost of $125 million. We anticipate construction 10 begin in-summer 201 | and easing operations to begin in the fourth calendar quaner
of 2012,

We also continue to seek to expand our operations through acquisitions, such-as our acquisition of the Rainbow Casino Jocated in Vicksburg, Mississippi
in June 2010 for approximately $76 million. Vicksburg is lovated approximately one mile south of Lnterstate 20, the main road connecting Jackson,
Mississippi to Vicksburg. The casino features 762 slot machines, 6 1able games, # 224-seat Riverview Buffet, a 26-seat Crossroads Deli and 977 parking
spots.

Additionally, we formed Isle Gaming Management, 8 managemeni and consulting division of the Company, in 2009 to leverage our experienced ond
respeeied management team and intellectual property by managing and operuting casinos owned by third parties in cxchange for management and other fees.
The goal of Isle Gaming Management is to aow us to manage additional casino properties without requiring extensive capital investment. On April 14, 2011,
the Nemacolin Woodlands Reson
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("Nemacolin™} in Farmington, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board for the findd Category 3 resort gaming license. We had
previously entered into an agreement with Nemacolin to complete the build-out of the casino space and provide mzmagcment services for the casino. The
casine is expected to include 600 slot machines, 28 tble games, a easual dmmg restaurant and lounge. We will pay ai dnnwa) fe to the resort ownér and in
“retarn will receive n management fee equal to the EBITDA of the casine after payment of the fee'to Nemacolin, We currently estimate the project cost at
approxXimatety $50 million and expect Lo be complete within nine months of the commencement of construction. The award of the license 1o Nemacolin is
subject to a 30-day appeal period, which ends on June 20, 2011, and the obtainment of 8 management license.

Finally, in September 2010, we were awarded a gaming license by Nevada's Gaming Conirel Board, expanding the universe of opporninitics that we can

ultimately pursue.

Casina Properties

The following is an vverview of our existing casino properties as of April 24, 201 i

Slot Table  Hotel  Parking

Pmn(‘rl\ Date Acquired nrﬂge;_ed Mnchlna ) (‘lme- Raoms _ Spaces
Loufsrana . 3 T R "&""' R
bEake Charles! ;5493 1253353
Mississippi

Lula March 2000 1,177 12 484 1,611

Biloxi August 1992

Natchez March 2000

Vu,kshursz ]

R

M.-ssoun v ; A
Biarsas C ity”
Roonville. : .
ll'Carulher:\,'n]le LY
lowa
Bettendorf March 2000 28 514 2,057
_Rhythm City—Duavenport Qctaber 2000 15 — 911
Marquette March 2000 11 — 475
June "007 3 195 1,300
"R T "“"'—"-"‘ =

Lo ’\?cv“,.———t:
R

-
4‘ wa“m af

Dcccmbcr 1993’ 3

Florida
Pompano Park uly 1995/April 2007 1,448 8. — 3800

14,947 375 3,078 21,782

{.euisiana
Lake Charles

Our Lake Chartes property, which commenced operations in July 1995, is located on 2 19-acre site along Intersiate 10, the main thoroughfare connecting
Haouston, Texas 1o Lake Charles, Louisiana. The propenty consists of two dockside casinos offering 1,806 slot machines, 50 table games, 28 poker tables, two
hotels offering 493 rooms, a 105,000 square foot land-based pavilion and enreniainment center, and
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2,335 parking spaces, including approximately 1,400 spaces in an attached parking garage. The pavilion end entertainment center offer customers a wide
vafiely of non-gaming amenities, inclading a 109-seat Otis & Henry's restdurunt, o 280-seat Cdl) pso’s buffet, a 70-seut Lecky Wins Asian-inspired restaurant,
which also includes a grab and go deli, and Caribbean Cove featuring free h‘.e emenammem andcan accommodatc 180 guests. The pav:hon also hasa 14,750
square fool enterainment center comprised of'a 1,100-seat special events centef de:ugm.d for, conkers, live bcnunu 1¢levised pay-per-view events, bdnqutts
and other events, meeting facilities and administrative offices. On Junc'13, 2011, we granted an option agreement 10 a third party which could result in-the
sale ofcertmn assets used at our Lake Charles, Louisiana property. The opuon agrccmem cxpm:s on Novembcr 30, 2011 and 15 subjecttoa nuruber of
conditions: The.iransaction is also subject 1o regivatary and other approva‘ls -and passage 1 a'loca) rcfcrcnd-um 10-relocate the vessel to a different market. 1f
the option is exercised and the transaction closes, we wouid continue to operate our. Lake Charles hotel and land-based operations and consolidate our gaming
‘operations onto cne gaming vessel.

The Lake Charles markei currently consists of two dockside gaming fnmhucs a Nauvc American casino and a pari-mutuel facility/racino. The current
number of slot machines in the market exceeds 7,900 machines and tble games ‘exceed 125 tables. In calenddr year 2010; the two paming facxlmes and one
racino, in the agpregate, generted gaming revenues of approxnmatcly 863§ ‘million;: Revenues for the Native American property. are not published. Gaming
revenues for our Lake Charles propenty for calendar vear 2010 were appruxmmtcly kR ml]llon Lake Charles'is the closest gaming market 1o the Houston
metropolitan area, which has a popu]auon of approximately 5,5 million and is lotated approximately, 140 miles west of Lake Charles. We believe that our
Lake Charles-property attracts customers primarily from southeast Texas, mc!udmg Houston; Beaumont, Gal\.eston Omngc and Port" Arthur and from local
area residents. Approximately 500,000 and 1.6 million people reside within'$0 and 100 m]]c: respectively; of the ‘Lake Charles property.

‘Mississinpi
Luia

Our Lula property, which we acquired in March 2000, is straicgically located off of nghuay 49, the only road crossing the Mississippi River between
Mississippi and .-\rkansas fnr more than 50 miles in either direction. The property consists oftu.o docks:de casmos contammg 1, 177 slot machines and l’
pavilion and cmcm;nmc,m center offer a wide v anety of non-gaming amenities, including a 131 seat Farmddays rcsmuram, a 378 Seat Ca!y psa's butfet ar\d 2
46-sea1 Tradewinds Marketplace, and a gift shop.

Our Lula propcny is the only gaming facility in Coshoma County, Mississippi and generated gaming revenues of approximately 866 million in calendar
year, 2010, Lol draws a sipmficam amoum of busmess from the Littie Rock Arkansas mcuapohlan area, which has a popula'uon of approximateiy 675 000
and is Jocated approximately 120 miles west of the property. Coahoma Coumy is also] Iocaled approximately 60 miles southwest of Mcmphls Tenneéssee,
which is primarily served by nine casinos in Tunica County, Mississippi: Approximatély 1.1 milion peeple reside within 60 miles of the property. Lula also
competes with Native American casinos in Oklahoma and a racino i West Memphis, Arkansas.

Bitoxi

Our Bilexi property, which commenced operations in Augus11992, is'located on a 17-acre sitcat the eastern end of a cluster of Iacnlmcs formerly known
-as "Casino Row" in Riloxi, M:s'uss:ppn and is the first propesty reached by visitors coming from-Alabama, Flofida and Georgia via Highway 90.-
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1n October 2003, the Mississippi legislature amended its gaming laws to allow casinos 1o operate land-based facilities within 800 feet of the mean hm.h
“water line. Our Biloxi propefty Is now a land-based casino offering approximately 1,200 slot machines, 27 wable games, 2 ninie-table poker rourn, a 709-foom
hotel including 200 whirlpool suites, a 120-seat banquet room called *Paradise Room,” 138-seat Farmddays' restourant, a 200-seat Calypso's buifet, a 128-seat
Caté a1 the Point restanrant, a 94-seat Tradewinds marketplace, s’ multi-story feiture bar, 2 full service Starbieks and over 1,300 pasking spaces.

“The Mississippi Gulf Coast market (which includes Biloxt, Gulfport and Bay St. Louis) consists of:l 1 dockside gaming facilitics, which in the aggregate,
gencrated gaming revenues of approximately $1.1 billion during calendar year 2010, Our Biloxi property genctated gaming revenues of approximately
$69 millign during calendar year 2010. Approximately one million people reside within 60 miles.of the property.

Natchez

Our.Natchez property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located off of [ighways 84'and 61 in Western Mississippi. The property consists of a
dockside casino offering 617 slot machines and 10 table pames, a 141-room off-site hotel located approximately onc mile from the casino, a 150-seat
. Calypso's buffet and 645 parking spaces.

Our Natchez property is currently the only gaming facility in the Natchez murket and gencrated total gaming revenues of approximately $33 million in
calendar year 2010. We believe that the Natchez property attracts customers primarily from among the approximately 350,000 prople residing within 60 miles
of the Natchez property.

Vicksburg

Ous. Vicksburg property, which we acquired in June 2014, is located off Interstate 20 and Hightray 61 in western Mississippi, approximately 30 miles
waest 'ofJackson, Mississippi. The property consisis of a dockside casino offering 762 slot machines and six table games, a 224-sent Riverview Buffer, a 26-
seat Crogsroads Deli and 977 parking spaces.

The Vicksburg market consists of five dockside casinos and approximately 700,000 people reside within 60 miles of the propeny.

Missguri
Kansas City

Our Kansas City property, which we acquired in June 2000, is the closest gaming f:aqilily to downtown Kansas City and consists of a dockside casino
offering-1,161 slot machines and 22 table games, a 285-seat Calypso’s buftet, a 80-seat Lone. Wolf restaurant, a 58-seat Tradewinds Marketplace and 1,731
parking spaces.

The Kansas City market consists of four dockside gaming facilities and o Native American casino. Operating siaistics for the Native American casino
arc not published. The four dockside gaming facilivies generated gaming reventics of approximately $744 million in calendar yeur 2010. Our Kansas City
properly gencrated gaming revenues of approximately $82 million during calendaryear 2010 We believe that our Kansas City casino attracts customers
primarily from the Kansas City metropolitan area, which has approximately 1.9 million residents

A competitor is currently constructing a $411 million casino at the Kansas Specdway located in wWyandotte County, Kansas. This casino is locaied
approximately 20 miles from our Kansas City property and is expected to open in:the first half of 2012.

[}
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Boonvilfe

Cur Boonville property, which opened in December 2001, is Jocated three miles off Interstate 70, approximatety haifway between Kansas City and
St. Louis. The property consists of a single level dockside casino oftering 989 slot machines, 19 table garges, a'140-reom hotel, a 32,400 square foot pavilion
and entertainment center and 1,101 parking Spaces. The pavilion.and critertainment center offers cusiomers a wide variety of non-gaming amenities, including
‘an 83-seat Faraddays' restaurant, a 218-sea1 Calypse's buffet, a 24-seat Tradewinds Markerplace, an 800 seat event center, and an historic display area. Our
Boonville property is the only gaming facility in central Missouri and generated gaming revenues of approximately $81 million in calendzr year 2010, We
believe that our Boonville casino attracts customers primarily from the approximately 580,000 people who reside within 60 miles of the property which
includes the Columbia and Jefferson City areus, ’

Caruthersvitle

Our Caruthersviile property was acquired in June 2007 and s a riverboat casino located along the Mississippi River in Southeast Missour. tn June 2003,
the casino was re-branded as a Lady Luck casino with the constritction and refurbishment completed in Deccmbcr 2008: The dockside casino offers 595 slot
machinés, ! tble games and 5 poker 1ables. As part of the re-bmndmg we renovated tirr 40,000 square foot pavilicn, which includes a 130-seat Lone Wolf
restaurant, bar and lounge and a 270-seat Ois & Henry's restaurant. Rénovations lo the riverboat, mc]udmg the casino floor, were completed in the summer of
2009, The property also operates a 10,000 square foot exposition center with smtmg tor up ta 1,100 patrons and has'1,000 parking spaces. Our Caruthersville
facility is the only casino located in Southeast Missouri and generated gaming revenues of appmumately $34 mllhon in calendar ycar 2010. Approximately
650,000 people reside within 60 miles of the property.

lowa

Bettendorf

Our Bettendorf property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located off of Interstate 74, an interstate highway serving the Quad Cities metropolitan
area, which consists of Benendorf and Davenport, lowa and Moline and Rock Island, Dlinois. The propeny consists of a dockside casino offering 1,022 slot
machines, 24 tahle pames. 4 poker 1ables, 514 hoted rooms, 40,000 square feet of flexible convemionfbanguel spate, a 120-seat Fammaddays' restauram, a 372-
seat Calypso's buffel, a 42-5eat Tradewinds Marketplace and 2,057 parking spaces. We have entered into agreements w jith the City of Bettendorf, lowa under
which we mianage and provide financial and operating support for the QT Waterfront Cenvention Center that is adjacent to our hotel. T'he QC Waterfroni
Convention Center opened in Januvary 2009.

Davenport

Our Davenpart praperty, which we acquired in October 2000, is tocated at the intersection of River, Drive and Highway 61, a state highway serving the
de Cities metropolitan area, The property consists of a dockside gaming facility offering 949 slof machines, 16 table games, a 209-seat Hit Parade buﬁcl, 4
Grab-n-Go food cutlet and 911 parking spaccs.

The Quad Cities metropolitan arca currently has three gaming operations—our two gaming facilities in Bettendorf and in Davenport, and one operator,
which opened a Jarger tand-based faciliy, incliding a hotel, in December 2608, The three uperations in the Quad Cities generated total gaming revenues of
.approximately $210 million in calendar year 2010. Our Bettendorf and Davenport propérties generated casino revenues for calendar year 2010 of
upproximately 78 million and $53 million, respectively. Our operstions-in the Quad Cities also compete with other gaming operations
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in Hlinois and lowa. Approximately 923,000 people reside within 60 miles of our Bettendorf and Davenport properties.
Marguette

Our Marquette property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located in Marquette, lowa, approximately 60 miles north of Dubuque, lowa. The property
consists of a dockside casino offering 600 slot machines and 11 table games, & inarine and 475 parking spaces. During fiscal 2010, we completed thie
rebranding of the property as a Lady Luck casino. The facility now includes a newly themed 142-seat buffer restaurant, an Otis and Henry's Express food
outlet and’a Lone Well restanirunt and bar.

Our Mdrquem: property is the only gaming facility tn the Marquette, lowa market and generated gaming révenues of approximately $29 million in
calendar year 20£0. We believe most of our Marquette customers are from northeast lowa and Wisconsin, which includes approXimately 490,000 people
within 60 miles of our property, and we compete for those customers with other gaming facilities in Dibugue, lowa and Native American <asinos in
southwestiern Wisconsin. '

Waterloo

Qur Waterloo property, which opened on June 30, 2007, is Jocated adjacent to Highway 218-and US 20'in Waterloo, lowa, The property consists of a
single-level casing offering 1,040 slot machines, 27 table gamcs and § poker 1ables: The property also offers a wide varicty of non-gaming amenitics,
including a 123-seat Otis & Henry's restauTant, a 208-seat Isle buffet, & 44:scat Tradewinds.marketplace, Club Capri Lounge, Eling feature bar, 5,000 square
feet of meeting space, 1,500 parking spaces and a 195-room hotel, which includes 27 suites;as well as'an.indoor pool and hot wb area.

Our Waterloa property is the only gaming facility in the Waterlog, lows market and approxiniately 640,000 prople live within 60 miles of the property.
We compete with other casinos in eastern lowa. We generated gaming revenues of approximately 580 ruilkion in calendar year 2010.

Coloradn

Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk
Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk commenced operations in December 1993, is located on an approximiately 10-acre site and is one of the first gaming
facilities rcachcd by custorers arriving from Denver via Higlway 119, the mam thorl.)ughtarc connecting Denver o Black Hawk, The property includes a
land-based casino with 1,036 stot machines, 24 standard table games, an 11 table’ poker room, a 238-room hotel and 1,100 parking spaces in an aitached
parking garage. ke Casino Hotel-Black Hawk also offers customers three restaurants, including a 128-seat Farraddays' restaurant, a 270-seat Calypso's buffet
and a 40-seat Tradewinds Markerplace,

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk, which we acquired in April 2003 and rebranded in June 2009, is located acrass the intersection of Main Sweet and Mill
Street from the Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk. The property consists of a land-bascd casing with 524 slot machines, 11 standard table games, 6 poker ablcs, a
1 64-rdom hotel that opened in December 2005 and 1,200 parking spaces in our parking structure connecting Isle Casino Hlotel-Black FHawk and Lady Lock
Casino-Black Hawk. The property also offers guesis dming in its newly renovated and rebranded 79-seat Otis & Henry's restaurant as well as a grob-and-go
tast serve food can tha is located in the main level of the facility. The property has alse recenily converted approximately 2,230 square fect of space to flex
Space that can de used for meetings and special events. Ouwr Rlack Hawk sites are connected via sk bridges.
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When casinos having multiple gaming licenses in the sume building are combined, the Black Hawk/Central City market consists of 24 gaming facilities
{seven of which have more than 600 slot machines}, which in aggregate, generated gaming revenues of approximately $625 millivn in calendar yeur 2010.
Our Black Hawk properties generated casing revenues for calendar year 2010 of approximately $123 million.:Black Hawk is the closest gaming market to the
Denver, Colorado metropolitan area, which has a population of approximately 2.9 million and is located approximately 40-miles east of Black’ Hawk and
serves as the primary feeder market for Black Hawk.

Florida
Pompano

jln.i 995, we acquircd Pompane Park, a hamess racing track located in Pumpano Beach, Florida.-Pompano Park is located off of Lnterstate 95 and the
Florida Tompike on 2 223-acre owned site, near Fort Lauderdale, midway between Miami and West Palm Beach, Pompzno Park is the only racetrack licensed
to conduct hamess racing in Florida.

Our Pompano facility includes 1,448 slot machines, a 38-table poker room, four restaurants, a feature bar and 3,800 parking spaces.

Approximately 2.6 million people reside within a 25-mile radius of our Pompane tacility, whiich competes with four other racinos and thige Native
American gaming facilities in the market. While casina revenues are not available for all market competitors, we estimate that we operute approxlmmely 14%,
“of the slot machines in the market and generated approumdle]) $130 million‘in casino revenues for calendar.year 2010.

Recent Changes to Florida Gaming Laws—In April 2010, changes were made'to Florida law which, among other things, lowered our stare gaming (ax
rate from 50% to 35% effective July |, 2010. This legislation also allows the poker operations 10, remain open for the same hours as the slot floor and removes
the poker betting limits. The changes to Florida law were combined with the > approval of a gaming compact bétween the State of Flarida and the Seminole
Teite of Flonda. This gaming compact allows the tribe the exclusive right ou1sndc of Miami* Dade and Rroward cdimties to operate slot machines and other
similar electronic gaming devices and the right to operate live blackjack and baccaral table gamies for a period of f'vc years at ceriain tiibal gaming locations.

International Operations

Lucaya—We operated a casino in Grand Bahama from December 2003 through November 2009, when we exited the operation.

Biue Chip—We operated casinos in Dudley and Wolverhampton, England. These casinos opencd during fiscal 2004 and were operated by us until they
were sold in November 2009,

Coventry—We operated a casino in the Coventry Convention Center from July 2007 i}m)ugh April 2009, when we terminated our tease and sold the
cusino and related assets.

Murketing
" Qur matketing programs are designed 10 promote our overall business strategy of providing customers with a safe, clean, friendly and fun gaming
cxperignce at each of our properties. We have developed an extensive proprietsry datebase of customers that allows us to create effective targeted marketing

and promotional programs that are designed to reward customer loyalty, attract new customers 10 our properties and maintain high recognition of our.brands.
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Specifically, our marketing programs and initiatives are tailored 1o support this corporate strategic plan and are generally focused on the following arcas:

. Customer Research: Qur marketing strategjes have been developed and implemented to meet the nccds and desires of our casino customers in
each of our Jocations. En order 10 assess these needs and desires, we engage in significant customer research in each of our markets by conducting
periodic surveys. Upon receipt of these surveys, we assess the ‘attitindes of our custorers and the customers of our competitors’ propefties
wowards the most important atuibutes of their expericnee in a regionel andfor tocal paming facility. We ise the extensive information gathered
from these sesearch initiatives to make marketing, operating and dcvclnpmcm decisians that, we believe, will optimize the position of our
properties relative to cur competition.

. Branding Injtiatives; Our strategic plan is desi gned to consolidate our propeity portfolio fram four.brands into two brands as the economy
improves and we undertake significant new capital improvement programs. To date, we have begiin this initistive through the re- branding of our
propetics in' Caruthersviile, Missouri, Marquette; lowa, and the conversion of Calorado Central Statien in-Black Hawk, Colorado-to Eady Luck-
Black Hawk. As a compunent of these re-branding programs, we have also 1mplcmcnn:d ncwly—bmndcd custormer onttets, including custom,
resiaurants and lounges that we are expanding through our portfolio to'other properties, We'bclieve, over time, this approach wili allow us to
wore effectively align and promote our properties based upon éustomer necds Aitd desires and matket Sur propeities on a consolidated basis.
Furthermore, we eXpect our approach will strezmline the ¢osts associated with marketing our porifalio.

. Database Marketing: We have streamlined our database marketing initistives across Lhe - Comipany in order to focus our marketing eiforts on
profitable customers who have demonstrated a w:]lmgncqs to regularly visit our. propen:es Specifically, we have focused on c!munalmg from
our database customers who have historically been incloded in significant marketing) cfforts but have praven costly either as a ‘result af excessive’
warketing expenditures on the pait of the Company, or because these customers have become relatively dormant in teivis af customer activity.

. Segmentation: We have compiled an extensive diatabase of customer information over time. Among our most important marketing initiatives, we
have introduced database scgmcntation to our properties and at the corporaic lévelin order to adjust inyestment rates 10 2 level ot which we
expect to meet a-reasonable:level of customer profit contribution,

. Retail Development: We believe that we must more cifectively atiract new, non-database customers le ous properiies in order o increase
profitability and free cash flow. These customess are genesally less expensive {0 atfract and retaih and, therefore, currently Tepresent a significant
appartunity for our operations.

Employees

As of April 24, 2011, we employed approximatety 8,600 full and part-time people, We have a collective.bargaining agreement with UNITE HERE
covering approximately 400 employees at our Pompano praperty which expires in'May 2012, We believe that our relationship with our employees s
sutisfactory.

Governmental Regulations

The gaming and racing industries are highly regulated, and we must maintain’our licenses and pay gaming taxes to continue our operations. Each of our
facilities is subject 10 extensive regulation under the laws, niles and regulations of the jurisdiction where it is located. These laws, rules and regulations
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generally relate to the responsibility, financial stability and character of the awners, managers and persons with financial interests in the gaming operations.
Violations of laws in onc jurisdiction cerld result in disciplinary action-in-other jurisdictions. A more detailed description of the regulations 10 which we are
subject is contained in Exhibit 99.1 1o this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our businesses are subject 1o varions federal, state and Jocal Yaws and regulations in addition 1o gaming regutations. These fows and regulations inchude,
but are not limited to, restrictions and conditions concerning aleoholic beverages, food service, smoking; environmental matters, emplayees and employment
pmcuccs curmency transactions, taxation, zoning and building codes, aiid: markeiing and advcmemg Such laws and regulations could change or could be
mlurpreted differently in the future, or new laws and regulations conld be enacted, Marerial changes, new laws or regulations, or material differences-in
interpretations by courts or govermmental authorities could adversely affect our operating results.

Available Information

For. more information about us, visit our web site at www.islcofcapricasinos.com. Our electronic, filings with the 1.5, Sceurities and Exchange
Commission (including all annual  reports on Form 10-K, quarter rc‘pons on ¥Form’ 10- O and current n.pons on Form 8-K, and any amendments to these
reporis), including the exhibits, are avmlablc free of ¢harge through our web site as so0n as reasonably practicable after we electroriically file them with or
fitrnish them 10 the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

YTEM1A. RISK FACTORS

_'We face significant competition from other gaming aperations, including Native American gaming facilities, lfva{ could have a material adverse
effect on our fultre operations.

Thg gaming indusiry is intensely competitive, and we face a h:gh dcgn:c of competition | in the markets in'which we operate. We have numerous
compcmors mc!ud.me land-based casinos, dockside casinos, merboauasmoq, cuiginos located on racing, pari-mutvel operations or Native American-owned.
lands‘and video lottery and pokcr machme‘: not located in casinos. Some ofour competifors may havé better name recognition, markenng and financial

_resoitrees than we do; competitors with more financial résources may therefore be able to improve the quality of, or cxpand, their gamiing facilitics in a way
that we may be unable to match.

Legalized gaming is currently permitted in various forms throughout the United States. Certain states have recently legalized, and other states are
currcmly cons:dermg legalizing paming. Our existing gaming facilities compete dm:c:ly with nther parming properties in ihe states in which we operate. Qur
existing ¢asinbs altraét a signiticant number.of their customers - from Houston, Texas; ‘Mobile, Alabama. Kansas City, Kansas;.Southern Florida: Little Rock,
Arkansadiand Denver, Colorado. Legalization of gaming mJunsdlcthm claser 1o these geug:aphlc markets other.than the jurisdictions in which our facilities
arc located would have o material adverse effect on our operating results, Otherjmisdictions including states in close proximity to jurisdictions where we
currently have aperations, have considered and may consider legalizing casino gaming and other forms ofcompehuon In addisen, Lhere is no limit on the
number of gaming licenses that may be’ g,mmed in several of the markets in which we operaie. As a rc-:ult new gaming licenses could be.awarded in r.ht:se
markets, v.h:ch cauld allow new gaming dperators to cnler our markets that could have an adverse cffect on our aperating results. On-February 17, 2011, a
praject was awarded a gaming license in 1.ake Charles, Louisiana which, if completed, will comipete with our existing Lake Charles prnperty_

Our continued sucvess depends upon drawing customers fom each of these geographic markets, We expect competition to inCrease as new gaming
operators énter our markets, existing competitors exparnid their opcrations, gaming activities expand in exisling Jurtsdictions and ganiing is legalized in new

)unsdlcuuns We cannot predict with any certainty the efiects of existing and future comipetition on our ‘eperating results,
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We aiso compete with other forms of legalized gaming and entertainment such as online computer gambling, binge, pull 1ab games, card parlors, sports
books, "cruise-to-nowhere™ operations, pari-mutue] or telephonic betting on horse racing and dog racing; state-sponsored lotieries, jai-alai, and, in the furare,
may compete with gaming at other venues, In addition, we compete more generally with other forms of entertainment for the discretionary spending of our
CUSTOMETS.

We are subject to extensive requistion from gaming and other regulatory authorities that could adversely affect us.

Licensing requirements. . As owners and operators of gaming and pari-mutuct wagering facilitics; we arc Sub_]ccl to extensive state and local repulation.
State and local amhomaes require us and our subsidiaries io demonstrate ﬂmtabxllty to obtam and retain various licenses and require that we have registrations,
permits and approvals 1o conduct gaming opesations, The regulatory authorities in the juﬂSdlCleS in which we operate have very broad'discretion with
-regard to their regulation of gaming operators, and may for a broad variety of reasons and in.aceordance with applicable Jaws, rules and regulations, limit,
condition, sispend, fail to renew or revoke a Heerise to conduct gaming opf.mtmns or. pr(:vcm us.from owning the sceurities of any of our gaming subsidjarics,
or prevent other persans from owning an interest in us of doing husiness with vs. We may also be deemed responsible for the acts and conduct of our
employees. Substantial fines or forfeiture of assets for violations of gaming laws or regulatlom may be lcvwd agamsn us, eur subsidiaries and ‘the persons
involved, and some tegulatory authorities have the ublhty th require us fo sufpend oiir operations. The suspension or revocition of any of aur licenses or our
operations or the levy on us or our subsidiaries of 2 substantial fine would have a material'adverse effect on our bus:_ness.

To date, we have demonstrated suitability to obtain and have abtained ail governiental licenses, registrations, permits and approvals necessary for us fo
-operate our existing gaming facilities. We cannot assure you.that we will be able to retain thésé licenses, registrations, permits and approvals or Lha! we wi]
be able to obtain any new ones ifi order 10 expand our business, or that'our attempts to do so will be umcly ‘Like all gaming operators in the jurisdictions in
which we operate, we must periodically apply 10 renew our gaming licenses and have the suitability of ceniain of cur dnec\nn officers and employees
approved: We cannot assure you that we will be able 10 obtain such renewals or. approvals. .

In addition, regulatory authorities in ccrtain Junschcuons must approw: in advance, any resu:cllons on transfers of, agreeinents not to encumber or
pledges of equity securitics issued by a corporation that is registered as an interhediary Company with such staté;or that holds a gaming license. If these
restrictions are not approved in advance, they will be invalid:

Comgpliance with gther faws. We are also subject 1o a variety of other federal, state and local laws, rules, reguiations and ordinances that zpply to non-
gaming businesses, including zoning, environmental, construciion and land-vic laws and’ rcgu]atmns govemning the serving of alcoholic beverages. Under
various federal, state and Jocal laws and regulations, an owner or operator of real property. may be held liable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain
hazardous or toxic subsiances or wastes located on its property, regardless of whether or not the present owner or operator knows of, or'is responsible for, the
presence of such substances or wastes. We have not'identificd any issucs associated with our properiies that could reasonably be expecied to have an adverse
effect on us or the results of our operations. However, several of our propertics are Iocated in industiial areas or were used for indusirial purposes for many
years. As a consequence, it is possible thai historical or neighboring activities have affecied one or mere of our propertics and thai, as a result, environmental
issues could arise in the fumire, the precise namure of which we cannct now predict. The coverage and antendant compliance costs associated with these aws,
regulations and ordinances may result in future additional costs. '
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Regulations adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network of the U.S. Trcasury Department require us (o Feport currency transaciions in cxcess
of $10,000 occurring within'a garmng day, including identification of the patron by name and social security number. U.S. Treasury Department regulations”
also require us 10 report certain suspicious activiry, inchuding any transaction that exceeds $3, 000 if we know, suspeet or have reason (o believe that the
transaction involves funds from Megal activity or is designed 1o evade federal regulations or reporiing requirements. Substantial penalites can be mposed
against us if we fail to comply with these regulations.

Several of our riverboats must comply with U.S. Coast Guard requirements as 10 boat design, on-board facilities, équipment, personnel and safety and
must hotd U8 Coast Guard Cemﬁcmes of Ducumcmmmn and Inspection. The Y.8. Coast Guard requirements also set limits on the operation of the
tiverboats and mandate licensing of certain persannel involved with the operation of the riverboyts. Loss of a riverboat's Centificaie of Documentation and
Inspection could prechide its use as a riverhoat ¢asino. The U1.S. Coast Guard has shifted inspedtion duties related 10 permanently moored casine vessels1o the
mdlvidua! states. Lavisiana and MKSDUJ“.I have ¢lected to wilize the services of the American'Buresu of Shlppl.ng to undentake the inspections: lowa has
clected to handle the inspections through the lowa Depariment of Niural Resnerces. The:states will continué the same inspection eriteria as the .S, Const
Guard in regard 1o annual and five year inspections. Depending on the outcome of these inspections a vessel could become subject to dry-docking for
inspection of its hajl, which could result in a temporary loss of service.

We are required 1o have third panies periodically inspect znd certify all of vur casino barges for siability and single compartment flooding integrity. Our
casino barges and other faciiities mus: also meet local fire safety standards. We would incur additional costs if any.of our gaming facilities were not in
compliance with one or more of these regulations.

Potential changes in legislation and regulanan of our pperations,  From time to iime, }egﬁlamrs and special interest groups have pmposcd legislation
that would ctpand. festrict or. prevent gaming operations in the jurisdictions in which W operate. In addition, from IlmE to time, cenain anti-gaming groups
have challenged cbnstitutional amendments or legislation that would limit our ability 10 continue to gperate in those jurisdictions in which these constitutional
amendroents or Jegislation have been adopted.,

Taxation and lees. Siate and Jocal quthorities raise a significant amount of revenue - through taxes and fees on gaminﬂ activities. We believe that the
prospect of Glgmﬁmm revenue is one of the primary reasons that jurisdictions permit legalized gaming. Asa result, garming Lompanws are typically sitbject to
significant taxes and fees in addition'to normal federal, state, local and provincial income taxes, and such taxes and’ ‘fees are’subject to increase at any time,
We puy subsiantial taxes and fees with respedt 1o our operavions. From time to.time, federal, state, Toca) and pm\‘mcx.ﬂ legishators and officials have proposcd
changes in tax laws, or in the administration of such laws, affecting the gaming industry. Any material increase, or the adoption of additional taxes or fees,
could have a matenal adverse effect on our finture financial resuits.

Cur business may he adversely affected by legisiation prohibiting tobacco smoking.

Legislation in varous forms to ban indoor tobacco smoking has recently been enacted or introduced in many statcs and loca) jurisdictions, inctuding
several of the jurisdictions in which we operate. 1f additional restrictions on smoking are enacted in jurisdictions in which we operate, we could experience a
sipnificant decrease in gaming revenve and particularly, if such restrictions are not applicable 1 2M €ofnpetiiive facilities in that gaming market, our business
could be mawerially adversely affected.
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Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial heaith and restrict our operations.
We have a significant amount of indebtedness, As of April 24, 2011, we had approximately $1.2 billion of total debt outstanding,

Cur significant indebtedness could have important consequenses to aur {ingncial health, such as:

. limiting our ability to use operating cash flow or obtain additional financing to fund working capital, capital expenditures, expansion and other
imporant areas of our business becavse we must dedicate a significant portion of our cash flow to make prin¢ipal and interest payments on ouy
indehtedness:

. causing 4n event of defauh if we fail to sausfy the financial and resirictive covenants contained in the indenture and agreements governing our

senior sceured credit facility, our 7.75% senior noics due 2019, our 7% senior subordinated notes due 2014 and our other indebtedness, which
could result in a¥} of our debt becoming immediately due and payable, could permgir our.secifed lendérs to foreclose on the assets securing our
secured debt and have other adverse consequences, any of which; if not cured or waived, could have & material adverse effect on.ts:

. if the indebiedness under aur 7.75% senior notes, our 7% senjor subordinated notes; our:senior secured credit facility, or our other indebiedness
were o be aceelerated, there can be no assurance that our assets would be sufficient to repay.such indebtedness in full;

. placing s at a competitive disadvantage 10 our coripetitors who are not as highly leveraged;

. mereasing our vulnerability to und limiting our ability o react tv changing market conditions, changes in our industry and economic downturns
or downtums in our business; and

. our agrecments governing our indebtedness, among other things, require us to maintain certain specified financial ratios and to meet certain
financial tests. Our debt agreements also limit our ability to:

i borrow moncy:
ii. make capital expenditures;

ill.  uge assets as security in other transactions:

tv.  make resuicted payments or restricted invesiments;
V. incur contingent obligations: and
vi. sell assets and enter into leases and transactions with affiliates.

A substantial partion of our cutstanding debt bears interest at variable rutés; ulthough we have entered into interest rate protection agrecrents expiring
through fiseal 2014 with counterparty banks with respect to $320 million of olr.term loans under our senior secured credit facHlity. I short-term interest rates
Tise, our interest cost will increase on the unhedged portion of our variuble rate indebtedness, which will adversely affect our results of operations and
available cash.

Any of the factors lisied above could have a material adverse cffect onour business, financial condition and results of aperations. We cannot assure you
that owr business will continue to generate sufficient cash flow, or that futwre available draws under our senjor secured credit tlnc:luv w:I[ be sufficient, to

enable us 10 meet our liquidity needs, including those necded to sérvice our jndebtedness.
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Despite our significant indetiedness, we may still be able to incur significantly more debt.” This could intensify the risks described above.

“The €rms of the indenture and agreements governing our séaior secured credit facility, our 7. 75% sciior notes, our 7% senior subordinated notes and our
other indebtedness limit, but do not prohibit, us or our subsidiaries from incurring significant additional indcbtedaess in the future.

As of April 24, 2011, we had the capacity to indiir additiona) indebtedness, including the ability to incur additional indebtedness under all.of our lines of
credit, of approximately $175 million. Approximately 323 million of these lines of credit were nsed to support letters of credit and surety bonds, Our capacity
10 tssue additional indebiedness is SIJhJCCI to the limitations imposed by We covenants in our Senior scw.red crcd.u facility, the indenture governing our 7.75%
senior notes and the indenture governing our 7%% senior subordinated notes: The indentute governing our 7% senior subordiniated notes, the indenture
governing our 7.75% senior notes and our senior sccured credit fnc;]ny contain tma.n_c.m!vand other r;st.pcnvc covenants, but will not fully prohibit us from
incurring additional debt. If new debt is added to our cument leve] of indebtedness, the relafed risks that we now.face could intensify.

£ we cannot refinance our 7% senior subordinated notes on or prior to November 1, 2013, then our senior secured credit facility matures on that
date and we may not be able to renew or extend our senior secured credit facifity or enter inlo a new credit facility in today's difficuit markets. If we are
able to refinance our 7% senior subordinated notes or, in the alternative, renew or extend our senior secured credit facility, it may be ot terms
substaritiaily fess favorable than the current notes or senior secured credit fa eifity.

Qur scnior secured credit facility mamres on NO\'cmber L, 203 i.f\h'c hzw:: nm rcﬁnanccd ar.atherwise retired the T% senior subordinated notes on or
2013. We may therefore be
forced 10 rcﬁnancc the 7% senior subordinated notes on matcr:a][y worsc terms than: uc have currcntly Fa:lurc to oblam new dcbl on favorable or reasonable
temms 10 replace existing debt could affect our liquidity and the value of our other secunties, 'including our. cql.my Onir ability to refinance or otherwise retire
our 7% senior subordinated notes prior to November'1, 2013, or in the allernative Lo renew or extend our emstmg senior secured credit facility or'to enter into
a new credit facility to replace the existing senior secured credit facility could be’ Jmpdlru.l il markét ednditions Worsen. In the current environnent, lenders
may seek more restrictive lending provisions and higher interest rates.that may reduce our bormwmg capacity and increase our costs, We can make no
assurances that we will be able to refinance of otherwise sutire our 7% senivr subordinated notes _prior to November |, 2013, and if we are unable to do so,
that we will be able to enter into a new credit facility or renew or extend our c\usung senior secured credit facility, or whethcr any such credit fnc:]ny will be
available under acceptable terms, Failure to obtain sufficient financing or fmanung an acceplablc terms would constrain our ability to operate our business
and to continue our development and expansion projects. Any of thesé circumstances could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial candition
and resulis of operations. -

We may not be able to successfully expand to new tocations or recover our investment in new properties which would adversely affect our operations
antf avaifable resources.

We regularly evaluate opportunities for growih through development of guming operations in existing or new markets, through acquiring or managing
other gaming entertainment facilities or through redeveloping our cxu.tmg facilities.-The expansion of our aperations, whether through acquisitions,
development, management contracts or internal growth, could divert management's attention and could also cause us to incur substantial costs, including
legal, professional and consuling
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fees. To the extent that we elect 1o pursee any new gaming acquisition, management or development opportunity, our ability 1w beneflt from our investment
will depend on many factors, nchuding:

. our ability to successfully ideniify attractive acquisition and development opporturities;

K our ahility 10 successiully operate any developed, managed or acquired propertes;

. our ability to attract and retain compelent management and employees for the new locations;

. onr ability to secure required federal, stute and local licenses, permits and approvals, which ;n some jurisdictions are limited in number and

subject to intense competition: and

. the avaitability of adequate financing on acceptable terms.

Miny of these factors are beyond our comtrol. There have been signihcam d'iqruplions in the global capital markeis that have, adverscly impacted the
'abnny of bosrowers 10 access capital, Accordingly, 1t is likely that we are dependcm on free ::ash flow from operations and remmining bomrowing capacity
under our senior secured credit facility to implement our near-term expansion, p]ans and fund our pLumcd cap]la! c!pendltmes As 2 result of these and other
considerations, we cannot be sure that we will be able to recover our investents in any new gamifig dévelopment or management opportunities or acquired
ficilities, or successtully expand to additional locations,

Wi may experience construction delays during our expansion or develoBment profects that could adversely affect our operations.

From time to time we may commence construction projects al our propgrties.- We alsa evaluaie other expansion opporiunities as they become availahle
and we may in the future engage in addisional construction proy:us On December [, 2010, the Missourl. Gaming Commission selected our propoesed Cape
Girariféau Project for prioritization for the 13th and fina] gaming license in thie State of Missouri. The Cape Girardéan Project is expeeted to include
approximately [,000 slot machines, 28 wable pames, 3 restaurants, 2 lounge and terrace averiooking the Mississippi River.and a 750-seat event center at an
estimated cost of $123 million. On April 14, 2011. our project a1 the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort was selected by the Pennsyfvania Gaming Control Board,
for the final Category 3 resont gam:ng license, We had previously entered mto an agreeiment with Nemacolin to complete the build-out of the casino space and
pmv:dc raanagement services 10 the casino. Tie Neracolin project is c'(pc.ctcd to inciude 600 slot machines, 28 table games, a casnal dining restaurant and
lounge. We currently estimate the project cost at approum:,ltcly $50 miltion and expect.to be complete within nine months of the ecommencement of
constryction. The anticipated costs and construction periods for the Cape Girardeau Project, the Nemacolin Praject and other projects are based upon budgets,
conceptual design documents and construction schedule estimates prepared by us in consultation with our architects: Construction projects entail significant
risks, which can sithstantially mcrease costs or delay completion of a project. Siich tisks inchude shortages of materials or skilled labor, unforeseen
engineering, environmental or geological problems, work stoppages, weather inteiference and unanuclpatcd cost inercases. Most of these factors are beyond
our.control. [n addition, difficulties or delays in obtaining any of the requmte licenses; pennits or authorizations from regulatory authorities can increase the
cost or delay the completion of an expansion or development. Significant budget overruns or delays with respect to expansion and development projects could
attversely atfect our results of operations.

If we construct the Cape Girardeau Project and we are not granted gaming ficenses, our financial condition could be materially adversely affected,
Cm December 1, 2014, the Missouni Gaming Commission selected our propesed Cape Girardean Project for priositization for the 13th and final gaming
license in the State of Missouri. As a participant in this process, our subsidiary lOC-Cape Girardeau LLC applied for a Class B Riverboat Gaming License in

Missouri. The decision by the Missouri Gaming Commission to prioritize its casino
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deévelopment does not provide I0C-Cape Girardeau LLC with any license o open the easino onee devéloped or any assurance {hat such a license will be
granted. The Class B license required for FOC-Cape Girardean LLC to operate its proposed gaming faciiity cannot be granted by the Missouri Gaming
Commissivn uniil the geming facility development is substantially. complete and réady 10 accept patrons. The grant of this license would be subject to
numerous conditions as described in "Description of Government Regulations—Missoun” in Exhibit 99.1 to this Annual Report on.Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended April 24, 2011, [f, as a result of these repulatory-conditions or othervise, we are unable to riccive the gaming license after we construct the Cape
Girardeau Project, our financial condition could be materially adversely aftected.

if we are not licensed in Pennsylvania in connection.with the proposed resort casine at Nemacolin Woodlands Resort or if our faanagement
agreement is not appraved in its current form or if either of these matters are materially delayed, we may not manage the casino or the terms upon which
we manage may be less favorable to us.

On April 14, 2011, the Pepnsylvania Gaming Control Board (the "PGCB") awarded a Category 3 siot machine license to Woodlands Fayetie, LLC for a.
Fes0it casino at'the Nemacolin' Woodlunds Resort in Fayette Coutity, PennsylVaniia. Althoogh we have a management agreement with Woodlands Fayetie to
anage thc proposed casino, we have not yet been licensed by the PGCR in connection with the casino’project, nor has the management agreement heen
appraved by the PGCB. There is no guaranty thal we will be approved or thatthe management agreement will be approved in its current form. Further, the
award of the Yrense to Woodlands Fayette is subject 10 a:30- day appeal’ period which ends on June 20, 2011, ‘Any such appeals would be made direetly to the
Pennsylvama Supreme Court and could take a significant period of time before wruling is made by the court. [f such an appeal is filed, it is possibie that the
PGCB will refrain from most, if not all, rulings regarding the casino project during the pendency of such appeal, including our licensure arid approval of the
management agreement.

If our key personnel leave us, our business could be adversely affected.

Our continued success will depend, among other l.hmgs, on.the efforts and skills of a few key e:xe(,umc officers and the éxperiente of vur property
managers. Our ability to retain key personnel is affce:ed by the competitiveness of our compensation packages and the other terms and conditions of
employment, our continued ability to compete effectiv ¢ly against other gaming companies and our growth proﬁpcuh The loss of the services of any of these
key individuals could have a material adversé effect on'our business, financial condition and results of opemuons We do not maintain "key man" life
insusance for any of our cmployces.

We are effectively conirolied by members of the Goldstein Family and their decisions may differ from those that may be mate by other stockhalders,

-Robert 3. Goldstein, our Vice Chairman of the Board, and Jeffrey. D. Goldstein and Richard A. Gioldstein, two of our directors, and various family trusts
associated with members of the Goldstein fumily and emmes associated with certain- members of the Goldstein family, {collectively the "Goldstein Parties™)
direcily and indirectly eollectively own and conurol approximately 42.6% of oui common stock as of April 24, 201 4.

The Goldstein Parties have substantiai control over the election of our.board ofdirecmrs and the outcome of the voie on substantially all othier matters,
mcludms_ amendment of our amended and restated certificale of incosporation, amendnient of our by-laws and significant corporate transactions, such as the
approval of a inerger or other transactions involving a sale of the Company. Sich substantial control may have the effect of discouraging transactions
involving an actual or potential change of control, which in turn conld have a material adverse effect on the market price of our
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common stock or prevent our stockholders from realizing & premium over the market price for their shares of common stock. The interests of the Goldsiein
Parties may difier from those of our other stockholders.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation cantains provisions that could defay and discourage takeover attempls that stockholders may
consider favorable. .

Certain provisions of our amended and restated centificate of incorporation may make it more difficult or prevent a third party from acquiring control of
us, inchuding:

we may not, until the Supermajority Cxpiration Time {as defined below), without the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66%/3% of the
Company's voling power, voting as a single class, authorize, adop! or approve certain ctn'aordmary corporate transactions; and

. the classification of our board of directors and staggered three-year terms of service for each class of directars.

"Supermajority Expiration Time" means the first to occur of (i) the Goldstein Group. ccaslng to'hold comman stock of the Company representing at least
22.5% of our outstanding commen steck, not including any shares of Class B dommon stock of shares of ¢oihinen stock-issued upon conversion of any
pmfencd stock and (ii) April 8, 2021, The "Goldstein Group” means Roben $, Goldstein, our Vice Chairman, and J_eft"rey D. Goldstein and Richard A.
Goldstein, two of our directors, spouses, children and grandchildren of centain members of the Goldstein family.and entities associated with certain members
of the Goldsiein- family.

These provisions may make mergers, acquisitions, tender ofiers, the remavzl of managemem dnd gertain other transactions mere difficulr of more costly
and could discourage or limit stockholder participation in such types of transactions, whether o not such transactions are favored by the stockholders. The
‘provisions also could limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for sharcs of our common stock.’ Further, the existence of these anti-
takeover measures may cause potential bidders to look elsewhere, rather than inttiating a(.quhmrm discussions with us. Any of these factors could reduce the
price of our common stock.

We have a history of fluctuations in our eperating income (losses} from, continuing operations, and we may incur additional operating losses from
continuing operations in the future. Our operating resuits could fluctuate significanitly on a perfodic basis.

We eazrned income from continuing operations of $1.1.million in fiscal 2011 and sustained a (loss) from continuing operations of ${1.5) million in fiscal
2010. Companies with flucteations in meome (loss) from continuing operations often find it more cha]]cnglng ta raise capital to finance improvements in their
businesses and to,undertake other activities that return value 10 their stockholders. In addition, companies with.operating results that fluctuate significantly on
a quancriy of annual basis experience increased vo]anht}, in their stock prices in addmnn 1o difficulties in m]s:ng capital. We cannot assure you that wé will
not have fluctuations in our income {losses) from continuting operations in the firture, and should that oceur, that we would not suffer adverse consequences to
our business as a result, which could decrease the value of our commeon stock.,

Inciement weather and other conditions could seriously disrupt our business and have a malerial, adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

‘The operations of our facilitics are subject to disruptions or redueed patronage as g result of severe weather conditions, naturat disasters and other
casualties. Because many of our gaming operations are located on or adjacent to bodies of water, these facilities are subject to risks in.addition to those
associated with other casinos, inchuding loss of service duc 1o casvahy, forces of nature,
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mechanical failure, extended or extmmordinary maintenance, flood, huricane or other-severe weather conditions and uther disusters. In addition, severe weather
“such as high winds and blizzards occasionally lmits access to our land-based facilities i in Colorado. We cannot be sure that the proceeds from any fuiure
‘insurance claim will be sufficient 10 compensate us if one or more of our cadinios experience a closure.

Reductions in discretionary consumer spending could have a material agverse effect on our business.

Cnar business has been and may continue to be adverscly affected by the ¢conoric recession currently being experienced in the United Siates, as we are
highly dependent on discretionary spending by our patrons, Changes in discretionary consumer spending or consumer preferences brought about by factors
such as incrensed unemployment, significant increases in energy pirices, perceived or actual detetioration-in general economic conditions, the current housing
miarket crisis, bank failures and the potential for additional bank failures, perceived or actual decling in disposable consumer income and wealth, the current
global ceonomic recession and changes in consumer confidence in the economy, may continue to reduce customer, demand for the leisure activites we offer
and may adversely affect our revenues and operating cash flow. We are not able to predlct the length or. severity of the current economic circumstances.

The market price of aur common stock may fHuctuate significantly. _ .

The market price of our common stock has historically been volatile and niay continue to fluctuate substamially due to a number of factors, including
actual or anticipated changes in our results of operations, the announcement of significant transactions or other agreements by our competitors, conditions or
trends in the our industry or other entertainment industries with, which we compete; gencral economic conditions including those affcctmg our customers’
discretionary spending, changes in the cosi of air travel or the cost of gasohne ch-mgcq in the gaming markets in which-we opegate and changes in the trading
value of our commoen stock. The stock market in gencral, as well as :.mcks in the’ ganung scctor have been SLIbJCCI to sigaificant volanhty and cxl.rcmc price
fluctuations that have sometinses been narelated or disproportionate to mdmdua] companies’ npcmung pcrf‘onnance-; Broad market or :ndusu-y factors may
harm the market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating pcrfmmancc

Work stoppages, organizing drives and other labor probiems could negatively impact our future profis.

Some of our.employees are currently represented by a labor usijon or have begun organizing 3 drive for labor union representation, Labor unions are
making a conceried effort to recrnit. morce employcees in the gaming industry. 1n addition, orgamz(:d Iabor may-benetit from new legislation or legal
interpretations by the current presidential administration. We cannot pmwdc any assufance lhat we will not expericnce additional or more successtul union
activity in the future.

Additionally, lengthy strikes or ather work sioppages at any of our easino properties or construction projects could have an adverse efféct on our business
and resnlt of operations.

We are or may become invoived in legal proceedings that, if adversely adjudicated or settled, could impact our financial condition.
From time 10 time, we are defendants in various lawsuits and gaming regulatory proceedings relating 1o matters incidental to our business. As with ai}
litigation, no assurance can be provided a5 1o the outcome of these mancts-and, in genefal, litigation can bé expensive and ime consyming, We may not be
-successtul in the defense ar prosecution of our current or future legal proceedings, which could result in settlements or damages that could significantly

impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Qur insurance coverage may not be adequale To cover 3l possible losses that our properties could suffer..In addition, our insurance costs may
increase and we may not be able to obtain the same insurance coverage in the fulure.

We may suffer damage to our property caused by a casualty loss (such as fire, natural disasters, acts 'of war or terrorism), that could severcly disrupt our
business or subject us to claims by third parties who are injured or harmed, A]Ihough we maintain insurance custoruary in our industry, (including property,
casualty, terrorism and bustness interruption insurance) that insurance may not be adequate oravailable wocover all ‘the risks to which our business and assets
may be subjecs. The lack of sufficient insurance for these types of acts could exposc us 1o heavy-losses if any damages occur, direcily or indirectly, that could
have a significant advcrsc impact on our operations.

We rmew our insurance policies on an annual basis. The cost of coverage may become, so high that we may need to further ncducc our policy timits or
agree 10 cermm exclusions from our coverage. Among other factors, it i3 pnq-uble that rcgmnn] political tensions, homeland secunty concerns, ather
cmastmphu events or any change in govemment ]eglslatmn governing insurance coverage for acts of terrorism could materially adversely affect available
insuriince coverage and result in-increased premiums on aviilable coveraje {(which jpay cause us 10 cléct 16 reduée ur policy limits), additional exélusiohs
from coverage or higher deductibles. Among other potential future adveise chzmgcs in the future we may-€lect to not, or may not be able to, obtain any
caverage for losses duc to acls of terrorism, '

The concentration and evolution of the sfot machine manufacturing industry could impose additional costs on us.

A large majonty of our revenues are atiributable to slot machines at our casinos [t is infportant, for competitive reasons, we offer the most popular and
up-to-date slot machine games, with the Jatest technology to our customers,

-In recent years, slot machine manufaciurers have frequently refused 1o sell slot machines featuring the most popular games, instead requiring
panitipating lease arrangements. Geherally. a participating lease s substantially more expensive over the long-term than the cost 1o purchase a new slot
machine.

For compctitive reasons, we may be forced to purchase new slot machines, slot machine systems, or enter into participating lease arrangements that are
more cxpensnc than our current costs assaciated with the contined operation of our, ex:slmg slm nmchmﬂ if the newer slot machines do not result in
sufficient incremental revenines to offset the increased investment and participating lease costs, it could adversely affect our protitability.

E L B R BN B B )

In addition to the foregoing, you should consider each of the tactors set forth in this Annual chon in evaluating our business and our prospecis. The
factors described in our Part 1, item 1A are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presenl]y known to us or that we currently
consider immatérial may also 1 impair our business operations. This Annual’ chort is qua]lt'ed in its eniirety by these risk factors. IF any of the foregoing risks
actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of operation could be materially harmed. Ih that case, the trading price of our securities, mc]udmg
ow commoen stock, conld decline significantly.

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Lake Charles

We own approximately 2.7 acres and lease approximately 16.2 acres of land in Calcasiew'Parish, Louisiana for use in connection with our Lake Charles
vperativns. This lease antomatically renewed in March 2010 for five years and wehave the option to renew.it for;14 additional terms of five years each,
subject to increases based on the Consumer Price Index-("CP1™) with 4 minimum of 10% and construction of hotel facilities on the property. We own two
hote]s'in Lake Charles with a total of 493 rooms. Annual rent payments under the. Luke Charles lease are appmmmatc]y $2.1 mitlion.

Lula

We lease appmxunaie]y 1,000 acres of land in Coahoma County, Mississippi and-tilize approximately 30 acres in connection with the operations in
Lula, M]ss;ss)ppi ‘Unless terminated by us al an earlier date, the lease expires n 2033: Rént under.the Jease is currently 5.5% of gross gaming revenue as
reporicd 1o the Mississippi Gaming Commission, plus $100,000 annuaily. We also own .zpproxmmtc!y 100 acres in Coshoma County, which may.be ntilized
for future development.

Biloxi

We lease the real estate upon which some of our land-based ficilities, including the casino, are lecated from the City of Biloxi ard the Mississippi
Secretary of State at current annual rent of $593,508 per year, plus 3% of our Biloxi property’s.gross gaming rev enues, net of siate and local gaming taxes and
‘feey. in Excess of $23.0 million. The leuse terminates on July 1, 2014, but it is refewable at our option.for fotr additional wrms of five § years each and one
more optien renewal term, concluding on January 31, 2034, subject to rent increases based on the CPI, limited to 6% for each renewal period.

In April 1994, in connection with the construction of a hotel, we entered into 2 lease for additional land adji)ining our.Biloxi pr'upcnv This lease with the
City of Biloxi and the Mississippi Secretary of State is for an initial term of 25 years, with opnom to rendw for six additional terms of ten years each and a
finat option period concludmg December 31, 2085. Current annual rent is 5665 500 plus 4% of gross non-gaming revenucs, as defined in the fease, and
rencwals are subject to rent increases based an the CPL The annual rent is adjusted after eath five-year period based on‘increases in the CP1, limited 1o a 10%
increase in any five-year period.

1n August 2002, we entered into a lease for two additional parcels of land adjoining our praperty and the hotel. On the parce] adjoining the Biloxi
property, we consu-ucn:d a multi-level parking garage that has approximately 1,000 parking spaces., Thcre is additional ground level Parking on a parcel of
land:in front of the garage, also subject to this lease, with approximately 600 parking spaces. We have constructed a 400-room addition to the existing hotel on
the pnrce! lepsed next to the cxisting hotel. In addition, we may censtruct a hotel above the’ par[ung garage. This lease with the City of Biloxi and the
Mlss:e:nppn Sccretary of State is for an initial term of forty years, with onc aption 1o renciv’ for an additiomal twenty-five years and additional options
‘thereafier, with thie consent of ihe Mississippi Secretary of State, consistent with the term of the lease described in-the preceding paragraph. When combincd
with the base dnd perceritage rents described for the leases in the: preceding two paragraphs; annual rent underthose two leases and this lease was $3.8 million
for lease year ending July 31, 2010, and estimated 10 be $3.8 million for the lease year.ending July-31; 201 1.Such amounts are subject to decreases due
market adjirstments and increases based on the CPL Also, we are responsible fur annual rent equal to 4 9% of pross retail revenue and gross cash revenue {as
defined in the lease), but without double counting. [f the rent minimum described in the preceding sentences is ot otherwise satisfied from other rents, then
‘this pereentage rent is not in addition to the minimum rent, but rather is to be applied to that minimem.
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We alse lease our Biloxi berth from the Biloxi Pont Commission at an annual rent of'the greater of $310,000 or 1% of the gross gaming revenue net of
state and local gaming taxes. The Jease terminates on July 1, 2014 and we have the option to renew it for six additional ferms of five years each subject to
increases based on the CPI, limited 10 6% for each renewal period.

In connection with and pursuant to a settiement between the City of Biloxi and the State of Mississippi concerning the control and management of the
area where we are located, we also have agreed to pay the City of Biloxi's lease obligations to the State of Mississippi for an agreed upon period of time. This
amount is $580,000 per year, payable on June 30, subject 16 increases based on the CPl and decreases if there are other tenants of the subject property. This
obligation ends after June 2018 but may be renewed for thirty years,

Natchez

Through nemerous lease agreements, we lease approx;matc]y 24 acres of land in Watchez, Mississippi thar are used in connection with the operations of
ous Natchez property. Unless terminated by us at an easlier datz, the leases have varying expiration dates through 2037. Annual rent under the leases total
approximately $1.2 million. We also lease apprmumalc!y 1.5 acres of land that js utitized for parking at the fucility. We own approximutely & additional acres
of property in Natchez, Mississippi, as well as the property upon which our hose] is Incated.

Vicksburg
We own approximately 60 acres in Vicksburg, Mississippi which are used in connection with the operations of our Vicksbrurg property.
-Kansas City

We lease approximately 28 acres of land from the Kansas City Port Authority,in connection with the operation of our Kansas City property. The term of
the original lease was ten years and was renewed in October 2606 for an additional five years. The lease includes seven additional five-year rencwal options,
The minimum lease payments correspond to any rise or fall-in the CP1, initially after the ten-year term of the lease or, October [8, 2006 and thereafier, at each
five year rencwal date. Rent under the lease currently is the greater of $2.6 million (mininyum rem) per year, or 3.25% of gross revenues, léss
coimplinentaries.

Boonvitle

We lease our 27 acre casino site in Boonville pursvant to a lease agreement with the City of Boonville, Under the terms of agreement, we lease he site
for g pcnod of nincty-ninc years. In licu of rent, we arc assessed additional amounts by the City of Boonville based on a 3.5% tax on gaming revenue, up to
£1.0'million, which we recognize as additional paming taxes.

-Caruthersville

We own approximately 37 acres, including our riverboat casine and 1,000 parking spaces in Caruthersville, Missouri,

Bertendorf

We own approximately 24.6 acres of land in Bettendorf, lowa used in connection with the aperations of our Bettenderf property.. We also operate under a
long-term lcase with the City of Bettendorf, the QC Waterfront Convemtion Center that is adjacent to our new hotel tower. Future minimum payments

associated with the convention center are approximately $1.1 million per year. We
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also tease approximately cight acres of land on ¢ month-to-month basis from an entity owmd by members of the.Goldstein fam:ly, including Robent 8.
Goldstein, vur Vice Chairman of the Board and Jetirey D. Goldstein and Richard A. Gioldsicin, directors of our company. which we iitilize for parkmg The
initia) term of the lease expires 60 days after written notice is given to either party and rent under the lease is currentty $60.000 annually. We. terminated a
‘lease fur warehouse space in January 2010 with the same entity. -

Davenport

Purseant to various lease agreements with the City of Davenport, we lease appreximately 12 acres'of'land in Davenport, lowa tsed in connection with
the operations of our Davenport property. The aggregate annual rent on these leases is approximately. 50.2 million and they have varying cxpiration dates
through 2022,

: Marquene

We lease the dock site in Marquetie, lowa that is used in connection with our* Mmquclte Operalions. The lease expires in 2019 and annual reat under the
lease is appm\umatclv $1£0,000, pius $1.00 per passenger, phos 2.5% of gaming revenues (less state wagering taxes) in excess ol' 520.0 million but less than
$40.0 million: 3% of gaming revenues (less state wagcering taxes) in excess of $3070 mllhon but-less than $60.0 million; and 7. 5% of gaming revenues (less.
state wagering taxes) in excess of $60.0 million. We have an easement related 10 an ovcrhead pcdt.'stnan bndgc and dnvcway that is an annoal | payment of
approximately $6;300. We also own approximatcly 25 acres of land for the pavilion, satellne offices, warehouse lots by the marina and other propcrt}

Warerioo

We own approximately 34 acres of land in Waterloo, lowa nsed in comection wjm:thp‘opéraiio'n. of our Waterloo property. We also entered intd o three-
year lease agreement for 17,517 square feet of warehouse space. Rent under.this leasc is cureritly $5,021. per.month,

Isle-Biack Hawk

We own approximately 10 acres of land in Black Hiwk, Colorado for use in connection with our, Black Hawk operations: The property leases an
additional parcel.of Jand adjoining the [sle-Black Hawk where the Lady Luck Hotél and parking are located. This lease is for an initial term of niné years with
optians 10 renew tor |8 additional terms of five years each with the final option periad concluding June 'L, 2094. Arinual rent is currently $1.83 million
indexed 10 comrespond to any rise or fall in the CP1 at one-year intervals, notto exceed-a 3% incréase or decrease from the previons year's rate.

Lady Luck-Black Hawk

We own or lease approximately seven acres of land in Black llawk, Colarado for use in connection with the Lady Luck-Black llawk The property leases
an additional parcel of land near the Lady Luck-Black lawk for, parkmg as described above, This lease is for an initial term of 10 years with Gptions 1o renew
for nine additional terms of 10 years each with the final option period cnndu:[mg Aupuist 2094, Currently the annual rent is $576,000 and renewals are suhject

to 20% rent increases over the rate of the previous term.

Pompano

We own approximately 223 acres at Pompano.
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Other

We awn all of the riverboats and barges utilized at our facilities. We also’own or lease all of our ‘gaming and non-gaming equipment.
We lease our principal corporaie ofiice in Creve Coeur, Missouri, and office space in-Biloxi, Mississippi.

We own additional property and have various property leases and options to ¢ithier lease orpurchase property that are not direcily related to our existing
‘operations and that may be utilized in the future in connection with expansion projects at our éxisting facilities or.development of new projects.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Our,whoily owned subsidiary, Lady Luck Gaming Corporation, and sevéfal joint venturé.partners have been defendants in the Greek Civil Courts and the
Greek Adminisuative Courts in similar lawsuits brought by the country of Greecc The actions allcge that the defendants failed to make specified payments in
connection with the gaming license bid process for Patras, Gicece- A]though it is difficult to determine the damages being sought from the lawsuits; the action
may seek damages up to that aggregate amount plus interest from the date of. the action.

In the Civil Court lrwsuit, the Civil Court of First Instance ruled in obr favor and dismissed the. lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed to the Civil Appeal
Coun and, in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal. Grecee then appetled lo the le Supremc Court and, in 2007, the Supreme Court ruled that the matter was
not p;’uper}y hefore the Civil Couris and should be before the Administrative Court.

In the Administrative Court lawsuit, the Administrative Court of First lnstance rejected LhL lawsuit'stating that it was not competent to hear the maiter.
Greece then .:ppcalcd to the Adininistrative Appeal Court, which court rc_]r:cwd the appcal in 2003. Greece theri appealed to the Supreme Administrative
Court, which remanded the matter back to the Administrative Appeal Court’ fora hearmg on the merits, The re-hearing took place in 2006, and in-2008 the
Admml:lratwe Appeal Court rejected Greece's appeal on procedural grounds. On Duccmbm‘ 7‘2 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed the raling to the
Supreme Admiinistrative Court. A hearing has tentatively been scheduled for October 2011 ) .

The outcome of this matter is stith in doubt and cannot he predicted with any degree ofcenninry We intend io continue 2 vigorous and appropnate
defense 1o the claims asserted in this matter. Through April 24, 2011, we have accrued an ¢S$timated liability mc]udmg interest of $11.7 million. Our acerual is
based upon management's estimate of the original claim by the pldmuﬂs for lost payments. We continue 1o accrue interest on the asserted claim.. We are
unable to estimate a total passible loss as information as to possible udditional clais, if any, have not been asserted of quantified by the plaintiffs at this time.

We and our wholly-owned subsidizry, Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi ("RCM”), are defendants’in a-lawsuit filed in the Circuit Court of Adams
County, Mississippi by Silver Land, Inc., Jlleging breach of contract in conneg¢tion with our 2006 sale of casino operations in Vicksburg, Mississippi, to a
third: party.In January 2011, the court ruled in favor of Silver Land and sc.heduled a hearing for damages. The hearing is currently scheduled for September
2011-und Silver Land has asserted damages ofappmumutely $2.4 million, plus interest from Lhc ongmn] Jjudgment date in January 2011, The outcome of this
matter is still in doubt and cannot be predicated with any dcgree of ccrtainty, We intend to continue a vigorous and appropriate defense to the claims asserted

by Silver Land in this matter. After damages are assessed, we plan to appeal the judgmient of the circuit court and we believe it is more likely than not we wili
obtain a favorable ruling on appeal.
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. W are subject 1o ceniain federal, siate and Yocal environmental protection, health and safety laws, fegalotions and ordinances that apply 10 businesses
gl.ﬂl-!'d"y and are subject to cleunup requirements at certain of our faciliiies as a result thercofl, We have not made, and do not anticipate making miterial
,expendnures nor do we anticipate incurring delays with respect to envirenmental remediation-or protection. Howe»er in part becouse our present and future
development sites have, in some cases, been used as manufacturing facilites or other Eailities that generate: miaterials that ase required to be remediated under
environmental laws and regiilations, there can be no puarantec that additional pre:existing conditions will not be discovered and we will not experience
material liabilities or delays.

"We'are subject to various contingencies and litigation matters and have a number, of, unresalved ¢laims. Although the ultinate liability of these
contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannot be determined at this time, we believe they will not have s material adverse effect on our consolidated

financial posinon, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]
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PART IT

ITEM 5: ‘MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

(2}

i Market Information.  Qur common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Sclect Market under the symbol "ISLE". The following table
presents the high and low closing sales prices for our cosmmon stotk as reporied by.the NASDAQ Global Select Market for the fiscal periods
Liticated.
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i Holders of Common Stock.  As of tune 13, 2011, there were apprnximatcl&' 1,344 holders of record of our common stock.

iii. Dividends. We have never declared or paid any dividends with respect to our common stock and the current policy of our board of direciors is
to retain eamnings 10 provide for the growth of our company, In addition, our senior secured credit facility and the indentures governing our 7%
senior subordinated notes and our 7.75% sepior notes limit our ability o pay dividends. See "ltem'8--Financizl Statements and-Supplementary
Data—Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.—Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 8." Consequently, no cash dividends are expected to be
paid on our common'siock in the foresecable future. Further, there can be no assurance that our current and proposed operations would generate
the funds needed 10 deciare a cash dividend or that we would have legally svadlable funds 1o pay dividends. In “addition, we may fund part of our
operations in the furure from indebtedness, the terms of which may further prohibit or restrict the | payment of cash dividends. tf s Holder of
common stock is disqualified by the regulatory authorities from owning Such-shares, such ho]dv:r will not be permined to receive any dividends
with respect to such stock. See "ltem 1—Business—Governmental Regulations:”

(b}  [Issuance of Unregistered Securities

None,
(c) Purchases of our Common Stock

We have purchased our common stock under stock repurchase programs. These progrims allow for the repurchase of up 1o 6,000,000 shares. To date we
have purchased 4,895,792 shares of common stock under these programs. These programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expiration dates. No

purchases were made during the fiscal year ended April 24, 2011.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUM _ULA;I'I\'E-'I'QTAI_,_ RETURN*
Among Iske of Capri Casinos, Inc., the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the Dow Jones US Gambling Index
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The- fnlluwmg table presents our sedected consolidated financial data for the tive most recent fiscal years, which is desived from our audited consolidated
financial statements and the notes to these statements. Because the data in this table does not provide all of the data contained in our.consolidated financial
statcrnents, mdudmg the related notes, you should read "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition end Results of Operations,” our
“consoiidated financial statements, including the related notes contained elséwhere in this document and other data we have filed with thé U.S. Securities and
'Exchange Cammission.
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) Our fscal year ended April 30, 2006 includes 53 weeks whilz all ather fiscal years include 52 weeks: ‘The resulis reflect Lucaya, Biue Chip. Coveutry, Bossier City
and our previous Vicksbury properties as discontinued ommmn\ We opcned uew gasinp uperations i Porpage, Florida and W aterloo, lown in April 2007 and
June 2007, respectively. We acquired our casino operativns in Carutheraviile, Mizsoun in June 2007, We > avquired vuf current ca>ino operations in Vicksburg,
Mississippd in June 2010.
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I'TEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION ,\?«'D'RESUI,,’I‘S OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion togather with the financial statements, inchiding the refated notes and the other financial information,
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Exceutive Overview

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and related lodging and entertainment facilities in regional markets in the
United States. We have soughl and established geographic diversity to limii the tisks caused by weather, regmnal economic d:fbcuhtcs goming tax rates and
Tegulations of local gaming authorities. We curently operate casinos in stsssslpp\ Lovigiana, Missout, lawa, Colorado and Florida. We also operate a
harness racing track at our casino in Florida.

Significant Accomplishments Impacting Current and Future Operations—TDnuring the fiscal year ended April 24,2011, we completed several significant
accomplishments as follows:

Acquisition

Acquisition of Rainbow Casino—W e acquired Rainbow Casino—Vicksburg Parumrthp, L.P. ("Rainbow") located in Vicksburg, ‘Mississippi on
June 8, 2010 acquirtng 100% of the partnership interests for $76.2, million and have included the results of Rainbow in aur consolidated financial
statements subsequent 1o June 8, 2010. The acguisition was {unde_d by bg;rougmgs.ﬁ-pm:uu; senior secured credit faclhty

‘Capital Transactions

Equity Offering—During January 2011, we completed the sale of 5.3 million shares of common stock generating net proceeds of $51:2 million.
Proceeds from our equily offering have been used to repay long-term debt,

Senior Notes—On March 7, 2011, we issued $300 million of 7.75% scnior nates due 2019, Proceeds from this debt issuance were used to repay
bormowings under our senior secured credit faciity.

Senjor Secured Credit Facility—On Mareh 25, 2011, we amended our senioy seeured eredit facility: “Following this amendment, owr credi facility
totals 5800 million, consisting of a $300 million ]'5\'0]\' ing line of credit and a £500 million term [oan. The credit fdulny matares on November 1, 2013
or if the 7% senior subordinated nates are refinanced on or prior 1o that daie, the revolving line of credit matures on March ":), 2016 and the term loan
matares o March 25, 2017,

»

These cquity and debt transactions have resufted in a reduction in our total debt, extension of our maturities and provide:borrowing capacity ta fund
current and future capital ¢xpenditures for both our existing propertics and for our development projects.

Development Activities

Cape Girardeau—On December 1, 2010, our proposed casino in Cape Girardean, Missouri was selected by the Missouri Gaming Commission for
prioritization for the 131 and final gaming license in the State of Missouri. We had previously entered imo a development agreement with the City of
Cape Girardeau. The project is expected to include 1,000 slot machines, 2% table games, three restaurants, a Jounge and terrace ov erlooklng the

Mississippi River and a 750-seat event
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center. We currently estimate the cost of the pruject at approximately $125 miilion with $13.0 million spent through April 24, 2011. We amticipate
opening by the end of calendar 2012.

Nemacalin—On Aprit 14, 2011, cur proposed project at the Nemacolin Waodlands Resart.was selected by the Pennsylvania Gaming Control
‘Board for the final category 3 gaming license in Pennsylvania. We had prcnously cntered into an agreement with Nemacolin to complete the build-out
of the casino space and provide mahagement services of the casino. The casino is cxpectcd to include 600'slot machines, 28 table games, a casual dining
restaurant and !uunge We w:]] pay an annual fee 1o the reson owner 'md in ruum will receive a managemem ﬁ:e cqua] to the EBITDA of the msmo
months of the commencement of constraction. The award of the license to i\emdr_o]m is qubjem o 2:30- day appeal period, which ends on June 20, 2011,
-and the' obtainment of a management licensc.

Opera.rmg Resufts—QOur opemtmg results for the periods presented have been uﬁlctcd both positively. and negatively, by cument economic conditions
and several other factdrs discussed in detail below. Our historical operating results may nit be indicitive of pur future resiihs of opérations because of these
factors and the changing competitive landscape in each of our markets, as well as by, factors discussed elsewhere herein. This Management's Discussion and
Anatysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations shoudd be read inconjunction with and g"iv_i_ng consideration to the following:

items impacting Income (Loss) frem Continuing Operations—Significantitems impacting our income (loss) fram continning opemnons during the
fiscal years ended Apnl 24, 2011, Apdl 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009 are as follows:

Florida Gaming Law Changes—Effective July 1, 2010, the statc partion of gaming taxes applicable to our Pempano property was reduced
_ from $0% to 35% of gaming revenues, Additionally, this ]cgnlauon removed poker betting limits and allowed us to expasid our poker hours from
12 hours per day to 18 hours per day Monday through Thursday” and 24 lours per day on Eriday throuph Sunday. Our casino revenues and gaming
1xes reflect the favorable impact of these changes in state gaming laws.

Increased Competition—The opening of a new hotel in October 2009 by a competitor.in Black Hawk, Colorado has had a negative impact on
wur Blavk Hawk, Colorado propesty.

Expense Recoveries and Other Charges, nel—During fiscal 2010, we reeorded an othef expense reduction of $6.8 million representing the
discounted value of a recejvable for reimbursement of developnient costs expensed in prior periods relating to a terminated plan to develop a
casino in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. This reeeivable was recorded following our assessment of collectability.

As a result of onr annual impairment tests of goodwill and long-hived mmnglble assetd under. ASC 350, we recorded impairment charges of
$13.3 million ot our Black Hawk property in fiscal 2009. The results from opcratmns for fiscal 2009 also include a $11.9 million write-off of
construction in progress at our Biloxi property fo!towmg our dm.lsmn not to continue 4 pre\'muzly annc:pawd constriction pm_'ec:, and a
$6.0 million charge following our termination of an agreement fora potential dwclopment of a Gasino in Portiand, Oregort.

Hurricane and Other Insurance Recaveries, net—Qur insurance recoveries for fiscal 2009 include $92.2 million relating to the final
settlement of our Hurnicane Katring claim at our Biloxi property and other insurance recoveries.

Gain (Loss} on Early Extinguishment of Deb—During fiseal 2009, we retired $142.7 million of our senjor subordinated notes, throngh a
tender offer, for a cash payment of $82.8 million utilizing the proceeds from our Hurricane Katrina settdement and repaid
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